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Abstract

The study tried to pinpoint the impact of managerial efficiency on firm perfor-

mance through earnings quality and the moderating role of corporate governance.

The study also tried to differentiate the significant effect of managerial efficiency

permanency and short-term managerial efficiency on firm performance. Manage-

rial efficiency has been measured by using data envelopment analysis (DEA) on an

input-output basis. By using the data envelopment analysis (DEA), firm efficiency

has been captured and afterward, firm efficiency has been taken as a function of

firm size, market share of company, firm age, business segment, and foreign cur-

rency translation. This function regressed and residual values have been used as

a proxy for managerial efficiency. The study also used the control variables at the

firm level (Firm size, firm age, sale growth, sale volatility, financial slack, leverage)

country-level governance, and macro-economic variables (Exchange rate, Interest

rate, GDP growth, and FDI).

The panel data has been collected from 492 firms of non-financial sectors for the

period of 11 years (2009-2019) in the context of emerging economies (Pakistan,

India, and Bangladesh). System Generalized Method of Moments (GMM) has

been applied for analysis purpose. The results of the study are the addition to

the existing body of knowledge that how managerial efficiency affects the firm

performance through earnings quality. The study also added the literature about

investigating the moderating role of corporate governance in this relationship in

the context of emerging economies. The results are indicating that managerial ef-

ficiency has a positive influence on return on assets in the context of all emerging

economies whether consider individually or collectively. Moreover, the results are

further showing that in the case of Bangladesh and the pooling of companies from

all selected countries a positive impact of managerial efficiency on Tobin’s Q has

been reported, but a negative influence on Tobin’s Q in the context of Pakistan

and India is reviewed. The results are also showing that managerial efficiency per-

manency has a significantly different influence on firm performance as compared

to managerial efficiency for a short run. Moreover, the corporate governance mea-

sured by the board structure index improves the relationship between managerial



x

efficiency and firm performance in the context of all emerging economies. The out-

come of the study is also showing that earnings quality mediates in the relationship

between managerial efficiency and firm performance.

The results of the study provided guidelines for policymakers that how corpo-

rate governance in emerging economies is effective in improving firm performance.

Moreover, the study is also helpful for creditors and loan providers to scruti-

nize managerial efficiency, corporate governance, earnings quality, and firm per-

formance before supplies of raw materials on credit and granting the loan. The

study is also an addition in existing literature regarding managerial efficiency per-

manency, which further open the doors to future research.

Key words: Managerial Efficiency, Managerial Efficiency Permanency,

Earnings Quality, Corporate Governance Index, Firm Performance, Data

Envelopment Analysis.
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Chapter 1

Introduction

During all times, struggles have been made to improve firm performance, which

is necessary to achieve the firm’s ultimate objective, i.e., ”maximization of share-

holders’ wealth.” managerial efficiency plays an essential role in achieving this

objective as managers have their vigilant watch on investment opportunities and

healthy projects for the investment purpose, ultimately contributing to maximizing

the shareholders’ wealth (Naeem and Li, 2019). Because of financing restrictions

Hubbard (1998) and capital market frictions Chen et al. (2017), the managers

are reluctant to invest in all value-maximizing investments, which also impact the

performance of the business.

Past studies provide ample evidence for effective implementation of financing as

well as investing strategies, and accurate estimation of future earnings depends

upon the managers’ ability (Bertrand and Schoar, 2003; Bamber et al., 2010; Hol-

comb et al., 2009; Baik et al., 2011; Demerjian et al., 2012). Ultimately, managers

with better future forecasting skills contribute positively to the value and perfor-

mance of a firm (Chemmanur and Paeglis, 2005; Goodman et al., 2014).

In both neoclassical finance and behavioral finance paradigms, it is assumed that

managers are entirely able to maximize the shareholders’ wealth. In neoclassical

finance, the managers are rational while making the corporate decisions, but in

behavioral finance paradigm, managers make the corporate decisions based on

emotions and cognitive ability (Abdeldayem and Sedeek, 2018). However, the

1
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corporate decisions of both types of managers influence the firm performance.

Theoretical past studies enclosed the influence of managerial efficiency on cor-

porate decisions and discussed that heterogeneous managerial efficiency brings

heterogeneity in corporate financing decisions Heaton (2002); Malmendier and

Tate (2005); Hackbarth (2009). Statistical evidence supports theoretical studies

that managerial efficiency influences corporate decisions Abdeldayem and Sedeek

(2018), leading to corporate performance (Kaplan et al., 2012). According to

Martin and Staines (2008) that the key reason for the firm failure is the lacking

managerial skills, experience, and personal qualities. The continuity of managerial

efficiency in terms of utilization of resources in an effective way is an essential fac-

tor for a company to sustain itself in long term. Therefore, managerial efficiency

permanency is also necessary for the firm performance for long-run sustainability.

Past studies highlighted the relationship between management characteristics (CEO

attributes, management overconfidence, financial expertise) and earnings quality

that management contributes to earnings quality, which influence the financial

reporting (Francis et al., 2008). The balancing of the information among the

users of the information reduces the risk of the investors as a precarious situa-

tion is converted into certainty up to some extent and then the investors make

their investment decisions without fear. On the other side, in business due to the

balance of information, the confidence of the investor increased towards better

future outcomes and they invested in the business and business get financing and

avails the investment opportunities, therefore, removal of information asymmetric

by improving earnings quality minimize the agency issue.

Demerjian et al. (2013) reported that managerial efficiency improves the earning

quality, which is effectively contribute in financial statements and finally it helps

the investor to make the investment decisions. Earnings are the primary compo-

nent used in investors’ and analysts’ valuation models, therefore businesses with

low earning quality typically have higher capital expenses (Francis et al., 2005).

Earnings quality is also a key factor in minimizing the asymmetric information

between management and shareholders (Bushman and Smith, 2001). Information

asymmetry is a cause to create an issue between managers and shareholders due

to which the cost of financing and project selection is increased Myers and Majluf
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(1984) due to which managers often cannot gain from investment opportunities

Benlemlih and Bitar (2018), which ultimately affects the firm performance. Finan-

cial reporting provides a platform to shareholders by informing them about past

operations and management’s future financial and investing decisions (Boubaker

et al., 2018). This argument suggests that earnings quality is one of the solutions

for improving firm performance by minimizing information asymmetric (Biddle

et al., 2009; Garćıa-Meca et al., 2015; Shahzad et al., 2020).

Although managers are the most important factor to contribute to firm perfor-

mance by improving earning quality, the agency issue is prominent due to man-

agers’ tendency towards their interest while utilizing the resources of a company,

which causes the loss of the actual soul of shareholders’ interest (Jensen, 1986).

Jensen and Meckling (1976) put out the idea of agency issue, which clarifies that all

associated parties, such as managers, stockholders, creditors, loan providers, and

others, operate in their self-interests. In businesses, the owners choose the man-

agers to use their resources to their most significant advantage to increase their

wealth, for which they are paid (Jensen and Meckling, 1976). Management work in

their interests and has access to more information than shareholders; hence there

may be a conflict between shareholders and managers (Bosse and Phillips, 2016).

When both parties have different goals in mind, the agency problem occurs. In-

vestors (the principals) put money into a company in the hopes that the managers

(the agents) would use it to fund the most outstanding initiatives, maximizing

their wealth, but the managers will have their interests. Thus, a disagreement

known as an agency problem will develop between the two parties.

Asymmetric information view explains why managers act in the best interests of

shareholders and on the other hand, the agency perspective suggests that managers

behave in their best interests (Chen et al., 2011). Managers seek to take advantage

of investment possibilities that have their welfare and are not in shareholders’ best

interests, according to (Jensen and Meckling, 1976). The studies reported that

managers are key persons in the financial reporting process and influence earnings

by operating decisions (Choi et al., 2015). Even with solid managerial practices

and financial disclosure, a system is needed to minimize the agency issue between

management and shareholders. This mechanism is called corporate governance,
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and it enables managers to be held accountable and compelled to act in the best

interests of shareholders.

Monitoring the managers’ actions through an effective corporate governance struc-

ture helps to reduce agency concerns (Shahwan and Habib, 2020). Board is consid-

ered an essential factor that monitors and mitigates the tendency of management’s

self-interest Charreaux et al. (1998), and this self-interest ruins the firm’s value

(Shin et al., 2020). Members of the board directly impact management’s choices

about business operations, finances, and investment activities. Shin et al. (2020),

so corporate governance influences managerial efficiency. In corporate governance,

the board has the authority to reject the ineffective decisions of the managers, and

the board is also responsible for monitoring, supervising, and counseling managers

on how to make good decisions (Weisbach, 1988). An effective corporate gover-

nance mechanism is a significant factor that can be considered to mitigate agency

issues and improve firm performance. So, corporate governance modifies the re-

lationship of managerial efficiency with firm performance; therefore, one of the

study’s objectives is to check out the moderating role of corporate governance in

the relationship between managerial efficiency and firm performance.

In a nutshell, the manager is considered a more critical component and driving

force to achieve the firm’s objective, i.e., maximization of the shareholders’ wealth.

However, due to agency issues and after the Asian and global financial crises of

2002 and 2008, respectively, the debate on earnings quality, corporate governance,

application of accounting standards, and accountability started Al-Sartawi (2013);

Alsartawi (2018) is emerged as a hot issue, which ultimate purpose is to reduce

the agency issue by protecting the shareholders’ rights. Resultantly, the economies

are engaged more in rethinking and refining the rules and regulations to ensure

that companies have a more effective internal control system and timely financial

reporting (Ramadhan, 2014). Therefore, the main questions and objectives of the

study are to check how corporate governance strengthens the relationship between

managerial efficiency and firm performance by monitoring the managers and how

earnings quality mediates between managerial efficiency and firm performance.

However, another issue has been reviewed and emerged during the research, which

is the ineffectiveness of corporate governance in emerging economies due to the
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presence of weak and complicated information systems Zhang et al. (2017); because

of that, the existence of asymmetric information is expected in emerging economies

(Choe et al., 2005). Therefore, the study is required to conduct in the scenario of

emerging economies, so this study was planned to conduct in the scenario of south

Asian lower-income emerging economies (Pakistan, India, and Bangladesh)

1.1 Theoretical Background with Respect Un-

der Pinning and Supportive Theories

There are two underpinning theories related to agency issues, corporate gover-

nance, and earnings quality : agency and signaling theories. A single governance

theory is insufficient to adequately characterize the link between the board of di-

rectors and business performance since it is incredibly diversified and complicated

(Nicholson and Kiel, 2007). However, four other supportive theories have also been

explained in this section: stewardship theory, stakeholder theory, Echelon theory,

and Resource-based view theory.

1.1.1 Agency Theory

The conflict between shareholders (Principals) and management is explained by

agency theory (the agents). Jensen and Meckling (1976) put out this idea, which

clarifies that all associated parties, such as managers, stockholders, creditors, loan

providers, and others, operate in their self-interests. In businesses, the owners

choose the managers to use their resources to their most significant advantage to

increase their wealth, for which they are paid (Jensen and Meckling, 1976). Be-

cause managers represent their interests and access more information than share-

holders, there may be a conflict between the shareholders and the management

(Bosse and Phillips, 2016). When both parties have different goals in mind, the

agency problem occurs. Investors (the principals) put money into a company in

the hopes that the management (the agents) would use it to fund the most signifi-

cant initiatives, maximizing their wealth while also looking out for their interests.

Thus, a conflict will arise between both parties called an agency issue.
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Consequently, a strong board is needed to safeguard shareholders’ rights (Opler

et al., 1999). The agency issue may be reduced by keeping an eye on the managers’

actions through a robust corporate governance structure (Shahwan and Habib,

2020). On the other hand, a better quality of earnings is required to mitigate the

agency issue. A significant aspect of reducing the informational disparity between

management and shareholders is earnings quality, which contributes in earnings

quality (Bushman and Smith, 2001). Information asymmetry may be reduced

by disclosing and highlighting the projects’ positive Net Present values to the

investors (Biddle et al., 2009). The demand for earnings quality is created due to

conflict between parties and the problem of information asymmetric.

Moreover, effective corporate governance is also required to minimize agency is-

sues. According to the shareholder model, founded on agency theory, corporate

governance is a device used to reduce the agency problem between a principal and

an agent (Maxfield et al., 2018). Therefore, the underpinning theory of the study

to minimize the agency issue is agency theory, which depicts the significance of

both corporate governance and earnings quality in mitigating the agency issue,

enhancing the firm performance through better governance, and minimizing the

uncertainty. The theory helped in the study to create the link between manage-

rial efficiency and firm performance with moderating role of corporate governance

and mediating role of earnings quality . The theory elaborates the agency issue

is existed due to the personal interest of the managers and due to manipulation

of managers in financial reporting, therefore a mechanism is essential to monitor

the managers vigilantly to protect the shareholders’ rights, which corporate gov-

ernance, therefore, the theory also helpful for the study to create the moderating

role of corporate governance in the relationship between managerial efficiency and

firm performance.

1.1.2 Signaling Theory

Signaling theory explains when two parties (Managers and Shareholders) have

information asymmetry, then how a manager should send his message to mini-

mize the information asymmetry (Bhattacharya, 1979; Miller and Rock, 1985).

Therefore, the managers improve the earnings quality to disseminate a signal for
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mitigation of information asymmetry. Brigham and Houston (2011) elaborated

that signal theory gives the signal on the behavior of the management to the in-

vestor about managerial strategies and direction for prospects of the corporation.

It also shows that signal is in the form of information about the future growth and

performance of the company, and this Theory also deals with asymmetric infor-

mation, which means if one party has more information than the other. earnings

quality matters much more for the investors as this discloses adequate information

for investors for the decisions of their future investment, which ultimately affect

the firm performance (Kim et al., 2009). Additionally, from the perspective of

the signaling theory (Spence, 1973, 2002), higher-quality accounting data offers a

more accurate indication of underlying performance, and companies with a better

company operating performance are anticipated to have more incentives to provide

earnings data of a higher quality to show the actual status of the firm and thereby

avoid adverse selection.

Thus, signaling theory elaborates that those managers improve the earnings qual-

ity to disseminate a signal in the market for mitigation of asymmetric information,

which will reduce the idiosyncratic risk of the investors, which helps improve the

firm performance. This discussion shows that earnings quality is a mediator be-

tween managerial efficiency and firm performance. Therefore, this theory is helpful

to create the mediating link between earnings quality and firm performance.

1.1.3 Stewardship Theory

The stewardship theory is an alternative to the agency theory proposed by Don-

aldson and Davis (1989), which explains that a manager is a steward and wants

to perform the best with his inner feelings to do his best to safeguard the rights

of the shareholders. The stewardship idea, part of corporate governance, is an al-

ternative normative framework to agency theory. The stewardship theory, which

explains the strong relationship between employee pleasure and business perfor-

mance, states simply that managers would spend their resources properly if left

to their own devices. Thus, the managers work to maximize shareholders’ wealth

with the feeling that they are accountable for their work. Davis et al. (1997) dis-

cussed that stewards (managers) are eager to meet the organizational objectives
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and add the firm value by serving it. Therefore, the study takes the concept of

inner feeling of managers to account for their deeds from this theory and applies it

to managers who perform efficiently for value maximization by investing in worth-

while projects. So, the managers’ efficiency improves the firm performance, and

their efficiency permanently affects the firm performance for a long time.

1.1.4 Stakeholder Theory

Stakeholders who influence the firm’s value are categorized into internal and exter-

nal stakeholders (Freeman, 2010). The portfolio of internal stakeholders includes

directors, employees, managers, and all others involved in the governance struc-

ture. External stakeholders are suppliers, customers, distributors, Govt., regula-

tory bodies, and all others linked with a firm’s working environment. Freeman

(2010) discussed that a corporation is responsible for governing in a manner in

which the stakeholders’ interests are protected, and if a firm fails to do so, it goes

down and loses its values. According to Donaldson and Preston (1995), Stake-

holder management calls for simultaneous consideration of the legitimate interests

of all relevant stakeholders, both in the formulation of organizational structures

and general policies as well as in the making of specific decisions.

Stakeholder theory argues that a board should function to monitor the manage-

ment and safeguard stakeholders’ interests (Heath and Norman, 2004). Therefore,

the stakeholder theory explains that corporate governance is essential in protect-

ing all stakeholders’ rights by improving firm performance. Resultantly, it reduces

the agency issues between managers and shareholders and may modify the rela-

tionship between managerial efficiency and firm performance. The theory helps

the study that how managers and corporate governance is effective for firm per-

formance and both matters are related with the internal stakeholders. Moreover,

external level factors including the government level factors and regulatory bodies

are also linked with the firm performance, therefore, the study also incorporated

country level governance, economic growth, interest rate and exchange rate as

control variables.
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1.1.5 Resource Based View Theory

The idea of resource-based perspectives clarifies the importance of managers (Hol-

comb et al., 2009). This Theory explains that a firm’s ability to maintain its

competitive edge depends on its managers’ capacity to use its resources efficiently

(Garćıa-Meca and Garćıa-Sánchez, 2018). Managers make judgments based on

their experiences and formal education in a particular field, which further con-

tributes to the organization’s success (Collins et al., 2009). Thus, managerial ed-

ucational efficiency directly impacts the company’s success, including shareholder

return, firm growth, and innovation. This Theory explains how effectively the

managers permanently use the organization’s resources for long-term competitive

advantage by investing in worthwhile projects. Therefore, managerial efficiency

permanency measured on an input-output-based leads to firm performance, and

firm performance, further contributing to competitive advantage in the long term.

1.2 Research Gap

After reviewing the theories and past literature, the following research gap has

been identified.

The past studies indicates that managerial efficiency significantly contributes in

improving the information quality and in financial performance (Baik et al., 2011;

Demerjian et al., 2013; Yung and Chen, 2018). The managerial efficiency also af-

fects the innovative success of corporate Chen et al. (2015), investment efficiency

Andreou et al. (2017), and cost of debt (Bui et al., 2018). However, the influ-

ence of managerial efficiency on earnings quality is studied limitedly. Moreover,

the continuity in managerial efficiency is also required to be studied. Therefore,

firstly, the study has provided empirical evidence of the relationship between man-

agerial efficiency and firm performance, and afterward, the effect of consistency of

managerial efficiency on firm performance has also been tested empirically.

The permanency of positive managerial efficiency is required to utilize resources

appropriately and to take competitive advantage. The concept of managerial effi-

ciency permanency has been taken from the study (Jeong et al., 2018; Noor et al.,
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2020). Therefore, it is a theoretical and empirical contribution of the study for

adding managerial efficiency permanency and its influence on firm performance.

The study measured managerial efficiency at the first stage based on data envelop-

ment analysis, which is the input-output-based method. Afterward, by following

Jeong et al. (2018), managerial efficiency permanency has been measured by a

dummy variable, 1 if managerial efficiency is equal to or more than 3 times over

the most recent four years and otherwise 0.

Although managerial efficiency is important to enhance the firm performance, but

managers have their own interest due to which agency issue is existed, which is

required to address by using a mechanism i.e. corporate governance. Corporate

governance is an important mechanism that contributes to firm performance pos-

itively and also plays an essential role in mitigating the agency issue between

managers and shareholders. One of the main approaches is applying the best

corporate governance practices (Shahwan and Habib, 2020). Previous studies in-

vestigated the effect of corporate governance to improve firm performance (Vafeas

and Theodorou, 1998; Dahya and McConnell, 2007; Dahya et al., 2009; Abdou

et al., 2021), however, the empirical investigation of the moderating effect of cor-

porate governance in relationship between managerial efficiency and firm perfor-

mance is still missing. So, the study is planned to determine how corporate gov-

ernance moderates the relationship between managerial efficiency and firm perfor-

mance. Therefore, the best corporate governance practices strengthen the relation-

ship of managerial efficiency with firm performance. To the best of my knowledge,

no empirical findings elaborate on how corporate governance influences the link

between management conduct and business success.

Third, the literature is available which shows the empirical influence of managerial

efficiency in terms of their abilities and utilization of their skills on earnings qual-

ity (Garćıa-Meca and Garćıa-Sánchez, 2018), which further contributes to firm

performance (Miller and Piotroski, 2000). Moreover, earnings quality also has

an impact on investment efficiency (Biddle et al., 2009), due to which the value

of the company is influenced, which ultimately contributes to firm performance.

On one side, managerial efficiency influences earnings quality and further leads to

firm performance. On another side, managerial efficiency directly affects the firm
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performance. So, earnings quality fulfills the conditions of mediating role in the

relationship of managerial efficiency with firm performance (Baron and Kenny,

1986). However, no empirical evidence shows how managerial efficiency influences

firm performance through earnings quality. On one side, managerial efficiency

directly affects the firm performance; on the other hand, it influences firm perfor-

mance through earnings quality (Demerjian et al., 2013). Therefore, it is required

to investigate the empirical mediating role of earnings quality in the relationship

between managerial efficiency and firm performance.

Therefore, the study must be conducted to pinpoint the role of earnings quality

in the relationship between managerial efficiency and firm performance. So, the

study is planned to fill this gap by investigating the impact of managerial efficiency

on firm performance in the presence of earnings quality.

Finally, most of the studies focused only on the developed countries while research-

ing managerial efficiency and firm performance. In emerging economies, corporate

governance practices are ineffective. The institutional environment in emerging

economies is opaque as these economies have fragile and complex information en-

vironments Zhang et al. (2017), and information asymmetric in emerging markets

is familiar Choe et al. (2005), which does not help in protecting the shareholders’

right. Due to market volatility, informational disadvantage, and ineffective cor-

porate governance, investors tend to be risk-averse in emerging economies (Tran,

2020). Thus, emerging economies have weak shareholders’ wealth protection rights

and a poor information environment, which are required to study to improve firm

performance.

Therefore, the study conducted in South Asian lower-income emerging economies

(Pakistan, India, and Bangladesh) to capture the moderating role of corporate

governance and mediating role of earnings quality in the relationship between

managerial efficiency and firm performance. The selection of these three countries

is due to the consistency in the corporate ownership structure (Masud et al., 2018).

Thus, this study is adding the literature to existing body knowledge while captur-

ing the moderating role of corporate governance and mediating role of earnings

quality in the relationship between managerial efficiency and firm performance in

the contexts of emerging economies.
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1.3 Problem Statement

Managers are critical in achieving the firm’s ultimate objectives, i.e., ”Maximiza-

tion of shareholder’s wealth”. Managers make decisions based on investment effi-

ciency Quah et al. (2021) and managerial practices contribute to firm performance

Nemlioglu and Mallick (2017), which ultimately are essential to maximizing the

shareholders’ wealth. Therefore, it is necessary to inquire about and consider the

factors contributing to increasing the firm performance. These factors are clas-

sified into internal factors, which are within the ambit of managerial influence,

and external factors, which are beyond managerial control (Naeem and Li, 2019).

Rationally, the managers pursue and avail themselves of the investment opportu-

nities, which are value maximizing and contribute to adding value to a firm.

However, scarcity of resources limits the managers’ avail of these opportunities

(Naeem and Li, 2019). At this stage, the work of managers starts as they have

discretionary powers to use available funds for firm performance, and managerial

efficiency matters a lot, contributing to corporate performance and firm growth.

However, the actual benefit of better managerial efficiency cannot be attained

unless it is permanent. Therefore, not only the managerial efficiency but also its

permanency is required to be analyzed to test their effect on firm performance.

Managerial efficiency leads to reporting better quality of information as managers

intend to show their efficiency in reports, which further influences their repu-

tation and lowers asymmetric information. One primary purpose for reporting

financial information is to efficiently assist capital allocation and improve invest-

ment decisions (Chen et al., 2011). Prior studies suggest that earnings quality

reduces the asymmetric information and further helps to resolve the under and

over-investment problem (Biddle and Hilary, 2006; Biddle et al., 2009). Earnings

reporting is an independent, verified source of information about the managers’

performance to capital providers (Sloan, 2001). So, firms’ approach to financial

distress measured by transparent financial reporting is an alarming situation for

the future (Habib et al., 2020). So, managerial efficiency influences the earnings

quality, which further contributes to firm performance.
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Another problem is agency conflict between managers and shareholders, which

occurs due to the managers’ self-interest and if one party (Managers) has more

information than the other party (Shareholders). Agency issue is prominent due

to the tendency of managers towards their interest in making investments, which

causes the loss of the actual soul of shareholders’ interest Jensen and Meckling

(1976); Jensen (1986), which leads to corporate over or under investment and

idiosyncratic risk to investors Chiou and Chang (2020) and further affects the

firm performance

The agency issue can also be minimized through a strong and effective governance

mechanism. Shahwan and Habib (2020) argued that the presence of an inde-

pendent board of directors and its sub-committees restricts the managers from

pursuing their self-interest and improves the firm performance. Protecting own-

ers’ and other stakeholders’ interests is the prime reason for corporate governance,

which contributes to minimizing agency risk (Srivastava et al., 2019). Corporate

governance helps outside investors protect their rights Shleifer and Vishny (1997),

and a weak corporate internal control system leads to the firm’s failure and gets

it into financial distress (Habib et al., 2020). Therefore, it is required to investi-

gate the moderating role of corporate governance in the relationship of managerial

efficiency with firm performance.

Moreover, in many emerging economies, corporate governance practices are inef-

fective. The institutional environment in emerging economies is opaque as these

economies have fragile and complex information environments Zhang et al. (2017),

and information asymmetric in emerging markets is familiar Choe et al. (2005),

which does not help in protecting the shareholders’ right. Due to market volatility,

informational disadvantage, and ineffective corporate governance, investors tend

to be risk-averse in emerging economies (Tran, 2020). Thus, emerging economies

have weak shareholders’ wealth protection rights and a poor information environ-

ment, which are required to study to improve firm performance.

Therefore, the main objective of the study is to pinpoint the empirical influence

of managerial efficiency and its permanency on firm performance while analyzing

financial disclosure quality as a mediator and investigating the moderating role
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of corporate governance in the scenario of South Asian lower-income emerging

economies (Pakistan, India, and Bangladesh).

1.4 Research Questions

The study is intended to answer the following questions.

1. Whether managerial efficiency influences the performance of a firm?

2. Is there any moderating role of corporate governance in the relationship

between managerial efficiency and a firm’s performance?

3. Is there any significant difference between the effect of permanent and tem-

porary managerial efficiency on firm performance?

4. Is earnings quality mediating in the relationship of managerial efficiency

performance of a firm?

1.5 Objectives of the Study

The main objectives of the study are as follows:

1. To investigate the influence of managerial efficiency on firm performance.

2. To analyze the moderating role of managerial efficiency in a relationship

between managerial efficiency and firm performance.

3. To check the significant difference between the effect of permanent and tem-

porary managerial efficiency on firm performance.

4. To check the mediating role of earnings quality in the relationship between

managerial efficiency and firm performance.

1.6 Significance of the Study

The significance of the study is classified into theoretical significance, contextual

significance, and practical significance.



Introduction 15

1.6.1 Theoretical Significance

First, the study adds to the existing body of knowledge relating to agency theory

by capturing the moderating effect of corporate governance empirically between

management conduct and business performance. The study also adds the litera-

ture on the empirical relationship of managerial efficiency with firm performance

through earnings quality. The study also provides the empirical evidence of the

resource dependency theory that long-term competitive advantage depends upon

managerial ability. Hence, the study provides statistical evidence that continu-

ity in managerial efficiency in terms of utilization of resources increases the firm

performance more than temporary managerial efficiency in nature.

1.6.2 Contextual Significance

This study aims to empirically investigate the influence of managerial efficiency

permanency on firm performance, which will be an attractive area of research for

researchers and practitioners in future studies. The study also opens new doors for

researchers to conduct their research in the context of the stability of managerial

efficiency . The study also highlights the importance of managers in how they

are necessary to utilize the resources of the business effectively, and their effective

and efficient input is a critical factor in the success of a business. In emerging

economies, the corporate governance mechanism and earnings quality are required

to investigate as without adequate monitoring of the managers and minimizing

the asymmetric information, the achievement of the objective of maximization of

shareholders’ wealth is questionable. The study adds literature on pinpointing

the influence of managerial efficiency and its permanency on firm performance

while mediating the effect of earnings quality, moderating the role of corporate

governance in this relationship in the Emerging Economies (Pakistan, India, and

Bangladesh).

1.6.3 Practical Significance

The results guide policymakers on how corporate governance in emerging economies

influences firm performance. The study’s finding is also fruitful for management
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to make their decisions effectively to enhance the firm performance. Furthermore,

the study’s outcome also has a guideline for policymakers while formulating the

strategy for improvement in firm performance. Additionally, it informs investors

of how management employs resources to increase wealth, which adds to their id-

iosyncratic risk. In addition, the study revealed how corporate governance affects

business performance and helps creditors and loan providers evaluate management

efficiency in light of future firm success. In the case of lower-income emerging

economies in south Asia, the study also suggests that corporate governance mech-

anisms, particularly board structure, are crucial mechanisms to strengthen the as-

sociation between management efficiency and business performance. The findings

indicate that improving corporate governance mechanisms is necessary, particu-

larly in the case of Bangladesh, to reduce monitoring weaknesses and strengthen

the link between managerial conduct and business performance. The study also

suggested that south Asian lower-income emerging economies are required to for-

mulate effective corporate governance policies and to enhance the earnings

quality, which helps minimize the agency issue between managers and shareholders.

1.7 Country Wise Corporate Governance

Investors provide the finance to the business with the intention that the managers

will utilize their investment in their best interest, and future, they will gain a

better return on their investment. However, managers sometimes work for their

interests because an issue is created between managers and investors, i.e., called

agency issues. Increasing transparency through additional disclosures as part of

financial reporting requirements and effective corporate governance can increase

investor trust in businesses and help align managerial interests with those of the

shareholders (Mishra et al., 2021).

Therefore, a mechanism is required to minimize this agency issue and to protect the

shareholders’ rights, and that is corporate governance. According to Shahid and

Abbas (2019), corporate governance is a “process whereby shareholders attempt to

certify that managers of the firms in which they invest provide a sufficient return”.

Many laws and regulations, including the Cadbury Report (1992), Organization
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for Economic Development (OECD) Code (1999), CLERP 9 ((2001), Ramsay

Report (2001), and Sarbanes-Oxley Act (2002), have been established globally to

improve the effectiveness of corporate governance (Sobhan, 2021). Practical and

powerful corporate governance practices help minimize agency issues and protect

the rights of the shareholders, due to which they (shareholders) feel free and safe

to invest in capital markets, ultimately leading to the economic growth of flowing

capital in capital markets. Moreover, Asian Financial Crisis (AFC-2002) and

Global Financial Crisis (GFC-2008) compelled the policymakers to engage their

thoughts to improve and implement an effective corporate governance mechanism.

In emerging economies, effective and more corporate solid governance is required to

protect the shareholders’ rights as in these economies because of the weak and com-

plex institutional environment. Therefore, the study selected three south Asian

lower-income emerging economies (Pakistan, India, and Bangladesh) to probe the

moderating role of corporate governance and mediating earnings quality in the

relationship between managerial efficiency and firm performance. Moreover, most

companies in these emerging economies listed on the stock exchanges run family-

owned businesses.

1.7.1 Corporate Governance in Pakistan

Due to the Security Exchange Commission’s efforts, Pakistan’s corporate gover-

nance structure now complies with international norms. The Security Exchange

Commission of Pakistan took a significant step toward corporate governance re-

forms in 2002. The primary goal of Pakistan’s Corporate Governance Code 2002 is

to improve financial and other corporate reporting for both state-owned and non-

state-owned enterprises (SECP, 2002). Initially, when the operation and enforce-

ment of CG Code 2002 started, there were many criticisms and issues. However,

despite these concerns, corporate governance laws have been a significant factor

in the emergence of a new study area in Pakistan. Despite these complaints, the

”Corporate Governance Code” has been effectively applied, a critical factor at the

beginning of a new research project in Pakistan (Shahid and Abbas, 2019). The

purpose of issuing corporate code-2002 in Pakistan was to provide a guideline to
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the corporations regarding disclosure, board, and audit matters. Moreover, an-

other corporate governance code (CG Code-2012) was issued in 2012 to help Pak-

istani companies quickly understand the corporate governance mechanism and use

corporate governance procedures in a better manner.

In Pakistan, family-owned enterprises are progressively expanding; 60% of the

corporations are family-owned, with the other 40% being non-family-controlled

(Cheema and Din, 2013). Over the past 20 years, Pakistan’s stock market has

been growing rapidly, making it a notable developing market, and for financial

development, Pakistan has implemented several programs and reforms (Shahid

and Abbas, 2019).

1.7.2 Corporate Governance in India

In Indian businesses, high family engagement is prevailed, which lowers the chance

of principal-agent conflict but increases the likelihood of principal-principal con-

flict. Additionally, business groupings are well-established and growing (Shahid

and Abbas, 2019). These elements may increase the significance of a board’s mon-

itoring and resource dependency roles. Like other emerging economies, India’s

organizations struggle with family ownership and other types of dominance, like

government or foreign investors (Mishra and Kapil, 2018). According to Jameson

et al. (2014), founders (families) represent 63.2 (65.5) percent of the boards of

Indian companies, and they typically own over 50% of the company’s outstanding

shares. As a result, India has distinct types of corporate governance difficulties

than Anglo-Saxon nations, where the main concern is punishing management that

may cease to be accountable to the owners, typically dispersed shareholders.

During the last decade, India promoting major reforms in corporate governance

mechanisms to protect the shareholders’ rights (Mishra et al., 2021). Initially,

the Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI) introduced clause-49, which re-

vealed the importance of the board’s independence. Afterward, the Government

of India took another practical step by introducing the Companies Act, 2013, and

provisions on corporate governance have been enforced for Indian companies.
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1.7.3 Corporate Governance in Bangladesh

Likewise, the other economy, Bangladesh, is also taking practical steps in devel-

oping and implementing corporate governance codes, which have been derived

from developed economies (Sobhan, 2021). The critical question is still answer-

able whether Bangladesh can successfully implement the standards acquired from

developed nations.

In 2006, Bangladesh issued its first set of corporate governance regulations. Cor-

porate Governance Guidelines (CGG) were unveiled later in 2012. In 2018 a new

Corporate Governance Code (CGC) was introduced in Bangladesh. Issuance of

all these CG-Codes aims to implement policies and give corporations guidelines

to protect the shareholders’ rights. It could be different in Bangladesh since the

country’s corporate governance laws are not particularly well enforced, and many

family-owned businesses there might strive to further their interests at the expense

of minority shareholders (Fariha et al., 2021). Due to family domination on the

board, over 50% of publicly traded corporations do not have an audit committee

(Muttakin et al., 2015). According to Bangladesh’s Corporate Governance Code,

an audit committee is a requirement for all listed businesses (Khan et al., 2013).

Most businesses listed on the country’s two leading stock exchange platforms, the

Dhaka Stock Exchange and the Chittagong Stock Exchange, are family-owned

businesses. This family ownership concentration makes it difficult to implement

reasonable, responsible, and transparent corporate governance practices. Huq and

Bhuiyan (2012) discussed some issues in Bangladesh like family-controlled busi-

nesses, inadequate bankruptcy law, inconsistency among the Accounting Stan-

dards, weak regulatory Capital Markets, Companies Act, and Security Exchange

Commission requirements. Therefore, an effective and powerful corporate gover-

nance mechanism is required to protect the shareholders’ rights in Bangladesh.

1.8 Organization of the Study

The second chapter of the research proposal is about the literature review, devel-

opment of research hypotheses, and theoretical framework. The third chapter is
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about the research’s proposed methodology, including measurement of variables,

source of data, type of data, statistical measurement of research model, and appli-

cation of appropriate statistical techniques. Chapter 4 is on results, interpretation,

and discussion of results. The final chapter concludes the research, policy impli-

cations, limitations, and future directions of the study.



Chapter 2

Theoretical Background and

Literature Review

This chapter is concerned with the general background of the conceptual frame-

work, literature review, the establishment of the hypotheses, and the demonstra-

tion of the study’s conceptual framework.

2.1 General Background of the Conceptual Frame-

work

To accomplish the ultimate goal of the business, which is the ”maximization of

shareholders’ wealth,” the thoughts of the management are constantly engaged in

a struggle to enhance the company’s performance.

The management team’s skills are undoubtedly some of the most critical human

resources influencing the company’s value, theoretically and practically. With

their professional and academic expertise, effective managers assure the optimal

use of the company’s limited resources in complex environments. Additionally,

they employ their knowledge and expertise to achieve sustainable growth. The

major forces behind the best use of resources are the manager’s personality and

skills. Emotional intelligence is one personality attribute that enables someone to

handle their emotions and those of others correctly and understand how to deal

with them. The value of professional human resources is increased by the scarcity

21
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of resources in growing market environments, such as money, technological know-

how, infrastructure, and an educated labor force. By carefully using talented

human resources, businesses may increase productivity to gain competitive advan-

tages and experience long-term market success (Inam Bhutta et al., 2021). Ac-

cording to Tran (2020), Human capital is crucial for attaining sustained success,

especially in emerging economies. Corporate managers contribute significantly to

a company’s production process as one sort of labor input (Jensen and Meck-

ling, 1976). They coordinate company resources, carry out business operations,

and take a range of choices about things like money, strategy, and investments

(Fama and Jensen, 1983). An essential strategic objective is to ensure the long-

term viability and financial performance of any business Shaw and Harrald (2003).

Since short-term efforts are not long-lasting, managers’ abilities and the perma-

nent application of their abilities and efforts are necessary to improve company

performance over the long run.

Superior managers have a deeper understanding of their industry, which results

in more accurate estimations and judgements, and ultimately higher quality earn-

ings (Demerjian et al., 2013). With their operational choices, managers have a

significant role in the financial reporting process and have a significant impact on

earnings (Choi et al., 2015). Bertrand and Schoar (2003) documented the influence

of managers while making the choices in research and development expenditures

and acquisitions, which further effect the earnings quality. Earnings quality helps

to minimize the effect of asymmetric information and to improve the investment

efficiency, which ultimately influence the firm performance (Lambert et al., 2007).

The minimization of the asymmetric information by voluntary disclosure decreases

the cost of capital (Botosan (1997); Easley and O’hara (2004); Lambert et al.

(2007), which further increases the firm performance and contributes to stock liq-

uidity (Diamond and Verrecchia, 1991; Healy et al., 1999). Voluntary disclosures

may make information public that the company would otherwise keep away from

rivals, potential competitors, regulators, clients, and suppliers, and this informa-

tion helps the investors to make their investment decisions (Enache and Hussainey,

2020). Therefore, the improved earnings quality reduces the risk of the investors

and helps them invest in the business for which they can predict the performance
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easily, further improving the firm performance.

Although earnings quality is an important factor on other hand managers are re-

sponsible to disclose this information to the stakeholders. Managers that have

fiduciary responsibility oversee the businesses directly and utilize the resources in

operating the business provided by shareholders and other interested parties; at

the end managers reports and disclose all information to all stakeholders regard-

ing the output of the business, which help the investors for decision making (Im

and Nam, 2019). The earnings quality matter a lot as its effectiveness further

impacts the cost of capital, which leads to firm value (Freestone and McGoldrick,

2008). On the other hand, managers have an interest due to opportunistic be-

havior and manipulate the information to conceal the reality, which exploits the

shareholders’ rights (Donnelly and Mulcahy, 2008). As a result, misalignment and

conflict exist between shareholders and managers and it calls the agency issue.

Therefore, vigilant monitoring of managers’ activities is essential to mitigate the

agency issue and to achieve the objective of maximization of shareholders’ wealth

(Yakob and Abu Hasan, 2021). According to agency theory, corporate governance

is a mechanism that monitors the managers’ activities, forces them to work in

the best interest of the shareholders, and improves earnings quality, resultantly

contributing to firm performance (Hussain et al., 2018).

Therefore, the study intended to pinpoint the impact of managerial efficiency in

terms of utilizing the skills on firm performance through earnings quality and

moderating the role of corporate governance. The study is also captured the

empirical significant difference of the impact of managerial efficiency permanency

from the managerial efficiency temporary in nature on the firm performance.

The below presented conceptual framework (Figure 2.1) developed based on the

theory and past studies explains the model of the study. In the model, managerial

efficiency (MB) is taken as an independent variable, and firm performance is a

dependent variable. Managerial efficiency and corporate performance are medi-

ated by the earnings quality (ERQ). The association between managerial efficiency

(MB) and business performance is moderated by corporate governance. Another

objective of the study is to check whether the impact of managerial efficiency

permanency is significantly different from the managerial efficiency temporary in
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Figure 2.1: Conceptual Framework

nature on the firm performance. Therefore, slope dummy is included by mul-

tiplying the managerial efficiency and managerial efficiency permanency dummy

with value 1 if permanency exist otherwise 0. The conceptual framework also

shows that firm-specific, country-level governance, and macro-economic variables

have been taken as control variables. The control variables at the firm level are

firm age, size, sale growth, sale volatility, financial slack, and leverage, and at the

country level, control variables are governance mechanism, interest rate, exchange

rate, GDP growth, and foreign direct investment. In the study, the country-level

governance mechanism index has been used, which has been constructed by using

the principal component analysis (PCA) and by incorporating the six dimensions,

which are Control of Corruption (COC), Government Effectiveness (GEF), Reg-

ulatory Quality (REGQ), Voice and Accountability (VAC), Rule of Law (RUL)

and Political Stability and Violence (PAC).
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2.2 Managerial Efficiency and Firm Performance

Recently, advanced globalization, increasing competition, rapid changes in tech-

nologies, and reducing life cycles of a product are felt in a business environment

Nadkarni and Narayanan (2007), due to which a rapid remodeling Sushil (2005)

and strategic flexibility Volberda (1999) in a business environment is an essential

element for long-lasting sustainability, which further contributes in firm perfor-

mance (Grewal and Tansuhaj, 2001). Shalender and Yadav (2019) argued that

in past studies, the contribution of many factors (Resources, structure of organi-

zation, and coalition networks) to strategic flexibility had been investigated, but

the role of managers in developing strategic flexibility is still ignored area. The

ability of managers to filter the relevant information for critical decision-making

from various external and internal factors with uncertainty, doubts, and confusion

primarily depends on their psychological personality traits (Shalender and Yadav,

2019)

Managers explore and take advantage of investment possibilities that maximize

value and add value to the company rationally, but a lack of resources prevents

them from taking advantage of these chances (Naeem and Li, 2019). At this point,

managers’ work begins because they have the discretion to decide how to invest the

available assets, and management effectiveness is essential since it affects corporate

performance and business growth. Therefore, the future of the company and the

maximization of shareholders’ value depend on the effective, efficient, and ongoing

use of resources. By accurately forecasting product demand, perceiving industry

trends, and investing in value-adding projects, managers with efficiency and skills

play a crucial role in achieving this goal (Lee et al., 2018).

To some extent, decision-making reflects the behavior of the decision-makers, and

complex judgments are often reliant on cognitive Gan (2019) and behavioral factors

(Hambrick and Mason, 1984). According to Hambrick and Mason (1984), future

outcome predictions are based on the cognitive and behavioral aspects of the

managers. They further suggested that managers’ (decision makers’) physiological

and cognitive base values (age, gender, education, and income) affect strategic

decisions, including financing choices, production innovation, taking advantage of
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investment possibilities, and forward integration.

The resource-based perspective theory, which describes the significance of man-

agers Holcomb et al. (2009), indicates that a firm’s ability to gain a competitive

advantage depends significantly on its managers’ capacity to do so (Garćıa-Meca

and Garćıa-Sánchez, 2018). On the way, echelons theory argues that managers

with several behavioral characteristics are not similar in cognitive styles, so they

make different decisions in complex situations (Bamber et al., 2010). This theory

proposes that individual characteristics of managers influence corporate decisions

and performance by interpreting the firm’s situations according to their perception

(Hambrick, 2007).

Managerial efficiency significantly impacts operational and financial output Chang

et al. (2010), which further affects the organization’s performance (Andreou et al.,

2016). Dutta (2008) discussed theoretically that professional management exper-

tise contributes to firm performance. Managers might raise more money to take

advantage of investment possibilities by being more effective, credible, and capa-

ble. On the other side, they use resources effectively to generate cash flows from

the company’s operations. Therefore, Managerial efficiency contributes to firm

performance.

Studies have recently examined the impact of managers’ individual preferences

on company choices (Bamber et al., 2010). According to Bertrand and Schoar

(2003) initial study, managers’ management styles impact operational and financial

choices, which also affect the organization’s success. Jensen and Zajac (2004)

backed up this claim, and they mentioned that managers’ experience influences

the development of strategies. Therefore, this study was carried out to check

how Managerial efficiency effectively improves firm performance to protect the

shareholders’ rights.

Despite the importance of managing ability, the effects of managerial skills on

financial organizations have received little attention in the majority of prior stud-

ies (Garćıa-Meca and Garćıa-Sánchez, 2018). Managerial skills are considered the

resources for an organization, which help tackle the upcoming challenges, plan-

ning development, planning execution, and utilization of the resources properly

(AHMAD and AHMAD, 2021). According to Smith et al. (2007), the past studies
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introduced the five essential aspects of managerial skills, marketing, financial,

management, administrative, and legal. Utilization of these skills in a proper

way is the crucial source of competitive edge (Al-Madhoun and Analoui, 2003;

Tonidandel et al., 2012). Past studies used these skills as a single construct, which

are very important for utilizing the resources and enhancing the firm performance

(Aliyu, 2015; Tonidandel et al., 2012; Mehralian et al., 2020).

Several types of research looked into the influence of particular managers on busi-

ness choices. According to Bertrand and Schoar (2003) research, executive man-

agers have several management philosophies, and these philosophies have an im-

pact on various business choices. Numerous studies on management style and

managerial aptitude have been conducted, including those on the chief financial

officer’s knowledge and restatements Aier et al. (2005), the manager’s reputation,

and earnings quality Francis et al. (2008), the manager’s approach and firm vol-

untary disclosure Bamber et al. (2010), the manager’s approach and corporate tax

avoidance (Dyreng et al., 2010). All these studies are related to the managerial ap-

proaches, skills, and utilization of the skills and abilities, which further contribute

to firm performance. Thus, Managerial efficiency in terms of skills and usage of

the skills and abilities improves the firm performance.

H1: Managerial efficiency has a positive impact on firm performance.

2.3 Managerial efficiency , Corporate Governance,

and Firm Performance

The Asian and Western listed firms realized the importance of the code of corpo-

rate governance, policies, and principles get the significance After Asian financial

crisis (AFC, 1997-1998) and the Global financial crisis (GFC, 2008), respectively

(Khan, Al-Jabri and Saif, 2021). These financial crises (AFC 1997-1998 and GFC-

2008) triggered and forced the economies, especially emerging economies, to take

precautionary measures by implementing the corporate governance mechanism as

standard rules and policies (Khan et al., 2021b). By providing and putting into

practice various rules and regulations in the company’s operations, the codes and
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principles were seen as the key to enhanced business performance.

The idea of corporate governance emerges from the separation of ownership and

control of the business. This separation allows the skilled management to run the

company efficiently, but on the other side, owners face the risk of agency costs.

Therefore, the prime objective of corporate governance is to safeguard the rights of

the shareholders and other stakeholders, which contributes to minimizing agency

risk (Srivastava et al., 2019). Investors and shareholders seek transparency and

the preservation of their capital in how the company does business due to the rise

in scandals, the financial crisis, and managerial fraud (Gupta and Sharma, 2014).

It is challenging to address the obligations and responsibilities of the manager,

director, and other stakeholders in a firm without a good governance structure

(Khan et al., 2021b).

Agency problems emerge as a result of separating ownership and control. When

managers begin to pursue their self-interest and focus on maximizing their wealth

at the cost of the wealth and interests of other stakeholders, agency issues emerge

(John and Senbet, 1998). To safeguard the interests of the stakeholder in such

a situation, contracts may call for the disclosure of pertinent accounting infor-

mation. Since managers provide accounting information, there are chances they

may overstate the figures within the scope of accounting standards and estimates

(Gompers et al., 2003). An efficient corporate governance mechanism can help

decrease agency problems between managers and shareholders (Watts and Zim-

merman, 1983). Corporate governance, as defined by Jensen (1986), “deals with

mechanisms by which stakeholders of a corporation exercise control over corporate

insiders and management such that their interests are protected.” According to

Zéghal et al. (2011), the institutional environment provides robust legal protection

to stakeholders and helps control managers’ self-interest to some extent.

The research conducted by Man (2013) showed that a comprehensive governance

mechanism could reduce the adverse outcomes of earnings management, which

further influences the firm performance. According to their study, firms that usu-

ally overstate the reported earnings have a governing board comprising a majority

of internal directors and inside CEO, who also acts as the board’s chairperson.

Similar findings were observed by Liu and Lu (2007), showing that the firms
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whose boards consist of a majority of external directors are less likely to indulge

in earnings manipulation when the figures fall below the threshold. In another

study, the relationship between corporate governance and earning management

was examined by Peasnell et al. (2005) in Chinese listed companies. Their find-

ings indicated a negative association between earning management and corporate

governance; therefore, effective corporate governance is necessary to monitor the

managers not to work for their interest, further improving the firm performance.

Zéghal et al. (2011) found a negative relation between earnings management and

the independence of the board of directors and audit committee after the Sarbanes-

Oxley Act (SOX). The results of their study suggest that SOX provisions improve

the effectiveness of corporate governance functions in cross-listed foreign firms,

specifically in monitoring the quality of accounting earnings. External audit qual-

ity has a positive effect on reducing earnings management (Marra et al., 2011).

Chang and Sun (2009) observed an increase in the quality of financial reports in-

fluenced by audit committees after the International Accounting Standards (IASs)

were introduced. These findings indicate that corporate governance mechanisms

play a critical role in restraining earnings management, thus improving earnings

quality.

Corporate governance mechanisms are found to be different in emerging and de-

veloped markets. Past studies indicate that in the case of institutions providing

weak investor protection, there are more chances of low-quality of earnings infor-

mation and severe earnings management (Nenova, 2003; Shleifer and Wolfenzon,

2002). Many studies show that with solid legal protection for investors, managers

are less likely to manipulate earnings (DeFond et al., 2007; Dimitras et al., 2015).

In developed countries, there are extensive requirements for disclosure, and cred-

itors and shareholders have greater rights to control managerial discretion and

strict enforcement of public and private security regulations. According to Ball

et al. (2000), earnings management decreases in countries that practice more vital

investor protection. In their study, Leuz et al. (2003) argued that an essential

characteristic in restricting the self-interests of managers, constraining their op-

portunistic behavior, and improving the quality of financial statements is an insti-

tutional arrangement in any country. Legal systems are there to protect the rights
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of shareholders by giving the power to discipline managers and enforce contracts

that limit the benefits of managers. According to the research of Shen and Chih

(2007), the audit environment is directly affected by the legal environment and its

effectiveness, whether giant international audit firms provide high-quality services

or not. Companies that are operating in a robust enforcement environment are

more likely to induce a decline in the extent of discretionary accruals as compared

to those that operate in a weak environment.

In any economy, the quality of government depends upon many other institutional

constraints, for example, the political system, constitution, and laws. Firms oper-

ating under low-quality governmental influence develop a complex organizational

structure, weak corporate governance mechanisms, and poor transparency e.g.,

(Fan et al., 2013; Jiang et al., 2010). Therefore, the typical characteristics of

emerging markets include poor financial opacity and disclosure of financial infor-

mation. However, improving financial opacity in such markets is not dependent on

the accounting system alone. It is because solid institutions are required to ensure

enforcement of these rules, and emerging markets lack such institutions (Shayan-

Nia et al., 2017). Controlling shareholders and managers of firms in countries with

well-established investor protection laws are more likely to work for the benefit of

shareholders and avoid expropriating the firm’s wealth (Sun and Rath, 2010).

Many studies carried out in the context of India reported the linkage between cor-

porate governance and firm performance; e.g., Bhatt and Bhattacharya (2015) re-

vealed a positive relationship between the larger size of the board and board meet-

ing attendance members with firm performance. Previous studies also reported

a positive relationship between board size, board duality, and firm performance

Bansal et al. (2016), between board independent female directors and firm per-

formance Sanan (2016), between board age diversity and firm performance Kagzi

and Guha (2018), between board size, the busyness of board directors, board inde-

pendence and firm performance (Mishra and Kapil, 2018). Some studies reported

a negative relationship between firm performance and Board structure Bhatt and

Bhattacharya (2015), board size and firm performance Palaniappan (2017), and

diversity in education and firm performance Kagzi and Guha (2018). In contradic-

tion, past studies also reported an inconclusive (Insignificant) association between
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firm performance and corporate governance (Bansal et al., 2016; Mishra and Kapil,

2018; Kagzi and Guha, 2018).

According to research by Muttakin et al. (2012), the performance of Bangladeshi

banking enterprises is positively and significantly correlated with the size of the

board of directors. According to Bangladesh’s corporate governance rules, the

size of the boards of all publicly traded businesses may range from five to twenty

(BSEC, 2018). Recently, Fariha et al. (2021) reported in their studies that board

independence is ineffective in the scenario of Bangladeshi companies as they found

an unexpectedly negative relationship between board independence and firm per-

formance; they further reported that the representation of females in the board is

also ineffective to firm performance.

According to Wang et al. (2019), in Pakistan, many studies have been carried out

concerning corporate governance, but empirical results still need further probing.

Therefore, they conducted the research by gathering the data from 2011 to 2014

from PSX-100 index-listed firms and reported that board size, board meetings,

and board independence are ineffective to firm performance. Lu et al. (2021),

conducted research and reported that board composition consisting of board size

and board independence has a positive and significant impact on firm performance.

2.3.1 Corporate Board Structure

The globe has experienced some of the most significant corporate disasters and

financial catastrophes in recent decades, and bad corporate governance was the

primary cause of failure in most cases (Sobhan, 2021). Given the significance of

effective corporate governance in averting company failures, scholars and policy-

makers have increasingly paid close attention to the link between board features

and firm performance Samaha et al. (2012) as crucial components of corporate

governance include board characteristics (Sobhan, 2021).

The critical dimension of the corporate governance system is a board of directors

or board structure that contributes positively to ensuring the managers work to

maximize the shareholders’ wealth and protect the shareholders’ rights (Fama and

Jensen, 1983). Many empirical studies reported a positive relationship between
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corporate governance and firm performance (Vafeas and Theodorou, 1998; Dahya

and McConnell, 2007; Dahya et al., 2009).

In past studies, different dimensions of corporate governance (Ownership struc-

ture, Audit quality, and Board structure) have been used to capture the influence

of corporate governance on firm performance. However, by following Khan et al.

(2021b); Abdou et al. (2021), the study used corporate board structure and in

board structure, the board size, board independence, and board meetings have

been used. A competent board structure and its membership are considered vital

elements of corporate governance in emerging economies to safeguard the rights

of shareholders (Jackling and Johl, 2009). Moreover, by following Larcker et al.

(2007); Roy (2018), the study also constructs an index based on principal compo-

nent analysis (PCA) to measure the summarized information on corporate gover-

nance. The board size, board meetings, and board independence are part of the

corporate governance index developed based on principal component analysis.

A board tries to improve a company’s performance and impose obligations and

duties that are legally vested (Zahra and Pearce, 1989). By aligning the interests

of the principal and the agent, corporate boards may play a significant role in re-

ducing this agency cost (Rose, 2005). The corporate board is regarded as a critical

corporate governance instrument since it oversees and gives strategic direction to

the management (Brennan, 2006). Overall, there has been a wide range of research

supporting the effect of board composition on performance. Different theoretical

frameworks for the inquiry have contributed to different conclusions in some cases,

but most studies reported a positive relationship between board composition and

firm performance (Jackling and Johl, 2009).

2.3.2 Role of Board Independence

A combination of internal and outside directors must be on the board of directors

of listed firms, according to the majority of corporate governance norms and guide-

lines worldwide (Jackling and Johl, 2009). However, one of the most contentious

and studied aspects of corporate governance is the topic of whether outside direc-

tors influence company performance. To protect the shareholders’ rights,
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independent directors are chosen from outside the company to oversee the man-

agers’ operations (Sobhan, 2021). A more significant percentage of independent

directors on the board will lead to more effective management of manager activi-

ties, claim (Fama and Jensen, 1983). According to agency theory, the independent

directors on the board play a vital role in ensuring the managers’ acts are in the

shareholders’ best interest. (Fama and Jensen, 1983) discussed that the general

expectation from independent directors is that they are independent and have

expertise in their work, due to which they will monitor the executive directors.

They also suggested that their experience, knowledge, and expertise in monitoring

services improve corporate performance. On the other hand, the resource-based

theory expresses that independent directors improve profitability as they are ex-

perienced and have the expertise they suggest for future investment and strategy.

In contradiction, the discussion has been reviewed in past studies that executive

directors may monitor the managers more effectively than the independent direc-

tors as they are well informed regarding the firm’s daily operations (Baysinger

and Hoskisson, 1990). On the other side, the non-executive directors primarily

provide their services part-time, which limits their information source and moni-

toring of the managers, which also limits them to make effective decisions (Bozec,

2005). Thus, the independence of the board of directors may influence the firm

performance negatively. The empirical studies also show mixed results; Baysinger

and Butler (1985) reported the positive influence of non-executive directors on

firm performance. Similar findings were made by Rosenstein and Wyatt (1990),

who discovered that a transparent announcement of the nomination of an outside

director increased shareholder wealth.

According to the agency theory, independent directors are an efficient form of

governance that lowers the expenses associated with the agency that result from

the division of ownership and control. Hermalin and Weisbach (1988) reported the

empirical results that non-executive directors effectively monitor managers and act

as penalizing mechanisms for the managers. Empirically, independent directors

operate as disinterested outsiders and are therefore more likely to adhere to the

shareholders’ wealth maximization rule, as demonstrated by (Monks and Minow,

2011). Dahya et al. (2008) also indicated, especially in economies where legal
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protection of shareholders’ rights is weak, the positive influence of non-executive

directors on firms’ value. Some studies also reported the negative relationships

between non-executive directors and firm performance (Agrawal and Knoeber,

1996; Bozec, 2005). In a nutshell, mixed results for the relationship between

board independence and firm performance have been observed.

2.3.3 Role of Board Size

The number of directors on the board as a gauge of the board’s size, influenced

the firm performance while making decisions and involving in communication

(Jensen, 1993). According to Lipton and Lorsch (1992), a giant board of direc-

tors might become problematic since they seldom examine management policies

or evaluate business performance compared to other companies. In their analy-

sis of Bangladesh’s listed manufacturing businesses, Rahman and Saima (2018)

discovered a strong and favorable correlation between board size and company

performance. Larger boards can increase the company’s adaptability, consider-

ably boosting performance (Sobhan, 2021).

According to Hermalin and Weisbach (2001), board size appears to be declining

with time, indicating that businesses and markets are becoming more aware of the

benefits of smaller boards for carrying out duties and enhancing firm value. The

board should be big enough that changes in its makeup can be handled without

causing too much disturbance and that the mix of talents and experience is ade-

quate for the firm’s needs. These principles imply that, notwithstanding the Code

of Business Governance’s assessment of the impact of board size on corporate suc-

cess, board size is optional. Every firm has different functions and may become

more different across the industries due to which the same board size cannot be

formulated for every business (MacNeil and Li, 2006). Although the ideal board

size is debatable, previous research has found that the board’s size and makeup are

crucial governance mechanisms that justify the agency’s duties and the firm’s re-

quired resources (Tanjung, 2020). According to Chen et al. (2007), the board size

should follow the industry pattern with two numbers as variations of the average

board size.
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Perhaps a giant board would be more effective in limiting earnings management.

On the other hand, a small board of directors may be able to act more quickly, ef-

fectively, and flexibly when making choices, which would limit opportunistic Man-

agerial efficiency and lower earnings management. Larger boards of directors have

higher administrative costs and coordination issues, making it more challenging

to use knowledge and talents effectively (Forbes and Milliken, 1999). Therefore, it

may be thought that a smaller board would be more valuable and thrive as a mech-

anism for monitoring and giving better financial reporting supervision (Lipton and

Lorsch, 1992; Zgarni et al., 2014).

In the context of stewardship theory, the large size of the board has a positive

influence on the value of a firm as a large number of board members may have

diverse expertise, due to which a positive effect is seen on the value of the firm

(Rashid and Islam, 2013). On the contrary, agency theory explains that a giant

board reduces a company’s value because ineffective coordination and communica-

tion among board members result in passive oversight by the members of the board

(Yermack, 1996; Rashid and Islam, 2013). Coles et al. (2008) also discussed that

high costs to coordinate and process issues are expected to bear due to larger board

size, which reduces efficiency. Studies and empirical research have demonstrated

that board size has a detrimental influence on bank performance (Staikouras et al.,

2007; Pathan and Faff, 2013). According to research by Muttakin et al. (2012),

the performance of Bangladeshi banking enterprises is positively and significantly

correlated with the size of the board of directors. According to prior research, the

smaller board is more effective in influencing executive choices (Yermack, 1996).

Because of coordination and communication issues, a giant board of directors dam-

ages the company’s performance. Small firms’ boards ensure effective investments

because these boards have effective control over managerial choices (Cho and Rui,

2007). Additionally, Dechow et al. (1996) explored the relationship between board

size and opportunistic Managerial efficiency and demonstrated that smaller boards

have greater oversight and control.

2.3.4 Role of Board Meetings

The board meeting of an organization, which is presided over by its directors,
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provides an excellent forum for discussing operational concerns and making deci-

sions with the unanimous support of the members (Sobhan, 2021). Board meetings

gauge the board’s diligence, further measuring the board’s commitment to the or-

ganization (Fariha et al., 2021; Hossain, 2008). The board of directors’ meetings

is a suitable and effective platform to make decisions and discuss the operational

problems of the organization; it is also a place where the actions of the managers

are also discussed, and decisions are made to protect the rights of the shareholders.

Board meeting frequency has a beneficial impact on business performance (Eluyela

et al., 2018).

The board directors have their meetings to monitor the management’s decisions

and guide them to improve the firm’s performance. In frequent board meetings

are evident that the board takes its responsibility honestly to defend the interests

of the shareholders (Lorsch and Maclver, 1989). Azar et al. (2014) argued that

regular board meetings are essential to corporate governance. Although board

meetings play an important role in monitoring the managers to make sure that

they are functioning with the shareholders’ best interests in mind and in board

meetings essential issues are discussed, on another side, a high cost is required in

managing meetings, director fee and traveling cost (Vafeas, 1999).

The intensity of board activity, as determined by the frequency of board meet-

ings, is one factor in the resource dependence theory that is related to corporate

governance and performance (Jackling and Johl, 2009). Lipton and Lorsch (1992)

suggest that frequent meetings likely provide better results. Jensen (1993) took

the opposite stance, arguing that routine duties take up a large portion of board

meetings and restrict the opportunity for outside directors to exert effective influ-

ence over management.

In Asian counties, especially in South-East Asian, the board meetings contribute

positively to firm performance (Buachoom, 2018). According to Yakob and Abu Hasan

(2021), the board is often decision-making due to frequent board meetings reflect-

ing high firm performance; as a result of these meetings, the executives’ decisions

are monitored and guided to work with the shareholders’ best interests in mind.

The argument has also been supported in a study conducted by Al Farooque et al.

(2020) that board meetings regularly provide opportunities to share experiences
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for monitoring management. Board meetings are therefore essential to the sur-

vival and growth of a company. Board members have several opportunities to

talk, trade, and share ideas when they routinely get together to develop business

initiatives (Yakob and Abu Hasan, 2021).

2.3.5 Construction of Corporate Governance Index

The board size, independence, and board meetings are the aspects of board struc-

ture and governance that contribute primarily to controlling and monitoring the

managers and ensuring the managers’ acts are only for maximizing the sharehold-

ers’ wealth. The board members create diversity and look at the decisions of

the matter from different angles; similarly, the independent directors have their

expertise in their work because they monitor the executive directors too. The

board meetings regularly also ensure the surveillance of the board members, mak-

ing board meetings proof that the board members are serious about taking their

responsibilities honestly to protect the interests of the shareholders (Lorsch and

Maclver, 1989). Therefore, the study incorporates all these aspects collectively

by constructing the corporate governance index based on the principal component

analysis, as an index incorporates more information than individual aspects.

2.3.6 Moderating Role of Corporate Governance in the

Relationship Between Managerial efficiency and Firm

Performance

Corporate governance is an integrated internal-external control system that har-

monizes the issues between managers and shareholders by separating ownership

and control (Wifliamson, 1984). Board is considered an important and signifi-

cant factor in corporate governance, especially in large corporations (Fama and

Jensen, 1983). They further argued that due to the absence of effective corpo-

rate governance, the managers are more inclined to work in their interests. In

this case, the board is a crucial component of corporate governance to protect the

rights of shareholders as they have legal abilities to recruit, remove and pay senior
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management (Wifliamson, 1984). A good corporate governance framework limits

the potential effects of any power abuse and lowers the need for capital expendi-

ture. As a result, this increases the organization’s economic efficiency and more

appropriately reflects stock prices (Fariha et al., 2021).

Resource dependence theory defines that the board takes the position to endorse

strategic decision-making (Kim et al., 2009). According to agency theory, the

board oversees, supervises, and controls managers’ duties to reduce agency con-

flicts while defending the interests of shareholders (Fama and Jensen, 1983). While

corporate governance mechanisms build the norms and codes to reduce agency con-

cerns and other costs incurred by a business, agency theory depicts the genuine

pictures of agency costs carried by the firms (McKnight and Weir, 2009). The goal

of agency theory is to address the influential monitoring role of a business by the

non-executive members on the board, is to address the implications of codes of

corporate governance as the best practice in a corporation to reduce agency con-

cerns and opportunistic behavior (Aduda et al., 2013). Board structures benefit

the company by elevating controlling and monitoring responsibilities above senior

management to maintain a balance, and the adoption and execution of corporate

governance standards enhance the board’s efficiency (Ameer, 2013).

The board of directors is regarded as the critical internal governance attribute

competent to reduce agency concerns as board features reduce opportunistic Man-

agerial efficiency and improve investment efficiency Bzeouich et al. (2019), which

adds to firm performance. The research that is now available concentrates on the

board’s function as an internal control mechanism to lessen conflicts of interest

and, as a result, enhance business performance (Fama and Jensen, 1983).

The board’s responsibility extends beyond just endorsing managerial decisions

Kim et al. (2009) it may also assist in coordinating such decisions with share-

holder interests to reduce agency conflicts (Garćıa-Sánchez, 2020). Applying the

most acceptable corporate governance standards is one of the critical strategies

for reducing the friction between managers and shareholders, according to aca-

demics and practitioners who have studied the topic (Shahwan and Habib, 2020).

According to La Porta et al. (2002), investors are willing to invest in companies

that favor the rights of the investors. Therefore, the investor tries to recognize and
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probe the corporate governance practices of the companies and feel free to invest

and provide the equity to the firm, where the effective corporate governance mech-

anism is practiced, and this corporate governance helps minimize the agency issue

between the managers and shareholders. This discussion helps to understand the

linkage between corporate governance and firm performance by reducing agency

issues (Enache and Hussainey, 2020).

The above discussion provides evidence that on one side, corporate governance im-

proves the firm performance Iqbal et al. (2019); Abdallah and Ismail (2017), and

on the other hand, it also helps to minimize the agency conflict between managers

and shareholders by monitoring the managers’ act (Srivastava et al., 2019). Cor-

porate governance is a mechanism that directly influences the firm performance

and managers’ activities by monitoring them. Thus, the best practices of corpo-

rate governance improve the relationship between Managerial efficiency and firm

performance. Therefore, it is concluded that the corporate governance index com-

prising the board size, board meetings, and board independence, play a moderating

role in the relationship between Managerial efficiency and firm performance.

H2: Corporate Governance improves the relationship between Managerial effi-

ciency and firm performance.

2.4 Managerial efficiency Permanency and Firm

Performance

The long-term survival and financial performance of any business is a basic strate-

gic goal (Shaw and Harrald, 2003). The managers’ skills and utilization of their

skills and efforts permanently are required to improve the corporate performance

for the long term, and it creates goodwill as short-term efforts are not durable.

Corporate goodwill boosts the morale of employees’ loyalty to the customer, and

regulators also have lenient views of the corporate (Jensen, 2002; Brown et al.,

2006). Both creative and managerial skills are positively linked with firm perfor-

mance, and the growth rate of businesses that incorporate these skills simultane-

ously is more significant than those that do not adopt them (Siepel et al., 2021).
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Managerial skills in organization utilization are considered the main factor in a

firm’s achievements (Ahmed et al., 2006). However, there always remains space

for improvement in utilizing the skills, and the continuity in firm performance

depends upon the management’s continuous efforts. Durable and diverse man-

agerial skills are helpful resources for a firm to generate finance with minimum

costs, which further leads to firm performance and financial growth (Shaikh et al.,

2017). The permanency of multiple skills and their utilization to use resources

brings sustainable profitability and growth (Sinkovics and Roath, 2004).

Adner and Helfat (2003), while discussing the significance of managers’ decisions

strategical in nature, conceptualized the term “Dynamic managerial capabilities”,

which further influenced the firm performance. However, the central idea of this

concept is ‘asset orchestration’, which involve two important decisions that are

resource investment and deployment decisions Maritan (2001); Sirmon et al. (2007)

and both decisions, which are related to acquiring and engaging the assets in a

project or investment, are very crucial to firm performance (Sirmon and Hitt,

2009).

Now, the work of managers is considered important to make their decisions re-

garding the investment including both resource and deployment to better fit and

if they invest continuously relative to their rival, it may affect the firm perfor-

mance positively Kor and Mahoney (2005), but some suggested the investment

higher than the firm’s historic level may affect negatively the firm performance

(Sirmon and Hitt, 2009). Therefore, another element is necessary here that is

continuity and stability in Managerial efficiency , while making decisions to better

fit between resource acquiring and engaging the resources on proper places.

The resource-based perspective theory elaborates on the importance of managers

Holcomb et al. (2009) and explains how managers’ capacity to successfully use

the company’s resources determines the sustainability of a company’s competitive

advantage. Managers make judgments based on their experiences and formal ed-

ucation in a particular subject, which further contributes to the success of the

organization (Collins et al., 2009). Thus, managerial educational efficiency has a

direct impact on the success of the company, including shareholder return, firm

growth, and innovation. This theory explains how effectively the managers use



Literature Review 41

the organization’s resources for long-term competitive advantage by investing in

worthwhile projects. Therefore, the stability in positive behavior of management

measured on an input-output based leads to improve the firm performance, which

further contributes to a competitive advantage in the long term. Thus, the impact

of Managerial efficiency and its stability positively influence firm performance.

According to the echelon theory, managers have unique traits and cognitive styles

that are not interchangeable, which causes them to make unique judgments, es-

pecially in complicated situations (Bamber et al., 2010). This idea contends that

managerial characteristics influence corporate decisions and business success by

allowing managers to see business issues from their perspective (Hambrick, 2007).

Firstly, the study provides empirical evidence of the relationship between Man-

agerial efficiency on firm performance, and afterward, the effect of consistency

(Permanency) of Managerial efficiency on firm performance has been tested. The

permanency of positive Managerial efficiency is required to utilize resources ap-

propriately and to take competitive advantage. Therefore, it is a theoretical and

empirical contribution of the study for adding Managerial efficiency permanency

and its influence on firm performance.

Managers with high competencies are able to scan the firm’s environment and

find out the risk, opportunities, and chances for competitive advantages (Bellner,

2014). According to Ting et al. (2021), good Managerial efficiency in terms of

utilizing the skills and resource brings the consistency in operations of the busi-

ness and on the other side, the managers with low abilities to utilize the skills

and resources make poor judgements a make comparatively ineffective decision.

Risk-taking is necessary for a company to survive, and more capable managers

are more willing to take risks than less capable managers are (Yung and Chen,

2018). In pursuit of investment possibilities, managers’ risk-taking conduct im-

proves business performance (John et al., 2008). Managers are the driving forces

behind making the most of the available resources and investment possibilities

to boost business success. Managers with outstanding ability are open to taking

risks, while managers of lesser ability avoid taking risks (Yung and Chen, 2018).

On the one hand, skillful managers take risks in availing of investment opportuni-

ties with limited resources to add value and profitability. On the other hand, they
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constantly remain involved in operational planning and make critical corporate

decisions, which improves financial performance in the long run.

To some extent, decision-making reflects the quirks of the decision-makers, and

complicated judgments are frequently reliant on cognitive Gan (2019) and behav-

ioral factors (Hambrick and Mason, 1984). Forecasting future events, choices, and

repercussions related to those alternatives are impacted by these cognitive and

behavioral-based judgments (Hambrick and Mason, 1984). According to Ham-

brick and Mason (1984), managers’ (decision-makers) physiological and cognitive

base values (age, gender, education, and income) have an impact on their ability to

make strategic decisions, such as those regarding financing, production innovation,

taking advantage of investment opportunities, and forward integration.

Managerial efficiency is a significant factor in operational and financial output

Chang et al. (2010), which further influences the firm performance (Andreou et al.,

2016). Studies have recently been conducted to examine the influence of managers

on company choices (Bamber et al., 2010). According to the initial study by

Bertrand and Schoar (2003), managers’ unique management styles have an impact

on operational and financial choices, which further enhances business performance.

In respect of the resource-based view theory, the continuity of managers’ efforts

and usage of resources efficiently permanently give a competitive advantage to

the company (Garćıa-Meca and Garćıa-Sánchez, 2018). The continuation and

improvement of managerial efficiency is another factor for business success. So,

managerial efficiency permanency improves the firm performance more than the

temporary managerial efficiency in terms of utilization of resources.

H3: Managerial efficiency permanency affects significantly different than the tem-

porary managerial efficiency on firm performance.

2.5 Managerial efficiency , Earnings Quality, and

Firm Performance

Companies worldwide were increasingly conscious of providing more information to

investors and users of financial information after the financial scandals of 2002 and
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2008 to promote transparency and signal good performance (Al-Sartawi, 2013).

When there is an unequal disclosure of information, managers frequently withhold

information and priorities their interests above those of the shareholders Alsartawi

(2018), which is costly for shareholders, and this asymmetric information may

create agency issues between managers and shareholders. Basuony and Mohamed

(2014) argued that large firms intended to reveal more information by going into

more disclosure to reduce asymmetric information and ultimately decrease agency

costs.

Only concentrating on the direct effect of managerial competence on company

performance may not completely reflect a manager’s capacity to preserve compet-

itive advantage in today’s quickly evolving business environment, thus the effect

of Managerial efficiency on firm performance through a mediator is required to

study (Ting et al., 2021). Financial reporting strives to achieve efficient capital

allocation and reduce the misappropriation of a firm’s capital resources (Bzeouich

et al., 2019). Quality of the financial reporting plays a vital role in the success

of a business; if the quality of the financial reporting is enhanced, investors will

have the opportunity to make decisions without uncertainty by predicting the

business’s future performance. The managers play a vital role in the quality of

financial reporting, further enhancing the firm’s performance. Therefore, one of

the study’s main objectives is to capture the mediating role of Earnings Quality

in the relationship between Managerial efficiency and firm performance.

By following Muller et al. (2005); Baron and Kenny (1986); Khan et al. (2021a)

theoretically and empirically, three path relationships are required to establish the

development of the hypothesis that the quality of the financial reporting (FRQ)

mediates in the relationship between Managerial efficiency and firm performance.

In the first step (path-a), the significant theoretical influence on Managerial effi-

ciency (Independent variable) is required to prove. In the second step (Path-b),

the significant impact of quality of the financial reporting (Mediator) on firm per-

formance is needed to prove theoretically. In a third step (Path-c), the theoretical

effect of Managerial efficiency on firm performance must be proved. If all three

paths are proven to establish a significant relationship to outcome variables, then

the fourth step is carried out to check the full or partial mediation of the quality
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of the earnings quality (ERQ) between managerial efficiency and firm performance.

2.5.1 Impact of Managerial efficiency on Earnings Quality

In support of the Upper Echelon theory and Resource-based view theory, re-

searchers connected Managerial efficiency with shareholders’ returns Hayes and

Schaefer (1999) and firm growth (Holbrook et al., 2000). These theories also

elaborate that Managerial efficiency shapes quality of the financial reporting as

management accounting principles are implemented, and financial statements are

prepared by the managers (Garćıa-Meca and Garćıa-Sánchez, 2018). Demerjian

et al. (2013) discussed that management with more knowledge, skills, and expe-

rience in the business environment affect the firm in term of lowering errors in

the provision of bad debts and improving the quality of accrual estimations and

steadily higher earnings. On one side, Aier et al. (2005) determined that Corporate

Financial Officers (CFOs) with more expertise cause lowering of restatements, and

the chances of becoming insolvent firms are reduced due to the efficiency of CEOs

(Leverty and Grace, 2012). On the other side, Francis et al. (2008) argued that

CEOs’ reputations and earning quality are inversely related; due to their overesti-

mation of personal career improvement, they take such actions, which deteriorate

discretionary earning quality. Managers have approaches toward internal controls,

directors, colleagues, and auditors, which may affect the quality of financial re-

porting and earnings (Aier et al., 2005). The business’s financial and operational

situation is reflected in a fantastic component, i.e., the income statement Akbari

et al. (2018), from which the investors and creditors gauge the firm performance

and other stakeholders make their selections and decisions. The managers are

crucial elements with expertise; knowledge, virtuous conduct, and cognition are

crucial in making the accounting statement a magnetic component.

In previous studies, the focus was to investigate and report the contribution of

governance characteristics to the quality of financial reporting and earnings of

firms from a non-financial sector (Beekes et al., 2004). For example, due to the

small board size, effective coordination among the managers and boards members

is established, which ultimately improves the quality of financial reporting and

earnings (Jensen, 1993; Onuorah et al., 2016), increasing the portion of board
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independence contributes to improving the quality of the financial reporting Koh

et al. (2007), the chances of financial statement manipulation and frauds are in-

creased due to increasing the portion of outside directors Beasley (1996) as board

independence helps in minimizing the earnings management (Klein, 2002). In re-

spect of board duality, Jensen (1993) stressed the significance of the separation of

the CEO and chairman of the board, which contributes to improving the quality

and transparency of financial reporting.

Dechow et al. (1996); Byard et al. (2006); Firth et al. (2007) also supported and

reported respectively that holding of CEO position by the chairman of the board

at the same time might have the chances to endorse the same orders of CEO due

to which quality of the financial reporting may be compromised. However, some

empirical studies found no significant influence of CEO duality on quality of the

financial reporting (Bradbury et al., 2006; Ahmed et al., 2006). The researchers

also indicated the importance of audit quality Watts and Zimmerman (1983); Teoh

and Wong (1993); Chung et al. (2003) and ownership structure in improving the

quality of financial reports (Fan and Wong, 2002). After many studies in respect of

capturing the influence of corporate governance on quality of the financial report-

ing, the paradigm is shifting to pinpoint the contribution of managerial ability,

efficiency, and behavior towards the quality of financial reporting and earnings

and firm performance.

Prior studies investigated the effect of managerial efficiency on quality of the

earnings by taking proxies such as accruals, accounting restatements, or earning

quality, but reported evidence is inconclusive (Garćıa-Meca and Garćıa-Sánchez,

2018).Managers are the key players to have their major contribution in earnings

by taking their operating decisions (Choi et al., 2015). Francis et al. (2008); Mat-

sunaga and Yeung (2008); Schrand and Zechman (2012) carried out their studies

to inquire about the association between CEO attributes, and managers’ finan-

cial expertise, and the overconfidence of executives, respectively with quality of

the financial reporting. These studies concluded that managers are the main con-

tributors and play a vital role in the process of financial reporting, ultimately

influencing the quality of financial reporting and earnings (Choi et al., 2015).

Garćıa-Meca and Garćıa-Sánchez (2018) investigated and established that
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managerial expertise is a significant contributor to quality of the financial report-

ing and more capable managers are less involved in window dressing compared to

less capable managers. The findings of their study support the notion that man-

agerial skills significantly influence the accuracy of financial reporting in banks and

that talented bank managers are less likely to opportunistically manage earnings.

Therefore, able managers with more expertise, skills, positive attitude, behavior

and efficiency utilize the firm resources effectively, which contributes in earnings

quality.

2.5.2 Impact of Earnings Quality on Firm Performance

One primary purpose for reporting financial information is to assist capital allo-

cation efficiently and to improve investment decisions Chen et al. (2011), which

further contributes to firm performance. Prior studies suggest that transparency

of financial reporting helps resolve the under and over-investment problem Biddle

and Hilary (2006); Biddle et al. (2009), as it reflects the earnings quality, which

further contributing to improving the firm performance. The disparity of the in-

formation between managers and Shareholders is called asymmetric information,

and it increases the agency conflict between both parties and the risk to the in-

vestors (Siagian et al., 2013). This agency issue and the risk of the investors can

be minimized by improving the quality of the disclosure, and managers are the

key factors to disclose the better quality of earnings, which causes the lowering

of the cost of equity Botosan (1997) and improves the firm performance (Siagian

et al., 2013).

Past studies reported that higher earnings quality lowers investment inefficiency

and improves firm performance (Bushman and Smith, 2001; Lambert et al., 2007).

Biddle and Hilary (2006) also supported this argument while reporting the im-

provement of investment efficiency (lowering investment-cash flow sensitivity) due

to the higher quality of the earnings. Investment cash flow sensitivity is an out-

come of either financial constraint, which causes under-investment or excess of

cash, which causes over-investment Kaplan and Zingales (2000); Fazzari et al.

(2000) and this reporting ultimately effects the future profitability and firm per-

formance. This discussion elaborates that if a company improves its investment
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efficiency and reports its properly, which ultimately disseminate a positive signal in

market for better future outcomes and causing the attraction of investors and con-

tributes in firm performance. The past studies discussed the positive relationship

between quality of the earnings and firm performance Al-Mohannadi and Syam

(2007); Dima et al. (2010); Al-Sartawi (2013), but some other studies reported no

influence of the level of earnings reporting on firm performance (Flöstrand and

Ström, 2006; Coram, 2010).

The earnings quality depends upon the managers who are agents and shareholders

who invest by scarifying today with the hope of getting maximum returns in the

future. However, the lousy quality of financial reporting disturbs them, creating

a panic situation for them due to a conflict between managers and shareholders.

The issue between managers and shareholders may arise because managers act in

their interest and go for earnings management, and they also have more infor-

mation than shareholders (Bosse and Phillips, 2016). Therefore, this asymmetric

information is required to be balanced. Thus, it is evident that if the quality

of the financial reporting is improved, the uncertainty for all stakeholders also

decreases, due to which an opaque picture goes towards the clarity and revival

of panic situation is come into existence. Improved future liquidity of a firm’s

securities (reduced price effect) results from disclosure, which lowers the firm’s

cost of capital, with the decrease in the cost of capital being larger companies in

size (Diamond and Verrecchia, 1991). Therefore, it is clear from the discussion

that because of improving the quality of the financial reporting, the asymmetric

information is reduced, ultimately reducing the cost of capital and increasing the

firm’s value.

While working in an agency context, accounting information may influence the

investment decision by balancing the asymmetric information between managers,

shareholders, and other stakeholders, and this influence may be in two ways (Roy-

chowdhury et al., 2019).First of all, improving the quality of earnings affects invest-

ment decisions positively as reducing asymmetric information reduces the conflicts

between managers and investors, which helps raise capital comparatively at lower

costs. Secondly, the improved earnings quality helps lower agency costs arising

due to agency conflicts between managers and shareholders. The earnings quality
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reduces the earning management, which is done my managers and ultimately re-

duce the agency issue. Therefore, the earnings quality helps to improve investment

efficiency, which further contributes to the future financial performance of a com-

pany.

2.5.3 Mediating Role of Earnings Quality in Relationship

Between Managerial Efficiency and Firm Performance

One of the critical operations in an organization is financial reporting and earn-

ings quality, which gives users of financial statements essential knowledge about

the company’s strategies, historical developments, and present situation. Investors

reviewed the financial statements and made their investment decisions in that

specific company based on the information received through these financial state-

ments, which elaborates the earnings quality. Therefore, the company’s external

source of financing depends upon the quality of the information available in the

financial statements. Similarly, lenders and suppliers also make decisions to pro-

vide credit to the business and make credit supplies to the company based on

the quality of the earnings. Therefore, the quality of the earnings helps predict

a company’s future outcomes due to which the investors invest. The high qual-

ity of the earnings helps enhance the firm performance as better earnings quality

reduces the risk of an investor, and the company resolves the financing issue ef-

ficiently, which further helps in availing investment opportunities and improving

firm performance.

Dhaliwal et al. (2011) discussed that disclosure is crucial for getting a company’s

information through to its external investors. While voluntary disclosures are

used to give information that better explains the necessary disclosures and satis-

fies the user’s demands, mandated disclosures typically include the most significant

transactions of the organization. According to Hossain (2008), management eval-

uates the projected costs and advantages of disclosing information before deciding

whether or not to do so.

According to Gray et al. (1995), to evaluate businesses and make other investment

decisions, such as selecting a portfolio of securities, investors need the information
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to determine the timing and unpredictability of present and future cash flows.

Sometimes managers communicate private information to shareholders and in-

vestors through voluntary disclosures, and the capital market participants may

benefit from these transparent and sufficient clues to predict the firm performance

(Enache and Hussainey, 2020). Therefore, on the one side, if managers efficiency

improves the earnings quality, and on the side, it further enhances the firm per-

formance by reducing the risk to the investors.

Prior research examined managers’ unique influences on business choices (Bamber

et al., 2010). According to the initial study done by Bertrand and Schoar (2003),

operating and particular management styles influence financial decisions. This

claim was supported by Jensen and Zajac (2004), who noted that managers’ ex-

perience influences strategy creation. Therefore, managerial efficiency influences

corporate performance.

Francis et al. (2008) argued in the alignment of the rent extraction perspective

that CEOs’ reputation and earning quality are inversely related; due to their

overestimation about improvement in personal career, and they take such actions,

which deteriorate discretionary earning quality. Managers have some approaches

toward internal controls, directors, colleagues, and auditors, which may affect the

quality of financial reporting and earnings (Aier et al., 2005). Various past studies

reported that earnings quality influences firm performance, and higher quality of

earnings lowers investment inefficiency (Bushman and Smith, 2001; Lambert et al.,

2007). Biddle and Hilary (2006) also supported this argument while reporting the

improvement of investment efficiency (lowering investment-cash flow sensitivity)

due to higher quality of the earning, which further improves the firm performance.

To develop the hypothesis that the earnings quality (ERQ) mediates the relation-

ship between managerial efficiency and firm performance, three path relationships

have been established theoretically, according to the work of (Baron and Kenny,

1986; Khan et al., 2021a). The above discussion elaborates that managerial ef-

ficiency leads to the earnings quality, and the earnings quality further influences

firm performance. Moreover, managerial efficiency also affects the firm perfor-

mance. Therefore, the above discussion shows that managerial efficiency improves

firm performance by increasing the earnings quality. Thus, the earnings quality is
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mediating in the relationship between managerial efficiency and firm performance.

H4: Earnings quality has a mediating role between managerial efficiency and firm

performance

2.6 Control Variables and Firm Performance

In the study, firm-specific and country-specific variables have been used as control

variables to minimize the biases of the results.

2.6.1 Firm-specific control variables

In the study, firm-level variables have been used as control variables to mitigate

the biases of the output, e.g., firm age (Fage), Firm Size (Fsize), Leverage (Lev),

Slack, and Sale growth (SG), Sale volatility (SV). Firm age, firm size, sale growth,

financial slack, and leverage usually are used as standard control variables in the

studies using firm performance models (Munjal et al., 2019).

Firm size is considered an essential factor, which contributes to enhancing the

firm performance. If a firm increases, the company has more chances to generate

external financing, which it uses to gain from the investment opportunities and

ultimately contributes to firm performance. Where there is competition, big en-

terprises always outcompete small firms because they have a greater market share

and more prospects for profit (Doğan, 2013). In previous studies, a positive rela-

tionship between firm size and firm performance has been reported (Lee, 2009).

According to Majumdar (1997), the relationship between firm size and firm per-

formance depends upon environmental and institutional factors. Firm size is an

essential factor and it influences firm performance positively, but some firms expe-

rience declining firm performance despite the increasing size (Aduralere Opeyemi,

2019). In past, the studies also reported a negative impact of firm size on firm

performance (Banchuenvijit and Phuong, 2012; Munjal et al., 2019).

Firm age is another major contributor to firm performance as an old company has

credibility and reliability due to which it quickly gets external financing, which

further contributes to firm performance. It is evident that age cannot be altered,
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hence firm performance has no bearing on age, as a company cannot go back in

past to do something, however, firm age, likely through intermediary processes

including routine, a reputation built up through time, and organizational rigidity

(Coad et al., 2018). They further discussed that the concepts about age are still

being matured as due to diversification field is still far away from maturity. Loderer

et al. (2017) argued that firm age creates rigidity in the organizations due to which

firm growth opportunities measured by Tobin’s Q declined. Coad et al. (2018)

concluded that organizations are required to go into expansion with time, but

they got into trouble turning employment expansion into profit growth, so the

firm age effect negatively the firm’s performance. Munjal et al. (2019) also used

firm age as a control variable and found that firm age positively influences firm

performance. According to Samosir (2018), older firms have more reputation and

attract investors, which contributes to enhancing the firm performance. Therefore,

the mixed results of the relationship between firm age and firm size are expected.

Leverage shows the usage of the debt portion in the capital and measures the

capital structure of a firm. Munjal et al. (2019) reported the negative influence

of leverage on firm performance. When debt is increased, a firm has to pay more

interest, and on the other side, the risk to the shareholders is also increased.

Debt usage influences the firm performance as the interest has to pay, and it

creates agency problems between shareholders and managers (Serrasqueiro and

Maçãs Nunes, 2008). In past studies, both types of negative Warner (1977); An-

drade and Kaplan (1998) and positive Wruck (1990) influence of leverage on firm

performance has been reported. In case of failure of other regulatory mechanisms,

debt may actively participate as another adaptive reaction to inadequate investor

protection to mitigate the agency issue (Jiraporn et al., 2012). Therefore, leverage

may contribute positively to firm performance. The above discussion shows that

mixed results of the influence of leverage on firm performance are reviewed.

Financial slack is the use of excess funds, such as cash and receivables, that can

be used for a variety of purposes and these are known as high discretion slack

George (2005), therefore, it’s a discretion of the managers to use these funds and

due to the personal interest of the managers, an agency issue is existed, which

ultimately affects the firm performance negatively. On the other hand, Cryert
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and March (1963) highlighted the importance of financial slack as these resources

encourage businesses to take more chances, explore, innovate and invest in R&D,

which contributes positively to firm performance.

In previous studies, sales growth has been taken as a control variable Munjal

et al. (2019); Iqbal et al. (2020), and sale growth positively influences sales on

firm performance. Recently, research was carried out with the result of a positive

influence of sale growth on corporate performance (Zimon et al., 2021; Lefebvre,

2022).

Sale volatility is used to measure the business risk and an increase in sale volatility

due to ups and downs of sale causes an increase in the risk, which create a panic

situation for investors as future profits are difficult to predict Rowena (2017),

so stock prices are affected due to which firm performance is decreased. Lefeb-

vre, (2022) while conducting research reported the negative influence of the sale

volatility on the performance of all small, medium, and large firms.

2.6.2 Country Level Control Variables

Micro and Macroeconomic variables influence business performance and businesses

are conscious of these variables to mitigate the negative impact of both micro and

macro-economic variables on the expected cash flows and business performance (Is-

sah and Antwi, 2017). However, microeconomics variables are controllable, but the

influence of macroeconomic variables (Interest rate, exchange rate, GDP growth,

etc.) is unavoidable and uncontrollable, so businesses are required to forecast

the effect of macroeconomic factors on predicted cashflows and firm performance

(Broadstock, Shu, and Xu, 2011). Similarly, other country-specific variables, e.g.,

governance indicators, are unmanageable and uncontrollable for businesses. Re-

cently, the literature is contributing to addressing the national governance mecha-

nisms like the legal system, the rule of law, or investor protection that may impact

the success of corporate governance methods based on the institutional, corporate

governance framework (Filatotchev et al., 2013).

According to Kaufmann et al. (2011) in external mechanism, i.e., national-level

governance quality has six dimensions, which are Control of Corruption (COC),
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Government Effectiveness (GEF), Regulatory Quality (REGQ), Voice and Ac-

countability (VAC), Rule of Law (RUL) and Political Stability and Violence (PAC).

These metrics are all considered important and have a positive impact on company

performance since they are necessary to run the businesses successfully (Ngobo and

Fouda, 2012). A higher value of the indicators, which range in standard normal

units roughly from -2.5 to +2.5, suggests stronger national government quality

(Kaufmann et al., 2011).

In previous studies, governance mechanisms have been used; for example, the Rule

of Law Roxas et al. (2012) used Rule of Law, and Iwanow and Kirkpatrick (2007)

took regulatory quality as control variables. However, in this study, six com-

ponents of country-level governance have been considered simultaneously. In the

study, the researcher used the index of all six dimensions of the external mechanism

of governance (Country level governance). These indicators have significantly high

correlation coefficients with one another Globerman and Shapiro (2002) therefore,

to avoid the multicollinearity issue while regressing these indicators as control

variables, the study incorporates all of them in an index established based on the

principal component analysis (PCA) and by aggregating the governance aspects

that are Control of Corruption (COC), Government Effectiveness (GEF), Regula-

tory Quality (REGQ), Voice and Accountability (VAC), Rule of Law (RUL) and

Political Stability and Violence (PAC). The data was gathered from worldwide

governance indicators and all the dimensions have ranks from lowest to highest

(0 to 100). However, to avoid the nonstationary of the data, the growth of the

ranking has been calculated and then the index has been compiled by using PCA.

The researcher also used the macroeconomic variables to control the dependent

variables, which are Interest Rate Athanasoglou et al. (2008); Iqbal et al. (2020),

Gross Domestic Product growth (GDP growth) Omran et al. (2008); Iqbal et al.

(2020), Exchange Rate (Baggs et al., 2009; Iqbal et al., 2020). Foreign direct

investment scaled by GDP has also been used as a macroeconomic control vari-

able. Gross domestic product measures the total market value of all products

and services delivered in a nation over the course of a year (Soukhakian and Kho-

dakarami, 2019). Previous studies reported the positive relationship between GDP

and corporate performance (Baños-Caballero et al., 2012; Ramadan, 2016).
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Developing economies always try to formulate and implement policies to fascinate

foreign investment to boost the domestic economy Lu et al. (2017) ultimately

contributing to firm performance. In their study, Tülüce and Doğan (2014) stated

that FDI contributes to economic growth by boosting capital accumulation and

technological advancements and enhancing business performance. The data of the

macroeconomic control variables have been obtained from the world bank.



Chapter 3

Data and Methodology

This chapter is about the methodology used in the study. The chapter comprises

the sampling technique to select the south Asian emerging economies and non-

financial companies listed in these emerging economies. This chapter also explains

the measurements of the variables, the source of the data, and the econometric

models used to test the hypotheses. This chapter explains the statistical techniques

used to test the hypotheses, which includes the descriptive statistics, correlation

analysis, identification of endogeneity, stationary of data and system Generalized

method of moments.

3.1 Selection of Countries

In the context of corporate governance, a lot of studies carried out in both de-

veloped and emerging economies and is concluded that the effectiveness and the

results of corporate governance in emerging economies far change as compared to

developed economies, as these economies are weak in transparency and corporate

governance mechanism to safeguard the legal rights of the shareholders (Gibson,

2003). Corporate governance in emerging economies is ineffective due to the weak

and complex information environment Zhang et al. (2017), and information asym-

metric in emerging markets is a common factor (Choe et al., 2005). On one side

corporate governance may have less of an impact on firm performance when it

comes to businesses based in nations with higher country-level governance and on

55
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the other hand, the businesses based in nations with unfavorable legal systems

are more likely to do poorly and under these conditions, enhancing corporate gov-

ernance turns out to be a very effective method of enhancing firm performance.

In a hostile legal climate, corporate governance would be more advantageous for

businesses (Wu, 2021).

Therefore, the emerging economies with weak legal protections for the sharehold-

ers, are the targeted population of the study. Thus, the unit of the population in

the study is a company listed on the stock exchanges of emerging economies. Fur-

thermore, the stratified sampling technique has been used, and to select the sample

of the study, the emerging economies have been classified into two groups. One

stratum is based upon the Next eleven countries (N-11), and the other is on BRICS

countries. Next Eleven (N-11) and BRICS both consist of emerging economies.

However, the study further selected the South Asian countries from these emerg-

ing economies from both groups. These countries are Pakistan, Bangladesh, and

India which are South Asian countries’ emerging economies. Moreover, the study’s

primary objective is to capture the moderating role of corporate governance in the

relationship of managerial efficiency with firm performance. In both strata, the

three countries, Pakistan, Bangladesh, and India have consistency in the corpo-

rate ownership structure (Bae et al., 2018). In these countries, numerous factors,

including low income, population pressure, unemployment, rural economies, and

geographically adjacent states, are comparable.

In addition, the world bank also declares these south Asian countries (Pakistan,

Bangladesh, and India) as lower-income South Asian countries. In all these three

countries, the laws to govern the listed companies are formulated by the central

governments, and reporting quality requirements are also set by the government

agencies. Furthermore, all these three countries, Pakistan, India, and Bangladesh

are taken into account to make an empirical analysis, and these countries have

consistency in corporate ownership information (Masud et al., 2018).

3.2 Selection of Companies

After selection, the South Asian lower-income emerging economies and the
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companies from the non-financial sector of these economies have been selected.

Initially, the data were taken for 600 companies for which data was available from

WRDS, S&P Global and annual reports, afterwards, the companies with missing

observations have been dropped. Afterwards, the data was winsorized and finally

the data was collected from 492 firms listed on stock exchanges of Pakistan, India

and Bangladesh. In the case of Bangladesh, the sample size is 97; in the context

of Pakistan sample size is 197; in the Indian scenario sample size is 200. The

top-ranked companies, based on the size and availability of the data, have been

selected from each economy (Pakistan, India and Bangladesh).

3.3 Source, Type, and Period of Data

Four hundred ninety-two companies from non-financial sectors of the three emerg-

ing and lower-income south Asian countries are part of the study. As, after the

global financial crisis many corporate governance processes and guidelines under-

went revisions. Moreover, all those companies have been included in the sample

which data was available for the period of 11 years (2009-2019) and were listed dur-

ing this period. Therefore, balance panel data has been used for further analysis.

The analysis has been carried out in the context of all three countries (Pakistan,

India, and Bangladesh) separately and all companies have been pooled to capture

the results in a combination of all these economies. In both cases, while conduct-

ing the results in the context of all these countries separately and combine, the

balance panel data has been used.

The data for firm-specific variables have been collected from Wharton Research

Data Services (WRDS), S&P Global, and annual reports of the non-financial com-

panies listed on the stock exchanges. Moreover, the data for country-level gover-

nance has been collected from the website of Worldwide Governance indicators,

and the data for macro-economic control variables have been gathered from the

World Bank.

3.4 Research Models

The following research models have been reported in the form of regression
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equations

to capture the influence of managerial efficiency on firm performance and to pin-

point the moderating effect of corporate governance in the relationship between

managerial efficiency and firm performance. The firm performance has been mea-

sured by using both book-based and market-based proxies that return on assets

(ROA) and Tobin’s Q (TQ) respectively. In subscript of each variable (cit) repre-

sents the country (c), firm (i) at year (t). Moreover, Fcon and Ccon represent the

firm-specific and country-specific control variables respectively.

3.4.1 Moderating Role of Corporate Governance in a Re-

lationship of Managerial Efficiency with Firm Per-

formance

The following regression equations are used to capture the influence of managerial

efficiency on firm performance and moderating role of the corporate governance

index in this relationship. Moreover, the firm performance has been measured by

using both market-based and book-based proxies which are Tobin’s Q (TQ) and

return on assets (ROA) respectively. According to certain academics, high-ability

managers have higher business knowledge, which enhances firm performance and

earnings quality e.g., (Demerjian et al., 2013; Leverty and Grace, 2012).

ROAcit = β0 + β1MBcit + β2CGIcit + β3(MB × CGI)c,i,t +
j∑

i=1

λiFConcit

+
m∑
l=1

α1CConct + α1ARc,i,t−1 + α2ARc,i,t−2 + µcit

(3.1)

TQcit = β01 + β4MBcit + β5CGIcit + β6(MB × CGI)c,i,t +
j∑

i=1

λiFConcit

+
m∑
l=1

α1CConct + α1ARc,i,t−1 + α2ARc,i,t−2 + µcit

(3.2)

obinQ (TQ) is the measurement of firm performance on a market based, and

return on assets (ROA) is the book-based measurement of firm Performance. MB
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represents managerial efficiency; GI is for the corporate governance index. Fcon is

used to represent the firm-level control variables, which are Firm Age, Firm Size,

Leverage, Financial slack, Sale growth, and sale volatility. Ccon is showing the

country-level control variables, which are the external mechanism of Governance

index, Interest Rate, Exchange Rate, GDP growth, and Foreign Direct Index (FDI)

scaled by GDP.

First, the Corporate Governance Index (CGI) has been constructed based on Prin-

ciple Component Analysis (PCA) by taking one dimension, i.e., Board structure,

into account. Corporate Governance Index (CGI) consists of Board Size (BS),

Board Meetings (BM), and Board Independence (Bind). After constructing the

Corporate Governance Index (CGI), another variable, i.e., the interaction term,

is created by multiplying the independent variable and the Corporate Governance

Index (CGI). The interaction term has been established by taking the product

of managerial efficiency and Corporate Governance index. FollowingMuller et al.

(2005), this new variable has been included in the research equation. which is

capture used to capture the moderating effect of corporate governance index in

relationship between managerial efficiency and firm performance. Afterward, an

appropriate technique has been applied to test the hypotheses.

3.4.2 Impact of Managerial Efficiency Permanency on Firm

Performance

The following regression equations have been used to capture the impact of man-

agerial efficiency permanency on firm performance and to pinpoint the significant

difference between the effect of managerial efficiency permanency and the effect of

temporary managerial efficiency on firm performance.

ROAcit = β02 + β7MBcit + β8MBPFcit + β9CGIcit +
j∑

i=1

λiFConcit

+
m∑
l=1

α1CConct + α1ARc,i,t−1 + α2ARc,i,t−2 + µcit

(3.3)

TQcit = β03 + β10MBcit + β11MBPFcit + β12CGIcit +
j∑

i=1

λiFConcit

+
m∑
l=1

α1CConct + α1ARc,i,t−1 + α2ARc,i,t−2 + µcit

(3.4)
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Return on assets (ROA) and Tobin’s Q are the dependent variables, which are the

book-based and market-based measurements of the firm performance respectively.

In equations, the variable managerial efficiency is denoted by MB and managerial

efficiency permanency (MBPF) is a slope dummy, which is the product of manage-

rial efficiency (MB) and dummy variable (MBP) used to capture the managerial

behavior permanency. MBP used 1 in case of the presence of the permanency and

otherwise 0. As result, if the co-efficient of MBPF is positively significant, then

the effect of managerial efficiency permanency on firm performance is significantly

greater than the temporary managerial efficiency and vice versa. In the case of the

insignificance of the co-efficient of MBPF, the results indicate that the effect of

the managerial efficiency permanency on firm performance is similar to temporary

managerial efficiency.

In the above models, the corporate governance index, other firm-specific variables,

and country-level variables have also been used as control variables to avoid the

biases of the results. At the firm level, the control variables are firm age, firm size,

leverage, financial slack, sale growth, and sale volatility. Moreover, at the country

level, country variables are the external mechanism of governance index, interest

rate, exchange rate, GDP growth, and Foreign Direct Index (FDI) scaled by GDP.

3.4.3 Mediating Role of Earnings Quality in a Relationship

of Managerial Efficiency with Firm Performance

The following equations from 3.6 to 3.12 have been used to test the mediating

role of earnings quality in the relationship between managerial efficiency and firm

performance measured by return on assets (ROA) and Tobin’s Q (TQ).

3.4.3.1 Impact of Managerial Efficiency on Earnings Quality

ERQcit = β04 + β13MBcit + α1ARc,i,t−1

+α2ARc,i,t−2 + µcit

(3.5)
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3.4.3.2 Impact of Earning Quality on Firm Performance

TobinQcit = β05 + β14FRQcit +
j∑

i=1

λiFConcit +
m∑
l=1

α1CConct

+α1ARc,i,t−1 + α2ARc,i,t−2 + µcit

(3.6)

ROAcit = β06 + β15FRQcit +
j∑

i=1

λiFConcit +
m∑
l=1

α1CConct

+α1ARc,i,t−1 + α2ARc,i,t−2 + µcit

(3.7)

3.4.3.3 Impact of Managerial Efficiency on Firm Performance

TobinQcit = β07 + β16MBcit +
j∑

i=1

λiFConcit +
m∑
l=1

α1CConct

+α1ARc,i,t−1 + α2ARc,i,t−2 + µcit

(3.8)

ROAcit = β08 + β17MBcit +
j∑

i=1

λiFConcit +
m∑
l=1

α1CConct

+α1ARc,i,t−1 + α2ARc,i,t−2 + µcit

(3.9)

3.4.3.4 Impact of Managerial Efficiency and Earning Quality on Firm

Performance

TobinQcit = β09 + β18MBcit + β19FRQcit +
j∑

i=1

λiFConcit

+
m∑
l=1

α1CConct + α1ARc,i,t−1 + α2ARc,i,t−2 + µcit

(3.10)

ROAcit = β00 + β20MBcit + β21FRQcit +
j∑

i=1

λiFConcit

+
m∑
l=1

α1CConct + α1ARc,i,t−1 + α2ARc,i,t−2 + µcit

(3.11)

The study aimed to evaluate the mediating function of Earning Quality (ERQ) in

the link between managerial efficiency (MB) and business performance in addition

to capturing the moderating influence of the Corporate Governance Index (CGI).

By following Baron and Kenny (1986); Khan et al. (2021a), three steps were

applied to indicate the mediation role of Earning Quality (ERQ) in a relationship

of managerial efficiency (MB) with firm performance. In the first step, a mediator

is taken as a function of an independent variable. In the second step, a dependent

variable is taken as a function of the mediator, and then the dependent variable
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is taken as a function of an independent variable. If, in all, the coefficients of

estimators are significant, then mediating effect of ERQ is existed. The fourth step

is applied, where the dependent variable is taken as a function of independent and

mediator. If the coefficient of an independent variable is found significant, then

partial mediation of ERQ is there, and otherwise, full mediation is considered.

Therefore, the above equations from equation 3.6 to equation 3.10 have been used

to check the conditions of the Earning Quality as a mediator and after verifying

the mediating role of Earning Quality empirically in the relationship between

managerial efficiency and firm performance. Equations 3.11 and 3.12 have been

used to test the partial or full mediation of the Earning Quality between managerial

efficiency and firm performance. Moreover, both firm-specific and country-level

variables have been used as control variables.

3.5 Measurement/Proxies of variables

This section mentions the operationalization of variables, including managerial ef-

ficiency, managerial efficiency permanency, corporate governance index, and earn-

ings quality.

3.5.1 Measurement of Financial Performance (Dependent

Variable)

The study’s main goal is to identify how corporate governance, as evaluated by

the board structure index, moderates the link between management conduct and

business performance as well as the mediating function that Earning Quality plays

in that relationship. Therefore, the dependent variable is firm performance, and by

following Iqbal, Gan, and Nadeem (2020), two measurements of firm performance

have been used in the study. One measurement is a book-based proxy, i.e., return

on assets (ROA), and another is a market-based proxy, i.e., Tobin’s Q (TQ). The

different financial ratios are used to measure a company’s financial performance,

e.g., sale growth, return on assets (ROA), and return on equity (ROE). Although

ROA may not accurately reflect an asset’s full earning potential, still, it is the most
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useful, generally accessible, and popular way to gauge an organization’s success

(Benner and Veloso, 2008).

The advantage of this metrics is that it is widely used to capture the firm per-

formance, but creative accounting, figure manipulations, and use of accounting

technique make it challenging to compare financial performance with other prox-

ies (Chenhall and Langfield-Smith, 2007). Return on assets is used to check the

ability of the total assets to generate profit, so the measurement of the outcome of

utilization of the resource is the objective of this measurement. Moreover, the ex-

planatory variable of the study is managerial efficiency in terms of the utilization

of skills and resources of the firm to maximization of the shareholders’ wealth.

Both accounting-based and market-based measurements are part of this study.

According to Alajlani, (2019) short-term financial performance is predicted by

accounting-based performance measurements, whereas long-term financial perfor-

mance is predicted by market-based performance metrics. Both returns on assets

and Tobin’s Q are the measurement of firm performance, which are mostly used es-

pecially in corporate governance-related studies (Clacher et al., 2008; Garćıa-Meca

et al., 2015).

Return on assets measures the accounting or book-based performance as the data

of return on assets is taken from a company’s book of accounts (Financial state-

ments). The following formula is used to measure book-based firm performance.

ROAc,i,t =
Net Income or Lossc,i,t

Total Assetsc,i,t

The measurement of return on assets (ROA) is the scaled value of net income or

loss by total assets of country c, firm (i) at year (t).

The market-based measurement of a firm’s performance is Tobins’Q (TQ), which

has been used as the robustness of the study. Tobins’Q is measured by adding

the book value of debt to the market value of equity and scaled by total assets

(Ibrahim and Samad, 2011; Yakob and Abu Hasan, 2021). So, by using the fol-

lowing formula, Tobin’s Q is determined.

TQc,i,t =
(Market value of the equity +Book value of debt)c,i,t

Total Assetsc,i,t
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3.5.2 Measurement of Managerial Efficiency (Independent

Variable)

Corporate managers contribute significantly to a company’s production process as

one sort of labor input (Jensen and Meckling, 1976). They coordinate company

resources, carry out business operations, make many decisions Fama and Jensen

(1983) and have a variety of managerial skills, which contribute to firm perfor-

mance (Bertrand and Schoar, 2003). In a past study, managerial efficiency, in

terms of managerial ability and skills has been used as an independent variable

(Demerjian et al., 2013; Leverty and Grace, 2012).

Alternative metrics of managerial efficiency include media citations of managers

Francis et al. (2008) and pay for performance sensitivity (Milbourn, 2003). How-

ever, these measurements only consider managers’ characteristics and ignore im-

portant firm-wide factors. In addition, they do not reflect actual management

conduct but how it is perceived. However, Demerjian et al. (2012) measurement

of managerial efficiency based on DEA depicts managerial performance in terms

of output while employing constrained resources, which are products of managers’

experiences and psychological characteristics. Before the foundational work of

Demerjian et al. (2012), quantifying management effectiveness was a complex un-

dertaking because of managerial observable (education and experience, etc.) and

unobservable (cognitive and emotional intelligence) skills. In this study, the term

managerial efficiency is used to cater to both skills, as the measurement of man-

agerial efficiency is based upon the input and output proxy. The proxy gives the

results of managerial efficiency in terms of skills and utilization of the skills.

The data envelopment analysis (DEA) model, which was taken from the work by

Demerjian et al. (2012), has been used to gauge management effectiveness. The

underlying premise of this model is that if the production rate can be increased

while utilizing fewer resources by the management. This method’s benefit is that

it measures the input-output-based performance and takes various inputs and

outputs into account simultaneously (Lee et al., 2018).

First, the firm efficiency has been measured by solving the following optimization

problem for each firm (i) at year (t).
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Maximumvθ =
Sales

v1COGS + v2SGAE + v3PPE + v4INT
(3.12)

COGS is used for the Cost of goods sold, PPE is the representation of property,

plant, and equipment, and INT is used for intangible assets. Whereas, v1,v2, v3,

and v4 are weights of the usage of the respective inputs.

Table 3.1: Summary for Inputs and Outputs Used in Equation 3.12

Inputs Description Source

Cost of inventory (Cost
of goods sold), Selling,
General and administra-
tive expenses (SGAE),
net PPE, and intangible
assets.

All these inputs (CGS, SGAE, PPE,
and intangible assets) are the con-
tributing inputs to a generation of
revenue, and these all depend upon
the manager’s discretion to use them;
therefore, these are influenced by man-
agerial ability and behavior to use
them.

Cho, Choi, and Kim
(2018); Park and Song
(2019)

Output Description Source

Revenue (Net sale) Net sales or revenue will be taken from
the income statements of the firms

Cho, Choi, and Kim
(2018); Park and Song
(2019)

Table No.3.2 elaborates all inputs and outputs (Variables) used in equation-xiii to

capture the firm efficiency.

Afterward, in the second step, firm efficiency has been taken as a function of firm-

specific characteristics (firm size, firm market share, Free cash flow, operational

complexity, and foreign operations) as demonstrated in Equation No. xiv.

Firm efficiencyit = β0 + β1Ln (Total Assets) + β2Market Share + β3FCF

+β4BSeg + β5FgnCurrency + ∈it

(3.13)

The residual values have been obtained by regressing the above Equation (xiv) for

each year (t) and each firm (i), representing the managerial efficiency in terms of

their efficiency, ability, and performance.
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Table 3.2: Summary for variables will be used in Equation No. 3.13

Variables Explanation

Firm efficiency Determined by DEA (By using Equation 3.13)
Market Share Firm Revenue/Total Revenue of industry
FCF 1 if Free Cash flow (FCF) is positive; otherwise,

0.
Firm size Natural log (Total assets)

Business segment
(Bseg)

Business segment: the sum of the squares of
(Firm sales in each geographic segment) divided
by the square of the total firm sales. The sales
data in each segment has been collected Segment
from S&P Global.

FgnCurrency Foreign currency translation is a sum of all gains
and losses from foreign currency translations and
transactions scaled by total revenue and the ab-
solute is taken of the resultant (Park and Song,
2019). The data for foreign currency translation
has been taken from WRDS.

3.5.3 Measurement of Managerial Efficiency Permanency

(Independent Variable)

First, the managerial efficiency score for all companies of selected countries has

been calculated by applying Data Envelopment Analysis (DEA) based on Input

and Output as mentioned in the measurement of managerial efficiency. After-

ward, the requirement of managerial efficiency Permanency or continuity was car-

ried out by following Jeong et al. (2018) and Noor et al. (2020), but they applied

this method to determine CSR permanency. managerial efficiency permanency

has been measured using a dummy variable, 1 if the managerial efficiency score

is equal to or more than 3 times over the most recent four years and otherwise

0. Furthermore, another variable (MBPF) has been developed by multiplying the

managerial efficiency score by this dummy variable at the firm-year level. So,

the managerial efficiency permanency (MBPF) obtained by MB*MBP as MBP

is a dummy variable showing 1 if managerial permanency is there; otherwise, 0.

Whereas the MB shows the managerial efficiency score and MBP is a dummy vari-

able showing managerial efficiency permanency for firm-year level, and the product

of both (MB*MBP) is the measurement of managerial efficiency permanency
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score at firm-year level.

3.5.4 Measurement of Corporate Governance Index through

PCA (Moderating Variable)

The study used panel data, which was collected from 492 companies listed on

the stock exchanges of lower-income emerging economies in South Asia (Pakistan,

India, and Bangladesh). Moreover, in south Asia, these three countries have con-

sistency in the corporate ownership structure (Bae et al., 2018). According to

Gomez-Mejia et al. (2001), family owned companies have greater agency costs

as a result of keeping inefficient family members in management. Due to the in-

terpersonal relationships, family businesses have been reported to be reluctant to

terminate incompetent family members. As a result, agency charges can boost

and diminish a company’s efficiency (Yousaf et al., 2019). Therefore, in the study,

family ownership and audit quality have not been added in corporate governance

index

In emerging economies, an effective board structure and its composition are con-

sidered an essential component of corporate governance to protect the rights of

the shareholders Jackling and Johl (2009), and due to which, one dimension of

corporate governance, i.e., Board Structure has been taken as a proxy of cor-

porate governance. Abdou et al. (2021) used the board’s characteristics (Board

Size, Board Independence, Gender Diversity, and Duality) to measure corporate

governance. However, the study used board size, board independence, and board

meetings to measure corporate governance. The duality and female representation

on board have not been considered as duality is a dummy variable, and very little

female representation is on board in Pakistan. So, the doubt of the results biases

was high while constructing the board structure index. Therefore, we dropped two

sub-variables, duality and gender diversity, and added other aspects, i.e., board

meetings, so that the operational aspects of the board may be included. After-

ward, by following Larcker et al. (2007); Roy (2018), a corporate governance index

is established based upon principal component analysis (PCA) to summarize the

information in one variable. The information for each characteristic of board
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structure has been obtained by using:

Board Sizec,i,t = natural log (Number of board directorsc,i,t)

The second characteristic of board structure is used as board independence, which

is measured as:

Board Independencec,i,t =
Number of non− executive outside directorsc,i,t

Total number of board directorsc,i,t

The board meeting is measured by using the percentage attendance of the board

of directors in the meetings held during the year (t), of the firm (i) of a country

(c).

Finally, the corporate governance index consists of the sub-variables: board size,

board independence, and board meetings. The index has been constructed based

on principal component analysis (PCA). The purpose of all characteristics is to

provide information about governance at the firm level. Therefore, the study in-

tended to make a bunch of all six indicators by applying principal component anal-

ysis as it provides significant and collective information (McNamara and Duncan,

1995), and it also helps in minimizing the multi-co-linearity issue, which further

mitigates the statistical biases (Issah and Antwi, 2017). Andreica et al. (2010)

discussed that Principal Component Analysis (PCA) wraps only those dimensions

with more contribution without losing relevant information, and other useless di-

mensions are dropped. The following Equation is used to construct the index using

principal component analysis (PCA).

PCA Index = (Feature V ector)T X (Standardized value of data)

The covariance between the dimensions used to build the index and Eigenvectors

is utilized to create the feature vector (Components). The following formula is

used to get a standardized value.

Z =
Orginal V alue−Mean value

standard deviation
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The PCA index results from the feature vector’s transposition and the standard-

ized data set values’ transposition. The index may have negative values, the

negative values indicate the poor governance and positive value are showing good

governance.

3.5.5 Measurement of Earning Quality (Mediating Vari-

able)

Following Biddle et al. (2009) and Chen et al. (2011), three different proxies, first

the Kor and Mahoney (2005) discretionary accruals model, second the McNichols

(2002) discretionary revenue model, and third the Dechow and Dichev (2002)

accrual model that was further modified by McNichols (2002) and Francis et al.

(2005) have been used to measure the quality of the earnings quality . Afterward,

the normalized data from each proxy and the average of three proxies are measured

for further analysis (Biddle and Hilary, 2006).

The first proxy of earnings quality is denoted by ERQ-1, for which the values have

been obtained by using the discretionary accruals model, developed by Kothari et

al., (2005); -

Total Accrualsit = β0 + β1
1

Assets i,t−1

+ β2∆Sale it + β3PPEit + β4ROAit + ∈it

(3.14)

Whereas

Total Accrualsit =
Non cash CAit −∆Non interest bearing CLit −DAit

Total Assetsi,t−1

ROA is representing the returns on assets, ∆Salesit is the measure of the change

in the sale, PPEit is showing the property plant and equipment, Non-cash CAit

measures the non-cash current assets, ∆Non interest bearing CLit measures the

change in non-interest-bearing current liabilities, DAit is depreciation and amor-

tization for a firm (i) at year t.

Residual values from Equation 3.15 have been obtained, and the modulus of these
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residuals and multiplying by -1, are values of theERQ-1. A higher value means

earnings quality (ERQ-1) is good.

The second measurement of Earning Quality is ERQ-2, which has been obtained

by following McNichols and Stubben’s (2008), discretionary revenue model: -

∆AccountReceivableit = β0 + β1∆SaleRevenueit + ∈it (3.15)

Where both change in account receivable and change in sale revenue are scaled by

lagged total assets and the residual values from equation 3.16 have been taken,

and then the modulus of these residuals are multiplied by -1. A higher value of

discretionary revenue means Earning quality (ERQ-2) is on the higher side.

The third proxy is ERQ-3 for which the values have been obtained by following

the Dechow and Dichev (2002) model, which is further modified by McNichols

(2002); Francis et al. (2005) and is as follows: -

Total Accrualsit = β0+β1OCF i,t−1+β2OCFit+β3OCFi,t+1+β4∆Revit+β5PPEit+∈it

(3.16)

Whereas

Total Accrualsit =
∆Non cash CAit −∆Current Non− interest bearing CLit

Total Assetsi,t−1

OCF is operating cashflows, ∆Revit measures the change in revenue, PPEitProperty

plant and equipment, Non-cash CAit measures the non-cash current assets, Non

interest bearing CLit measures the change in non-interest-bearing current liabil-

ities. Residuals from Equation 3.17 have been taken, and the modulus of these

residuals is multiplied by -1. A higher value means (ERQ-3) is on the higher side.

Finally, the data of ERQ-1, ERQ-2, and ERQ-3 were normalized, and then the

average was obtained.

ERQ = Average value of (ERQ1, ERQ2, and ERQ3)
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3.6 Control Variables

Control variables have their significance as they mitigate the results’ biasedness

(Garćıa-Sánchez, 2020). Controlling for any omitted variable biases is the main

reason for incorporating the control variables (Nguyen et al., 2015). In the study,

the dependent variables (Return on assets and Tobins’Q) are also controlled by

both firm-specific and country-specific variables to minimize the biases of the re-

sults.

3.6.1 Firm-Specific Control Variables

In previous studies firm size, sale growth, and leverage were also used as control

variables (Anderson and Reeb, 2003; Munjal et al., 2019; Iqbal et al., 2020). The

following are the measurements of the control variables. Firm size is measured by

using the natural log of total assets.

FSizec,i,t = natural log (Total Assetsc,i,t)

The firm age is measured by taking the number of years since the company is in-

corporated and showing a significant relationship with firm performance (Ibrahim,

2011). By following Moradi et al. (2021), the firm age is measured as:

Fagec,i,t = natural log (Number of year of corporationc,i,t)

Leverage is measured by taking the long-term debt and scaled by total assets

(Zhang and Ayisi 2020). Thus, the leverage is measured by using the following

formula.

Leveragec,i,t =
Debtc,i,t

Total Assetsc,i,t

The sale growth directly contributes to increasing the profitability of a company

due to which the company can generate its internal financing and become less

dependent on an external source of financing. By following Moradi et al. (2021),
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sale growth is measured as the percentage change in the sale of the current year

from the sale of last year:

SGc,i,t =
Sc,i,t − Sc,i,t−1

Sc,i,t−1

SG is sale growth, S(c,i,t)is sale of country c, firm i and at year t, S(c,i,t−1) is the

sale of country c, firm i and at year t-1.

The study also used another control variable that is volatility in the sale as it

measures the risk in the sale of a company, which ultimately influences the firm

performance. According to Lefebvre (2022), the sale volatility is measured as the

standard deviation of the annual sale of the firms. The sale volatility (SV) is

measured by using the standard deviation in the series of the sale of the company.

The sale of lagged 3 years has been used to measure the sale volatility.

SVc,i,t =

√∑
(Sale− Average sale)2

n

In the above formula, the sum of the square deviation of the sale from the average

of the last 3 years and one current year have been taken, which is further divided

by n=4 and finally, the square root has been taken.

Financial slack is another controlling variable, which shows the usage of cash as

compared to total assets or property plant, and equipment. Munjal et al. (2019)

also used it control variable and reported the positive influence of slack on firm

performance. The slack is measured as:

Slack c,i,t =
Cashc,i,t

Property P lant and Equipment c,i,t

The data of the firm-specific variables have been collected from Wharton Research

Data Services (WRDS).

3.6.2 Country Level Control Variables

In the study, country-level governance and macroeconomic variables have also

been taken as control variables. Following, Kaufmann et al., (2011), country-level
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governance has been a part of the control variables, in the study, the index has

been constructed based on PCA by incorporating the governance indicators, which

are Control of Corruption (COC), Government Effectiveness (GEF), Regulatory

Quality (REGQ), Voice and Accountability (VAC), Rule of Law (RUL) and Po-

litical Stability and Violence (PAC). Due to the higher and significant correlation

between these governance indicators Globerman and Shapiro (2002) and to avoid

the issue of multi-co-linearity, the index of these indicators has been constructed.

The other country-specific control variables are interest rate, GDP growth, and

exchange rate (Iqbal, Gan and Nadeem, 2020). Foreign direct investment scaled by

GDP is also necessary to boost the economy (Lu, Tao and Zhu, 2017), ultimately

contributing to firm performance.

Table 3.4 demonstrates the summary of all variables used in the study, along with

the abbreviation and explanation of the variables.

Table 3.3: Summary of the Measurement of Variables

S.No. Variable Abbreviation Explanation

Dependent Variable

1 FP Firm Performance

Tobin-q (TQ) and Return on Assets (ROA) are the
measurements of firm performance
Tobin-q is calculated by taking the sum of both mar-
ket capitalization and debt book value and further
results are scaled by total assets
Return on assets is determined by scaling the net
profit with total assets.

Independent Variables

2 MB Managerial Efficiency Managerial efficiency has been measured by using
Data Envelopment Analysis (DEA). MA-Score mea-
surement is a residual of the firm efficiency model
developed by Demerjian et al. (2012) by using DEA

3 MBPF Managerial Efficiency
permanency

First, the Managerial Efficiency score has been cap-
tured using DEA at the firm-year level. Afterward,
Managerial Efficiency permanency has been mea-
sured using a dummy variable, 1 if managerial effi-
ciency is equal to or more than 3 times over the most
recent four years and otherwise 0. Finally, a new
variable MBPF is developed by taking the product
of both series. managerial efficiency and managerial
efficiency permanency (Dummy variable) and MBPF
are used in the model.

Moderating Variable

4 CGI Corporate Governance
Index

Board size, Board Meetings, Board independence.
The corporate governance index (CGI) has been
constructed based on principle component analysis
(PCA).
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Mediating Variable

5 ERQ Earning Quality

the ERQ index has been used as a proxy, which are
the normalized values of the average of ERQ-1, ERQ-
2, and ERQ-3.

ERQ-1 was measured by using the discretionary ac-
cruals model developed by Kothari et al, (2005).

ERQ-2 was measured by using the discretionary rev-
enue model of McNichols and Stubben (2008).

ERQ-3 was measured by using the accrual model of
Dechow-Dichev (2002), which is further modified by
McNichols (2002) and Francis et al. (2005).

Control variables at the Firm Level

6 FAage Firm Age Natural Log (No. of the year of a corporation)

7 FSize Firm size Natural log (Total Assets)

8 SG Sale growth Sale growth

9 SV Sale volatility The standard deviation of the last three years’ sale

10 Slack Financial Slack Cash to PPE (Property, plant, and equipment)

11 Lev Leverage Debt/Total assets

Control variables at Country Level

12 IRL Interest Rate Averagely Annual Interest Rate for the year t each
country collected from World Bank Database

13 ER Exchange Rate The average annual exchange rate is US $, for year
t and each country. The natural log of the exchange
rate has been taken to use in regression analysis.

14 GDPg Gross Domestic Prod-
uct growth rate

GDP annual growth rate at year t for each country.
Data collected from the World Bank Database.

15 FDI Foreign Direct Invest-
ment

Foreign direct investment and scaled by GDP. Data
collected from World Bank Database.

Control variables at Country Level

12 IRL Interest Rate Averagely Annual Interest Rate for the year t each
country collected from World Bank Database

13 ER Exchange Rate The average annual exchange rate is US $, for year
t and each country. The natural log of the exchange
rate has been taken to use in regression analysis.

14 GDPg Gross Domestic Prod-
uct growth rate

GDP annual growth rate at year t for each country.
Data collected from the World Bank Database.

15 FDI Foreign Direct Invest-
ment

Foreign direct investment and scaled by GDP. Data
collected from World Bank Database.

16 GI External Mechanism
of Governance Index

Index of External Mechanism of Governance has been
considered by formulating it through principal com-
ponent analysis (PCA). The index has been con-
structed by incorporating the Control of Corrup-
tion (COC), Government Effectiveness (GEF), Reg-
ulatory Quality (REGQ), Voice and Accountability
(VAC), Rule of Law (RUL), and Political Stability
and Violence (PAC). The data of the indicators have
been gathered from Worldwide Governance Indica-
tors.
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3.7 Statistical Techniques

In the research balance panel data has been used for a period of 11 years (2009-

2019) in the pooling of 492 companies listed on stock exchanges of three emerging

economies. In the case of separate country-wise analysis, the study also used

balance panel data. The study carried out the following research techniques to

analyze the data and test the hypotheses.

3.8 Descriptive Statistics

Before testing the hypothesis, the descriptive statistics for each variable have been

presented. The average value measured by mean and variation in the data of

all variables has been shown by standard deviation. The minimum and maximum

values are also presented in descriptive statistics. In the study, descriptive statistics

have been presented for all variables in the scenario of all three emerging economies

(Pakistan, India, and Bangladesh). The average value (mean value) is measured

by taking the sum of all values and dividing it by the number of all observations.

Arithmetic Mean =

∑
X

n

∑
X shows the sum of all variable values, and n is the number of observations.

The variation in the data has been determined by using standard deviation. The

standard deviation is calculated by taking the sum of the square of the deviation

from the mean and divided by the number of observations. Finally, the square

root is taken from the results.

S.D =

√∑
(X −mean)2

n

Moreover, in descriptive statistics, the minimum and maximum values of all vari-

ables have also been demonstrated to identify the range of the series.
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3.8.1 Correlation Analysis

Correlation analysis is used in the study to show the link between the variables.

The assessment of the link between the variables is the coefficient of correlation.

The coefficient of correlation has a value from -1 to 1. A poor correlation between

the variables is indicated by a coefficient of correlation value that is closer to zero.

Moreover, the value of the coefficient of correlation closer to -1 or 1 shows a strong

relationship. Correlation between the explanatory variables is also used to indicate

the issue of multi-co-linearity and high correlation, i.e., if more than 0.90 is there

between the independent variables, then it indicates the issue of multi-co-linearity

(Hair et al., 2010).

3.8.2 System Generalized Methods of Moments (GMM)

In the study, balance panel data was used in the case of both country-wise analysis

and pooling of companies from all three countries. First of all, the panel unit test

has been applied to test the stationary of the data and found that all variables

are stationary at a level I(0), which indicates that regression analysis should be

used. Afterward, the endogeneity test has been applied in the context of all

three countries and in the case of pooling of companies. The results confirm the

presence of endogeneity. Therefore, the application of standard panel OLS like

Fixed effect or Random effect models is not appropriate as these do not address the

issue of endogeneity (Chatterjee and Nag, 2022). Wintoki et al. (2012) identified

while testing the governance and performance relationship, three various causes of

the endogeneity, which are simultaneity, unobserved heterogeneity, and dynamic

endogeneity. They elaborated that simultaneity refers to the interdependence of

two variables, dynamic endogeneity is due to the current value of the dependent

variable being impacted by the lagged value and unobserved heterogeneity means

the unobserved factor influences the relationship of two variables.

The problem of endogeneity in panel data is controlled by applying dynamic panel

analysis, also called the generalized method of moments (GMM) (Ullah et al.,

2018; Tzouvanas et al., 2020). The generalized method of moments is a technique,

which resolves the issue of endogeneity by taking the lagged dependent variable
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and endogenous variables with proper lags as instrumental variables (Chatterjee

and Nag, 2022).

Therefore, Generalized Methods of Moments (GMM) have been applied to address

the problem of endogeneity (Coban and Topcu, 2013; Busch and Lewandowski,

2018), and endogeneity may arise because of simultaneity or bias of omitted vari-

able (Tzouvanas, Kizys, Chatziantoniou and Sagitova, 2020). The generalized

method of moments has two types, which are difference GMM and another one is

system GMM. In difference GMM, the differenced equations are taken only, while

in system GMM both difference and level equations are considered. Moreover, due

to small period, the persistence of the outcome variable and autoregressive term

are strongly correlated, in this case system GMM is more appropriate to apply

(Blundel and Bond, 1998). The GMM is suitable to control the various kinds of

the endogeneity and it controls the three main types of the endogeneity that are

dynamic endogeneity, simultaneity and unobserved heterogeneity and the validity

of the GMM depends upon the Sargen test, and it validate the specification of the

instruments and the model (Ullah, Akhtar and Zaefarian, 2018).

The study applied the system Generalized Method of Moments by following Arel-

lano and Bover 1995; Blundell and Bond 1998. Generalized Method of Mo-

ments (GMM) estimator validation is based upon two criteria (Asimakopoulos,

Asimakopoulos and Fernandes, 2019). First, the test of the existence of serial nth-

order correlation and the null hypothesis is that there is no serial correlation of the

differenced error terms. The second is applying the Sargan test to test whether

the overidentifying restrictions are valid. In the study, both criteria of GMM have

been tested. AR (1) and AR (2) have been added to the model, and in each model,

it has been found that AR (2) is insignificant with a p-value greater than 0.05,

which means at lag-2 no serial correlation exists in the model and it has been

addressed. The results of the Sargan test in all study models have a probability

greater than 0.05, which validates the instrumental overidentifying restrictions.



Chapter 4

Results and Discussion

This chapter is about the results obtained by applying the suitable technique, i.e.,

System GMM, to test the hypothesis. The results for descriptive statistics and

correlation analysis have also been described in this chapter. Discussion of the

results is also part of this chapter.

4.1 Descriptive Statistics

From Table-4.1 to Table-4.3, the results for descriptive statistics are shown in Pak-

istani, Indian, and Bangladeshi contexts, respectively. In descriptive statistics, the

average value measured by arithmetic mean and the variation measured by stan-

dard deviation has been mentioned. Moreover, in descriptive statistics, both the

maximum and minimum values for all variables of the study have been explained.

4.1.1 Descriptive Statistics in Pakistani Context

In the Pakistani context, the results of the descriptive statistics show that the

return on assets (ROA) has a mean value of 0.0547, which means the average

return on assets (ROA) is 5.47%, with a value of the standard deviation of 0.0749.

The standard deviation indicates that the average value of return on assets may

differ up to 0.0749 from year to year and from company to company. The minimum

return (loss) on assets (ROA) is found to be -0.564 (56.4%), and the maximum

78
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Table 4.1: Descriptive Statistics in the Pakistani Context

Mean Maximum Minimum Std. Dev.

ROA 0.0547 0.1996 -0.5641 0.0749
TQ 6.221 12.9614 0.5073 1.7976
MB 0.0003 0.718 -0.4855 0.1217

MBPF 0.0183 0.718 -0.3573 0.0694
ERQ -0.0841 -0.0021 -1.8052 0.1081
CGI 0.0047 3.3371 -1.8411 1.094
FAGE 3.5023 7.6084 0.6931 0.5811
FSIZE 15.6275 20.4575 10.5913 1.6685
SG 0.0634 0.7225 -3.2427 0.2627
SV 13.716 18.5323 7.2557 1.7024

SLACK 0.1045 0.46 0.0045 0.1079
LEV 0.1979 0.6874 0.0211 0.1516
GI 0.0025 2.2424 -2.4307 1.5639
IR 11.6435 14.5375 8.21 2.2936
ER 103.1608 150.0363 81.7129 18.4196

GDPG 3.8701 5.8364 1.1448 1.5424
FDI 0.7812 1.3904 0.3828 0.2741

Note: ROA=Return on assets, TQ=Tobin’s Q, MB=Managerial Efficiency, MBPF=Managerial
Efficiency Permanency, ERQ=earning quality, CGI=Corporate governance index, Fage=Firm
Age, Fsize=Firm size, SG=Sale growth, SV=Sale volatility, Slack=Financial slack,
Lev=Leverage, GI=Governance index, IR=Interest rate, ER=Exchange rate, GDPG=Gross do-
mestic product growth, FDI=Foreign direct investment to GDP

return on assets is reported as 7.49%. The average value of Tobin’s Q is found

as 6.2210, which is a market-based proxy of firm performance with a variation

determined by a standard deviation of 1.7976. This standard deviation indicates

that Tobin’s Q may change from firm to firm or from year to year up to 1.7976

points from this average value of TQ. The maximum value of Tobin’s Q is 12.9614,

and the minimum is 0.5073 points.

The descriptive statistics also show that managerial efficiency (MB) measured

using the data envelopment analysis has an average value of its efficiency as 0.0003

with a standard deviation of 0.1217. Likewise, values of managerial efficiency were

reported in prior studies (Demerjian et al., 2012). Similarly, managerial efficiency

permanency is taking just those values of Managerial Efficiency, where permanency

was found, and it is calculated by multiplying the managerial efficiency and dummy

variable of permanency of Managerial Efficiency. The results further indicate that

the average value of the earning quality index (ERQ) is -0.1024. Following Biddle

et al. (2009), the earning quality index was calculated, and the average index
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was found as -0.1024 with variation measured by a standard deviation is 0.0937,

which indicates that the index may change from year to year or firm to firm up to

0.0937 points. The average corporate governance value is 0.0047 with a Standard

deviation of 1.0940. Similarly, the average value of all firm-specific, country-level

governance and macroeconomic variables are reported in the above table, along

with variation in the data. The standard deviation for all variables has measured

the variation in the data.

4.1.2 Descriptive Statistics in Indian Context

Table 4.2: Descriptive Statistics in Indian Context

Mean Maximum Minimum Std. Dev.

ROA 0.0848 0.9237 -0.8436 0.0886

TQ 6.8923 14.0807 0.034 1.6723

MB 0.0205 1.4293 -0.7036 0.1871

MBPF 0.0239 0.7116 -0.3198 0.0956

ERQ -0.1024 -0.0048 -1.3859 0.0937

CGI 0.0001 2.8841 -4.6938 1.0622

FAGE 3.5909 5.0499 1.0986 0.5731

FSIZE 17.2844 21.9771 12.9861 1.4822

SG 0.1187 0.866 -0.5706 0.1622

SV 15.1908 20.7847 7.0623 1.5587

SLACK 0.1231 0.6318 0.0103 0.1282

LEV 0.1954 0.6861 0.0188 0.1562

GI 0.0001 3.6426 -2.3876 1.9038

IR 9.9948 12.1875 8.3334 0.9065

ER 59.0132 70.4203 45.7258 8.6646

GDPG 6.7705 8.4976 4.0416 1.3491

FDI 1.7884 2.6516 1.3129 0.3529

Note: ROA=Return on assets, TQ=Tobin’s Q, MB=Managerial Efficiency, MBPF=Managerial
Efficiency Permanency, ERQ=earning quality, CGI=Corporate governance index, Fage=Firm
Age, Fsize=Firm size, SG=Sale growth, SV=Sale volatility, Slack=Financial slack,
Lev=Leverage, GI=Governance index, IR=Interest rate, ER=Exchange rate, GDPG=Gross do-
mestic product growth, FDI=Foreign direct investment to GDP

The results of descriptive statistics in respect of the Indian context disclose that

average firm performance measured by return on assets (ROA) is 8.4%, with a

standard deviation value of 0.0886. The standard deviation value depicts that the

average value of return on assets may vary up to 0.0886 points from year to year
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and from company to company. The lowest value of a loss on assets is found at

-0.8436, and the most outstanding value is found at 0.9237. The average value of

another measure of firm performance, i.e., Tobin’s Q (TQ), is found as 6.8923 times

with a value of the standard deviation of 1.6723, which indicates that the value

of Tobin’s Q may differ up to 1.6723 points from time to time and firm to firm.

Tobin’s Q’s minimum and maximum values are disclosed as 0.0340 and 14.0807,

respectively. The averagely managerial efficiency value in the context of 0.0205

with a standard deviation of 0.1871, so the value of managerial efficiency may

deviate averagely up to 0.187. The minimum and maximum managerial efficiency

values are found at -0.7036 and 1.4293.

A previous study has observed similar managerial efficiency results Demerjian

et al. (2012). managerial efficiency permanency measured by dummy variable and

another multiple by managerial efficiency shows average managerial efficiency per-

manency (MBPF) as 0.0239 with variation in data up to 0.0956 points measured by

standard deviation. The earning quality index has an average index of -0.1024, and

the average variation in the data of earning quality (ERQ) measured by standard

deviation is found as 0.0937, which expresses that the earning quality index may

deviate averagely from year to year and from company to company up to 0.0937

points. The results further indicate that the average corporate governance index

measured by principal component analysis (PCA) and by incorporating the board

size, board independence, and board meetings is 0.0001. The average variation

in the corporate governance index (CGI) data is determined as 1.0622, indicating

that the corporate governance index (CGI) may variate up to 1.0622 points for the

company (i) at year (t). The table has also reported the maximum and minimum

values of all variables. Moreover, representation of the firm-specific, country-level

governance and macroeconomic control variables have also been reported using

mean values, and variation in the data of control variables has also been shown by

using standard deviation.

4.1.3 Descriptive Statistics in the Bangladeshi Context

In the Bangladesh scenario, the results of the descriptive statistics are reported

with outcomes that return on assets (ROA) has a mean value of 0.0926. This
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value depicts that the average return on assets (ROA) is found as 9.26%, and

the standard deviation value is determined as 0.0947. The standard deviation

indicates that the average value of return on assets may change up to 0.0947 from

year to year and from company to company.

Table 4.3: Descriptive Statistics in the Bangladeshi Context

Mean Maximum Minimum Std. Dev.

ROA 0.0926 0.489 -0.1228 0.0947
TQ 6.9634 10.8274 1.4142 1.2081
MB -0.0001 0.6207 -0.4848 0.2241

MBPF 0.0153 0.6207 -0.3487 0.0986
ERQ -0.1668 -0.0076 -7.9109 0.3508
CGI 0.0001 3.7462 -21.6485 1.0706
FAGE 3.0259 4.7005 0.6931 0.6187
FSIZE 15.1442 19.7331 10.157 1.6729
SG 0.0824 0.5277 0.2983 0.2025
SV 14.9644 18.2115 9.83 1.3849

SLACK 0.1373 0.7539 0.0104 0.1592
LEV 0.14 0.8804 0.0114 0.128
GI 0.0001 2.2405 -2.7902 1.7352
IR 11.8377 13.9442 9.54 1.6696
ER 77.7473 84.4535 69.0391 4.8348

GDPG 6.604 8.1527 5.0451 0.8987
FDI 0.1077 0.3646 0.007 0.1147

Note: ROA=Return on assets, TQ=Tobin’s Q, MB=Managerial Efficiency, MBPF=Managerial
Efficiency Permanency, ERQ=earning quality, CGI=Corporate governance index, Fage=Firm
Age, Fsize=Firm size, SG=Sale growth, SV=Sale volatility, Slack=Financial slack,
Lev=Leverage, GI=Governance index, IR=Interest rate, ER=Exchange rate, GDPG=Gross do-
mestic product growth, FDI=Foreign direct investment to GDP

The minimum return (loss) on assets (ROA) is found to be -0.1228 (12.28%), and

the maximum return on assets is reported as 48.90%. The average value of Tobin’s

Q is 6.9634, which is a market-based proxy of firm performance with a variation

determined by a standard deviation of 1.2081. The standard deviation is 1.2081

points from this average value of TQ. The maximum value of Tobin’s Q is 10.8274,

and the minimum is 1.4243 points.

The descriptive statistics also show that managerial efficiency (MB) measured

using the data envelopment analysis has an average value of its efficiency as 0.0003

with a standard deviation of 0.1217. Similarly, managerial efficiency permanency

is taking just those values of managerial efficiency, where permanency was found,

and it is calculated by multiplying the managerial efficiency and dummy variable of
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permanency of managerial efficiency. The results further indicate that the average

value of the earning quality index (ERQ) is -0.1024. Following Biddle et al. (2009),

the earning quality index was calculated, and the average index was found as -

0.1024 with variation measured by a standard deviation is 0.0937, which indicates

that the index may change from year to year or firm to firm up to 0.0937 points.

The average corporate governance value is 0.0047 with a Standard deviation of

1.0940. Similarly, the average values of all firm-specific, country-level governance

and macroeconomic control variables have also been reported in the above table,

along with average variation in the data using standard deviation.

4.1.4 Descriptive Statistics in Context of Pooling of All

Companies from Pakistan, India, and Bangladesh

The following table 4.4 is about the descriptive statistics of the variables in the

context of pooling of companies of all three countries.

Table 4.4: Descriptive Statistics in Context of Combine Countries

Mean Maximum Minimum Std. Dev.

ROA 0.074 0.9237 -0.8436 0.085
TQ 6.6411 14.081 0.034 1.6704
MB 0.0083 1.4293 -0.7036 0.1735

MBPF 0.0199 0.718 -0.3573 0.0869
ERQ -0.1078 -0.0021 -7.9109 0.1826
CGI 0.0001 3.7462 -21.6485 1.076
FAGE 3.4421 7.6084 0.6931 0.6241
FSIZE 16.2049 21.98 10.157 1.8369
SG 0.0596 0.8700 -3.2427 0.2417
SV 14.5669 20.785 7.062 1.7294

SLACK 0.1163 0.7539 0.0054 0.1283
LEV 0.1857 0.8804 0.0114 0.1511
GI 0.0001 3.6426 -2.7902 1.7419
IR 11.0131 14.5375 8.2100 1.9192
ER 80.1847 150.0363 45.7258 23.6856

GDPG 5.5877 8.4976 1.1447 1.9453
FDI 1.0581 2.6516 0.0070 0.7130

Note: ROA=Return on assets, TQ=Tobin’s Q, MB=Managerial Efficiency, MBPF=Managerial
Efficiency Permanency, ERQ=earning quality, CGI=Corporate governance index, Fage=Firm
Age, Fsize=Firm size, SG=Sale growth, SV=Sale volatility, Slack=Financial slack,
Lev=Leverage, GI=Governance index, IR=Interest rate, ER=Exchange rate, GDPG=Gross do-
mestic product growth, FDI=Foreign direct investment to GDP
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The results are showing that the average return on assets of the pooling of compa-

nies from three emerging economies is 7.04% with a variation of 8.05% as measured

by standard deviation. The average performance measured by Tobin’s Q is 6.64

times of total assets with a variation of 1.6704 points. The average value of man-

agerial efficiency in emerging economies is 0.0083 with a value of the standard

deviation of 0.1735, which is the consistency of Demerjian et al. (2012). Similarly,

the average earning quality index measured by following Biddle et al. (2009), an

average value of managerial efficiency permanency measured by slope dummy of

managerial efficiency and dummy of managerial efficiency permanency and cor-

porate governance index measured by using PCA are presented with the average

change in data measured by standard deviation. The descriptive statistics of con-

trol variables is showing that the firm age is 31.25 years [exp(3.4421)].

Firm age was measured by taking the natural log of the number of years of a

corporation, so at the end, an exponential of the mean value is taken, which

indicates that the average age of companies listed on stock exchanges of three

emerging economies is 31.25 years, however, it may differ from firm to firm and

time to time as variation has been shown by standard deviation i.e. 0.6241. The

firm size is measured by the natural log of total assets so the average firm size is

16.2049 with a standard deviation of 1.8369. Average sale growth is 4.5% with a

high variation of 34.17%. The results are also showing the average sale volatility,

which is showing the average business risk, average financial slack is 11.63% of

property, plant, and equipment. The average leverage is 18.57 times of total

assets.

The governance index has an average value of 0.0001, the average interest rate is

11.01% and the average exchange rate is 80.18 local currency per $. The average

GDP growth rate is 5.89% and the average foreign direct investment is 1.0581 times

GDP. However, these are average values and these differ from country to country,

firm to firm, and year to year, and dispersion in the data has been measured by

standard deviation. Moreover, the minimum and maximum values for variables

have also been mentioned in the results.
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4.2 Correlation Analysis

In Tables 8-10, the results of correlation analysis have been reported in all three

South Asian lower-income emerging economies (Pakistan, India, and Bangladesh).

The results indicate the relationship between the variables of the study.

4.2.1 Correlation Analysis in the Context of Pakistan

The results show that return on assets (ROA) has positive relationships with To-

bin’s Q, managerial efficiency (MB), managerial efficiency permanency (MBPF),

earning quality (ERQ), and negative with corporate governance index (CGI). Like-

wise, the results also show the relationship of return on assets with firm-specific,

country-level governance (GI), and macroeconomic variables. Tobin’s Q shows a

positive relationship with managerial efficiency (MB), managerial efficiency per-

manency (MBPF), and corporate governance index (CGI), whereas Tobin’s Q has

a negative relationship with earning quality (ERQ). managerial efficiency also has

a positive relationship with managerial efficiency permanency.

Additionally, all research variables are demonstrating a correlation with firm-

specific variables (firm age, firm size, sale growth, sale volatility, financial slack,

leverage), country-level governance index (GI), and macroeconomic factors (In-

terest rate, exchange rate, GDP growth, FDI). There is no serious issue with

multi-co-linearity because there is a weak connection between all the explanatory

and control variables. High correlation, or greater than 0.90 between explanatory

variables, may result in a multicollinearity issue, according to (Hair et al., 2010).

4.2.2 Correlation Analysis in the Context of India

The results of the correlation analysis in the context of India show that return

on assets (ROA) has positive relationships with Tobin’s Q, managerial efficiency

(MB), corporate governance index (CGI), and negative relationships with earning

quality and managerial efficiency permanency (MBPF). Similarly, the results also

show the relationships between return on assets and firm-specific, country-level

governance (GI) and macroeconomic control variables. Tobin’s Q shows a positive
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Table 4.5: Correlation Analysis Pakistani Context

ROA TQ MB MBPF FRQ CGI FAGE FSIZE SG

ROA 1
TQ 0.046 1
MB 0.060* 0.043 1
MBPF 0.078* 0.017 0.632* 1
ERQ 0.162* -0.046 0.060* 0.061* 1
CGI -0.065* 0.019 -0.018 0.014 0.069* 1
FAGE 0.014 0.064* -0.057* -0.012 0.041 0.054* 1
FSIZE 0.185* -0.288* -0.057* 0.034 0.192* 0.179* 0.033 1
SG 0.140* 0.053* -0.027 0.01 0.011 -0.071* -0.014 0.122* 1
SV 0.206* -0.188* -0.011 0.031 0.144* 0.136* -0.019 0.842* 0.098*
SLACK 0.027 0.042 0.061* 0.078* 0.018 0.046 -0.102* 0.312* 0.060*
LEV -0.162* -0.01 0.042 0.023 -0.086* 0.024 -0.172* -0.068* -0.092*
GI -0.013 0.006 -0.387* -0.180* -0.091* 0.018 0.104* 0.093* 0.006
IRL -0.027 -0.060* 0.287* 0.015 0.017 -0.023 -0.077* -0.069* 0.044
ER -0.056* -0.048 -0.227* -0.086* -0.160* 0.005 0.108* 0.095* 0.035
GDPG 0.059* 0.067* -0.111* 0.03 0.083* 0.012 -0.013 -0.007 -0.023
FDI -0.007 0.078* 0.058* 0.109* -0.018 0.022 0.068* 0.055* -0.082*

SV SLACK LEV GI IRL ER GDPG FDI

SV 1
SLACK 0.336* 1
LEV -0.106* -0.022 1
GI -0.014 0.062* -0.042 1
IRL 0.032 -0.04 0.062* -0.574* 1
ER 0.023 0.054* -0.019 0.502* -0.022 1
GDPG -0.034 -0.008 -0.032 0.163* -0.731* -0.597* 1
FDI -0.02 0.053* -0.033 0.407* -0.483* 0.305* 0.069* 1

Note: ROA=Return on assets, TQ=Tobin’s Q, MB=Managerial Efficiency, MBPF=Managerial
Efficiency Permanency, ERQ=Earnings quality, CGI=Corporate governance index, Fage=Firm
Age, Fsize=Firm size, SG=Sale growth, SV=Sale volatility, Slack=Financial slack,
Lev=Leverage, GI=Governance index, IR=Interest rate, ER=Exchange rate, GDPG=Gross do-
mestic product growth, FDI=Foreign direct investment to GDP ∗ ∗ ∗P < 0.01, ∗ ∗ P < 0.05,
∗P < 0.1

relationship with managerial efficiency permanency (MBPF) and corporate gover-

nance index (CGI), whereas Tobin’s Q has a negative relationship with manage-

rial efficiency and earning quality (ERQ). The results also show that managerial

efficiency has positive relationships with managerial efficiency permanency and

corporate governance index (CGI) but negative relationships with earning quality

(ERQ). In addition, all variables of the study are also showing a relationship with

firm-specific (firm age, firm size, sale growth, sale volatility, financial slack, lever-

age), country-level governance index (GI), and macroeconomic control variables

(Interest rate, exchange rate, GDP growth, FDI). According to Hair et al. (2010),

multicollinearity issues may arise when there is a strong correlation, or greater

than 0.90, between explanatory variables. There is no serious issue with multi-co-

linearity because all of the explanatory and control variables show a modest link
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Table 4.6: Correlation Analysis Indian Context

ROA TQ MB MBPF FRQ CGI FAGE FSIZE SG

ROA 1
TQ 0.240* 1
MB 0.001 -0.022 1
MBPF -0.033 0.037 0.515* 1
ERQ -0.119* -0.132* -0.011 0.024 1
CGI 0.055* 0.092* 0.03 0.068* -0.002 1
FAGE 0.061* 0.132* 0.005 0.01 0.014 0.123* 1
FSIZE -0.143* -0.282* 0.014 0.011 0.117* 0.059* 0.122* 1
SG 0.091* -0.005 0.005 0.028 -0.04 -0.074* -0.169* -0.065* 1
SV -0.024 -0.216* 0.043* 0.016 0.039 -0.008 0.080* 0.821* 0.075*
SLACK 0.117* 0.151* -0.008 0.015 -0.076* -0.070* 0.004 -0.075* -0.022
LEV -0.324* -0.242* 0 -0.011 0.085* -0.012 -0.078* 0.283* 0
GI 0.013 0.121* 0.012 0.034 -0.012 0.101* 0.130* 0.181* -0.105*
IRL -0.011 -0.126* -0.008 -0.082* -0.002 -0.04 -0.075* -0.111* -0.019
ER -0.021 0.101* 0.003 0.075* 0.044* 0.140* 0.170* 0.244* -0.192*
GDPG 0.014 -0.033 0 -0.044* 0.006 -0.055* -0.055* -0.090* -0.049*
FDI 0.014 -0.067* -0.003 -0.078* -0.03 -0.062* -0.068* -0.112* -0.044*

SV SLACK LEV GI IRL ER GDPG FDI

SV 1
SLACK -0.049* 1
LEV 0.130* -0.163* 1
GI 0.093* -0.063* -0.071* 1
IRL -0.063* 0.026 0.045* -0.354* 1
ER 0.139* -0.078* -0.083* 0.683* -0.266* 1
GDPG -0.102* 0.022 0.027 -0.217* -0.029 -0.168* 1
FDI -0.098* 0.031 0.039 0.053* 0.574* -0.254* 0.331* 1

Note: ROA=Return on assets, TQ=Tobin’s Q, MB=Managerial Efficiency, MBPF=Managerial
Efficiency Permanency, ERQ=Earnings quality, CGI=Corporate governance index, Fage=Firm
Age, Fsize=Firm size, SG=Sale growth, SV=Sale volatility, Slack=Financial slack,
Lev=Leverage, GI=Governance index, IR=Interest rate, ER=Exchange rate, GDPG=Gross do-
mestic product growth, FDI=Foreign direct investment to GDP ∗ ∗ ∗P < 0.01, ∗ ∗ P < 0.05,
∗P < 0.1

to one another.

4.2.3 Correlation Analysis in the Context of Bangladesh

The results of correlation analysis in respect of Bangladesh demonstrate that re-

turn on assets (ROA) has positive relationships with Tobin’s Q, managerial ef-

ficiency (MB), managerial efficiency permanency (MBPF), and earning quality

(ERQ), and corporate governance index (CGI). The asset return also demonstrates

the relationships between firm-specific, country-level governance (GI) and macroe-

conomic control variables. Tobin’s Q shows a positive relationship with managerial

efficiency (MB), managerial efficiency permanency (MBPF), and corporate gov-

ernance index (CGI), whereas Tobin’s Q has a negative relationship with earning
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Table 4.7: Correlation Analysis Bangladeshi Context

ROA TQ MB MBPF FRQ CGI FAGE FSIZE SG

ROA 1
TQ 0.539* 1
MB 0.366* 0.158* 1
MBPF 0.223* 0.124* 0.450* 1
ERQ 0.064* -0.009 0.062* 0.02 1
CGI 0.221* 0.094* -0.024 -0.100* -0.032 1
FAGE 0.073* -0.161* -0.011 -0.125* -0.045 0.03 1
FSIZE 0.052 -0.471* 0.043 -0.054 0.078* 0.188* 0.109* 1
SG 0.087* -0.029 0.178* 0.035 0.021 -0.026 -0.004 0.186* 1
SV 0.064* -0.170* -0.097* -0.064* 0.014 0.128* 0.179* 0.436* -0.100*
SLACK 0.074* -0.126* 0.189* 0.138* -0.03 -0.037 0.103* 0.115* 0.033
LEV -0.180* -0.118* -0.186* -0.075* 0.072* 0.121* -0.197* 0.197* 0.048
GI 0.121* 0.228* 0.216* 0.147* 0.022 -0.100* -0.258* -0.182* 0.128*
IRL 0.115* 0.174* 0.232* 0.126* 0.011 -0.077* -0.239* -0.170* 0.122*
ER -0.110* -0.252* -0.124* -0.117* -0.039 0.107* 0.260* 0.182* -0.051
GDPG -0.115* -0.233* -0.167* -0.111* -0.029 0.099* 0.270* 0.189* -0.076*
FDI 0.082* 0.092* 0.224* 0.103* -0.023 -0.054 -0.163* -0.112* 0.160*

SV SLACK LEV GI IRL ER GDPG FDI

SV 1
SLACK -0.032 1
LEV -0.038 -0.107* 1
GI -0.194* 0.065* 0.013 1
IRL -0.169* 0.057 -0.024 0.673* 1
ER 0.205* -0.052 -0.047 -0.788* -0.533* 1
GDPG 0.198* -0.052 -0.013 -0.764* -0.807* 0.874* 1
FDI -0.106* 0.039 -0.029 0.637* 0.747* -0.257* -0.486* 1

Note: ROA=Return on assets, TQ=Tobin’s Q, MB=Managerial Efficiency, MBPF=Managerial
Efficiency Permanency, ERQ=Earnings quality, CGI=Corporate governance index, Fage=Firm
Age, Fsize=Firm size, SG=Sale growth, SV=Sale volatility, Slack=Financial slack,
Lev=Leverage, GI=Governance index, IR=Interest rate, ER=Exchange rate, GDPG=Gross do-
mestic product growth, FDI=Foreign direct investment to GDP ∗∗∗P < 0.01, ∗∗P < 0.05, ∗P <
0.1

quality (ERQ). The coefficient of correlation between managerial efficiency and

managerial efficiency permanency (MBPF) is found as positive (r=0.450), and

between managerial efficiency and earning quality (ERQ) has also been found as

positive (r=0.062). The correlation coefficient between managerial efficiency and

corporate governance index is found as -0.024, which indicates a negative relation-

ship between managerial efficiency and corporate governance.

Moreover, all variables of the study are also showing a relationship with firm-

specific (firm age, firm size, sale growth, sale volatility, financial slack, leverage),

country-level governance index (GI), and macroeconomic control variables (In-

terest rate, exchange rate, GDP growth, FDI). According to Hair et al. (2010),

multicollinearity issues may arise when there is a strong correlation, or greater

than 0.90, between explanatory variables. There is no serious issue with multi-



Results and Discussion 89

co-linearity because there is a weak connection between all the explanatory and

control variables.

4.2.4 Correlation Analysis in Context of Combined Coun-

try

Table-4.8 is indicating the results of the correlation analysis, in the context of the

pooling of the companies from all three countries taken in the study.

Table 4.8: Correlation Analysis in Context of Combined Countries

ROA LTQ MB MBPF ERQ CGI FAGE FSIZE SG

ROA 1
LTQ 0.2448 1
MB 0.1244 0.0385 1
MBPF 0.0633 0.0486 0.5164 1
ERQ 0.0053 -0.0648 0.0356 0.0255 1
CGI 0.0504 0.0562 0.0082 0.0173 0.0077 1
FAGE 0.0222 0.0415 0.0081 -0.0098 0.0429 0.0738 1
FSIZE 0.0465 -0.2089 0.0381 0.0208 0.1159 0.127 0.1903 1
SG 0.0688 -0.0115 0.0873 0.0318 0.0578 -0.0376 0.0594 0.1786 1
LSV 0.1382 -0.0897 0.0265 0.0148 0.0108 0.0776 0.0336 0.7199 0.0146
SLACK 0.0964 0.0735 0.0744 0.0675 -0.0408 -0.0181 -0.021 0.0999 0.0043
LEV -0.2481 -0.1648 -0.036 -0.0107 0.0584 0.0257 -0.0789 0.1428 0.0399
GI 0.0364 0.1218 0.0017 0.0198 -0.0026 0.0311 0.0513 0.0726 -0.0019
IRL -0.0387 -0.1245 0.0626 -0.0224 -0.0151 -0.0317 -0.219 -0.3153 -0.0035
ER -0.1537 -0.1275 -0.0697 -0.0219 0.031 0.0283 0.0415 -0.2481 -0.08
GDPG 0.1479 0.1652 -0.0063 0.0011 -0.0654 -0.0011 -0.0055 0.2097 -0.067
FDI 0.035 0.0342 0.0414 0.0204 0.0708 -0.0139 0.2316 0.4148 0.2349

LSV SLACK LEV GI IRL ER GDPG FDI

LSV 1
SLACK 0.1156 1
LEV -0.0249 -0.0931 1
GI 0.0112 0.0085 -0.0695 1
IRL -0.1674 -0.0217 0.0571 -0.264 1
ER -0.28 -0.0718 -0.0405 0.2577 0.1045 1
GDPG 0.2745 0.0839 -0.0795 -0.0287 -0.575 -0.5733 1
FDI 0.1318 0.0072 0.1247 0.0264 -0.2625 -0.5476 0.2497 1

Note: ROA=Return on assets, TQ=Tobin’s Q, MB=Managerial Efficiency, MBPF=Managerial
Efficiency Permanency, ERQ=Earnings quality, CGI=Corporate governance index, Fage=Firm
Age, Fsize=Firm size, SG=Sale growth, SV=Sale volatility, Slack=Financial slack,
Lev=Leverage, GI=Governance index, IR=Interest rate, ER=Exchange rate, GDPG=Gross do-
mestic product growth, FDI=Foreign direct investment to GDP ∗∗∗P < 0.01, ∗∗P < 0.05, ∗P <
0.1

The results are showing that return on assets has a positive and weak relationship

with all variables except leverage, interest rate, and exchange rate. Tobin’s Q(TQ)

is showing is showing positive and weak relationships with Managerial Efficiency,

managerial efficiency permanency, corporate governance index, firm age, financial
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slack, governance index, GDP growth, and FDI, but a negative relationship with

other variables. Moreover, all explanatory variables and control variables have a

weak correlation with each other. Therefore, by following Hair et al. (2010)Hair

et al. (2010), no serious issue of multi-co-linearity is observed in the context of

pooling the companies from Pakistan, India, and Bangladesh.

4.3 Results of Panel Unit Root Test

In the following Table 4.9, the results of the unit root test are mentioned with the

P-value of the Levin-Lin-Chu unit root test The Ho is the panel containing the

unit root and the alternative hypothesis is H1: Panel is stationary.

Table 4.9: Results of Panel Unit Root test

S.No. Variables
P-value of Levin Lin-Chu

Statusunit root test

1 ROA 0.0000 Stationary at a level I(0.000)

2 TQ 0.0000 Stationary at a level I(0.000)

3 MB 0.0000 Stationary at a level I(0.000)

4 MBPF 0.0000 Stationary at a level I(0.000)

5 ERQ 0.0000 Stationary at a level I(0.000)

6 CGI 0.0000 Stationary at a level I(0.000)

7 FAGE 0.0000 Stationary at a level I(0.000)

8 FSIZE 0.0000 Stationary at a level I(0.000)

9 SG 0.0000 Stationary at a level I(0.000)

10 SV 0.0000 Stationary at a level I(0.000)

11 SLACK 0.0000 Stationary at a level I(0.000)

12 LEV 0.0000 Stationary at a level I(0.000)

13 GI 0.0000 Stationary at a level I(0.000)

14 IR 0.0000 Stationary at a level I(0.000)

15 ER 0.0000 Stationary at a level I(0.000)

16 GDPG 0.0000 Stationary at a level I(0.000)

17 FDI 0.0000 Stationary at a level I(0.000)

Note: ROA=Return on assets, TQ=Tobin’s Q, MB=Managerial Efficiency, MBPF=Managerial
Efficiency Permanency, ERQ=earning quality, CGI=Corporate governance index, Fage=Firm
Age, Fsize=Firm size, SG=Sale growth, SV=Sale volatility, Slack=Financial slack,
Lev=Leverage, GI=Governance index, IR=Interest rate, ER=Exchange rate, GDPG=Gross do-
mestic product growth, FDI=Foreign direct investment to GDP

The results are indicating that the Levin Lin-Chu test has P-values less than 0.05

in the case of all the variables. This significance are showing that all alternative
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hypothesis is accepted. Therefore, all the variables are stationary at level I(0.000).

So, these can be used for regression analysis.

4.4 Test for Endogeneity

The following Table No. 4.10 is showing the results for endogeneity in the context

of all three countries and the pooling of these three countries.

Table 4.10: Test for Endogeneity

Dependent Variable Pakistan India Bangladesh Combined Countries

Co-efficient and Significance of Residual (Re-
siEndo) when Added as Regressor

ROA
0.0367*** -0.1024*** 0.1054*** 0.0297***
-0.0006 0 0 0

TQ
1.1375*** -0.4316** 0.4696*** 0.1649**

0 -0.0405 -0.0034 -0.0268

Note: ROA=Return on Assets, TQ=Tobin’s Q ***P¡0.01, **P¡0.05, *P¡0.1 Parenthesis= (P-
value, significance)

By following Wintoki et al. (2012); Ullah et al. (2018) the Durbin-Wu-Test has

been applied which is mostly used to confirm the presence of the endogeneity of

the explanatory variables in the model. In first step, an independent variable

i.e., managerial efficiency as a dependent variable and has been regressed on all

other independent variables and control variables. This process has been applied

in the context of all countries taken as individually and collectively and residual

terms have been obtained. In next step, these residual terms (ResiEndo) have

been taken as part of general equations as independent variable along with all

other independent variable and control variable in the context of all countries

taken as individually and collectively. The co-efficients of residual terms found

significant at 1% level of significance, this significant test statistic indicates the

endogeneous variable is present, which means the explanatory variable is linked

with the residual and issue of endogeneity existed (Ullah et al., 2018).

The results are showing that in the case of all three countries and pooling of these

countries the term residual (ResiEndo) is regressed on dependent variables (ROA

and TQ) and indicating that the coefficient is significant in all cases is significant

with a p-value less than 0.05. Therefore, the results confirm the presence of an
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endogeneity issue in all models and the case of all countries. Thus, the generalized

method of moments (GMM) is suggested to apply to the test of hypotheses.

4.5 Role of Corporate Governance as a Modera-

tor in a Relationship of managerial efficiency

with Firm Performance

The corporate governance index’s potential moderating influence on the relation-

ship between managerial conduct and firm performance has been investigated using

the GMM system. Return on assets (ROA) and Tobin’s Q (TQ) are two market-

and book-based proxies respectively, that have been used to gauge the firm’s per-

formance. The findings are shown in Tables 4.11 and 4.12, which reflect the

empirical state of corporate governance’s moderating function in the link between

management conduct and company performance as assessed by return on assets

(ROA) and Tobin’s Q, respectively. In both models (Model-I with dependent

variable ROA and Model-II with dependent variable Tobin’s Q), the J-statistic

is insignificant, which indicates that instrumental overidentifying restrictions are

valid (Asimakopoulos, Asimakopoulos and Fernandes, 2019). Moreover, autocor-

relation in 2nd order has been tested and the results are showing, in all cases the

issue of autocorrelation is resolved at AR (2) with a p-value greater than 0.05.

4.5.1 Moderating Role of Corporate Governance in a re-

lationship of managerial efficiency with Firm Perfor-

mance (ROA)

Table 4.11 illustrates how corporate governance, in the context of three rising

economies (Pakistan, India, and Bangladesh), moderates the link between man-

agement conduct and company performance as measured by return on assets.

The results regarding the impact of managerial efficiency on performance mea-

sured by return on assets are reported in Table-4.11 in the context of Pakistan,
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Table 4.11: Moderating Role of Corporate Governance in a relationship of
managerial efficiency with Firm Performance (ROA)

Variables Pakistan India Bangladesh Combine

ROA (-1)
-0.1926*** -0.2010*** 0.2336*** 0.4747***
(0.0000) (0.0000) (0.0000) (0.0000)

MB
0.0174*** 0.0169*** 0.0599*** 0.0269***
(0.0000) (0.0000) (0.0000) (0.0282)

CGI
0.0032*** 0.0050*** 0.0315*** 0.0022***
(0.0000) (0.0000) (0.0000) (0.006)

MB*CGI
0.0138** 0.0085** 0.0058*** 0.0062**
(0.012) (0.012) (0.0000) (0.001)

Fsize
-0.0115*** -0.0179*** -0.0061*** -0.0221***
(0.0000) (0.0000) (0.0034) (0.005)

Fage
0.0073*** -0.0362*** 0.0804*** 0.0020***
(0.0000) (0.001) (0.0000) (0.299)

SG
0.0189*** 0.0074*** 0.0144*** 0.0135***
(0.0000) (0.0000) (0.0000) (0.0000)

SV
0.0066*** 0.0007 -0.0255*** 0.0029***
(0.0000) (0.542) (0.0000) (0.0000 )

Slack
-0.0003*** 0.0004*** -0.0266*** 0.0197***
(0.371) (0.375) (0.0000) (0.0000 )

Lev
-0.0531*** -0.1363*** -0.0835*** -0.0337***
(0.0000) (0.0000) (0.001 ) (0.0000)

GI
0.0025*** 0.0040*** -0.0001 0.003
(0.0000 ) (0.0000) (0.904 ) (0.264 )

IR
0.0005 0.0036*** 0.0052 0.001
(0.261) (0.0000) (0.261) (0.124)

ER
-0.0003*** -0.0001 -0.0030*** -0.0001**
(0.0000) (0.577) (0.0000 ) (0.024)

GDPG
0.0021*** 0.0020*** 0.0146*** 0.0031***
(0.0000) (0.0000) (0.0000) (0.0000)

FDI
0.0010** 0.005** 0.0082 0.0022*
(0.0180) (0.0180) (0.2090) (0.0870)

Constant
0.1515*** 0.4790*** 0.3720*** 0.0062
(0.0000) (0.0000) (0.0000) (0.604)

AR (1)
-2.7738** -2.8387*** -2.1575** -3.9246***
(0.0055) (0.0045) (0.031) (0.0001)

AR (2)
-0.6552 -0.6173 -0.583 0.9524
(0.5123 ) (0.537) (0.5596) (0.3409)

No. of Instruments 207 185 94 260

Hansen J-Stat P-Value
177.236 166.842 75.669 264.334
(0.7541) (0.5325) (0.5537) (0.1772)

Note: ROA=Return on assets, MB=Managerial Efficiency, MB*CGI=Interaction term,
CGI=Corporate governance index, Fage=Firm Age, Fsize=Firm size, SG=Sale growth, SV=Sale
volatility, Slack=Financial slack, Lev=Leverage, GI=Governance index, IR=Interest rate,
ER=Exchange rate, GDPG=Gross domestic product growth, FDI=Foreign direct investment to
GDP. ∗ ∗ ∗P < 0.01, ∗ ∗ P < 0.05, ∗P < 0.1 Parenthesis= (P-value, significance)
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India, Bangladesh, and the pooling of companies from these countries. The coef-

ficients of managerial efficiency in the context of Pakistan are positive and signif-

icant (β=0.0174, P=0.0000), in the context of India are positive and significant

(β=0.0169, P=0.0000), in the case of Bangladesh (β=0.0599, P=0.0000) and re-

spect of pooling of companies form combined countries the coefficient of manage-

rial efficiency is also positive and significant (β=0.0269, P=0.0282). Therefore,

the results are showing that in all cases hypothesis H1: managerial efficiency has

a positive impact on firm performance is accepted.

The results are following the theory and past literature. According to past studies,

the positive influence of managerial efficiency in terms of abilities and utilization

of skills on firm performance is reported (Andreou et al., 2016). According to

Bertrand and Schoar (2003), specific management philosophies impact operational

and financial choices, which further enhances business performance. This claim

was supported by Jensen and Zajac (2004), who noted that managers’ expertise in-

fluences strategy creation and improves business performance. The resource-based

theory discusses that managers are the main factors Holcomb et al. (2009) that

contribute to competitive advantage by using the company’s resources effectively

(Garćıa-Meca and Garćıa-Sánchez, 2018).

The results regarding the moderating role of corporate governance in the rela-

tionship between managerial efficiency and firm performance measured by return

on assets are also reported in table-4.11. The coefficient of the interaction term

(MB*CGI) in the context of Pakistan is positive and significant at a 5% level

of significance (β=0.0138, P=0.0120), in respect of India the co-efficient is posi-

tive and significant at a 5% level of significance (β=0.0085, P=0.0120), in case of

Bangladesh the co-efficient of the interaction term is also positive and significant

at 1% level of significance (β=0.0058 P=0.0000) and in context of pooling of all

companies from all selected countries, the coefficient of the interaction term is

also positive and significant at 1% level of significance (β=0.0062 P=0.0010). The

results are showing that in the context of all countries either taken individually or

collective, on one side the coefficients of managerial efficiency (MB) are positive

and significant and on the other hand the interaction terms (MB*CGI) are also

positive and significant, therefore, corporate governance index (CGI) is improving
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the relationship between managerial efficiency and firm performance measured by

return on assets.

Therefore, hypothesis H2: Corporate Governance improves the relationship be-

tween managerial efficiency and firm performance measured by return on assets

is accepted. The results of the study are in alignment with the theory and past

studies. On one side corporate governance monitors the managers to do in the

best interest of the shareholders and on the other hand it affects positively the

firm performance. Corporate governance affects the firm performance and does

two things: on the one hand, it enhances business performance Iqbal et al. (2019);

Abdallah and Ismail (2017) and on the other, it lessens the agency conflict that

exists between managers and shareholders. Therefore, the link between manage-

ment conduct and business performance may be impacted by the most acceptable

corporate governance procedures, and the study results are aligned with this ar-

gument. According to agency theory, the board oversees, supervises, and controls

managers’ duties to reduce agency conflicts while defending the interests of share-

holders (Fama and Jensen, 1983). As a result, the board’s responsibility extends

beyond just endorsing managerial decisions Kim et al. (2009) it may also assist

in coordinating such decisions with the interests of shareholders to reduce agency

problems (Garcia-Sanchez, 2020).

4.5.2 Moderating Role of Corporate Governance in a re-

lationship of managerial efficiency with firm perfor-

mance (TQ)

Table No.4.12 demonstrates the moderating role of corporate governance in a

relationship between managerial efficiency and firm performance measured by To-

bin’s Q (TQ). The results have been obtained by applying the system GMM

in the scenario of three lower-income emerging economies (Pakistan, India, and

Bangladesh). The results of the J-statistic are insignificant in all cases, which vali-

dates the overidentifying restrictions. Moreover, in all cases the results are showing

that in 2nd order, the issue of autocorrelation is addressed as the autoregressive

term AR (2) is insignificant at 5% level of significance in all cases.
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Table 4.12: Moderating Role of Corporate Governance in a Relationship of
managerial efficiency with Firm Performance (TQ)

Variables Pakistan India Bangladesh Combine

TQ(-1) 0.6478*** 0.4303*** 0.1724*** 0.8429***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

MB -0.0541*** -0.1192*** 0.9853*** 0.2250***
(0.01) (0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

CGI 0.0216*** 0.0131*** 0.1334*** 0.0223***
(0.035) (0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

MB*CGI 0.2267** 0.1503** 0.2175*** 0.3095***
(0.000) (0.028) (0.000) (0.000)

Fsize -0.3362*** -0.3943*** 0.4175*** -0.0613***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.0034) (0.000)

Fage 0.5692*** -0.6941*** -1.8093*** 0.0674***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

SG -0.1572*** -0.2364*** -0.1404*** 0.0217***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

SV 0.2290*** 0.2912 -0.3226*** -0.0003
(0.000) (0.542) (0.000) (0.851)

Slack -0.0410*** -0.0112*** -1.0080*** -0.1240***
(0.001) (0.375) (0.000) (0.000)

Lev 0.2324 -1.2398*** 0.3230* -0.7442***
(0.185) (0.000) (0.097) (0.000)

GI 0.0993*** 0.1569*** -0.0043 0.0339***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.476) (0.000)

IR 0.0156 0.0702*** -0.0890*** -0.0154***
(0.653) (0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

ER -0.0080*** -0.0082 -0.0072*** -0.0023***
(0.002) (0.577) (0.000) (0.000)

GDPG 0.0561*** 0.1025*** -0.1645*** 0.0514***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

FDI 0.0307 0.1013** 0.3482*** 0.0312***
(0.3781) (0.0180) (0.0000) (0.0000)

Constant 2.7645*** 8.4273*** 12.5860*** 2.0430***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

AR (1) -5.2237*** -4.5328*** -5.0918*** -12.0520***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

AR (2) -1.6842 -0.6173 1.316 -1.7899
(0.0922) (0.082) (0.1882) (0.0735)

No. of Instruments 168 213 124 460
Hansen J-Stat P-Value 162.211 191.578 90.119 484.112

(0.2706) (0.5956) (0.8935) (0.78)

Note: TQ=Tobins’Q, MB=Managerial Efficiency, MB*CGI=Interaction term, CGI=Corporate
governance index, Fage=Firm Age, Fsize=Firm size, SG=Sale growth, SV=Sale volatility,
Slack=Financial slack, Lev=Leverage, GI=Governance index, IR=Interest rate, ER=Exchange
rate, GDPG=Gross domestic product growth, FDI=Foreign direct investment to GDP. ∗ ∗ ∗P <
0.01, ∗ ∗ P < 0.05, ∗P < 0.1 Parenthesis= (P-value, significance)
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The results are further indicating that the coefficient of managerial efficiency in

the case of Bangladesh is positive and significant (β=0.9853, P=0.0120) and in

the context of pooling of companies from Pakistan, India, and Bangladesh, the

co-efficient of managerial efficiency is positive and significant at 1% level of signif-

icance (β=0.2250, P=0.0000), which indicates that the hypothesis H1: manage-

rial efficiency has a positive impact on firm performance is accepted in respect of

Bangladesh and pooling of companies from all three countries. The results have

consistency with the resource-based view theory that elaborates that managers

are the main contributor to a firm performance by utilizing the firm’s resources

effectively and efficiently (Garćıa-Meca and Garćıa-Sánchez, 2018). According to

past studies, the positive influence of managerial efficiency in terms of abilities and

utilization of skills on firm performance is reported (Andreou et al., 2016). Ac-

cording to Bertrand and Schoar (2003), specific management philosophies impact

operational and financial choices, further enhancing business performance.

The results are further disclosed in the context of Bangladesh and the pooling

of all companies from the selected countries are showing that the coefficients of

interaction terms (MB*CGI) are positive and significant (β=0.2175, P=0.0000 in

the context of Bangladesh; β=0.1674, P=0.0000 in case of pooling of all companies

from Pakistan, India, and Bangladesh). These outcomes are evident that the co-

efficient of managerial efficiency and interaction terms are positive and significant,

which indicates that hypothesis H2: Corporate Governance improves the relation-

ship between managerial efficiency and firm performance measured by Tobin’s Q

is accepted in respect of Bangladesh and pooling of all companies from selected

countries. The agency theory supports the hypothesis, that corporate governance

is a mechanism that improves the relationship between managerial efficiency and

firm performance by ensuring that the managers are doing their best in the inter-

est of the shareholders, which reduces the agency issue (Fama and Jensen, 1983).

As a result, the board’s responsibility extends beyond just endorsing managerial

decisions Kim et al. (2009) it may also assist in coordinating such decisions with

the interests of shareholders to reduce agency problems (Garćıa-Sánchez, 2020).

Moreover, in the context of Pakistan, the analysis outcome further disclosed that

the co-efficient of managerial efficiency is negative and significant (β= -0.0541,
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P=0.0000) at a 1% level of significance, which means managerial efficiency has a

negative influence on a firm performance measured by market-based proxy, i.e., To-

bin’s Q (TQ). Furthermore, in the case of India, the results are demonstrated that

the system GMM has been applied and that managerial efficiency negatively influ-

ences Tobin’s Q at the l% level of significance (β= -0.1192, P=0.0000). Therefore,

the H1: managerial efficiency positively influences firm performance is partially

accepted as in both cases the coefficient is negative but significant. However,

Tobin’s Q is a market-based measure of firm performance, and besides Manage-

rial Efficiency, many other factors influence the market-based measurement of

firm performance. Those factors may be at the industrial level, country level, or

macroeconomic variables due to which the significance of the management efforts

is compromised.

Another reason for the negative influence of managerial efficiency on Tobin’s Q is

due to the personal interest of the managers as they work for their interest and

the firm performance is compromised, so now the role of effective corporate gover-

nance has become essential to weak this negative relationship between managerial

efficiency and firm performance (Tobin’s Q). To some extent, decision-making re-

flects the quirks of the decision-makers, and complex judgments are often reliant

on cognitive (Gan, 2019) and behavioral factors (Hambrick and Mason, 1984).

According to the Echelons idea, managers have unique traits and cognitive styles

that are not interchangeable, which causes them to make unique judgments, espe-

cially in complicated situations (Bamber et al., 2010). According to this theory,

managers’ traits affect corporate choices and company performance by perceiving

business problems from their point of view (Hambrick, 2007). Therefore, manage-

rial efficiency may affect the firm performance positively or negatively. In emerging

economies, there is a positive association between firm performance and managers’

skills (Mertzanis and Said, 2019).

However, dispersion in this relationship has been reported due to variations in

economic development, technology, income, and education (Inam Bhutta et al.,

2021). According to the Echelons theory, managers have unique traits and cog-

nitive styles that are not interchangeable, which causes them to make unique

judgments, especially in complicated situations (Bamber et al., 2010). According
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to this hypothesis, managers’ traits affect corporate choices and company per-

formance by perceiving business problems from their point of view (Hambrick,

2007). Therefore, the hypothesis in the context of Pakistan and India is following

the Echelons theory that the managers’ unique traits and behavior aspects affect

the firm performance differently. Moreover, the agency theory also argued that

managers are opportunistic and give importance to their interests which is why

in long run the firm performance may reduce. Moreover, Tobin’s Q is used as a

proxy of long-run firm performance. Therefore, the negative effect of managerial

efficiency is consistent with the theory.

Moreover, the coefficient of the interaction terms (MB*CGI) is positive and signif-

icant in the context of both Pakistan (β=0.2267, P=0.0000) and India (β=0.1503,

P=0.0280). On one side in respect of both countries, managerial efficiency has

a negative impact on firm performance measured by Tobin’s Q and on the other

side, the interaction terms have a positive impact on Tobin’s Q, which indicates

that corporate governance weak the negative relationship between the manage-

rial efficiency and firm performance and reduce the agency issue. Wu (2021), in

his study corporate governance, took as an independent variable and country-level

governance as a moderator and he discussed if firm-level governance has a negative

impact on firm performance, the role of country-level governance is increased as

the co-efficient of the interaction term is positive and significant and it reduces this

negative impact. Similarly, in this study, managerial efficiency as an independent

variable has a negative impact on firm performance, and now the role of corpo-

rate governance is increased and it improves the relationship between managerial

efficiency and firm performance in the context of Pakistan and India.

In the case of both countries, corporate governance weakens the relationship be-

tween managerial efficiency and firm performance measured by Tobin’s Q. One

side is that managerial efficiency influences firm performance (TQ) negatively, as

depicted by H1. Because managers work for their interests and compromise the

firm’s performance; as a result, this is another factor contributing to the nega-

tive influence of managerial efficiency on Tobin’s Q. Therefore, effective corporate

governance must mitigate this negative relationship between managerial efficiency

and firm performance (as measured by Tobin’s Q).
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According to Jensen and Meckling (1976), managers have opportunistic behavior,

which causes the misalignment between the interest of shareholders and managers,

and ultimately affects the firm performance negatively. Now, the role of the board

of directors gets more importance to align the interests of the both parties Ullah

et al. (2018), therefore, board of directors play in important role to improve the

relationship between managerial efficiency and firm performance.

Here, corporate governance weakens this relationship between managerial effi-

ciency and firm performance, due to which agency issue is minimized. The results

are inconsistent with the agency theory that the board performs an influential role

in minimizing the agency issue (Fama and Jensen, 1983).

In a nutshell, based on the results of testing the hypothesis, it is concluded that

in the context of all three lower-income emerging economies, the hypothesis H1:

managerial efficiency has a positive influence on firm performance (Tobin’s Q)

is partially accepted in case of Pakistan and India and is accepted in case of

Bangladesh and pooling of companies from all selected countries. In addition, H2:

Corporate Governance strengthens the relationship between managerial efficiency

and firm performance and is accepted in all cases.

4.6 Impact of managerial efficiency Permanency

on Firm Performance

In this section, the results of the testing of the hypothesis obtained by applying

system GMM to check the statistical status of hypothesis H3: Impact of the

managerial efficiency permanency on firm performance is significantly different

from the impact of temporary Managerial Efficiency. The results are presented in

Table-4.13 and Table-4.14 with dependent variable return on assets (ROA) and

Tobin’s Q (TQ) respectively. Moreover, in both tables, the results in the context

of Pakistan, India, Bangladesh, and the pooling of countries have been presented.
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4.6.1 Impact of managerial efficiency Permanency With

Firm Performance (ROA)

Table No.4.13 is demonstrating the results regarding the impact of managerial

efficiency permanency on firm performance measured by return on assets. In

each case, two autoregressive terms [AR (1) and AR (2)] have been included to

address the autocorrelation problem. To confirm the validity of the instrumental

overidentifying constraints, the results of the Hansen J-statistic have also been

obtained. The results are indicating that in all cases except Bangladesh, the issue

of autocorrelation is resolved at AR (2), however, in the case of Bangladesh the

issue of autocorrelation is resolved at AR (1) with a p-value greater than 0.05. In

the context of Pakistan, India, Bangladesh, and combined countries, the results

of the Hansen J-Statistic are showing an insignificant value with a p-value greater

than 0.05, which confirms the validity of instrumental overidentifying restrictions.

The results in the context of Pakistan are demonstrating that the co-efficient

of managerial efficiency permanency (MBPF), which is a slope dummy mea-

sured by the product of the managerial efficiency and dummy of managerial effi-

ciency permanency, is positive and significant at a 1% level of significance (0.0398,

P=0.0060), indicating that the impact of managerial efficiency permanency on re-

turn on assets is significantly greater than the impact of temporary Managerial

Efficiency. Similarly, the co-efficient of managerial efficiency permanency (MBPF)

is also positive and significant at a level of 1% in the context of India (0.0037,

P=0.0010), Bangladesh (0.0615, P=0.0000) and in respect of combined countries

(0.0227, P=0.0000). Therefore, based on the statistical results, hypothesis H3:

managerial efficiency permanency affects significantly different than the tempo-

rary managerial efficiency on firm performance is accepted in the context of the

separate country and combined countries results. Moreover, the results are further

showing that the results have also been controlled by using the firm-specific and

country-specific variables.

The resource-based perspective theory, which describes the significance of man-

agers Holcomb et al. (2009), indicates that a firm’s ability to gain a competitive

advantage depends significantly on its managers’ capacity to do so (Garćıa-Meca
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Table 4.13: Impact of managerial efficiency Permanency on Firm Performance
(ROA)

Variables Pakistan India Bangladesh Combine Countries

ROA (-1)
0.8403*** 0.0598*** -0.016 -0.0655***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

MB
0.0314*** 0.0397*** 0.0608*** 0.0100**
(0.006) (0.000) (0.000) (0.021)

MBPF
0.0398** 0.0037** 0.0615*** 0.0227***
(0.02) (0.001) (0.000) (0.000)

CGI
0.1160*** 0.0058*** 0.0239*** 0.0040*
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000) (0.052)

Fsize
-0.0268*** -0.0122*** -0.0855*** -0.0051*
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000) (0.073)

Fage
-0.0162*** 0.0729*** -0.025 -0.0109***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.559) (0.000)

SG
-0.0095*** 0.0211*** 0.0066*** 0.0074***
(0.0018) (0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

SV
-0.001 0.0063*** 0.0025 0.0025**
(0.868) (0.000) (0.477) (0.001)

Slack
-0.001 0.0001*** 0.0737*** -0.009
(0.621) (0.000) (0.000) (0.337)

Lev
-0.0001 0.0001*** -0.0648*** -0.0913***
(0.189) (0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

GI
-0.0016** -0.0006** 0.0105*** -0.0002
(0.011) (0.002) (0.0001) (0.495)

IR
0.0105*** -0.0244*** -0.0043*** -0.0001
(0.000) (0.000) (0.004) (0.956)

ER
0.0013*** -0.0018*** 0.0142*** -0.0001*
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000) (0.079)

GDPG
0.0116*** 0.0001 -0.0319** 0.0001
(0.000) (0.307) (0.018) (0.786)

FDI
0.0551*** 0.0171*** 0.1331*** 0.0034**
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000) (0.041)

Constant
0.1770*** 0.2532*** 0.6117*** 0.1830***
(0.002) (0.000) (0.006) (0.000)

AR (1)
-2.1428** -2.3401** -1.3638 -1.7743*
(0.0321) (0.0193) (0.1726) (0.076)

AR (2)
-0.3235 -1.7791 -0.3808 -0.8299
(0.7463) (0.08) (0.7033) (0.4066)

No. of Instruments 148 196 85 241

Hansen J-Stat P-Value
139.953 187.846 68.599 233.82
(0.3013) (0.329) (0.491) (0.3293)

Note: ROA=Return on assets,MB=Managerial Efficiency, MBPF=Managerial Efficiency Per-
manency, CGI=Corporate governance index, Fage=Firm Age, Fsize=Firm size, SG=Sale
growth, SV=Sale volatility, Slack=Financial slack, Lev=Leverage, GI=Governance index,
IR=Interest rate, ER=Exchange rate, GDPG=Gross domestic product growth, FDI=Foreign
direct investment to GDP. ∗ ∗ ∗P < 0.01, ∗ ∗ P < 0.05, ∗P < 0.1 Parenthesis= (P-value, signifi-
cance)
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and Garćıa-Sánchez, 2018). On the other hand, the Echelons theory says that man-

agers have unique traits and are not interchangeable in cognitive styles; therefore,

they choose various actions, particularly in complicated circumstances (Bamber

et al., 2010). The results are in line with the theoretical literature that the con-

tinuity and stability of managerial efficiency in terms of utilization of skills and

resources, has more effect on firm performance rather than short-term Managerial

Efficiency. The stewardship theory also supports the result that managers are a

steward and they committed their work honestly due to their inner feelings and

this continuity in the work with keen interest leads to the firm performance.

4.6.2 Impact of managerial efficiency Permanency with firm

performance (TQ)

In this section Table-4.13, the results of the difference between the impact of

managerial efficiency and its permanency on Tobin’s Q have been mentioned. In

the context of all three emerging economies individually and combination, AR

(1) is significant and AR (2) is insignificant, which indicates that the issue of

autocorrelation is addressed in AR (2). The J-statistic with a p-value greater

than 0.05 and demonstrated that the instrumental overidentifying restrictions are

valid.

The results, in the case of pooling of companies from Pakistan, India, and Bangladesh,

are showing that managerial efficiency permanency has its co-efficient as positive

and significant (0.9311, P=0.0000), which is evidence of the significant greater

impact of managerial efficiency permanency on Tobin’s Q than the influence of

managerial efficiency on firm performance. The results in the case of individ-

ual countries are also indicating that the co-efficient of managerial efficiency per-

manency (MBPF) is positive and significant [Pakistan (1.2145, P=0.0000), India

(0.5550, P=0.0000), Bangladesh (0.2447, P=0.0000)]. The above-presented results

are showing that in the case of companies from selected countries individually and

pooling of companies from all countries, hypothesis H3: managerial efficiency per-

manency affects significantly different than the temporary managerial efficiency

on firm performance is accepted.
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Table 4.14: Impact of managerial efficiency Permanency on Firm Performance
(TQ)

Variables Pakistan India Bangladesh Combine Countries

TQ (-1) 0.8041*** 0.5530*** 0.0001*** -0.8385***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

MB -0.5912*** -0.4020*** 1.0090*** 0.9311***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

MBPF 1.2145*** 0.5550*** 0.2447*** 0.2460***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000) (0.005)

CGI 0.0674*** 0.0197*** 0.2623*** 0.0530***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

Fsize -0.0360*** -0.6244*** -0.3428*** -0.0568***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

Fage 0.0260*** 0.2888* 0.0008 0.0247***
(0.000) (0.091) (0.99) (0.000)

SG -0.0202 -0.2337*** 0.0652*** -0.0657***
(0.109) (0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

SV -0.0203*** 0.1926*** -0.0262 0.0201***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.155) (0.000)

Slack 0.0156** 0.0033** -0.5365*** -0.0855
(0.002) (0.004) (0.000) (0.199)

Lev 0.0138*** -0.0026*** -0.5088*** -0.4573***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

GI 0.0650*** 0.1490*** 0.4086*** 0.0057**
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000) (0.0130)

IR 0.0765*** 0.4659*** -0.0865*** 0.0426***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

ER -0.0033*** 0.0353*** 0.4094*** -0.0001
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000) (0.915)

GDPG 0.0549*** 0.1360*** -1.4203*** 0.0435***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

FDI 0.4106*** 0.4281*** 4.5090*** 0.1731***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

Constant 1.0723*** 3.0589** -8.6280*** 0.8768***
(0.000) (0.037) (0.000) (0.000)

AR (1) -7.2114*** -4.3525*** -4.0283*** -8.6423***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.0001) (0.000)

AR (2) 0.2894 -1.7037 1.0931 -1.3369
(0.7723) (0.09) (0.2744) (1.1813)

No. of Instruments 168 135 122 350
Hansen J-Stat 157.381 125.43 86.142 375.697
P-Value (0.3657) (0.3255) (0.9212) (0.06)

Note: ROA=Return on assets, MB=Managerial Efficiency, MBPF=Managerial Efficiency Per-
manency, , CGI=Corporate governance index, Fage=Firm Age, Fsize=Firm size, SG=Sale
growth, SV=Sale volatility, Slack=Financial slack, Lev=Leverage, GI=Governance index,
IR=Interest rate, ER=Exchange rate, GDPG=Gross domestic product growth, FDI=Foreign
direct investment to GDP. ∗ ∗ ∗P < 0.01, ∗ ∗ P < 0.05, ∗P < 0.1 Parenthesis= (P-value, signifi-
cance)
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The resourced-based theory and literature support the results that continuity in

efforts of managers in terms of the utilizing of skills and resources in a better way

has a more positive influence on performance rather than the effect of temporary

Managerial Efficiency. The resource-based perspective theory, which describes the

significance of managers indicates that the firm’s ability to gain a competitive ad-

vantage depends greatly on managers’ capacity to use resources efficiently (Garćıa-

Meca and Garćıa-Sánchez, 2018). A corporation must take chances to survive, and

effective managers are more likely to do so than inexperienced managers (Yung

and Chen, 2018). The motivation for using the resources and investment oppor-

tunities available to increase corporate success lies with managers. Managers with

exceptional ability take chances, whereas managers with less exceptional ability

do not (Yung and Chen, 2018). If the managers work efficiently permanently, the

company will get benefit in long run, which is helpful to achieving the objective

to maximize the wealth of shareholders. Another aspect of corporate success is

enhancing managerial conduct regarding skill usage and continuity. Stewardship

theory, which Donaldson and Davis (1989) presented, is an alternative to agency

theory. In this idea, a manager is a steward who wants to do his absolute best to

uphold the interests of the shareholders. As a result, managers strive to maximize

shareholder wealth while feeling responsible for their actions. Therefore, regard-

ing resource usage, permanent management in terms of skills and resources for

better conduct promotes company performance more than transient Managerial

Efficiency.

4.7 Mediating Role of Earnings Quality in a Re-

lationship of managerial efficiency with Firm

Performance

Observing how earning quality (ERQ) mediates the link between managerial effi-

ciency (MB) and business performance as assessed by return on assets (ROA) and

Tobin’s Q is another goal of the study (TQ). The findings below are displayed in

the context of all South Asian emerging economies with lower incomes individually



Results and Discussion 106

and pooling of companies from all these economies. The results show the effect

of an independent variable on the mediator (Path-a), the effect of the mediator

on a dependent variable (Path-b), and the influence of the independent variable

on a dependent variable (Path-c) to check the conditions of mediation. Finally, in

the 4th Step, the results have been obtained by including both independent and

mediators simultaneously to test the full or partial mediation of earning quality in

a relationship between managerial efficiency (MB) and firm performance measured

by return on assets (ROA) and Tobin’s Q (TQ).

4.7.1 Mediating Role of Earnings Quality Between man-

agerial efficiency and Firm Performance in the Con-

text of Pakistan

The results demonstrate the mediating influence of earning quality (ERQ) in the

relationship between managerial efficiency (MB) and firm performance measured

by return on assets (ROA, in Table-4.15) and Tobin’s Q (Table-4.16) in the Pak-

istani context. The results demonstrated that in all paths (a, b and c) by applying

system GMM, the autoregressive terms AR (1) and AR (2) have been added to

address the issue of autocorrelation and show that at AR (2), the issue of the auto-

correlation is resolved. Moreover, the results of the Hansen J-statistic are showing

the validation of instrumental overidentifying restrictions. Moreover, both firm

and country-specific control variables have also been included. Firm-level control

variables are firm age, firm size, sale growth, sale volatility (SV), leverage (Lev),

financial slack, and macro-economic control variables are GDP growth (GDPG),

Foreign direct investment (FDI), interest rate (IR) and exchange rate (ER).

In Path-a results are depicted that the managerial efficiency (MB) positively and

significantly influences earning quality (β=0.0405, P=0.000) at a significant level of

1%. Therefore, the results are showing that managerial efficiency has significantly

and positively associated with earning quality based on the statistical results. The

results regarding Path-b depict that the dependent variable is firm performance

(ROA), and earning quality (ERQ) affects the return on assets (ROA) positively

at a 10% level of significance (β=0.1283, P=0.0510). The results concluded that
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Table 4.15: Mediating Role of ERQ in Relationship Between MB and ROA
in the Context of Pakistan

Variables Path-a Path-b Path-c 4th Step

Dependent Variables ERQ ROA ROA ROA

DV (-1) 0.6315*** 0.2776*** 0.5439*** 0.4106***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

MB 0.0405*** 0.0473*** 0.0487***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

ERQ 0.1283* -0.1606***
(0.051) (0.000)

Fage -0.0086 -0.0258*** -0.3054*
(0.001) (0.000) (0.000)

Fsize -0.2019*** -0.1397*** -0.1749***
(0.001) (0.000) (0.000)

SG 0.0161 -0.0193*** -0.1248
(0.019) (0.000) (0.000)

SV 0.0018 0.0315*** 0.0974
(0.762) (0.000) (0.000)

Slack 0.0087* 0.0531*** 0.0029
(0.058) (0.000) (0.357)

Lev 0.0126 -0.2723*** 0.0293
(0.839) (0.000) (0.468)

IR -0.0096** -0.0039** -0.0119
(0.028) (0.028) (0.33)

ER 0.0016*** -0.0009*** -0.0018
(0.001) (0.000) (0.83)

GDPG -0.0045 -0.0048** -0.0037
(0.33) (0.019) (0.225)

FDI 0.0038 0.0033 0.0044**
(0.772) (0.65) (0.044)

Constant -0.2821*** 3.3447*** 1.9806*** 2.5883***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

AR (1) -5.7251 -2.7325*** -2.3227** -2.3655**
(0.000) (0.0063) (0.0202) (0.018)

AR (2) 0.9854 -1.222 -1.173 0.7882
(0.3244) (0.2217) (0.2408) (0.4306)

No. of Instruments 99 21 126 150
Hansen J-Stat 115.931 12.156 136.487 154.491
P-Value (0.0812) (0.1444) (0.0656) (0.1326)

Note: ROA=Return on assets,MB=Managerial Efficiency, MBPF=Managerial Efficiency
Permanency, ERQ=Earnings quality, CGI=Corporate governance index, Fage=Firm Age,
Fsize=Firm size, SG=Sale growth, SV=Sale volatility, Slack=Financial slack, Lev=Leverage,
GI=Governance index, IR=Interest rate, ER=Exchange rate, GDPG=Gross domestic product
growth, FDI=Foreign direct investment to GDP. ∗ ∗ ∗P < 0.01, ∗ ∗P < 0.05, ∗P < 0.1 Parenthe-
sis= (P-value, significance)
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earning quality is significantly associated with firm performance (ROA). The re-

sults of path-c show that managerial efficiency (MB) improves firm performance

(ROA). managerial efficiency positively influences firm performance (ROA) at a

1% level of significance (β=0.0472, P=0.0000). Moreover, all firm-specific con-

trolling variables change the return on assets significantly, and all macroeconomic

variables except foreign direct investment (FDI) influence the return on assets.

So, the results show that managerial efficiency is significantly associated with firm

performance (ROA). Based on statistical results presented in Table-4.15, Path-

a, Path-b, and Path-c are showing significant results; therefore, earning quality

(ERQ) mediates between managerial efficiency (MB) and financial performance

measured by return on assets (Baron and Kenny, 1986).

In the 4th Step, the results intimated that managerial efficiency (β=0.0487, P=0.0000)

and earning quality (β= -0.1607, P=0.0000) both have a significant influence on

return on assets (ROA) when taken into account simultaneously. Therefore, earn-

ing quality partially mediates between managerial efficiency and firm performance

(ROA).

Finally, it is concluded that H4: earning quality mediates the relationship between

managerial efficiency and firm performance (ROA) is accepted based on statistical

results presented in Table 4.15.

The results reported in Table 4.16 show the mediating effect of financial quality

reporting (ERQ) in the relationship between managerial efficiency and firm per-

formance measured by Tobin’s Q (TQ). The outcome of all path analyses (Path-a,

Path-b, and Path-c) and results of the 4th Step to check the partial or full medi-

ation are reported using system GMM.

The Path-a analysis results that the coefficient of managerial efficiency (MB) is

positive and significant at a 1% level of significance (β=0.0405, P=0.0000). There-

fore, the results are evident that managerial efficiency is significantly associated

with earning quality.

The results for Path-b analysis show that earning quality (ERQ) improves the

financial performance measured by Tobin’s Q (TQ) as the coefficient of ERQ

is positive and significant at the l% level of significance (β=1.0045, P=0.0000).

So, the earning quality is significantly associated with firm performance (TQ) as
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Table 4.16: Mediating Role of ERQ in Relationship Between MB and Tobin’s
Q in Context of Pakistan

Variables Path-a Path-b Path-c 4th Step

Dependent Variables ERQ TQ TQ TQ

DV (-1)
0.6315*** 0.0001*** 0.4908*** 0.2626***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

MB
0.0405*** 1.7901*** 0.4581***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

ERQ
1.0045*** 1.0826***
(0.000) (0.000)

Fage
0.0283 -0.0251 -0.0592
(0.000) (0.516) (0.105)

Fsize
-0.4213*** -0.1999*** -0.9607***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

SG
-0.5238***

-0.1347 -3279
(0.000)

SV
0.2065*** 0.0824*** 0.0242**
(0.000) (0.000) (0.021)

Slack
-0.1060*** 0.0031 -0.0975***
(0.000) (0.808) (0.000)

Lev
-1.1026*** -0.4048*** -0.2034***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.001)

IR
0.0017 0.0217*** 0.0190***
(0.314) (0.000) (0.001)

ER
0.0100*** 0.0081*** 0.0179***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

GDPG
0.1598*** 0.1363*** 0.1884***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

FDI
0.5289*** 0.0232 0.3619***
(0.000) (0.321) (0.000)

Constant
-0.2821*** 8.0678*** 3.6932*** 16.5947***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

AR (1)
-5.7251*** -4.3362*** -7.9715*** -7.8634***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

AR (2)
0.9854 -1.915 -0.0069 -0.8961
(0.3244) (0.06) (0.9945) (0.3702)

No. of Instruments 99 194 177 181
Hansen J-Stat 115.931 183.076 185.389 185.011
P-Value (0.0812) (0.4429) (0.1211) (0.1615)

Note: TQ=Tobins’Q, MB=Managerial Efficiency, MBPF=Managerial Efficiency Permanency,
ERQ=Earnings quality, CGI=Corporate governance index, Fage=Firm Age, Fsize=Firm size,
SG=Sale growth, SV=Sale volatility, Slack=Financial slack, Lev=Leverage, GI=Governance in-
dex, IR=Interest rate, ER=Exchange rate, GDPG=Gross domestic product growth, FDI=Foreign
direct investment to GDP. ∗ ∗ ∗P < 0.01, ∗ ∗ P < 0.05, ∗P < 0.1 Parenthesis= (P-value, signifi-
cance)
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proved by statistical results. The results regarding Path-c demonstrate that man-

agerial efficiency (MB) affects positively and significantly (β=1.7909, P=0.0000)

the financial performance (Tobin’s Q) at a 1% level of significance. The effect

of both firm-specific and macroeconomic variables has been controlled in Path-c

analysis. These results are indicating that managerial efficiency is significantly

associated with firm performance (TQ) and is accepted based on statistical re-

sults. So, the statistical outcomes disclose the mediation role of earning quality

(ERQ) between managerial efficiency (MB) and financial performance measured

by Tobin’s Q (Baron and Kenny, 1986).

In respect of partial or full mediation, the results of the 4th Step are obtained

by applying the system GMM. The results are indicating that the influence of

firm-specific and macro-economic variables has been controlled while performing

the 4th Step. The outcomes indicate that both managerial efficiency (β=0.4581,

P=0.0000) and earning quality (β=1.0826, P=0.0000) have a positive and sig-

nificant influence on financial performance (TQ) when taken simultaneously in a

model. Subsequently, from the statistical results, it is concluded that earning qual-

ity (ERQ) mediates partially between managerial efficiency and firm performance

(TQ). Therefore, H5: earning quality mediates in a relationship of managerial

efficiency with firm performance (TQ) is accepted.

4.7.2 Mediating Role of Earnings Quality Between man-

agerial efficiency and Firm Performance in the Con-

text of India

In Tables Nos. 4.17 and 4.18, the findings on the mediating effect of earning qual-

ity (ERQ) between management efficiency and business performance are shown in

respect of selected non-financial enterprises in India. In both tables, the results

of path analysis (Path-a, Path-b, and Path-c) and the final step to confirm the

conditions of mediation effect of earning quality (ERQ) between managerial effi-

ciency (MB) and firm performance (ROA and TQ) have been presented. In the

case of both models with dependent variables return on assets and Tobin’s Q, the

co-efficient of AR (1) is insignificant in all path-analysis (Path-a, b, and c) and
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AR (2) is significant, which indicates the issue of autocorrelation is resolved at

2nd order autoregressive term. Moreover, J-Statistic is insignificant in all cases,

so the overidentifying restrictions are valid.

Table No. 4.17 in the Indian context details the mediating function of earn-

ing quality in the link between management conduct and business performance

(ROA). According to the Path-a study results, management behavior (MB) has

a substantial 1% negative impact on the accuracy of financial reporting (β = -

0.0295, P=0.000). Thus, a significant association between managerial efficiency

and earning quality is reported. The results regarding Path-b depict that the de-

pendent variable is firm performance (ROA), and earning quality (ERQ) affects

the return on assets (ROA) positively at a 1% level of significance (β=0.0224,

P=0.0000). The results concluded that earning quality is associated positively

but significantly with firm performance (ROA).

At a 1% level of significance, the path-c results show that managerial efficiency

(MB) has a positive impact on firm performance (ROA) (β=0.1594, P=0.0000).

Therefore, based on empirical findings, the results demonstrate that managerial

efficiency was substantially connected with business performance (ROA). Based on

statistical results presented in Table-4.17, Path-a, Path-b, and Path-c are showing

significant results; therefore, according to Barron and Kenny, (1986) earning qual-

ity (ERQ) mediates between managerial efficiency (MB) and financial performance

measured by return on assets.

Finally, the system GMM has also been applied by simultaneously taking earn-

ing quality and managerial efficiency to test the mediation status of earning

quality. The results have been obtained by controlling both firm-specific and

macroeconomic variables. The results further intimated that managerial effi-

ciency (β=0.0158, P=0.0010) significantly influences ROA and earning quality

(β= 0.0417, P=0.5510), showing the insignificant influence on ROA when taken

into account simultaneously. Therefore, earning quality fully mediates between

managerial efficiency and firm performance (ROA). From the results, it is con-

cluded that H5: earning quality mediates in a relationship of managerial efficiency

with firm performance (ROA) is accepted.
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Table 4.17: Mediating Role of ERQ in Relationship between MB and ROA in
the Context of India

Variables Path-a Path-b Path-c 4th Step

Dependent Variables ERQ ROA ROA ROA

DV (-1) 0.2457*** 0.2422*** 0.3048*** 0.3150***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

MB -0.0295*** 0.1594*** 0.0158***
0 0 (0.001)

ERQ 0.0224*** 0.0417
0 (0.551)

Fage 0.1074 0.0185 0.0056
0 (0.579) (0.853)

Fsize -0.0203*** -0.0304*** -0.0251***
(0.000) (0.002) (0.002)

SG -0.0027** 0.0293*** 0.0309***
(0.012) (0.000) (0.000)

SV 0.0050*** 0.0050** 0.0045**
(0.000) (0.041) (0.068)

Slack 0.0003*** 0.0002 0.0004
(0.000) (0.461) (0.173)

Lev -0.0552*** -0.0177*** -0.0321
(0.000) (0.507) (0.168)

IR -0.0034*** -0.0018*** 0.0016
(0.000) (0.242) (0.295)

ER -0.0007*** 0.0009*** 0.0008***
(0.000) (0.006) (0.01)

GDPG 0.0009*** 0.0015*** 0.0016***
(0.000) (0.007) (0.005)

FDI 0.0001*** 0.0032 0.0024***
(0.89) (0.361) (0.469)

Constant -0.0756*** 0.0306 0.4067*** 0.3738***
(0.000) (0.192) (0.000) (0.001)

AR (1) -2.8163*** -2.7463*** -3.0392*** -3.1638***
(0.0049) (0.006) (0.0024) (0.0016)

AR (2) 1.7688 -0.5759 -0.1918 -0.1675
(0.0769) (0.5647) (0.8479) (0.867)

No. of Instruments 217 118 30 30
Hansen J-Stat 197.372 96.4652 14.9482 15.796
P-Value (0.7861) (0.712) (0.5992) (0.5383)

Note: ROA=Return on assets, MB=Managerial Efficiency, MBPF=Managerial Efficiency
Permanency, ERQ=Earnings quality, CGI=Corporate governance index, Fage=Firm Age,
Fsize=Firm size, SG=Sale growth, SV=Sale volatility, Slack=Financial slack, Lev=Leverage,
GI=Governance index, IR=Interest rate, ER=Exchange rate, GDPG=Gross domestic product
growth, FDI=Foreign direct investment to GDP. ∗ ∗ ∗P < 0.01, ∗ ∗P < 0.05, ∗P < 0.1 Parenthe-
sis= (P-value, significance)
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Table 4.18: Mediating Role of ERQ in Relationship between MB and Tobin’s
Q in the Context of India

Variables Path-a Path-b Path-c 4th Step

Dependent Variables ERQ TQ TQ TQ

DV (-1) 0.2457*** 0.6039*** 0.5324*** 0.2377***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

MB -0.0295*** -0.3732*** 0.0121*
(0.000) (0.000) (0.075)

ERQ 3.9480*** -0.0967
(0.004) (0.399)

Fage 8.2452 2.5056*** 0.0813***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.008)

Fsize -0.8991*** -0.1912*** -0.0363***
(0.009) (0.000) (0.000)

SG 0.1883 0.1042*** -0.0228**
(0.264) (0.007) (0.015)

SV 0.4481*** 0.2817*** 0.0064**
(0.000) (0.000) (0.015)

Slack -0.0139 0.0140* -0.0002***
(0.708) (0.077) (0.702)

Lev 1.4099* 1.0064*** -0.0134***
(0.094) (0.000) (0.659)

IR -0.1210*** -0.1814*** -0.0013***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.454)

ER -0.0529*** -0.0153*** 0.0003***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.448)

GDPG 0.1237*** 0.0673*** 0.0011***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.201)

FDI 0.1159*** 0.0996*** 0.0004***
(0.002) (0.000) (0.908)

Constant -0.0756*** -14.5952*** -4.8140*** 0.2817**
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000) (0.028)

AR (1) -2.8163*** -4.0720*** -5.3961*** -3.0556***
(0.0049) (0.000) (0.000) (0.0022)

AR (2) 1.7688 -1.5874 -1.6639 -0.456
(0.0769) (0.1124) (0.0961) (0.6486)

No. of Instruments 217 64 154 22
Hansen J-Stat P-Value 197.372 51.796 137.493 2.72

(0.7861) (0.4426) (0.5678) (0.9507)

Note: TQ=Tobin’s Q, MB=Managerial Efficiency, MBPF=Managerial Efficiency Permanency,
FRQ=Earnings quality, CGI=Corporate governance index, Fage=Firm Age, Fsize=Firm size,
SG=Sale growth, SV=Sale volatility, Slack=Financial slack, Lev=Leverage, GI=Governance in-
dex, IR=Interest rate, ER=Exchange rate, GDPG=Gross domestic product growth, FDI=Foreign
direct investment to GDP. ∗ ∗ ∗P < 0.01, ∗ ∗ P < 0.05, ∗P < 0.1 Parenthesis= (P-value, signifi-
cance)



Results and Discussion 114

The findings in Table No. 4.18 demonstrated how management efficiency and To-

bin’s Q (TQ) are related through the mediating role of financial quality reporting

(ERQ) (TQ). The outcome of Path-a analysis shows that the co-efficient of man-

agerial efficiency (MB) is negative and significant at a 1% level of significance (β=

-0.0295, P=0.0000). Therefore, the results are showing that managerial efficiency

is associated significantly with earning quality based on the statistical outcomes.

In Path-b analysis, the results are showing that earning quality (ERQ) improves

the financial performance measured by Tobin’s Q (TQ) as the co-efficient of ERQ

is positive and significant at the l% level of significance (β=3.9480, P=0.0000).

Thus, the earning quality is associated significantly with firm performance (TQ).

The results regarding Path-c demonstrate that managerial efficiency (MB) effect

negatively and significantly (β= -0.3732, P=0.0000) the financial performance

(Tobin’s Q) at a 1% level of significance. Because all routes exhibit significant

connections with the outcome variables, the statistical results reveal the media-

tion function of earning quality (ERQ) between managerial efficiency (MB) and

financial success as evaluated by Tobin’s Q (Baron and Kenny, 1986).

Moreover, the results of the 4th Step show the autocorrelation issue is resolved

at lagged-2 and Hansen J-statistic showing the validation of instrumental overi-

dentifying restrictions. The influence of firm-specific and macroeconomic variables

has been controlled while performing the 4th Step. The outcomes indicate that

both managerial efficiency (β=0.0121, P=0.0750), which is significant at a 10%

level of significance, and earning quality (β= -0.0967, P=0.3990) has negative and

insignificant influence on financial performance (TQ) when taken simultaneously

in a model. Subsequently, from the statistical results, it is concluded that earning

quality (ERQ) mediates fully between managerial efficiency and firm performance

(TQ). Therefore, H4: earning quality mediates in a relationship of managerial

efficiency with firm performance (TQ) is accepted.



Results and Discussion 115

4.7.3 Mediating Role of Earnings Quality Between man-

agerial efficiency and Firm Performance in the Con-

text of Bangladesh

The findings of the earning quality (ERQ) mediation in the link between man-

agerial efficiency (MB) and financial performance as measured by return on assets

(Model-1) and Tobin’s Q (Model-II) in the context of the Bangladesh scenario are

presented in Tables No. 4.19 and No. 4.20 respectively. In the case of path-a anal-

ysis, the issue of autocorrelation is resolved at 1st order of autoregressive term,

and in all other paths and 4th step, the issue of autocorrelation is addressed at

2nd order AR (2). The J-statistic also validates the overidentifying restrictions in

both models.

Table 4.19 presents the results for the mediating effect of financial quality re-

porting (ERQ) in the relationship between managerial efficiency and firm perfor-

mance measured by return on assets (ROA). In an analysis of Path-the results are

depicted that managerial efficiency (MB) affects positively and significantly the

earning quality (β= 0.2506, P=0.000) at a significant level of 1%. Therefore, the

results indicate that managerial efficiency is associated significantly with earning

quality. The results regarding Path-b depict that the dependent variable is firm

performance (ROA), and earning quality (ERQ) affects the return on assets (ROA)

positively at a 1% level of significance (β=0.0182, P=0.0010). The results sup-

ported the theoretical association between earning quality and firm performance.

The path-c results demonstrate that managerial efficiency (MB) enhances busi-

ness performance (ROA). At a 10% level of significance, managerial conduct has a

favorable impact on business performance (β =0.0617, P=0.0930). The findings,

therefore, demonstrate a strong correlation between management conduct and cor-

porate success. Path-a, Path-b, and Path-c are producing statistically significant

findings, therefore earning quality (ERQ) satisfies the requirements to serve as a

mediator between managerial efficiency (MB) and financial success as evaluated

by return on assets (Baron and Kenny, 1986; Khan et al., 2021a).

In the end, the results further intimated that managerial efficiency (β=0.1050,

P=0.0000) significantly influences ROA and earning quality (β= 0.0199, P=0.0000),
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Table 4.19: Mediating Role of ERQ in Relationship between MB and ROA in
the Context of Bangladesh

Variables Path-a Path-b Path-c 4th Step

Dependent Variables ERQ ROA ROA ROA

DV (-1) 0.5228*** 0.4150*** 0.3148*** 0.5190***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

MB 0.2506*** 0.0617* 0.1050***
(0.000) (0.093) (0.000)

ERQ 0.0182*** 0.0199***
(0.001) (0.000)

Fage -0.0046 0.0243 0.0203*
(0.81) (0.172) (0.085)

Fsize -0.0397*** -0.0465*** -0.0175***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.002)

SV 0.0054 0.0046 0.0045
(0.18) (0.285) (0.128)

Slack 0.0107 -0.0047 -0.0138
(0.493) (0.769) (0.357)

Lev -0.0333 -0.026 -0.0204
(0.259) (0.379) (0.468)

IR -0.0012 -0.0013 -0.0023
(0.619) (0.566) (0.33)

ER -0.0001 -0.0002 -0.0002
(0.959) (0.766) (0.83)

GDPG 0.0045 0.0024 -0.0063
(0.469) (0.696) (0.225)

FDI 0.0056 0.0074 0.0225**
(0.653) (0.533) (0.044)

Constant -0.0826*** 0.5756*** 0.6388*** 0.2680***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000) (0.003)

AR (1) -0.9963 -2.7325*** -2.3493** -2.4180**
(0.3191) (0.0063) (0.0188) (0.0156)

AR (2) 1.1111 -1.222 -1.2869 -1.291
(0.2665) (0.2217) (0.1981) (0.1967)

No. of Instruments 91 21 21 30
Hansen J-Stat P-Value (94.033) (12.156) (13.083) (21.627)

-0.3104 -0.1444 -0.109 -0.1995
Hansen J-Stat P-Value 197.372 51.796 137.493 2.72

(0.7861) (0.4426) (0.5678) (0.9507)

Note:ROA=Return on assets, MB=Managerial Efficiency, MBPF=Managerial Efficiency
Permanency, FRQ=Earnings quality, CGI=Corporate governance index, Fage=Firm Age,
Fsize=Firm size, SG=Sale growth, SV=Sale volatility, Slack=Financial slack, Lev=Leverage,
GI=Governance index, IR=Interest rate, ER=Exchange rate, GDPG=Gross domestic product
growth, FDI=Foreign direct investment to GDP. ∗ ∗ ∗P < 0.01, ∗ ∗P < 0.05, ∗P < 0.1 Parenthe-
sis= (P-value, significance)
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showing the significant influence on ROA when taken into account simultaneously.

Therefore, earning quality partially mediates between managerial efficiency and

firm performance (ROA). Therefore, it is evident from the empirical results that

H4: earning quality mediates in a relationship of managerial efficiency with firm

performance (ROA) is accepted in the context of India.

The findings are shown in Table No. 4.20 and demonstrate the mediating role

of earning quality (ERQ) in the link between managerial efficiency and company

performance measured by Tobin’s Q in respect of Bangladesh. The data of non-

financial enterprises listed on the Dhaka stock exchange was used to generate the

results. Using the system GMM, the findings of the path analysis (Path-a, Path-

b, and Path-c) and the results of the fourth step to determine if mediation was

partial or complete are presented.

In Path-a analysis, the results disclosed that the co-efficient of managerial effi-

ciency (MB) is positive and significant at a 1% level of significance (β=0.2506,

P=0.0000), the results are showing that managerial efficiency is positively linked

with earning quality. The results for Path-b analysis show that earning quality

(ERQ) improves the financial performance measured by Tobin’s Q as the coeffi-

cient of ERQ is positive and significant at the l% level of significance (β=0.1463,

P=0.0000). Therefore, it is evident from the results that the earning quality pos-

itively influences the firm performance based on empirical results. The results

regarding Path-c demonstrate that managerial efficiency (MB) affects positively

and significantly (β=.02008, P=0.0470) the financial performance (Tobin’s Q) at

a 5% level of significance. These results depicted that managerial efficiency is

associated significantly with firm performance as evident from empirical results.

So, the statistical results demonstrate the mediation role of earning quality in

the relationship between managerial efficiency and firm performance measured by

Tobin’s Q.

To investigate the partial or full mediation in the relationship between managerial

efficiency and firm performance (TQ), the managerial efficiency and earning quality

included in the statistical equation simultaneously, the results are indicating that

both managerial efficiency (β=0.1909, P=0.0590) and earning quality (β=0.1507,

P=0.0000) have a positive and significant influence on financial performance (TQ)
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Table 4.20: Mediating Role of ERQ in Relationship between MB and Tobin’s
Q in the context of Bangladesh

Variables Path-a Path-b Path-c 4th Step

Dependent Variables ERQ TQ TQ TQ

DV (-1) 0.5228*** -0.5006 *** -0.4991*** -0.5199***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

MB 0.2506*** 0.2008** 0.1909**
(0.000) (0.047) (0.059)

ERQ 0.1463*** 0.1507***
(0.000) (0.000)

Fage -1.0269*** -1.0631*** -1.0296***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

Fsize -0.7618*** -0.7136*** -0.7477***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

SV 0.0335 0.026 0.0312*
(0.169) (0.269) (0.077)

Slack -0.1589** -0.1490** -0.1665**
(0.025) (0.034) (0.02)

Lev -0.6748*** -0.6706*** -0.6596***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.001)

IR 0.0215 0.0144 0.021
(0.243) (0.424) (0.256)

ER -0.0469*** -0.0463*** -0.0481***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

GDPG 0.2038*** 0.1905*** 0.2005***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

FDI 0.3800*** 0.4144*** 0.4319**
(0.000) (0.000) (0.044)

Constant -0.0826*** 27.0150*** 26.6010*** 27.1068***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

AR (1) -0.9963 3.4528*** 3.4047*** 3.5259***
(0.3191) (0.0006) (0.0007) (0.0004)

AR (2) 1.1111 -0.2197 -0.2021 0.0457

(0.2665) (0.8261) (0.8398) (0.1967)
No. of Instruments 91 21 21 21
Hansen J-Stat P-Value 94.033 12.156 13.083 10.9806

(0.3104) (0.1607) (0.109) (0.2028)

Note: TQ=Tobin’s Q, MB=Managerial Efficiency, MBPF=Managerial Efficiency Permanency,
FRQ=Earnings quality, CGI=Corporate governance index, Fage=Firm Age, Fsize=Firm size,
SG=Sale growth, SV=Sale volatility, Slack=Financial slack, Lev=Leverage, GI=Governance in-
dex, IR=Interest rate, ER=Exchange rate, GDPG=Gross domestic product growth, FDI=Foreign
direct investment to GDP. ∗ ∗ ∗P < 0.01, ∗ ∗ P < 0.05, ∗P < 0.1 Parenthesis= (P-value, signifi-
cance)
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at 10% and 1% levels of significance respectively. Subsequently, from the statistical

results, it is concluded that earning quality (ERQ) mediates partially between

managerial efficiency and firm performance (TQ). Therefore, H4: earning quality

mediates in a relationship of managerial efficiency with firm performance (TQ) is

accepted.

4.7.4 Pooling of the Companies from Emerging Countries

(Combined Results)

The following Tables 4.21 and 4.22 are reporting the results of the mediating role of

earning quality (ERQ) in the relationship between managerial efficiency and firm

performance measured by return on assets and Tobin’s Q respectively. The results

are in the context of pooling all companies from Pakistan, India, and Bangladesh.

In the analysis, to check the mediating role of earning quality between managerial

efficiency and firm performance, the firm-specific and country-specific variables

have been included as control variables. At the firm level, the effect of firm age

(Fage), firm size (FSize), sale volatility (SV), financial slack (slack), and leverage

has been controlled. Moreover, the effect of macro-economic variables such as

interest rate (IR), an exchange rate (ER), GDP growth (GDPG), and foreign

direct investment (FDI) has also been controlled

Table 4.21 is showing that autoregressive terms [AR (1) and AR (2)] have been

added to the model to test the mediation of earning quality. To test the impact of

managerial efficiency on earning quality, the impact of earning quality on firm per-

formance, the influence of managerial efficiency on firm performance, and finally

to test the status of partial or full mediation of earning quality in a relationship of

managerial efficiency and firm performance, the J-statistic is insignificant, showing

the validation of the overidentifying restrictions. Moreover, the issue of autocor-

relation is resolved at AR (2) for all models except model-1 (Path-a), where the

issue of autocorrelation is addressed at AR (1).

In Path-a analysis, the results are showing that managerial efficiency (MB) has

a positive and significant impact on earning quality at a significant level of 5%

(β= 0.0244, P=0.036). Therefore, managerial efficiency is associated significantly
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Table 4.21: Mediating Role of ERQ in Relationship between MB and ROA in
Context of Pooling of Companies from Selected Countries

Variables Path-a Path-b Path-c 4th Step

Dependent Variables ERQ ROA ROA ROA

DV (-1) 1.0282*** 0.2825*** 0.3194*** 0.1299***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

MB 0.0244** 0.0274*** 0.0282***
(0.036) (0.000) (0.000)

ERQ 0.0256** -0.0077***
(0.03) (0.000)

Fage -0.0210*** -0.0199*** -0.0113***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

Fsize 0.0053*** 0.0054*** -0.0094***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

SG 0.0109*** 0.0115*** 0.01380***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

SV 0.0010*** 0.0010** 0.0034
(0.000) (0.025) (0.000)

Slack 0.0440*** 0.0441*** 0.0086
(0.000) (0.000) (0.068)

Lev -0.0918*** -0.0770*** -0.0537
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

IR 0.0001 -0.0004** -0.001
(0.36) (0.015) (0.007)

ER -0.0002*** -0.0002*** -0.0002
(0.000) (0.000) (0.098)

GDPG 0.0011*** 0.0009*** 0.0013
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

FDI 0.003 0.0020** 0.0007**
(0.693) (0.022) (0.59)

Constant 0.0021 0.0417*** 0.0434*** 0.2080***
(0.703) (0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

AR (1) -1.4596 -3.9098*** -3.9111*** -3.6086**
(0.1444) (0.0001) (0.0001) (0.0003)

AR (2) 1.2643 -0.2676 -0.1015 -0.8312
(0.2061) (0.789) (0.9192) (0.4059)

No. of Instruments 41 388 388 263
Hansen J-Stat P-Value 52.932 371.48 373.32 271.998

(0.1426) (0.5416) (0.5148) (0.1515)

Note: ROA=Return on assets, MB=Managerial Efficiency, MBPF=Managerial Efficiency
Permanency, ERQ=Earnings quality, CGI=Corporate governance index, Fage=Firm Age,
Fsize=Firm size, SG=Sale growth, SV=Sale volatility, Slack=Financial slack, Lev=Leverage,
GI=Governance index, IR=Interest rate, ER=Exchange rate, GDPG=Gross domestic product
growth, FDI=Foreign direct investment to GDP. ∗ ∗ ∗P < 0.01, ∗ ∗P < 0.05, ∗P < 0.1 Parenthe-
sis= (P-value, significance)
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with earning quality and as reported in statistical results. Moreover, the results

are further indicating that earning quality has a positive and significant influence

on firm performance (β= 0.0010, P=0.0300) at a significant level of 5%. There-

fore, the outcome of the analysis is showing that earning quality is associated

significantly with firm performance. Similarly, the results are also showing that

managerial efficiency has a positive influence on firm performance (β= 0.0274,

P=0.0000) and therefore, it is concluded from the results that all the conditions of

the mediating role of earning quality are fulfilled (Baron and Kenny, 1986; Khan

et al., 2021a). Afterward, the results have been obtained regarding the influence

of managerial efficiency and earning quality simultaneously on firm performance

measured by return on assets (ROA) and showing that both managerial efficiency

(MB) and earning quality (ERQ) both have a significant influence on firm per-

formance at significant level 5%, which indicates the earning quality has a partial

mediating role in the relationship between managerial efficiency and firm perfor-

mance. Therefore, it is concluded that H4: earning quality mediates a relationship

of managerial efficiency with firm performance (ROA) is accepted.

In table-4.22, the results about the mediating role of earning quality in the re-

lationship between managerial efficiency and firm performance are measured by

Tobins’Q. The results have been obtained by applying the system GMM in the

context of pooling all companies from Pakistan, India, and Bangladesh.

The results are showing that managerial efficiency has a positive and significant

influence on firm performance measured by Tobin’s Q (TQ) at a significant level

of 5%. The co-efficient of MB is 0.0244 with a P-value less than 0.05, therefore

managerial efficiency is associated significantly with earning quality. Moreover,

the coefficient of earning quality in path-b is also positive and significant at a

1% level of significance (β=0.1433, P=0.0000), which indicates the significant and

positive relationship between financial reporting and firm performance. In an

analysis of path-c, the results indicate that managerial efficiency has a positive

and significant impact on firm performance measured by Tobin’s Q. In this path

analysis, the co-efficient of managerial efficiency is 0.9934 with a P-value of 0.0000,

which demonstrates that the managerial efficiency is associated significantly with

firm performance measured by Tobin’s Q. By following Baron and Kenny (1986),



Results and Discussion 122

Table 4.22: Mediating Role of ERQ in Relationship between MB and Tobin’s
Q in Context of Pooling of Companies from Selected Countries

Variables Path-a Path-b Path-c 4th Step

Dependent Variables ERQ TQ TQ TQ

DV (-1) 1.0282*** 0.6750 *** 0.6400*** 0.6561***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

MB 0.0244** 0.9934*** 0.7639***
(0.036) (0.000) (0.000)

ERQ 0.1433*** 0.1136***
(0.000) (0.000)

Fage -0.1329*** -0.1780*** 0.0506***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

Fsize 0.0078 0.0303*** -0.1110***
(0.235) (0.000) (0.000)

SG -0.2520*** -0.2435*** -0.0837***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

SV -0.016 -0.0188*** 0.0313***
(0.000) (0.269) (0.000)

Slack -0.4300** -0.4066*** -0.2551***
(0.000) (0.034) (0.000)

Lev -0.6188*** -0.6907*** -0.9771***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

IR 0.0015 -0.0182*** -0.0105***
(0.42) (0.424) (0.000)

ER -0.0005*** -0.0002 0.0010***
(0.001) (0.379) (0.000)

GDPG 0.0433*** 0.0431*** 0.0495***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

FDI 0.1659*** 0.1292*** 0.0290***
(0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

Constant 0.0021 2.5598*** 2.8240*** 27.1068***
(0.703) (0.000) (0.000) (0.000)

AR (1) -1.4596 3.4528*** -10.277*** 10.252***
(0.1444) (0.0006) (0.000) (0.000)

AR (2) 1.2643 -0.2197 -1.8445 -1.8692
(0.2061) (0.8261) (0.07) (0.0616)

No. of Instruments 41 433 433 460
Hansen J-Stat P-Value 52.932 455.683 455.244 174.009

(0.1426) (0.1111) (0.1138) (0.1733)

Note: TQ=Tobin’s Q, MB=Managerial Efficiency, MBPF=Managerial Efficiency Permanency,
ERQ=Earnings quality, CGI=Corporate governance index, Fage=Firm Age, Fsize=Firm size,
SG=Sale growth, SV=Sale volatility, Slack=Financial slack, Lev=Leverage, GI=Governance in-
dex, IR=Interest rate, ER=Exchange rate, GDPG=Gross domestic product growth, FDI=Foreign
direct investment to GDP. ∗ ∗ ∗P < 0.01, ∗ ∗ P < 0.05, ∗P < 0.1 Parenthesis= (P-value, signifi-
cance)
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the conditions of the mediating effect of earning quality in the relationship between

managerial efficiency and firm performance are accepted.

Finally, to check the status of mediation of earning quality whether it mediates

partially or fully in the relationship between managerial efficiency and firm per-

formance measured by Tobin’s Q (TQ). The results are indicating that the co-

efficient of managerial efficiency and earning quality is positive and significant

when taken simultaneously to check their influence on firm performance. There-

fore, H4: earning quality mediates in a relationship of managerial efficiency with

firm performance (TQ) is accepted.

In a nutshell, the discussion and past literature reviewed are evident in the rela-

tionship between managerial efficiency and earning quality (Path-a), the relation-

ship between earning quality with firm performance (Path-b), and the relationship

between managerial efficiency with firm performance (Path-c) and the empirical

results of the study obtained on the same lines that earning quality mediates in

the relationship between managerial efficiency and firm performance.

In the context of Pakistan, India, Bangladesh, and pooling of all companies taken

from countries the results obtained by following Baron and Kenny (1986) and by

applying system GMM that earning quality (ERQ) plays a mediating role in the

context of all emerging economies (Pakistan, India, and Bangladesh). The results

are inconsistent with the procedure of mediating a variable’s role in a relationship

between an independent and dependent variable Baron and Kenny (1986); Khan

et al. (2021a). The results are also consistent with the previous research, managers

are the primary contributors and play a crucial part in the financial reporting pro-

cess, ultimately affecting the quality of the financial reporting (Choi et al., 2015).

Prior research examined managers’ unique influences on business choices (Bamber

et al., 2010). According to Bertrand and Schoar (2003), particular management

styles influence operational and financial decisions. This claim was also supported

by Jensen and Zajac (2004), who noted that managers’ experience influences strat-

egy creation. Consequently, management behavior affects the effectiveness of the

company. Past research has shown that the quality of financial reporting affects a

company’s success and that better financial reporting helps to reduce investment

inefficiencies (Bushman and Smith, 2001; Lambert et al., 2007). According to
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Chang et al. (2010), managerial efficiency significantly impacts operational and fi-

nancial output, which also affects the organization’s performance (Andreou et al.,

2016).

Moreover, the firm-specific and country-specific variables have also been taken as

control variables to avoid the biasedness the results while investigating the impact

of managerial efficiency on firm performance with moderating role of the corporate

governance index and mediating role of earning quality. In firm-specific variables,

the firm size and leverage are showing a negative and significant influence on return

on assets, moreover, other firm-specific control variables (Firm age, sale growth,

sale volatility, financial slack) are showing mixed results with both negative and

positive impact on return on assets, which have consistency with the past studies.

Firm age, firm size, sale growth, financial slack, and leverage usually are taken as

control variables in the model, whereas firm performance is used as an outcome

variable (Munjal et al., 2019).

Although company size is a crucial aspect that has a beneficial impact on perfor-

mance, some businesses nonetheless perform poorly despite growing in size (Oye-

lade, 2019). Firm age was utilized as a control variable by Munjal et al. (2019),

who discovered that company age had a favorable impact on firm performance.

Samosir (2018) claims that older companies have a better reputation and draw

in more investors, which helps to improve the success of the company. Leverage

has been shown to have both a detrimental Warner (1977); Andrade and Kaplan

(1998) and a favorable Wruck (1990) impact on business performance in previous

research.

George (2005) claims that it is up to the managers to decide how to utilize these

resources, and because of their interests, there is a problem with an agency that

eventually has a detrimental impact on the performance of the company. How-

ever, Cryert and March (1963) emphasized the value of financial slack since it

encourages firms to take more risks, explore, innovate, and spend in R & D, all

of which are beneficial to the success of the organization. Recent research found

a correlation between sales growth and corporate success, as well as a negative

correlation between sales volatility and corporate performance (Lefebvre, 2022).

At a country level, the governance index, GDP growth, interest rate, exchange
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rate, and foreign direct investment have also been taken as control variables. The

past studies support the influence of all-control variables on firm performance.

The performance of a corporation is significantly correlated with the currency

rate, interest rate, inflation rate, and GDP volatility, as has been demonstrated

around the globe (Poudel, 2017). Internationalization and company performance

have a beneficial association, according to previous research Kotabe et al. (2002),

however, Likitwongkajon and Vithessonthi (2020) found a negative relationship

between foreign direct investment and corporate performance. In the short run,

the FDI may have a positive relationship with firm performance, but in long run, it

increases the money supply, which increases inflation and ultimately has a negative

relationship with firm performance.

4.8 Robustness of the Results

In this study one proxy of firm performance i.e., Return on assets has been used

to analyze the objective and testing of the hypothesis. The return on assets

(ROA) is a book-based measurement of firm performance. However, a market-

based measurement of the firm performance i.e., Tobin’s Q (TQ) has been used as

the robustness of the results. The similar results have been obtained while testing

the moderating role of corporate governance in relationship between managerial

efficiency and firm performance measured by both proxies (ROA and Tobin’s Q).

Furthermore, 2SLS has been taken into consideration to test the mediating role

of earning quality in relationship between managerial efficiency and firm perfor-

mance. The results have been presented in Table-4.23. The results obtained by

applying 2SLS are also showing that the earning quality is playing partial medi-

ating role in relationship of managerial efficiency with firm performance.

In table-4.23, the results obtained by applying 2SLS are disclosing that in both

cases in which performance is measured by return on assets and Tobin’s Q, the

earnings quality is found significant at 5% level of significance and managerial

efficiency also found significant at 5% level of significance. The both independent

and mediator are significant, which means the earnings quality is playing partial

mediating role in relationship between managerial efficiency and firm performance.
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Table 4.23: Mediating Role of ERQ in Relationship Between MB and Tobin’s
Q in Context of Pooling of Companies from Selected Countries by Applying 2

Stage Least Square (2SLS)

Dependent Variables ROA TQ

ERQ
1.1662** 48.2994**
(0.0300) (0.0020)

MB
0.0903*** 2.1352**
(0.0010) (0.0380)

Fage
0.0024 0.148
(0.6490) (0.4750)

Fsize
0.0200* 0.5534
(0.0680) (0.1940)

SG
0.0271*** 0.485
(0.0070) (0.2150)

SV
-0.0068 -0.4158
(0.3080) (0.1080)

Slack
-0.0385 -1.8905
(0.3390) (0.2270)

Lev
-0.1030*** 0.0243
0.0000 (0.9790)

IR
-0.0003 -0.2092**
(0.9100) (0.0260)

ER
-0.0001 0.0006
(0.6260) (0.9460)

GDPG
-0.0045 -0.3014*
(0.3020) (0.0750)

FDI
0.0051 0.4616
(0.4860) (0.1060)

Constant
0.2309*** 1.64
(0.1080) (0.7690)

Number of Observations 5412 5412

Path-a 0.0244 0.0244
Path-b 0.0256 0.1433
S.E-a 0.0117 0.0117
S.E-b 0.0090 0.0103
Sobel Test 2.1810** 2.3260**

Note: ROA=Return on assets, TQ=Tobin’s Q, MB=Managerial Efficiency, MBPF=Managerial
Efficiency Permanency, FRQ=Earnings quality, CGI=Corporate governance index, Fage=Firm
Age, Fsize=Firm size, SG=Sale growth, SV=Sale volatility, Slack=Financial slack,
Lev=Leverage, GI=Governance index, IR=Interest rate, ER=Exchange rate, GDPG=Gross do-
mestic product growth, FDI=Foreign direct investment to GDP. ∗∗∗P < 0.01, ∗∗P < 0.05, ∗P <
0.1 Parenthesis = (P-value, significance)
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Moreover, sobel test has been applied and values of sobel test are outside the

critical value i.e. 1.96 at significance level 5%, which confirms the mediation

effect of earnings quality in relationship between managerial efficiency and firm

performance (Abu-Bader et al., 2021).



Chapter 5

Conclusion, Implications, and

Future Aspects of Research

This final chapter is about the conclusion of the study including the detail of the

practical implications of the study. Moreover, this chapter is also indicating the

limitations and future direction of the study.

5.1 Conclusion

The study’s main objectives are to capture the influence of managerial efficiency

(MB) on firm performance and to pinpoint the moderating role of corporate gover-

nance and mediating role of earnings quality (ERQ) in a relationship of managerial

efficiency (MB) with firm performance. Another objective of the study is to in-

quire about the influence of a slope dummy i.e., a product of managerial efficiency

permanency dummy on firm performance and to test whether this effect on firm

performance is significantly different from temporary managerial efficiency (MB).

After thoroughly studying, the theoretical and past studies, the study established

the conceptual framework along with the hypotheses of the study.

Return on assets (ROA), and Tobin’s Q, which are accounting or book-based and

market-based proxies respectively, were used to gauge the success of the company

(TQ). Data envelopment analysis (DEA) has been carried out to assess manage-

rial efficiency (MB). First of all, the company efficiency was measured by using

128
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the sales as the output of the company and the cost of items sold, selling and

general administration costs, property, plant, equipment, and intangible assets as

input of resources. Additionally, the firm efficiency has regressed in firm size, the

company’s market share, business segment, and foreign currency translation, and

the model’s residual values have been considered as managerial efficiency in terms

of efficiency and utilization of skills. Moreover, one dimension i.e., board structure

has been used to measure the corporate governance index and further used as a

moderator in the model. The corporate governance index (CGI) has been created

based on principal component analysis (PCA) and by incorporating board size,

board independence, and board meetings. The dummy variable to represent the

managerial efficiency has been used which is 1 if the managerial efficiency score

is equal to or more than 3 times over the most recent four years and otherwise

0. Finally, the slope dummy (MBFP) has been used in the model by multiply-

ing the managerial efficiency score by this dummy variable at the firm-year level.

The earnings quality index (ERQ) has been constructed by taking the average of

the different three earnings qualities, which is further used as a mediator in the

conceptual framework.

The conceptual framework and hypotheses have been tested in the scenario of three

lower-income emerging economies (Pakistan, India, and Bangladesh). The reason

to select emerging economies is the presence of ineffective corporate governance

mechanism and complex institutional system in emerging economies, which fails to

help fully the shareholders to protect their rights (Zhang et al., 2017). According

to the world bank Pakistan, India, and Bangladesh are South Asian lower-income

countries (data.worldbank.org/country/XN) and these emerging economies have

consistency in the corporate ownership structure (Masud et al., 2018; Bae et al.,

2018).

Therefore, the study selected 492 companies in the non-financial sector and listed

on the stock exchanges of Pakistan, India, and Bangladesh to test the hypotheses.

The data has been gathered from 195 companies in the scenario of Pakistan, 200

companies listed on the Indian stock exchange, and 97 companies in the context

of Bangladesh. The annual data has been collected from 492 companies listed

in South Asian lower-income economies (Pakistan, India, and Bangladesh) for the
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period of 11 years (2009 to 2019). In analyzing the data, descriptive statistics, and

correlation analysis has been used, and further in testing the conceptual framework

and hypotheses, the system generalized method of moments (GMM) was applied.

In testing of hypotheses, at the firm-specific (firm age, firm size, sale growth, sale

volatility, financial slack, and leverage), at country level governance (Governance

index) and macro-economic control variables (interest rate, exchange rate, GDP

growth, and foreign direct investment) have been used.

5.2 Main Findings of the Study

As early described that the main objectives of the study are as follows and on the

same lines the research questions and hypotheses have been established.

1. To investigate the influence of managerial efficiency on firm performance.

2. To analyze the moderating role of managerial efficiency in a relationship

between managerial efficiency and firm performance.

3. To check the significant difference between the effect of permanent and tem-

porary managerial efficiency on firm performance.

4. To check the mediating role of earnings quality in the relationship between

managerial efficiency and firm performance.

By following the objectives of the hypotheses of the study have been developed and

tested by using the system GMM. The following main findings of the study have

been obtained in the scenario of all three emerging economies. These main findings

explain the status of the hypotheses, which further elaborates the achievements of

the objectives of the study.

5.2.1 Impact of Managerial Efficiency on Firm Performance

The analysis has been carried out in the context of all three emerging economies

individually and collectively and the results revealed that managerial efficiency

has a positive impact on firm performance measured by return on assets and a
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negative impact on Tobin’s Q in the context of Pakistan and India. The nega-

tive impact of managerial efficiency on Tobin’s Q indicates that managers have

their interests due to which they scarify the interest of the shareholders and in

long run, its negative influence is observed in Tobin’s Q as it is the measure of

long-term firm performance. However, the results reported show the significant

influence of managerial efficiency on firm performance. Therefore, it is concluded

that hypothesis H1: managerial efficiency has a positive influence on firm perfor-

mance measured by return on assets is accepted in all contexts, and in the case

of Tobin’s Q as a measurement of firm performance the hypothesis H1 is accepted

in the context of Bangladesh and pooling of all companies from Pakistan, India,

and Bangladesh, but partially accepted in the context of Pakistan and India due

to negative influence of managerial efficiency on Tobin’s Q. The positive influence

of managerial efficiency on firm performance is according to the past studies (An-

dreou et al., 2016). The resource-based theory discuss that managers are the main

factors Holcomb et al. (2009) that contributes in competitive advantage by us-

ing the company’s resources effectively (Garćıa-Meca and Garćıa-Sánchez, 2018).

However, in context of Pakistan and India the managerial efficiency has negative

influence on firm performance measured by Tobin’s Q. Tobin’s Q is a market-based

measure of business performance, and in addition to management conduct, there

are several other factors that might affect this metric. In short term, the com-

pany will have more profitability i.e., book value due to earnings management,

but in long it will affect the firm performance negatively, which will translate in

market-based proxy.

5.2.2 Moderating Role of Corporate Governance in the

Relationship Between Managerial Efficiency and Firm

Performance

The results are indicating that in all three lower-income emerging economies, the

corporate governance index measured by the board structure index is playing an

important role in the relationship between managerial efficiency and firm perfor-

mance. The corporate governance index improves the relationship between
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managerial efficiency and firm performance by reducing the agency issue, as on the

one side it monitors and compels the managers to work for the best of shareholders

and improve the disclosure quality and on the other side it has a direct and posi-

tive influence on firm performance, therefore, corporate governance works for the

shareholders to reduce the agency conflicts. One more aspect is that in the case of

Pakistan and India, the managerial efficiency has a negative influence on Tobin’s

Q, but the co-efficient of interaction term i.e., the product of managerial efficiency

and corporate governance index is positive and significant. The possible reason for

the negative influence of managerial efficiency on firm performance (Tobin’s Q) is

the personal interest of the managers as they work for their interest and the firm

performance is compromised, however, by earnings management of the managers

hide this negative effect in case of firm performance measured by return on assets,

but its prominent effect is seen in case of market-based proxy so now the role of

the effective corporate governance becomes very important to make weaker this

negative relationship between managerial efficiency and firm performance (Tobin’s

Q). Finally, it is concluded that H2: Corporate Governance improves the relation-

ship between managerial efficiency and firm performance and is also accepted in

the context of all three emerging economies.

According to agency theory, the board oversees, supervises, and controls man-

agers’ duties to reduce agency conflicts while defending the interests of share-

holders (Fama & Jensen, 1983). As a result, the board’s responsibility extends

beyond just endorsing managerial decisions Kim et al. (2009) it may also assist

in coordinating such decisions with the interests of shareholders to reduce agency

problems (Garcia-Sanchez, 2020). In case of Pakistan and India, the corporate

governance weakens the relationship between managerial efficiency and firm per-

formance measured by Tobin’s Q. One side the managerial efficiency influenced the

firm performance (TQ) negatively. Because managers work for their own interests

and compromise the firm’s performance as a result it effects negatively in long run

performance of the company i.e measured by Tobin’s Q.

Therefore, it is crucial for effective corporate governance to mitigate this negative

relationship between managerial efficiency and firm performance (as measured by

Tobin’s Q). Here, corporate governance weakens this relationship between
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managerial efficiency and firm performance due to which agency issue is minimized.

The results are in consistent with the agency theory that board perform an effective

role to minimize the agency issue.

5.2.3 Impact of Managerial Efficiency Permanency on Firm

Performance

The results of testing of hypotheses are further showing that in the case of all three

emerging economies, individually or collectively, the effect of managerial efficiency

permanency is significantly different from the effect of managerial efficiency on firm

performance. In all cases, the co-efficient of managerial efficiency permanency

(MBPF) is positive and significant, which indicates that managerial efficiency

permanency has a more positive influence on firm performance than the impact of

managerial efficiency temporary in nature. Therefore, hypothesis H3: managerial

efficiency permanency affects significantly different than the temporary managerial

efficiency on firm performance.

The resource-based perspective theory, which describes the significance of man-

agers Holcomb et al. (2009), indicates that a firm’s ability to gain a competitive

advantage depends greatly on its managers’ capacity to do so (Garćıa-Meca and

Garćıa-Sánchez, 2018). Echelons theory, on the other hand, says that managers

have unique traits and are not interchangeable in cognitive styles, therefore they

choose various actions, particularly in complicated circumstances Bamber et al.

(2010). According to this hypothesis, managers’ personal traits affect corporate

choices and company performance by perceiving business problems from their own

point of view (Hambrick, 2007). The resource-based perspective theory describes

the significance of managers Holcomb et al. (2009) and elaborates that a company’s

ability to maintain its competitive advantage depends on the managers’ capacity

to make efficient use of the company’s resources (Garćıa-Meca and Garćıa-Sánchez,

2018). Corporate success enhancement depends upon the managerial conduct in

terms of skill usage and its continuity. managerial efficiency continuity enhance

firm performance more as compared to temporary managerial efficiency in terms

of utilization of resources.
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5.2.4 Mediating Role of Earnings Quality in the Relation-

ship Between Managerial Efficiency and Firm Per-

formance

The results are demonstrating that in the case of all three emerging economies

either consider individually or collectively, the earnings quality is playing a medi-

ating role between managerial efficiency and firm performance measured by return

on assets (ROA) and Tobin’s Q. However, in the case of the status of partial or

full mediation of earnings quality, the results are indicating that in the case of

India, the earnings quality fully mediates the relationship between managerial

efficiency and firm performance (ROA and TQ), however, in case of Pakistan,

Bangladesh and pooling of companies from all selected countries earnings quality

(FRQ) mediates partially in the relationship between managerial efficiency and

firm performance (ROA and TQ).

Therefore, it is concluded that the H4: Earnings quality has a mediating role

between managerial efficiency and firm performance is accepted in the context of

all countries whether considered individually or collectively.

The results are in consistent with the procedure of mediating role of a variable in

relationship of independent variable and dependent variable (Baron and Kenny,

1986; Khan et al., 2021a). According to previous research, managers are the

primary contributors and play a crucial part in the financial reporting process,

which ultimately affects the earnings quality (Choi et al., 2015). Past research

has shown that the quality of earnings affects a company’s success and that better

earnings quality helps to reduce investment inefficiencies (Bushman and Smith,

2001; Lambert et al., 2007). According to Chang et al. (2010), managerial conduct

has a significant impact on operational and financial output, which also affects

the performance of the organization (Andreou et al., 2016). Therefore, the results

are consistent with the previous studies and showing that earnings quality playing

mediating role in relationship between managerial efficiency and firm performance.

Finally, the summary of the status of the hypotheses of the study is reported in

Table 5.1, which are along the same lines as the objectives of the study.
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5.3 Summary of the Testing of Hypothesis

The following table is showing the summary and empirical status of the hypotheses

in the context of Pakistan, India, Bangladesh and pooling of companies from all

these countries.

Table 5.1: Summary of Testing of Hypothesis

Hypothesis
Dependent Variable

ROA Tobin’s Q

Pakistan Scenario
H1: Managerial efficiency has a positive influ-

ence on firm performance
Accepted Partially Accepted as a

negative relationship
H2: Corporate Governance improves the rela-

tionship between managerial efficiency and
firm performance.

Partially Ac-
cepted

Accepted as it weakens the
negative relationship

H3: Managerial efficiency permanency affects
significantly different than the temporary
managerial efficiency on firm performance.

Accepted Accepted

H4: earnings quality has a mediating role be-
tween managerial efficiency and firm per-
formance

Partial Media-
tion Accepted

Partial Mediation Ac-
cepted

Indian Scenario
H1: Managerial efficiency has a positive influ-

ence on firm performance
Accepted Partially Accepted as a

negative relationship
H2: Corporate Governance improves the rela-

tionship between managerial efficiency and
firm performance.

Partially Ac-
cepted

Accepted as it weakens the
negative relationship

H3: Managerial efficiency permanency affects
significantly different than the temporary
managerial efficiency on firm performance.

Accepted Accepted

H4: Earnings quality has a mediating role be-
tween managerial efficiency and firm per-
formance

Full Mediation
Accepted

Full Mediation Accepted

Bangladeshi Scenario
H1: Managerial efficiency has a positive influ-

ence on firm performance
Accepted Accepted

H2: Corporate Governance improves the rela-
tionship between managerial efficiency and
firm performance.

Accepted Accepted

H3: Managerial efficiency permanency affects
significantly different than the temporary
managerial efficiency on firm performance.

Accepted Accepted

H4: Earnings quality has a mediating role be-
tween managerial efficiency and firm per-
formance

Partial Media-
tion Accepted

Partial Mediation Ac-
cepted

Pooling of Companies from Pakistan, India, and Bangladesh
H1: Managerial efficiency has a positive influ-

ence on firm performance
Accepted Accepted

H2: Corporate Governance improves the rela-
tionship between managerial efficiency and
firm performance.

Accepted Accepted

H3: Managerial efficiency permanency affects
significantly different than the temporary
managerial efficiency on firm performance.

Accepted Accepted

H4: Earnings quality has a mediating role be-
tween managerial efficiency and firm per-
formance

Partial Media-
tion Accepted

Partial Mediation Ac-
cepted
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5.4 Implications of the Study

First and foremost, the study’s main finding is the addition of a theoretical and

empirical link between management behavior and business success, while also cap-

turing the mediating function of earnings quality and the moderating impact of

corporate governance in the context of emerging economies. The study opens

new doors for researchers to conduct their studies on the continuity and stabil-

ity of managerial efficiency and its contribution to enhancing firm performance.

The study also disclosed how corporate governance is important to enhance the

relationship between managerial efficiency and firm performance. The results dis-

closed and recommended how effective corporate governance and improved earn-

ings quality is essential especially in the context of emerging economies to mitigate

the agency issue between managers and shareholders. The results of the study are

also important for practical implications as the outcome of the study recommended

the guideline for policymakers, shareholders, regulators and companies.

The study’s recommendation includes that the managerial efficiency continuity

in terms of utilization of resource proper way are more relevant and essential to

enhance the firm performance. The results recommended the policy makers to en-

courage the continuity of the managers’ efforts in utilizing the resources in proper

way for long term firm performance. Hiring high-ability managers with greater

incentives or higher pay is worthwhile for business owners since they are better

equipped to ease corporate financial pressures and work to improve the firm’s

performance. The results of the study are more important for practical implica-

tions especially in the case of Pakistan and India, where the negative influence

of managerial efficiency on firm performance (TQ) has been reported, as these

results indicate that managerial efficiency permanency is one of the factors that

can improve the relationship between managerial efficiency and firm performance.

Therefore, the board of directors should focus to make the continuity, stability,

and permanency of the managerial efficiency in terms of utilizing the resources

and skills in a better way.

The results of the study recommended to establish an effective corporate gover-

nance mechanism, to protect the rights of the shareholders by monitoring and



Conclusion, Implications, and Future Aspects of Research 137

controlling the managers to do the work in the best interest of shareholders and to

maximize their wealth. The outcomes of the research are helpful for policymakers

to formulate strategies for improvement of the firm performance. The results of the

study revealed that the independent directors still make up a very small fraction of

board members in these developing economies. For boards and policymakers that

are interested in reaching ideal board composition, this conclusion has significant

ramifications. The findings recommended that firms seriously evaluate this new

code clause and think about raising the number of their independent directors on

board.

The study also suggests that the corporate governance mechanism is an impor-

tant mechanism to enhance the relationship between managerial efficiency and

firm performance in the context of south Asian lower-income emerging economies.

The outcome is reported that corporate governance mechanism is required to make

more effective especially in the case of Bangladesh due to which the monitoring

weakness may be minimized, which further translates into strengthening the rela-

tionship between managerial efficiency and firm performance.

The study also suggested that corporate governance should give a guideline and

enforce the management to disclose quality information on financial aspects to en-

sure corporate transparency and to reduce uncertainty, which further leads to the

firm performance. The results are also useful for the creditors and loan providers

to scrutinize the managerial efficiency for future firm performance due to which

they make their decisions to allocate the resources to the businesses.

The study’s overall findings reveal that all three countries use the reporting stan-

dards based upon their national standards are not sufficient to disclose the required

information. This situation calls for rigorous implementation of reporting stan-

dards and supervision in these nations, which can be improved by adopting proper

reporting standards and monitoring mechanism. The study also communicates

the information to the investors that how management is using their resources

for maximization of their wealth, which further contributes to their idiosyncratic

risk. By offering insights into how governance requirements are actively applied

at the micro level, the analysis contributes to the empirical literature. This study

is consistent with other research about inadequate governance practices, which
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suggests that in nations with weak institutional and investor protection frame-

works, businesses can utilize corporate governance to differentiate themselves apart

from rivals.

5.5 Limitations of the Study

In the study, work on a large scale has been carried out to check the influence of

managerial efficiency on firm performance with moderating role of corporate gov-

ernance and mediating role of earnings quality. Despite all, there always remains

the cushion to do more work. Therefore, this study has some limitations, which are

required to probe the study in the future. First of all, the study incorporates only

South Asian lower-income emerging economies (Pakistan, India, and Bangladesh).

Second, the objective of the study was to construct the corporate governance index

by taking the characteristics of board structure only. There are not many female

directors in the context of Pakistan Wang et al. (2019), which limits the study to

take into consideration the dimension of board diversity in corporate governance

index. Third, in the study, only the earnings index (a Sum of three different prox-

ies of earnings quality) has been used to capture the mediating role of earnings

quality in the relationship between managerial efficiency and firm performance.

Fourth, the external mechanism of governance i.e., country-level governance has

only been taken as a control variable in the study.

5.6 Future Aspects of the Study

In the future, a comparison of the study may be carried out with some advanced

countries. In the future, the characteristics of other dimensions of corporate gover-

nance which are ownership structure and audit quality may also be taken into ac-

count. Moreover, the study may be conducted without constructing the index and

by taking all characteristics (Board size, Board independence, and Board meet-

ings) separately to check their moderating influence on the relationship between

managerial efficiency and firm performance. In future research, the researcher may

also use all measurements of earnings quality separately to check the moderating
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role of earnings quality in the relationship between managerial efficiency and firm

performance. In the future, the moderating role of corporate governance may also

be tested in the relationship between managerial efficiency and earnings quality

. The external mechanism of governance i.e., country-level governance has been

taken as a control variable, but in a future study, the moderating role of the inter-

nal mechanism of governance i.e., corporate governance, and external mechanism

of governance i.e., country-level governance may be used as a moderator in the

relationship between managerial efficiency and firm performance.
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Tülüce, N. S. and Doğan, İ. (2014). The impact of foreign direct investments on

smes’ development. Procedia-Social and Behavioral Sciences, 150:107–115.

Tzouvanas, P., Kizys, R., Chatziantoniou, I., and Sagitova, R. (2020). Environ-

mental disclosure and idiosyncratic risk in the european manufacturing sector.

Energy Economics, 87:104715.

Ullah, S., Akhtar, P., and Zaefarian, G. (2018). Dealing with endogeneity bias:

The generalized method of moments (gmm) for panel data. Industrial Marketing

Management, 71:69–78.

Vafeas, N. (1999). Board meeting frequency and firm performance. Journal of

financial economics, 53(1):113–142.

Vafeas, N. and Theodorou, E. (1998). The relationship between board structure

and firm performance in the uk. The British Accounting Review, 30(4):383–407.

Volberda, H. W. (1999). Building the flexible firm: How to remain competitive.

Oxford university press.

Wang, Y., Abbasi, K., Babajide, B., and Yekini, K. C. (2019). Corporate gover-

nance mechanisms and firm performance: evidence from the emerging market

following the revised cg code. Corporate Governance: The international journal

of business in society.



Bibliography 167

Warner, J. B. (1977). Bankruptcy costs: Some evidence. The journal of Finance,

32(2):337–347.

Watts, R. L. and Zimmerman, J. L. (1983). Agency problems, auditing, and

the theory of the firm: Some evidence. The journal of law and Economics,

26(3):613–633.

Weisbach, M. S. (1988). Outside directors and ceo turnover. Journal of financial

Economics, 20:431–460.

Wintoki, M. B., Linck, J. S., and Netter, J. M. (2012). Endogeneity and the

dynamics of internal corporate governance. Journal of financial economics,

105(3):581–606.

Wruck, K. H. (1990). Financial distress, reorganization, and organizational effi-

ciency. Journal of financial economics, 27(2):419–444.

Wu, C.-H. (2021). On the moderating effects of country governance on the rela-

tionships between corporate governance and firm performance. Journal of Risk

and Financial Management, 14(3):140.

Yakob, N. A. and Abu Hasan, N. (2021). Exploring the interaction effects of

board meetings on information disclosure and financial performance in public

listed companies. Economies, 9(4):139.

Yermack, D. (1996). Higher market valuation of companies with a small board of

directors. Journal of financial economics, 40(2):185–211.

Yousaf, I., Ali, S., and Hasan, A. (2019). Effect of family control on corporate

financing decisions of firms: Evidence from pakistan. Estudios de economı́a

aplicada, 37(3):155–170.

Yung, K. and Chen, C. (2018). Managerial ability and firm risk-taking behavior.

Review of Quantitative Finance and Accounting, 51(4):1005–1032.

Zahra, S. A. and Pearce, J. A. (1989). Boards of directors and corporate finan-

cial performance: A review and integrative model. Journal of management,

15(2):291–334.



Bibliography 168

Zéghal, D., Chtourou, S., and Sellami, Y. M. (2011). An analysis of the effect of

mandatory adoption of ias/ifrs on earnings management. Journal of interna-

tional accounting, auditing and taxation, 20(2):61–72.

Zgarni, I., Halioui, K., and Zehri, F. (2014). Do the characteristics of board of di-

rectors constrain real earnings management in emerging markets?-evidence from

the tunisian context. IUP Journal of Accounting Research & Audit Practices,

13(1).

Zhang, X., Yang, X., Strange, R., and Zhang, Q. (2017). Informed trading by

foreign institutional investors as a constraint on tunneling: Evidence from china.

Corporate Governance: An International Review, 25(4):222–235.

Zimon, G., Appolloni, A., Tarighi, H., Shahmohammadi, S., and Daneshpou, E.

(2021). Earnings management, related party transactions and corporate perfor-

mance: The moderating role of internal control. Risks, 9(8):146.


	Author's Declaration
	Plagiarism Undertaking
	List of Publications
	Acknowledgement
	Abstract
	List of Tables
	Abbreviations
	1 Introduction
	1.1 Theoretical Background with Respect Under Pinning and Supportive Theories
	1.1.1 Agency Theory 
	1.1.2 Signaling Theory
	1.1.3 Stewardship Theory
	1.1.4 Stakeholder Theory 
	1.1.5 Resource Based View Theory 

	1.2 Research Gap
	1.3 Problem Statement 
	1.4 Research Questions
	1.5 Objectives of the Study
	1.6 Significance of the Study
	1.6.1 Theoretical Significance
	1.6.2  Contextual Significance
	1.6.3 Practical Significance

	1.7 Country Wise Corporate Governance
	1.7.1  Corporate Governance in Pakistan 
	1.7.2 Corporate Governance in India 
	1.7.3 Corporate Governance in Bangladesh 

	1.8 Organization of the Study

	2 Theoretical Background and Literature Review
	2.1 General Background of the Conceptual Framework
	2.2 Managerial Efficiency and Firm Performance
	2.3 Managerial efficiency , Corporate Governance, and Firm Performance 
	2.3.1 Corporate Board Structure 
	2.3.2  Role of Board Independence
	2.3.3 Role of Board Size
	2.3.4  Role of Board Meetings
	2.3.5  Construction of Corporate Governance Index
	2.3.6  Moderating Role of Corporate Governance in the Relationship Between Managerial efficiency and Firm Performance 

	2.4  Managerial efficiency Permanency and Firm Performance
	2.5  Managerial efficiency , Earnings Quality, and Firm Performance
	2.5.1 Impact of Managerial efficiency on Earnings Quality
	2.5.2  Impact of Earnings Quality on Firm Performance 
	2.5.3 Mediating Role of Earnings Quality in Relationship Between Managerial Efficiency and Firm Performance

	2.6 Control Variables and Firm Performance 
	2.6.1 Firm-specific control variables
	2.6.2  Country Level Control Variables


	3 Data and Methodology
	3.1  Selection of Countries
	3.2 Selection of Companies 
	3.3 Source, Type, and Period of Data
	3.4 Research Models
	3.4.1 Moderating Role of Corporate Governance in a Relationship of Managerial Efficiency with Firm Performance 
	3.4.2 Impact of Managerial Efficiency Permanency on Firm Performance
	3.4.3 Mediating Role of Earnings Quality in a Relationship of Managerial Efficiency with Firm Performance
	3.4.3.1 Impact of Managerial Efficiency on Earnings Quality 
	3.4.3.2 Impact of Earning Quality on Firm Performance
	3.4.3.3 Impact of Managerial Efficiency on Firm Performance
	3.4.3.4 Impact of Managerial Efficiency and Earning Quality on Firm Performance


	3.5 Measurement/Proxies of variables
	3.5.1 Measurement of Financial Performance (Dependent Variable)
	3.5.2 Measurement of Managerial Efficiency (Independent Variable)
	3.5.3 Measurement of Managerial Efficiency Permanency (Independent Variable) 
	3.5.4 Measurement of Corporate Governance Index through PCA (Moderating Variable)
	3.5.5 Measurement of Earning Quality (Mediating Variable)

	3.6 Control Variables
	3.6.1 Firm-Specific Control Variables
	3.6.2 Country Level Control Variables

	3.7 Statistical Techniques
	3.8 Descriptive Statistics
	3.8.1 Correlation Analysis
	3.8.2 System Generalized Methods of Moments (GMM)


	4 Results and Discussion
	4.1 Descriptive Statistics
	4.1.1 Descriptive Statistics in Pakistani Context
	4.1.2 Descriptive Statistics in Indian Context
	4.1.3 Descriptive Statistics in the Bangladeshi Context
	4.1.4 Descriptive Statistics in Context of Pooling of All Companies from Pakistan, India, and Bangladesh 

	4.2 Correlation Analysis
	4.2.1 Correlation Analysis in the Context of Pakistan 
	4.2.2 Correlation Analysis in the Context of India
	4.2.3 Correlation Analysis in the Context of Bangladesh
	4.2.4 Correlation Analysis in Context of Combined Country

	4.3 Results of Panel Unit Root Test
	4.4 Test for Endogeneity
	4.5 Role of Corporate Governance as a Moderator in a Relationship of managerial efficiency with Firm Performance 
	4.5.1 Moderating Role of Corporate Governance in a relationship of managerial efficiency with Firm Performance (ROA)
	4.5.2 Moderating Role of Corporate Governance in a relationship of managerial efficiency with firm performance (TQ)

	4.6 Impact of managerial efficiency Permanency on Firm Performance
	4.6.1 Impact of managerial efficiency Permanency With Firm Performance (ROA)
	4.6.2 Impact of managerial efficiency Permanency with firm performance (TQ)

	4.7 Mediating Role of Earnings Quality in a Relationship of managerial efficiency with Firm Performance
	4.7.1 Mediating Role of Earnings Quality Between managerial efficiency and Firm Performance in the Context of Pakistan
	4.7.2 Mediating Role of Earnings Quality Between managerial efficiency and Firm Performance in the Context of India
	4.7.3 Mediating Role of Earnings Quality Between managerial efficiency and Firm Performance in the Context of Bangladesh
	4.7.4 Pooling of the Companies from Emerging Countries (Combined Results)

	4.8 Robustness of the Results

	5 Conclusion, Implications, and Future Aspects of Research
	5.1 Conclusion
	5.2 Main Findings of the Study
	5.2.1 Impact of Managerial Efficiency on Firm Performance
	5.2.2 Moderating Role of Corporate Governance in the Relationship Between Managerial Efficiency and Firm Performance
	5.2.3 Impact of Managerial Efficiency Permanency on Firm Performance
	5.2.4 Mediating Role of Earnings Quality in the Relationship Between Managerial Efficiency and Firm Performance

	5.3 Summary of the Testing of Hypothesis
	5.4 Implications of the Study
	5.5 Limitations of the Study
	5.6 Future Aspects of the Study

	Bibliography




General Information


Client: Co Name P 0 Pending


Period end date: Date Y 693 Yes


Engagement Leader: N 3 No


Performed by: A 707 Not Applicable


Reviewed by: F 0 Follow Up


P 1404 Total


Reference Disclosure C
h


an
ge


s


N
um


be
r 


of
 


ch
an


ge
s


A
pp


lic
ab


le
?


D
is


cl
os


ur
e 


m
et


?


Performer comments Reviewer comments
0


A Disclosures for consideration by all entities 2 Yes 0


A1. General disclosures 0 Yes 0


A1.1. General disclosures 0 Yes 0 Total: 32 | P - 0 | Y - 29 | N - 0 | A - 3 | F - 0
A1.1.1


1p15


Financial statements present fairly the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of an entity. Fair presentation 
requires the faithful representation of the effects of transactions, other events and conditions in accordance with the definitions 
and recognition criteria for assets, liabilities, income and expenses set out in the ‘Conceptual framework for financial reporting’ 
(Framework). The application of IFRSs, with additional disclosure when necessary, is presumed to result in financial statements 
that achieve a fair presentation.
An entity prepares its financial statements, except for cash flow information, using the accrual basis of accounting.


0 1 Y


A1.1.2 1p10 (a)-(f) Include the following components in the financial statements: 0 1 Y
A1.1.3 (a) a statement of financial position (balance sheet) at the period end date; 0 1 Y
A1.1.4 (b) a statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the period; 0 1 Y
A1.1.5 (c) a statement of changes in equity for the period; 0 1 Y
A1.1.6 (d) a statement of cash flows for the period; 0 1 Y
A1.1.7 (e) notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 0 1 Y
A1.1.8 (ea) comparative information in respect of the preceding period as specified in paragraphs 38 and 38A; and 0 1 Y
A1.1.9 (f) a statement of financial position as at the beginning of the preceding period when an entity applies an accounting policy 


retrospectively or makes a retrospective restatement of items in its financial statements, or when it reclassifies items in its 
financial statements in accordance with paragraphs 40A-40D


0 1 Y


A1.1.10


1p10A


Either present: 
(a) a single statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, with profit or loss and other comprehensive income 
presented in two sections. The sections are presented together, with the profit or loss section presented first followed directly by 
the other comprehensive income section; or
(b) the profit or loss section in a separate statement of profit or loss. If the entity selects option (b), the separate statement of 
profit or loss immediately precedes the statement presenting comprehensive income.


0 1 Y


A1.1.11 1p11 Present with equal prominence all of the financial statements. 0 1 Y
A1.1.12


1p29
Present separately each material class of similar items. Present separately items of a dissimilar nature or function unless they 
are immaterial.


0 1 Y


A1.1.13
1p30A


An entity shall not reduce the understandability of its financial statements by obscuring material information with immaterial 
information or by aggregating material items that have different natures or functions.


0 1 Y


A1.1.14 1p32 Do not offset assets and liabilities or income and expenses unless required or permitted by an IFRS. 0 1 Y
A1.1.15


1p16
Make an explicit and unreserved statement in the notes that the financial statements comply with IFRS. Financial statements 
should not be described as complying with IFRS unless they comply with all the requirements of IFRSs. 


0 1 Y


A1.1.16
1p49


Identify the financial statements and distinguish them from other information in the same published documents. 0 1 Y


A1.1.17 1p51 Identify each financial statement and the notes. 0 1 Y
A1.1.18


1p51 (a)-(e)
Display the following information prominently, and repeat where necessary for the information presented to be understood: 0 1 Y


A1.1.19 (a) the name of the reporting entity or other means of identification, and any change in that information from the end of the 
previous reporting period;


0 1 Y


A1.1.20 (b) whether the financial statements are for an individual entity or a group of entities; 0 1 Y
A1.1.21 (c) the date of the end of the reporting period or the period covered by the financial statements and notes; 0 1 Y
A1.1.22 (d) the presentation currency (defined in IAS 21); and 0 1 Y
A1.1.23 (e) the level of rounding used in presenting amounts in the financial statements. 0 1 Y
A1.1.24 1p31 An entity need not provide a specific disclosure required by an IFRS if the information is not material. 0 1 Y
A1.1.25


1p36 (a), (b)
Where an entity has changed the end of its reporting period and prepares financial statements for a period of less than or more 
than one year,  disclose:


0 1 A


A1.1.26 (a) the period covered by the financial statements; 0 1 Y
A1.1.27 (b) the reason for using a longer or shorter period; and 0 1 A
A1.1.28 (c) the fact that amounts presented in the financial statements are not entirely comparable. 0 1 A
A1.1.29 10p17 Include the following in the notes to the financial statements: 0 1 Y
A1.1.30 (a) the date when the financial statements were authorised for issue; 0 1 Y
A1.1.31 (b) the body who gave that authorisation; and 0 1 Y
A1.1.32 (c) whether the entity’s owners or others have the power to amend the financial statements after issue. 0 1 Y


A1.2. Presentation and functional currency 0 Yes 0 Total: 8 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 8 | F - 0
A1.2.1 21p53 When the presentation currency is different from the functional currency, state that fact, together with disclosure of the 


functional currency and the reason for using a different presentation currency.
0 1 A


A1.2.2
21p54


When there is a change in the functional currency of either the reporting entity or a significant foreign operation, disclose that 
fact and the reason for the change in functional currency.


0 1 A


A1.2.3


21p55


If presenting financial statements in a currency that is different from the functional currency, describe the financial statements 
as complying with IFRSs only if they comply with all the requirements of each applicable standard and each applicable 
interpretation including the translation method set out in IAS 21 paras 39 and 42. 


0 1 A


A1.2.4


21p56


An entity sometimes presents its financial statements or other financial information in a currency that is not its functional 
currency without applying the translation methods set out in IAS 21 paras 39 and 42. For example, an entity may convert only 
selected items from its financial statements into another currency; or, an entity whose functional currency is not the currency of 
a hyperinflationary economy may convert the financial statements into another currency by translating all items at the most 
recent closing rate. Such conversions are not in accordance with IFRSs, and the disclosures set out in IAS 21 para 57 are required 
(see below).


0 1 A


A1.2.5
21p57(a)-(c)


If presenting financial statements or other financial information in a currency that is different from either the functional 
currency or the presentation currency without applying the translation methods set out in IAS 21 paras 39 and 42:


0 1 A


A1.2.6 (a) clearly identify the information as supplementary information to distinguish it from the information that complies with 
IFRSs;


0 1 A


A1.2.7 (b) disclose the currency in which the supplementary information is displayed; and 0 1 A
A1.2.8 (c) disclose the entity’s functional currency and the method of translation used to determine the supplementary information. 0 1 A


A1.3. Other disclosures 0 Yes 0 Total: 39 | P - 0 | Y - 32 | N - 0 | A - 7 | F - 0
A1.3.1 1p112 (a)-(c) Disclose in the notes: 0 1 Y
A1.3.2 (a)  information about the basis of preparation of the financial statements and the specific accounting policies used; 0 1 Y


A1.3.3 (b) the information required by IFRSs that is not presented elsewhere in the financial statements; and 0 1 Y
A1.3.4 (c) information that is not presented elsewhere but is relevant to an understanding of the financial statements. 0 1 Y
A1.3.5


1p113-114


The notes are given in a systematic manner, as far as is practicable. In determining a systematic manner, the entity shall 
consider the effect on the understandabiliy and comparability of its financial statements. Each item is cross-referenced in the 
statements of financial position and of comprehensive income, the separate income statement (where presented) and in the 
statements of changes in equity and cash flows to any related information in the notes. Further examples of systematic ordering 
or grouping of the notes are included in paragraph 114 of IAS 1.


0 1 Y


A1.3.6
1p116


Notes providing information about the basis of preparation of the financial statements and specific accounting policies may be 
presented as a separate section of the financial statements.


0 1 Y


A1.3.7


1p17(c)


Provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs is insufficient to enable users to 
understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity’s financial position and financial 
performance.


0 1 Y


A1.3.8


1p38


Disclose comparative information in respect of the previous period for all amounts reported in the current period’s financial 
statements, except where IFRSs permit or require otherwise. This includes comparative information for both narrative and 
descriptive information where it is relevant to understanding the financial statements for the current period.


0 1 Y


A1.3.9
1p38A


An entity shall present, as a minimum, two statements of financial position, two statements of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, two separate statements of profit or loss (if presented), two statements of cash flows and two 
statements of changes in equity, and related notes. 


0 1 Y


A1.3.10


1p38B


In some cases, narrative information provided in the financial statements for the preceding period(s) continues to be relevant in 
the current period. For example, disclose in the current period details of a legal dispute, the outcome of which was uncertain at 
the end of the preceding period and is yet to be resolved. Users may benefit from the disclosure of information that the 
uncertainty existed at the end of the preceding period and from the disclosure of information about the steps that have been 
taken during the period to resolve the uncertainty.


0 1 Y


A1.3.11


1p38C


An entity may present comparative information in addition to the minimum comparative financial statements required by 
IFRSs, as long as that information is prepared in accordance with IFRSs. This comparative information may consist of one or 
more statements referred to in IAS 1 paragraph 10, but need not comprise a complete set of financial statements. When this is 
the case, present related note information for those additional statements.


0 1 Y


A1.3.12


1p38D


For example, an entity may present a third statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income (thereby presenting the 
current period, the preceding period and one additional comparative period). However, the entity is not required to present a 
third statement of financial position, a third statement of cash flows or a third statement of changes in equity (that is, an 
additional financial statement comparative). Present, in the notes to the financial statements, the comparative information 
related to that additional statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.


0 1 A


A1.3.13
1p40A(a), (b)


Present a third statement of financial position as at the beginning of the preceding period in addition to the minimum 
comparative financial statements required in IAS 1 paragraph 38A if:


0 1 A


A1.3.14 (a) it applies an accounting policy retrospectively, makes a retrospective restatement of items in its financial statements or 
reclassifies items in its financial statements; and


0 1 Y


A1.3.15 (b) the retrospective application, retrospective restatement or the reclassification has a material effect on the information in the 
statement of financial position at the beginning of the preceding period.


0 1 A


A1.3.16 1p40B(a)-(c) In the circumstances described in IAS 1 paragraph 40A, present three statements of financial position as at: 0 1 Y


A1.3.17 (a) the end of the current period; 0 1 Y
A1.3.18 (b) the end of the preceding period; and 0 1 Y
A1.3.19 (c) the beginning of the preceding period. 0 1 Y
A1.3.20


1p40C


When an entity is required to present an additional statement of financial position in accordance with IAS 1 paragraph 40A, 
disclose the information required by IAS 1 paragraphs 41–44 and IAS 8. However, it need not present the related notes to the 
opening statement of financial position as at the beginning of the preceding period


0 1 A


A1.3.21
1p40D


Disclose the date of that opening statement of financial position as at the beginning of the preceding period regardless of 
whether an entity’s financial statements present comparative information for earlier periods (as permitted in paragraph 38C).


0 1 Y


A1.3.22
1p41 (a)-(c) 


If an entity changes the presentation or classification of items in its financial statements, reclassify comparative amounts unless 
reclassification is impracticable. When an entity reclassifies comparative amounts, it shall disclose (including as at the 
beginning of the preceding period):


0 1 Y


A1.3.23 (a) the nature of the reclassification; 0 1 Y
A1.3.24 (b) the amount of each item or class of item that is reclassified; and 0 1 Y
A1.3.25 (c) the reason for the reclassification. 0 1 Y
A1.3.26 When an entity changes the presentation or classification of items in its financial statements, reclassify comparative amounts 


unless it is impracticable to do so.
0 1 Y


A1.3.27 1p42(a), (b) Where an entity changes the presentation or classification of items, but it is impracticable to reclassify comparative amounts, 0 1 Y
A1.3.28 (a) the reason for not reclassifying the amounts; and 0 1 Y
A1.3.29 (b) the nature of the adjustments that would have been made if the amounts had been reclassified. 0 1 Y
A1.3.30 1p45(a), (b) Retain the presentation and classification of items in the financial statements from one period to the next unless: 0 1 Y
A1.3.31 (a) it is apparent, following a significant change in the nature of the entity’s operations or a review of its financial statements, 


that another presentation or classification would be more appropriate having regard to the criteria for the selection and 
application of accounting policies; or


0 1 Y


A1.3.32 (b) an IFRS requires a change in presentation. 0 1 Y
A1.3.33 1p138(a)-(d) Disclose the following: 0 1 Y
A1.3.34 (a) the domicile and legal form of the entity, the country in which it is incorporated and the address of its registered office (or 


principal place of business, if different from the registered office);
0 1 Y


A1.3.35 (b) a description of the nature of the entity’s operations and its principal activities; 0 1 Y
A1.3.36 (c) the name of the parent and the ultimate parent of the group. 0 1 Y
A1.3.37 (d) if it is a limited life entity, information regarding the length of its life 0 1 A
A1.3.38


DV
Companies may present outside the financial statements a financial review by management that describes and explains the main 
features of the entity’s financial performance and financial position, and the principal uncertainties it faces. Refer to Section G.


0 1 A


A1.3.39
IFRS6p24


Companies with exploration and evaluation activities disclose the amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expense and 
operating and investing cash flows arising from the exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources.


0 1 A


A2. Accounting policies 0 Yes 0


A2.1. General Disclosures 0 No 0
A2.1.1 1p117(a),(b) Disclose significant accounting policies comprising: 0 0 Y
A2.1.2 (a) the measurement basis (or bases) used in preparing the financial statements; and 0 0 Y
A2.1.3 (b) the other accounting policies used that are relevant to an understanding of the financial statements. 0 0 Y
A2.1.4


1p122
Disclose along with the significant accounting policies or other notes the judgements, apart from those involving estimations, 
that management has made in applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most significant impact on the 
amounts recognised in the financial statements.


0 0 Y
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A2.1.5


1p125 (a),(b)


Disclose information about the assumptions made about the future and other major sources of estimation uncertainty at the 
end of the reporting period that have a significant risk of leading to material adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities within the next financial year. In respect of those assets and liabilities, disclose:


0 0 Y


A2.1.6 (a) their nature, and 0 0 Y
A2.1.7 (b) their carrying amount as at the period end date. 0 0 Y
A2.1.8


1p129


Examples of the types of disclosures an entity makes are:
(a) the nature of the assumption or other estimation uncertainty;
(b) the sensitivity of carrying amounts to the methods, assumptions and estimates underling their calculation, including the 
reasons for the sensitivity;
(c) the expected resolution of an uncertainty and the range of reasonably possible outcomes within the next financial year in 
respect of the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities affected; and
(d) an explanation of the changes made to past assumptions concerning those assets and liabilities, if the uncertainty remains 
unresolved.


0 0 Y


A2.1.9
1p131


Where impracticable to disclose the extent of the possible effects of an assumption or another source of estimation uncertainty 
at the end of the reporting period, disclose that:


0 0 Y


A2.1.10 (a)  it is reasonably possible, on the basis of existing knowledge, that outcomes within the next financial year that are different 
from the assumption could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected and;


0 0 A


A2.1.11 (b)  the nature and carrying amount of the specific asset or liability (or class of assets or liabilities) affected by the assumption. 0 0 A


A2.1.12
IFRS10p19, 28p26


In consolidated financial statements, the results of all subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures should be consolidated or 
equity accounted, as applicable, using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar 
circumstances.


0 0 A


A2.1.13
8p28


In accordance with the transition provisions of each standard, disclose whether any standards have been adopted by the 
reporting entity before the effective date.


0 0 A


A2.1.14
1p18


Inappropriate accounting policies are not rectified either by disclosure of the accounting policies used or by notes or explanatory 
material.


0 0 A


A2.2. Specific policies 0 Yes 0 Total: 51 | P - 0 | Y - 41 | N - 0 | A - 10 | F - 0
A2.2.1 1p119 Consolidation principles, including accounting for: 0 1 Y
A2.2.2 (a) subsidiaries; and 0 1 Y
A2.2.3 (b) associates. 0 1 Y
A2.2.4 1p119 Business combinations. 0 1 Y
A2.2.5 1p119 Joint ventures, including the method the venturer uses to recognise its interests in jointly controlled entities. 0 1 Y
A2.2.6 1p119 Foreign currency transactions and translation. 0 1 A
A2.2.7 16p73(a)-(d) Property, plant and equipment – for each class: 0 1 Y
A2.2.8 (a)  measurement basis (for example, cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, or revaluation less subsequent 


depreciation);
0 1 Y


A2.2.9 (b) depreciation method (for example, the straight-line method) 0 1 Y
A2.2.10 (c) the useful lives or the depreciation rates used; and 0 1 Y
A2.2.11 40p75(a)-(c),(e) Investment property: Disclose: 0 1 Y
A2.2.12 (a) whether the entity applies the fair value model or the cost model; 0 1 Y
A2.2.13 (b) if it applies the fair value model, whether, and in what circumstances, property interests held under operating leases are 


classified and accounted for as investment property;
0 1 Y


A2.2.14 (c) when classification is difficult, the criteria the entity uses to distinguish investment property from owner-occupied property 
and from property held for sale in the ordinary course of business; and


0 1 Y


A2.2.15 (e) the extent to which the fair value of investment property (as measured or disclosed in the financial statements) is based on a 
valuation by an independent valuer who holds a recognised and relevant professional qualification and has recent experience in 
the location and category of the investment property being valued.


0 1 Y


A2.2.16 Where the entity applies the fair value model under IAS 40 further disclosures are required under IFRS 13. Refer to Section B9. 0 1 A


A2.2.17
1p119


Other intangible assets. Disclose, for each class (distinguishing between internally generated and acquired assets): 0 1 Y


A2.2.18 (a) accounting treatment (cost less amortisation, or, in very rare cases, revaluation less subsequent amortisation); 0 1 Y


A2.2.19 38p118(a) (b) whether the useful lives are indefinite or finite; 0 1 Y
A2.2.20


38p118(a)-(b)
(c) for intangible assets with finite useful lives, the amortisation period and amortisation methods used (for example, the 
straight-line method); and


0 1 Y


A2.2.21
38p108 


(d) for intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, that they have been tested for impairment annually and whenever there is 
an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.


0 1 Y


A2.2.22 1p119 Treatment of research costs and the basis for capitalisation of development costs and website development costs. 0 1 Y
A2.2.23 1p119, 23p9,p26(a) Borrowing costs (for example, expensed or capitalised as part of a qualifying asset). 0 1 Y
A2.2.24


IFRS7p21
For each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument, disclose the accounting policies and methods adopted, 
including the criteria for recognition and the basis of measurement.


0 1 Y


A2.2.25
FRS7pB5


As part of the disclosure of an entity’s accounting policies, disclose, for each category of financial assets, whether regular way 
purchases and sales of financial assets are accounted for at trade date or at settlement date (IAS 39 para 38).


0 1 Y


A2.2.26
IFRS7p21, B5


Provide disclosure of all significant accounting policies, including the general principles adopted and the method of applying 
those principles to transactions, other events and conditions arising in the entity’s business. In the case of financial instruments, 
such disclosure includes:


0 1 Y


A2.2.27 (a) the criteria applied in determining when to recognise a financial asset or financial liability, and when to derecognise it; 0 1 Y


A2.2.28 (b) the measurement basis applied to financial assets and financial liabilities on initial recognition and subsequently; and 0 1 Y


A2.2.29 (c) the basis on which income and expenses arising from financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised and measured. 0 1 Y


A2.2.30 1p119 Leases. 0 1 Y
A2.2.31 2p36(a) Inventories, including the cost formula used (for example, FIFO or weighted average cost). 0 1 Y
A2.2.32 1p119 Provisions. 0 1 Y
A2.2.33 19p135(b)    Employee benefit costs – including policy for recognising actuarial gains and losses. 0 1 Y
A2.2.34 IFRS2p44 Share-based payments. 0 1 A
A2.2.35 1p119 Taxes, including deferred taxes. 0 1 Y
A2.2.36 18p35(a), 1p119 Revenue recognition. 0 1 Y
A2.2.37 18p35(a) The method adopted to determine the stage of completion of transactions involving the rendering of services. 0 1 Y
A2.2.38 1p119, 


11p39(b),(c)
Construction contracts, including: 0 1 A


A2.2.39 (a) methods used to determine contract revenue recognised; and 0 1 Y
A2.2.40 (b) methods used to measure stage of completion of contracts in progress. 0 1 Y
A2.2.41 20p39(a) Government grants: 0 1 Y
A2.2.42 1p119 (a) accounting policy; and 0 1 Y
A2.2.43 (b) method of presentation in financial statements. 0 1 Y
A2.2.44 7p46 Definition of cash and cash equivalents. 0 1 Y
A2.2.45 IFRS8p22 Segment reporting (required for listed companies) : 0 1 A
A2.2.46 (a) factors used to identify the entity's reportable segments. 0 1 A
A2.2.47 (aa) the judgements made by management in applying the aggregation criteria in paragraph 12 of IFRS 8. This includes a brief 


description of the operating segments that have been aggregated in this way and the economic indicators that have been 
assessed in determining that the aggregated operating segments share similar economic characteristics.


0 1 A


A2.2.48 (b) types of products and services from which each reportable segment derives its revenues 0 1 A
A2.2.49 IFRS6p24(b) Exploration and evaluation expenditures including the recognition of exploration and evaluation assets. 0 1 A
A2.2.50


36p80, 102
Policy for all assets including the selection of the cash-generating units to allocate the corporate assets and goodwill for the 
purpose of assessing such assets for impairment.


0 1 Y


A2.2.51
FRS6p21, 23


Policy for allocating exploration and evaluation assets to cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units for the 
purpose of assessing such assets for impairment.


0 1 A


A2.3. Changes in accounting policy 0 No 0
A2.3.1 8p19 Where a change in accounting policy is made on the adoption of an IFRS, provide the disclosures in accordance with the specific 


transitional provisions of that standard.
0 0 A


A2.3.2 8p28(a)-(h) On initial application of a relevant standard or interpretation, disclose: 0 0 Y
A2.3.3 (a) the title of the standard or interpretation; 0 0 Y
A2.3.4 (b) that the change in accounting policy is made in accordance with its transitional provisions, when applicable; 0 0 Y


A2.3.5 (c) the nature of the change in accounting policy; 0 0 Y
A2.3.6 (d) a description of the transitional provisions, when applicable; 0 0 Y
A2.3.7 (e) the transitional provisions that might have an effect on future periods, when applicable; 0 0 Y
A2.3.8 (f) the amount of the adjustment for the current period and each prior period presented, to the extent practicable:


(i) for each financial statement line item affected; and
(ii) if IAS 33 applies to the entity, the impact on basic and diluted earnings per share;


0 0 Y


A2.3.9 (g) the amount of the adjustment relating to periods before those presented, to the extent practicable; and 0 0 Y
A2.3.10 (h) if the retrospective application required is impracticable for a particular prior period, or for periods before those presented, 


the circumstances that led to the existence of that condition and a description of how and from when the change in accounting 
policy has been applied.


0 0 Y


A2.3.11 These disclosures need not be repeated in the financial statements of subsequent periods. 0 0 Y
A2.3.12


8p30
If an entity has not applied a new relevant standard or interpretation that has been issued but is not yet effective, disclose: 0 0 Y


A2.3.13 (a) the fact that the entity did not apply the new standard or interpretation that has been issued but is not yet effective; and 0 0 Y


A2.3.14 (b) known or reasonably estimable information relevant to assessing the possible impact that application of the new standard or 
interpretation will have on the entity’s financial statements in the period of initial application.


0 0 Y


A2.3.15 DV
8p31(a)-(e)(ii)


In complying with the previous paragraph, consider disclosing: 0 0 Y


A2.3.16 (a) the title of the new standard or interpretation; 0 0 Y
A2.3.17 (b) the nature of the impending change or changes in accounting policy; 0 0 Y
A2.3.18 (c) the date by which application of the standard or interpretation is required; 0 0 Y
A2.3.19 (d) the date as at which it plans to apply the standard or interpretation initially; and 0 0 Y
A2.3.20 (e) either: 0 0 Y
A2.3.21 (i) a discussion of the impact that initial application of the standard or interpretation is expected to have on the entity’s financial 0 0 Y
A2.3.22 (ii) if that impact is not known or reasonably estimable, a statement to that effect. 0 0 Y
A2.3.23 8p29(a)-(e) On a voluntary change in accounting policy, disclose: 0 0 Y
A2.3.24 (a) the nature of the change in accounting policy; 0 0 Y
A2.3.25 (b) the reasons why applying the new accounting policy provides reliable and more relevant information; 0 0 Y
A2.3.26 (c) the amount of the adjustment for the current period and each prior period presented, to the extent practicable: 0 0 Y


A2.3.27 (i) for each financial statement line item affected; and 0 0 Y
A2.3.28 (ii) if IAS 33 applies to the entity, the impact on basic and diluted earnings per share; 0 0 Y
A2.3.29 (d) the amount of the adjustment relating to periods before those presented, to the extent practicable; and 0 0 Y


A2.3.30 (e) if the retrospective application required is impracticable for a particular prior period, or for periods before those presented, 
the circumstances that led to the existence of that condition and a description of how and from when the change in accounting 
policy has been applied.


0 0 Y


A2.3.31 These disclosures need not be repeated in the financial statements of subsequent periods. 0 0 Y
A2.3.32


IFRS6p13,14


Exploration and evaluation expenditures. An entity may change its accounting policies for exploration and evaluation if the 
change makes the financial statements more relevant to the economic decision-making needs of users and no less reliable, or 
more reliable and no less relevant to those needs. The criteria in IAS 8 should be followed for the change in the accounting 
policy.


0 0 Y


A3. Statement of comprehensive income and related notes 0 Yes 0


A3.1. General disclosures 0 Yes 0 Total: 53 | P - 0 | Y - 29 | N - 1 | A - 23 | F - 0
A3.1.1 Refer to the Appendix to IAS 1 for an example income statement. 0 1 Y
A3.1.2


1p81A (a)-(c)
Present in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, in addition to the profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income sections:


0 1 Y


A3.1.3 (a) profit or loss; 0 1 Y
A3.1.4 (b) total other comprehensive income; and 0 1 Y
A3.1.5 (c) comprehensive income for the period, being the total of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 0 1 Y
A3.1.6


1p81A
If an entity presents a separate statement of profit or loss, it does not present the profit or loss section in the statement 
presenting comprehensive income.


0 1 Y


A3.1.7
1p81B(a),(b)


Present the following items, in addition to the profit or loss and other comprehensive income sections as allocations of profit or 
loss and other comprehensive income for the period: 


0 1 Y


A3.1.8 (a) profit or loss for the period attributable to: 0 1 Y
A3.1.9 (i) non-controlling interests, and 0 1 A
A3.1.10 (ii) owners of the parent; and 0 1 A
A3.1.11 (b) comprehensive income for the period attributable to: 0 1 A
A3.1.12 (i) non-controlling interests, and 0 1 A
A3.1.13 (ii) owners of the parent. 0 1 A
A3.1.14 1p81B If an entity presents profit or loss in a separate statement, present the information set out in IAS 1 para 81B(a) in that 


statement.
0 1 Y


A3.1.15 1p82A (a) Present in the other comprehensive income section the following line items: 0 1 Y


A3.1.16 a) items of other comprehensive income (excluding amounts in (ii) below), classified by nature and grouped into those that, in 
accordance with other IFRSs:


0 1 A


A3.1.17 (i) will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and 0 1 A
A3.1.18 (ii)  will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are met. 0 1 A
A3.1.19


1p82A (b)
(b) the share of the other comprehensive income of  associates  and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method, 
separated into the share of items that, in accordance with other IFRSs:


0 1 A


A3.1.20 (i)  will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and 0 1 A
A3.1.21 (ii) will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are met. 0 1 A
A3.1.22


1p85
Present additional line items (including by disaggregating the line items listed in paragraph 82), headings and subtotals in the 
statement(s) presenting profit or loss and other comprehensive income when such presentation is relevant to an understanding 
of the entity’s financial  performance.


0 1 A


A3.1.23 1p85A(a)-(d) When an entity presents subtotals in accordance with paragraph 85 of IAS 1 above, are those subtotals: 0 1 Y


A3.1.24 (a) comprised of line items made up of amounts recognised and measured in accordance with IFRS; 0 1 Y
A3.1.25 (b) presented and labelled in a manner that makes the line items that constitute the subtotal clear and understandable; 0 1 Y
A3.1.26 (c) be consistent from period to period, in accordance with paragraph 45; and 0 1 Y







A3.1.27 (d) not displayed with more prominence than the subtotals and totals required in IFRS for the statement(s) presenting profit or 
loss and other comprehensive income.


0 1 Y


A3.1.28
1p85B


Present the line items in the statement(s) presenting profit or loss and other comprehensive income that reconcile any subtotals 
presented in accordance with paragraph 85 with the subtotals or totals required in IFRS for such statement(s).


0 1 A


A3.1.29
1p82(a)-(ea)


Include in the profit or loss section or the statement of profit or loss, in addition to items required by other IFRSs, line items 
that present the following amounts for the period:


0 1 Y


A3.1.30 (a) revenue; 0 1 Y
A3.1.31 (b) finance costs; 0 1 Y
A3.1.32 (c) share of profit or loss of associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method; 0 1 A
A3.1.33 (d) tax expense; and 0 1 Y
A3.1.34 (ea) a single amount for the total of discontinued operations (see IFRS 5). 0 1 A
A3.1.35 1p91(a),(b) An entity may present items of other comprehensive income either: 0 1 Y


A3.1.36 (a) net of related tax effects, or 0 1 Y
A3.1.37 (b) before related tax effects with one amount shown for the aggregate amount of income tax relating to those items. If an entity 


elects this alternative, allocate the tax between the items that might be reclassified subsequently to the profit or loss section and 
those that will not be reclassified subsequently to the profit or loss section.


0 1 Y


A3.1.38
1p90


Disclose the amount of income tax relating to each item of other comprehensive income, including reclassification adjustments, 
either in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income or in the notes. 


0 1 Y


A3.1.39 1p92 Disclose reclassification adjustments relating to components of other comprehensive income. 0 1 Y
A3.1.40


1p94
An entity may present reclassification adjustments in the statement of comprehensive income or in the notes. An entity 
presenting classification adjustments in the notes presents the components of other comprehensive income after any related 
reclassification adjustments.


0 1 A


A3.1.41 1p97 When items of income and expense are material, disclose their nature and amount separately. 0 1 Y
A3.1.42


1p99,1p100,1p101


Give an analysis of expenses recognised in profit or loss using a classification based on either their nature or their function 
within the entity, whichever provides information that is reliable and more relevant. Entities are encouraged to present this 
analysis in the statement of comprehensive income or in the separate income statement (if presented). When an entity uses a by 
function analysis, it discloses at a minimum, cost of sales separate from other expenses.


0 1 Y


A3.1.43
1p104


Where the entity classifies expenses by function, disclose additional information on the nature of expenses, including 
depreciation, amortisation and employee benefits expense.


0 1 Y


A3.1.44 20p29 Government grants related to income are sometimes presented income as part of profit or loss, either: 0 1 A
A3.1.45 (a) separately or under a general heading such as ‘Other income’; or 0 1 A
A3.1.46 (b) deducted in reporting the related expense. 0 1 A
A3.1.47


33p4
An entity that chooses to disclose earnings per share based on its separate financial statements presents such earnings per share 
information only in its statement of comprehensive income and not in the consolidated financial statements.


0 1 Y


A3.1.48
33p4A


An entity that presents the components of profit or loss in a separate income statement, as described in IAS 1 para 10A (as 
amended in 2011), presents earnings per share only in that separate statement.


0 1 Y


A3.1.49 IFRS 1p6 Prepare and present an opening IFRS statement of financial position at the date of transition to IFRSs. 0 1 A
A3.1.50 12p81(ab) Disclose separately the amount of income tax relating to each component of other comprehensive income. 0 1 N
A3.1.51


8p39, 40
Disclose the nature and amount of a change in an accounting estimate that has an effect in the current period or that is expected 
to have an effect in future periods. If it is impracticable to estimate the amount, disclose this fact.


0 1 A


A3.1.52 IFRIC 17p14,
IFRIC 17p15


If the entity settles a dividend payable by distributing non-cash assets, does the entity present any difference between the 
carrying amount of the assets distributed and the carrying amount of the dividend payable as a separate line item in profit or 
loss?


0 1 A


A3.1.53


1p139P


Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 1), issued in December 2014, amended paragraphs 10, 31, 54–55, 82A, 85, 113–114, 
117, 119 and 122, added paragraphs 30A, 55A and 85A–85B and deleted paragraphs 115 and 120. An entity shall apply those 
amendments for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier application is permitted. Entities are not required 
to disclose the information required by paragraphs 28–30 of IAS 8 in relation to these amendments. 


0 1 A


A3.2. Individual items 0 No 0
A3.2.1 18p35(b) Disclose the amount of each significant category of revenue recognised during the period, including revenue arising from: 0 0 Y


A3.2.2 (a) the sale of goods; 0 0 Y
A3.2.3 (b) the rendering of services; 0 0 Y
A3.2.4 (c) interest; 0 0 Y
A3.2.5 (d) royalties; and 0 0 A
A3.2.6 (e) dividends. 0 0 A
A3.2.7 18p35(c) Disclose the amount of non-cash revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services included in each significant category of 


revenue.
0 0 A


A3.2.8
1p30


Items not individually material are aggregated with other items in the the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income or in the notes.


0 0 A


A3.2.9 1p98(a)-(g) Circumstances that would give rise to the separate disclosure of items of income and expense include: 0 0 A
A3.2.10 (a) the write-down of inventories to net realisable value or of property, plant and equipment to recoverable amount, as well as 


the reversal of such write-downs;
0 0 Y


A3.2.11 (b) a restructuring of the activities of an entity and the reversal of any provisions for the costs of restructuring; 0 0 A
A3.2.12 (c) disposals of items of property, plant and equipment; 0 0 Y
A3.2.13 (d) disposals of investments; 0 0 Y
A3.2.14 (e) discontinued operations; 0 0 A
A3.2.15 (f) litigation settlements; and 0 0 A
A3.2.16 (g) other reversals of provisions. 0 0 Y
A3.2.17


1p99, 1p100


Present an analysis of expenses recognised in profit or loss using a classification based on either the nature of expenses or their 
function within the entity, whichever provides information that is reliable and more relevant. Entities are encouraged to present 
this analysis in the statement of comprehensive income or in the separate income statement (if presented).


0 0 Y


A3.2.18
1p104


If expenses are classified by function, disclose additional information on the nature of expenses, including depreciation, 
amortisation expense and employee benefits expense.


0 0 Y


A3.2.19 1p103 If expenses are classified by function, as a minimum, disclose the cost of sales separately from other expenses. 0 0 A
A3.2.20 38p126 Disclose research and development expenditure recognised as an expense during the period. 0 0 Y
A3.2.21


21p52(a)
Disclose the amount of foreign exchange differences recognised in profit or loss except for those arising on financial 
instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with IAS 39.


0 0 A


A3.2.22
36p126(a),(b)


Disclose for each class of assets the following amounts recognised during the period, and the line item(s) of the income 
statement in which they are included:


0 0 A


A3.2.23 (a) impairment losses; and 0 0 Y
A3.2.24 (b) reversals of impairment losses. 0 0 Y
A3.2.25 38p118(d) Disclose the line item(s) of the statement of comprehensive income in which any amortisation of intangible assets are included. 0 0 Y


A3.2.26
IFRIC 19p11


Disclose a gain or loss recognised in accordance with IFRIC 19 as a separate line item in profit or loss or in the notes. 0 0 Y


A3.3. Income tax 0 Yes 0 Total: 5 | P - 0 | Y - 3 | N - 2 | A - 0 | F - 0
A3.3.1 12p79 Disclose the major components of tax expense (income). IAS 12 para 80, gives examples of the major components of tax expense 


(income).
0 1 N


A3.3.2
12p81(c)


Provide an explanation of the relationship between tax expense (income) and accounting profit in either of the following forms: 0 1 Y


A3.3.3 (a) numerical reconciliation between tax expense (income) and product of accounting profit, multiplied by the applicable tax 
rate(s), disclosing also the basis on which the applicable tax rate(s) is (are) computed (refer to IAS 12 para 85); or


0 1 Y


A3.3.4 (b) a numerical reconciliation between the average effective tax rate and the applicable tax rate, disclosing also the basis on 
which the applicable tax rate is computed (refer to IAS 12 para 85).


0 1 N


A3.3.5 12p81(d) Provide an explanation of changes in the applicable tax rate(s) compared to the previous period. 0 1 Y


A3.4. Extraordinary items 0 No 0
A3.4.1 1p87 No items of income and expense should be presented as extraordinary items, either on the face of the statement(s) presenting 


profit or loss and other comprehensive income or in the notes.
0 0 A


A4. Statement of changes in equity and related notes 0 Yes 0
A4.1. Statement of changes in equity 0 Yes 0 Total: 12 | P - 0 | Y - 9 | N - 0 | A - 3 | F - 0
A4.1.1 1p106(a), (b), (d) Present a statement of changes in equity showing in the statement: 0 1 Y
A4.1.2 (a)  total comprehensive income for the period, showing separately the total amounts attributable to owners of the parent and to 


non-controlling interests; 
0 1 A


A4.1.3 (b) for each component of equity, the effects of retrospective application or retrospective restatement recognised in accordance 
with IAS 8;


0 1 Y


A4.1.4 (c) for each component of equity, a reconciliation between the carrying amount at the beginning and the end of the period, 
separately disclosing changes resulting from:


0 1 Y


A4.1.5 (i) profit or loss; 0 1 Y
A4.1.6 (ii) other comprehensive income; and 0 1 Y
A4.1.7 (iii) transactions with owners in their capacity as owners, showing separately contributions by and distributions to owners and 


changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control.
0 1 A


A4.1.8
1p106A


Present for each component of equity, either in the statement of changes in  equity or in the notes, an analysis of other 
comprehensive income by item.


0 1 Y


A4.1.9
1p107


Disclose, either in the statement of changes in equity or in the notes, the amount of dividends recognised as distributions to 
owners during the period and the related amount per share.


0 1 A


A4.1.10
1p108


In IAS 1 para 106 the components of equity include, for example, each class of contributed equity, the accumulated balance of 
each class of other comprehensive income and retained earnings.


0 1 Y


A4.1.11
32p39


Disclose the amount of transaction costs accounted for as a deduction from equity in the period separately in the notes. 0 1 Y


A4.1.12
IFRIC 17p16(b)


Disclose the increase or decrease in the carrying amount of non-cash assets distributed to owners recognised in the period as a 
result of the change in the fair value of the assets to be distributed. 


0 1 Y


A4.2. General disclosures 0 No 0
A4.2.1 1p79(b) 


16p77(f) 
38p124(b)


Disclose a description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within shareholders’ equity, including restrictions on the 
distribution of the revaluation reserves (this usually includes details of any restrictions on distributions for each reserve in 
shareholders’ equity, although it is not specified in IAS 1) .


0 0 Y


A4.2.2
36p126(c), (d)


Disclose  the amount of impairment losses and the amount of reversals of impairment losses, recognised directly in equity 
during the period, for each class of assets.


0 0 Y


A4.2.3
1p79(a)(i)-(vii)


Disclose the following for each class of share capital either on the balance sheet or in the statement of changes in equity or in 
the notes (this information is usually disclosed in the notes) :


0 0 Y


A4.2.4 (i) the number of shares authorised; 0 0 Y
A4.2.5 (ii) the number of shares issued and fully paid, and issued but not fully paid; 0 0 Y
A4.2.6 (iii) par value per share, or that the shares have no par value; 0 0 Y
A4.2.7 (iv) a reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year; 0 0 A
A4.2.8 (v) the rights, preferences and restrictions attached to each class of share capital, including restrictions on the distribution of 


dividends and the repayment of capital;
0 0 Y


A4.2.9 (vi) shares in the entity held by the entity itself or by the entity’s subsidiaries or associates; and 0 0 A
A4.2.10 (vii) shares reserved for issue under options and contracts for the sale of shares, including terms and amounts. 0 0 A
A4.2.11 32p15,18,20 


AG25,AG26
Certain types of preference shares should be classified as liabilities (not in equity). Refer to IAS 32 para 18(a). 0 0 A


A4.2.12
1p80 


An entity without share capital, such as a partnership, should disclose information equivalent to that required in IAS 1 para 
79(a), showing movements during the period in each category of equity interest and the rights, preferences and restrictions 
attached to each category of equity interest.


0 0 A


A4.2.13 10p13
1p137(a)


Disclose the amount of dividends proposed or declared before the financial statements were authorised for issue but not 
recognised as a distribution to equity holders during the period, and the related amount per share.


0 0 Y


A4.2.14 1p137(b) Disclose the amount of any cumulative preference dividends not recognised. 0 0 A


A5. Balance sheet and related notes 0 Yes 0


A5.1. General disclosures 0 Yes 0 Total: 41 | P - 0 | Y - 34 | N - 0 | A - 7 | F - 0
A5.1.1 Refer to the Appendix to IAS 1 for an example balance sheet. 0 1 Y
A5.1.2 1p54 (a)-(r) Include in the statement of financial position the following line items: 0 1 Y
A5.1.3 (a) property, plant and equipment; 0 1 Y
A5.1.4 (b) investment property; 0 1 Y
A5.1.5 (c) intangible assets; 0 1 Y
A5.1.6 (d) financial assets (excluding amounts shown under (e), (h) and (i)); 0 1 Y
A5.1.7 (e) investments accounted for using the equity method; 0 1 Y
A5.1.8 (f) biological assets; 0 1 A
A5.1.9 (g) inventories; 0 1 Y
A5.1.10 (h) trade and other receivables; 0 1 Y
A5.1.11 (i) cash and cash equivalents; 0 1 Y
A5.1.12 (j) the total of assets classified as held for sale and assets included in disposal groups classified as held for sale in accordance 0 1 Y
A5.1.13 (k) trade and other payables; 0 1 Y
A5.1.14 (l) provisions; 0 1 Y
A5.1.15 (m) financial liabilities (excluding amounts shown under (k) and (l)); 0 1 Y
A5.1.16 (n) liabilities and assets for current tax, as defined in IAS 12; 0 1 Y
A5.1.17 (o) deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets, as defined in IAS 12; 0 1 Y
A5.1.18 (p) liabilities included in disposal groups classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5; 0 1 Y
A5.1.19 (q) non-controlling interests, presented within equity, but separately from shareholders' equity 0 1 A
A5.1.20 (r) issued capital and reserves attributable to owners of the parent. 0 1 Y
A5.1.21


1p55
Present additional line items (including by disaggregating the line items listed in paragraph 54 above), heading and subtotals on 
the face of the statement of financial position when such presentation is relevant to an understanding of the entity’s financial 


0 1 Y


A5.1.22 1p55A(a)-(d) When an entity presents subtotals in accordance with the above, has the entity ensured that the subtotals are: 0 1 A
A5.1.23 (a) comprised of line items made up of amounts recognised and measured in accordance with IFRS; 0 1 Y
A5.1.24 (b) presented and labelled in a manner that makes the line items that constitute the subtotal clear and understandable; 0 1 A


A5.1.25 (c) consistent from period to period; and 0 1 Y
A5.1.26 (d) not displayed with more prominence than the subtotals and totals required in IFRS for the statement of financial position? 0 1 Y


A5.1.27 1p56 Do not classify deferred tax assets or liabilities as current assets or liabilities. 0 1 Y
A5.1.28


1p77
Disclose further sub-classifications of the line items presented, classified in a manner appropriate to the entity’s operations. 
This disclosure is made either in the statement of financial position or in the notes.


0 1 Y







A5.1.29


1p60


If the current/non-current distinction of assets and liabilities is made on the face of the balance sheet, apply the classification 
rules in IAS 1 paras 66-76. If they are not made on the face of the balance sheet, ensure that a presentation based on liquidity 
provides information that is reliable and more relevant. Ensure also that assets and liabilities are presented in order of their 
liquidity.


0 1 Y


A5.1.30
1p64


An entity is permitted to use a mixed basis of presentation, including current/non-current classification and in order of 
liquidity, when this provides information that is reliable and more relevant − for example, when an entity has diverse 
operations.


0 1 Y


A5.1.31
1p61


Whichever method of presentation is applied, disclose the non-current portion (the amount expected to be recovered or settled 
after more than 12 months) for each asset and liability item that combines current and non-current amounts.


0 1 Y


A5.1.32 1p78(e), 1p79, (a)(ii)-
(vii) 


Equity capital and reserves are disaggregated into various classes, such as paid-in capital, share premium and reserves. 0 1 Y


A5.1.33
1p79(a)(i)-(vii)


Disclose the following for each class of share capital either on the balance sheet or in the statement of changes in equity or in 
the notes (this information is usually disclosed in the notes) :


0 1 Y


A5.1.34 (i) the number of shares authorised; 0 1 Y
A5.1.35 (ii) the number of shares issued and fully paid, and issued but not fully paid; 0 1 Y
A5.1.36 (iii) the par value per share, or that the shares have no par value; 0 1 Y
A5.1.37 (iv) a reconciliation between the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and the end of the reporting period; 0 1 Y


A5.1.38 (v) the rights, preferences and restrictions for each class of share, including restrictions on dividends and the repayment of 
capital;


0 1 Y


A5.1.39 (vi) shares in the entity held by the entity itself of by its subsidiaries or associates; and 0 1 A
A5.1.40 (vii) shares reserved for issue under options and contracts for the sale of shares, including the terms and amounts; and 0 1 A


A5.1.41 1p79(b) (b) a description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity. 0 1 A


A5.2. Measurement uncertainty 0 No 0
A5.2.1


34p26


If an estimate of an amount reported in an interim period – for example, a provision – is changed significantly during the final 
interim period of the financial year but a separate financial report is not published for that final interim period, disclose the 
nature and amount of that change in estimate in a note to the annual financial statements for that financial year. 


0 0 Y


A5.2.2 This item is applicable only when the reporting entity publishes an interim financial report prepared in accordance with IAS 
34.


0 0 Y


A5.2.3 Note that certain standards require further specific disclosures about sources of estimation uncertainty and judgements. The 
specific disclosure requirements in the other sections of this disclosure checklist include:


0 0 Y


A5.2.4 40p75(c)-(e) (a) methods and assumptions applied in determining fair values for: 0 0 Y
A5.2.5 (i) investment property (Section B9); 0 0 Y
A5.2.6 16p77 (ii)  property, plant and equipment (Section A5.3); 0 0 Y
A5.2.7 38p124 (iii) intangible assets (Section A5.5); 0 0 Y
A5.2.8 IFRS2p46 (iv) goods or services received, or the fair value of the equity instruments granted  in share based payment transactions (Section 0 0 Y
A5.2.9 (b) nature, timing and certainty of cash flows relating to the following: 0 0 Y
A5.2.10 37p86 (i) contingencies (Section A5.20); 0 0 Y
A5.2.11


   IFRS7p31
(ii)   financial instruments – terms and conditions that may affect the amount, timing and certainty of future cash flows; 0 0 Y


A5.2.12
      SIC 29p6-7


(iii)  public service concession arrangements – terms and conditions that may affect the amount, timing and certainty of future 
cash flows (Section C3); and


0 0 Y


A5.2.13
IFRS4p37


(iv)  insurance – information about nature, timing and uncertainty of future cash flows from insurance contracts (Section E, 
para 2); and


0 0 Y


A5.2.14 (c) Other relevant disclosures: 0 0 Y
A5.2.15


36p130,131,133,134 
(i)   impairment of assets – key assumptions for cash flow projections, periods covered by projections, growth rates for 
extrapolations and discount rates in determining value in use (Section A7.7, paras 1 and 4);


0 0 Y


A5.2.16 19p145 (ii) post-employment defined benefit plans – principal actuarial assumptions (Section A5.15). 0 0 Y
A5.2.17


IFRS4p37
(iii)  insurance – process used to determine     assumptions that have the greatest effect on the measurement of recognised 
assets, liabilities, income and exposes from insurance contracts. When practicable, an insurer shall also give quantified 
disclosure of those assumptions; and


0 0 Y


A5.2.18 26p35 (iv)  retirement benefit plan entities – actuarial assumptions (Section F5). 0 0 Y


A5.3. Property, plant and equipment 0 Yes 0 Total: 34 | P - 0 | Y - 27 | N - 0 | A - 6 | F - 0
A5.3.1 17p32,57 The disclosure requirements of IAS 16 apply to owned assets and to the amounts of leased assets held under finance leases in 


the lessee’s accounts.
0 1 Y


A5.3.2 16p73(d) Disclose, for each class of PPE the gross carrying amount and the accumulated depreciation (aggregated with accumulated 
impairment losses) at the beginning and end of the period.


0 1 Y


A5.3.3
16p73(e)


Provide a reconciliation of the carrying amount for each class of PPE at the beginning and end of each period presented showing: 0 1 Y


A5.3.4 (a) additions; 0 1 Y
A5.3.5 (b) assets classified as held for sale under IFRS 5 and other disposals; 0 1 Y
A5.3.6 (c) acquisitions through business combinations; 0 1 Y
A5.3.7 (d) increases or decreases during the period that result from revaluations and impairment losses recognised or reversed directly 


in equity under IAS 36;
0 1 Y


A5.3.8 (e) impairment losses recognised during the period; 0 1 Y
A5.3.9 (f) impairment losses reversed during the period; 0 1 Y
A5.3.10 (g) depreciation; 0 1 Y
A5.3.11 (h) net exchange differences on the translation of financial statements into a different presentation currency and on translation 


of a foreign operation into the presentation currency of the reporting entity; and
0 1 Y


A5.3.12 (i) other movements. 0 1 Y
A5.3.13


36p126(a), (b)
For each class of asset, disclose the line items of the statement of comprehensive income in which impairment losses and 
reversals of impairment losses are included.


0 1 Y


A5.3.14 16p77 For PPE stated at revalued amounts, disclose: 0 1 Y
A5.3.15 (a) the effective date of the revaluation; 0 1 Y
A5.3.16 (b) whether an independent valuer was involved; 0 1 Y
A5.3.17 (c) for each revalued class of PPE, the carrying amount that would have been recognised had the assets been carried under the 


cost model.
0 1 Y


A5.3.18 For PPE stated at revalued amounts further fair value disclosures are required under IFRS 13, refer to Section B9. Also refer to 
the disclosures on revaluation surplus in Section A4.


0 1 Y


A5.3.19 16p74(a) Disclose the existence and amounts of PPE whose title is restricted. 0 1 0
A5.3.20 16p74(a) Disclose the amounts of PPE pledged as security for liabilities. 0 1 Y
A5.3.21 16p74(b) Disclose the amount of expenditures on account of PPE in the course of construction. 0 1 Y
A5.3.22


16p74(d)
If it is not disclosed separately on the face of the income statement, disclose the amount of compensation from third parties for 
items of PPE that were impaired, lost or given up and that is included in profit or loss


0 1 Y


A5.3.23 Borrowing costs. Disclose: 0 1 Y
A5.3.24 23p26(a) (a) the amount of borrowing costs capitalised during the period; and 0 1 A
A5.3.25 23p26(b) (b) the capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. 0 1 A
A5.3.26 DV, 16p79    Voluntary disclosures: 0 1 Y
A5.3.27 (a) the carrying amount of temporarily idle PPE; 0 1 A
A5.3.28 (b) the gross carrying amount of any fully depreciated PPE that is still in use; 0 1 A
A5.3.29 (c) the carrying amount of PPE retired from active use and not classified as held for sale under IFRS 5; and 0 1 A
A5.3.30 (d) when PPE is carried at cost less depreciation, the fair value of PPE if this is materially different from the carrying amount. 0 1 Y


A5.3.31
IFRS6p25


Exploration and evaluation assets. Treat these assets as a separate class of assets and make the disclosure required by IAS 16 if 
they are classified as items of property, plant and equipment.


0 1 A


A5.3.32


IAS16p80A


 Paragraph 35 was amended by Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010–2012 Cycle . An entity shall apply that amendment to all 
revaluations recognised in annual periods beginning on or after the date of initial application of that amendment and in the 
immediately preceding annual period. An entity may also present adjusted comparative information for any earlier periods 
presented, but it is not required to do so. If an entity presents unadjusted comparative information for any earlier periods, it 
shall clearly identify the information that has not been adjusted, state that it has been presented on a different basis and explain 
that basis.  


0 1 Y


A5.3.33


IAS16p81K


IAS 16 paragraphs 3, 6 and 37 were amended and paragraphs 22A and 80B-80C were added.
These amendments change the financial reporting for bearer plants, such as grape vines, rubber trees and oil palms. The IASB 
decided that bearer plants should be accounted for in the same way as property, plant and equipment because their operation is 
similar to that of manufacturing. Consequently, the amendments include them within the scope of IAS 16, instead of IAS 41.


Apply those amendments for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier application is permitted.
An entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively, in accordance with IAS 8, except as specified in paragraph 81M.
If an entity applies those amendments for an earlier period it shall disclose that fact.


0 1 Y


A5.3.34


16p81I


Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation (Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38), issued in May 2014, 
amended IAS 16 para 56 and added para 62A.


In this amendment the IASB has clarified that the use of revenue-based methods to calculate the depreciation of an asset is not 
appropriate because revenue generated by an activity that includes the use of an asset generally reflects factors other than the 
consumption of the economic benefits embodied in the asset. The IASB has also clarified that revenue is generally presumed to 
be an inappropriate basis for measuring the consumption of the economic benefits embodied in a tangible asset.


Apply those amendments prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier application is permitted. 
If an entity applies those amendments for an earlier period it shall disclose that fact.


0 1 Y


A5.4. Investment property 0 Yes 0 Total: 42 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 42 | F - 0
A5.4.1 The disclosures below apply in addition to those in IAS 17. In accordance with IAS 17, the owner of an investment property 


provides lessors’ disclosures about leases into which it has entered. An entity that holds an investment property under finance 
or operating lease provides lessees’ disclosures for finance leases and lessors’ disclosures for any operating leases into which it 
has entered.


0 1 A


A5.4.2 40p75(a)-(c),(e)-(h) Disclose: 0 1 A
A5.4.3 (a) whether the entity applies the fair value model or the cost model; 0 1 A
A5.4.4 (b) if it applies the fair value model, whether, and in what circumstances, property interests held under operating leases are 


classified and accounted for as investment property;
0 1 A


A5.4.5 (c) when classification is difficult, the criteria the entity uses to distinguish investment property from owner-occupied property 
and from property held for sale in the ordinary course of business; and


0 1 A


A5.4.6 (e) the extent to which the fair value of investment property (as measured or disclosed in the financial statements) is based on a 
valuation by an independent valuer who holds a recognised and relevant professional qualification and has recent experience in 
the location and category of the investment property being valued.


0 1 A


A5.4.7 Where the entity applies the fair value model under IAS 40 further disclosures are required under IFRS 13. Refer to Section B9. 0 1 A


A5.4.8 (f) the amounts recognised in profit or loss for: 0 1 A
A5.4.9 (i) rental income from investment property 0 1 A
A5.4.10 (ii) direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) arising from investment property that generated rental 


income during the period;
0 1 A


A5.4.11 (iii) direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) arising from investment property that did not generate rental 
income during the period; and 


0 1 A


A5.4.12 (iv) the cumulative change in fair value recognised in profit or loss on a sale of investment property from a pool of assets in 
which the cost model is used (refer to 40p32C);


0 1 A


A5.4.13 (g) the existence and amounts of restrictions on the realisability of investment property or the remittance of income and 
proceeds of disposal; and


0 1 A


A5.4.14 (h) contractual obligations to purchase construct or develop investment property of for repairs, maintenance or enhancements. 0 1 A
A5.4.15


40p76, 79(d)
Provide a reconciliation of the carrying amount of investment property at the beginning and end of each period presented, 
showing separately those carried at fair value and those measured at cost because the fair value cannot be determined reliably:


0 1 A


A5.4.16 (a) additions; disclosing separately those additions resulting from acquisitions and those resulting from subsequent expenditure 
recognised in the carrying amount of the asset; 


0 1 A


A5.4.17 (b) additions resulting from acquisitions through business combinations; 0 1 A
A5.4.18 (c) assets classified as held for sale or included in a disposal group classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 and other 0 1 A
A5.4.19 (d) the net gains or losses from fair value adjustments (where the fair value model in IAS 40 is used); 0 1 A
A5.4.20 (e) net exchange differences arising on the translation of the financial statements into a different presentation currency and on 


translation of a foreign operation into the presentation currency of the reporting entity;
0 1 A


A5.4.21 (f) transfers to and from inventories; and owner-occupied property; and 0 1 A
A5.4.22 (g) other changes. 0 1 A
A5.4.23


40p78


When an entity that applies the fair value model to investment property measures a property using the cost model in IAS 16 (in 
accordance with IAS 40 para 53) because fair value cannot be measured reliably, disclose in the reconciliation required in IAS 40 
para 76 amounts relating to that investment property separately from amounts relating to other investment property.


0 1 A


A5.4.24
40p78


If the fair value model is used, but certain investment properties are carried under the IAS 16 cost model because of the lack of a 
reliable fair value, provide:


0 1 A


A5.4.25 40p78(a) (a) a description of the investment property; 0 1 A
A5.4.26 40p78(b) (b) an explanation of why fair value cannot be reliably measured; 0 1 A
A5.4.27 40p78(c) (c) the range of estimates within which fair value is highly likely to lie; and 0 1 A
A5.4.28 40p78(d)(i)-(iii) (d) if the entity disposes of investment property whose fair value previously could not be measured reliably, disclose: 0 1 A
A5.4.29 (i)  that the entity has disposed of investment property not carried at fair value; 0 1 A
A5.4.30 (ii)  the carrying amount of that investment property at the time of sale; and 0 1 A
A5.4.31 (iii) the gain or loss on disposal. 0 1 A


A5.4.32
40p75(g)


Disclose the existence and amounts of restrictions on the realisability of investment property or the remittance of income and 
proceeds of disposal.


0 1 A


A5.4.33 40p79(a),(b) If an entity uses the cost model disclose in addition to para 1 above: 0 1 A
A5.4.34 (a) depreciation methods used; 0 1 A
A5.4.35 (b) the useful lives or the depreciation rates used; and 0 1 A
A5.4.36


40p79(c)


(c) the gross carrying amount and the accumulated depreciation (aggregated with accumulated impairment losses):
(i) at the beginning of the period; and
(ii) at the end of the period;


0 1 A







A5.4.37


40p79(d)


(d) a reconciliation of the carrying amount at the beginning and end of the period of:
(i) additions, disclosing separately those additions resulting from acquisitions and those resulting from subsequent expenditure 
recognised as an asset;
(ii) additions resulting from acquisitions through business combinations;
(iii) assets classified as held for sale or included in a disposal group classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 and 
other disposals;
(iv) depreciation; 
(v) the amount of impairment losses recognised, and the amount of impairment losses reversed, during the period in accordance 
with IAS 36;
(vi) the net exchange differences arising on the translation of the financial statements into a different presentation currency, 
and on translation of a foreign operation into the presentation currency of the reporting entity; and


0 1 A


A5.4.38


40p79(e)


(e) the fair value of investment property. When an entity cannot reliably measure the fair value of the investment property, 
disclose:
(i) a description of the investment property;
(ii) an explanation of why fair value cannot be reliably measured; and
(iii) the range of estimates within which fair value is highly likely to lie.


0 1 A


A5.4.39
40p77


When a valuation obtained for investment property is adjusted significantly for the purpose of the financial statements (for 
example, to avoid double-counting of assets or liabilities that are recognised as separate assets and liabilities as described in IAS 
40 para 50), disclose:


0 1 A


A5.4.40 (a) a reconciliation between the valuation obtained and the adjusted valuation included in the financial statements; and 0 1 A


A5.4.41 (b) separately, in the reconciliation:
(i)  the aggregate amount of any recognised lease  obligations that have been added back; and
(ii) any other significant adjustments.


0 1 A


A5.4.42
40p83


IAS 8 applies to any change in accounting policies when the entity first applies IAS 40 and chooses to use the cost model. The 
effect of the change in accounting policies includes the reclassification of any amount held in revaluation surplus for 
investment property. 


0 1 A


A5.5. Intangible assets (excluding goodwill) 0 No 0
A5.5.1


17p32,57
The disclosure requirements of IAS 38 apply to owned intangible assets and to the amounts of leased intangible assets held 
under financial leases in the lessee’s accounts.


0 0 A


A5.5.2 38p118 A reconciliation of the carrying amount in respect of each class of intangible asset, distinguishing between: 0 0 A
A5.5.3 (a) internally generated intangible assets; and 0 0 A
A5.5.4 (b) other intangible assets. 0 0 A
A5.5.5 Show the following in the reconciliation: 0 0 A
A5.5.6 38p118 (c) (a) gross carrying amount and accumulated amortisation (including accumulated impairment losses) at the beginning of the 0 0 A
A5.5.7


38p118 (e)
(b) additions (indicating separately those from internal development, those acquired separately, and those acquired through 
business combinations);


0 0 A


A5.5.8 (c) assets classified as held for sale or included in a disposal group classified as held for sale (in accordance with IFRS 5) and 
other disposals;


0 0 A


A5.5.9 (d) increases or decreases resulting from revaluations; 0 0 A
A5.5.10 (e) impairment losses recognised during the period; 0 0 A
A5.5.11 (f) impairment losses reversed during the period; 0 0 A
A5.5.12 (g) amortisation recognised during the period; 0 0 A
A5.5.13 (h) exchange differences from the translation of the financial statements into a presentation currency that is different to the 


entity’s functional currency and from the translation of a foreign operation into the entity’s presentation currency;
0 0 A


A5.5.14 (i) other movements; and 0 0 A
A5.5.15


38p118(c) 
(j) the gross carrying amount and accumulated amortisation (including accumulated impairment losses) at the end of the 
period.


0 0 A


A5.5.16
1p38


IAS 38 para 119 gives examples of separate classes of intangible assets. Comparative information for these items is required. 0 0 A


A5.5.17 38p122(a) For intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, disclose: 0 0 A
A5.5.18 (a) the carrying amount; and 0 0 A
A5.5.19 (b) the reasons supporting the assessment of an indefinite useful life. 0 0 A
A5.5.20


38p122(b)
The entity is required to provide the following for any individual intangible asset that is material to the financial statements of 
the entity as a whole: 


0 0 A


A5.5.21 (a) a description of the asset, 0 0 A
A5.5.22 (b) its carrying amount; and 0 0 A
A5.5.23 (c) remaining amortisation period. 0 0 A
A5.5.24 38p124(a)(i)-(iii) For intangible assets carried at revalued amounts, disclose for each class of intangible assets: 0 0 A
A5.5.25 (i) the effective date of the revaluation; 0 0 A


A5.5.26 (ii) the carrying amount of revalued intangible assets; and 0 0 A
A5.5.27 (iii) the carrying amount that would have been included in the financial statements had the cost model been used (as if the 


assets had been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses).
0 0 A


A5.5.28 38p122(d) Disclose: 0 0 A
A5.5.29 (a) the existence and amounts of intangible assets whose title is restricted; and 0 0 A
A5.5.30 (b) the amounts of intangible assets pledged as security for liabilities. 0 0 A
A5.5.31 38p122(c)(i)-(iii) For intangible assets acquired through a government grant and initially recognised at fair value (refer to IAS 38 para 44), 0 0 A
A5.5.32 (i) the fair value initially recognised for these assets; 0 0 A
A5.5.33 (ii) their carrying amount; and 0 0 A
A5.5.34 (iii) whether they are carried at cost less depreciation or at revalued amounts. 0 0 A
A5.5.35


38p130J


Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation (Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38), issued in May 2014, 
amended paras 92 and 98 of IAS 38 and paras 98A–98C were added.


In this amendment the IASB has clarified that the use of revenue-based methods to calculate the depreciation of an asset is not 
appropriate because revenue generated by an activity that includes the use of an asset generally reflects factors other than the 
consumption of the economic benefits embodied in the asset. The IASB has also clarified that revenue is generally presumed to 
be an inappropriate basis for measuring the consumption of the economic benefits embodied in an intangible asset.


Apply those amendments prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier application is permitted. 
If an entity applies those amendments for an earlier period it shall disclose that fact.


0 0 A


A5.5.36
IFRS6p25


Exploration and evaluation assets. Treat these assets as a separate class of assets and make the disclosures required by IAS 38 if 
they are classified as intangible assets


0 0 A


A5.6. Impairment of assets 0 Yes 0 Total: 35 | P - 0 | Y - 17 | N - 0 | A - 18 | F - 0
A5.6.1 17p32, 57 The disclosure requirements of IAS 36 apply to owned assets and to the amounts of leased assets held under finance leases in 


the lessee’s accounts. 
0 1 Y


A5.6.2
36p130(a)-(g)


Where an impairment loss, has been recognised or reversed for an individual asset (including goodwill) or cash-generating unit 
(CGU) during the period, disclose:


0 1 A


A5.6.3 (a) the events and circumstances that led to the recognition or reversal of the impairment loss; 0 1 Y
A5.6.4 (b) the amount of the impairment loss recognised or reversed; 0 1 Y
A5.6.5 (c) for an individual asset:


(i) the nature of the asset; and
(ii) if the entity reports segment information in accordance with IFRS 8, the reportable segment to which the asset belongs;


0 1 Y


A5.6.6 (d) for a CGU:
(i) a description of the CGU (such as whether it is a product line, a plant, a business operation, a geographical area, or a 
reportable segment as defined in IFRS 8);
(ii) the amount of the impairment loss recognised or reversed:
– by class of assets; and
– if the entity reports segment information in accordance with IFRS 8, by reportable segment (refer to Section D1); and
(iii) if the aggregation of assets for identifying the CGU has changed since the previous estimate of the CGU’s recoverable 
amount (if any), a description of the current and former way of aggregating assets and the reasons for changing the way the CGU 
is identified;


0 1 A


A5.6.7 (e) the recoverable amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) and whether the recoverable amount of the asset or CGU is its 
fair value less costs to sell or its value in use;


0 1 A


A5.6.8 (f) if the recoverable amount is fair value less costs of disposal, the entity shall disclose the following information:
(i) the level of the fair value hierarchy (see IFRS 13) within which the fair value measurement of the asset (cash-generating 
unit) is categorised in its entirety (without taking into account whether the ‘costs of disposal’ are observable);
(ii) for fair value measurements categorised within Level 2 and Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, a description of the valuation 
technique(s) used to measure fair value less costs of disposal. If there has been a change in valuation technique, the entity shall 
disclose that change and the reason(s) for making it; and
(iii) for fair value measurements categorised within Level 2 and Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, each key assumption on 
which management has based its determination of fair value less costs of disposal. 
Key assumptions are those to which the asset’s (cash-generating unit’s) recoverable amount is most sensitive. 


The entity shall also disclose: 
- the discount rate(s) used in the current measurement; and 
- previous measurement if fair value less costs of disposal is measured using a present value technique. 


0 1 A


A5.6.9 (g) if the recoverable amount is value in use, the discount rates used in current estimate and previous estimate (if any) of value 
in use.


0 1 Y


A5.6.10 The disclosures in this section relating to segments are applicable to entities that apply IFRS 8 – refer to Section D1. 0 1 Y


A5.6.11
36p131(a),(b)


Disclose the following information for the aggregate impairment losses and the aggregate reversals of impairment losses 
recognised during the period for impairment losses or reversals that are not individually material:


0 1 Y


A5.6.12 (a) the main classes of assets affected by impairment losses (or reversals of impairment losses); and 0 1 A
A5.6.13 (b) the main events and circumstances that led to the recognition (reversal) of these impairment losses. 0 1 A
A5.6.14


36p132, DV


An entity is encouraged to disclose assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount of assets (cash-generating units) 
during the period. Note that IAS 36 para 134 requires an entity to disclose information about the estimates used to measure the 
recoverable amount of a  cash-generating unit when goodwill or an intangible asset with an indefinite life is included within the 
carrying amount of that unit.


0 1 A


A5.6.15
36p133


If any portion of the goodwill acquired in a business combination during the reporting period has not been allocated to a CGU at 
the reporting date:


0 1 Y


A5.6.16 (a) disclose the amount of the unallocated goodwill; and 0 1 Y
A5.6.17 (b) disclose the reasons why that amount remains unallocated. 0 1 Y
A5.6.18


36p134(a)-(f)
Where the carrying amount of goodwill or intangible assets with indefinite useful lives allocated to a CGU (or group of CGUs) is 
significant in comparison to the total carrying amount of goodwill or intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, disclose the 
following for each CGU (or group of CGUs):


0 1 Y


A5.6.19 (a) the carrying amount of allocated goodwill; 0 1 Y
A5.6.20 (b) the carrying amount of intangible assets with indefinite useful lives; 0 1 A
A5.6.21 (c) The basis on which the unit's (group of units) recoverable amount has been determined (that is, value in use or fair value 


less costs of disposal);
0 1 A


A5.6.22 (d) If the unit's (group of units) recoverable amount is based on value in use:
(i) each key assumption on which management has based its cash flow projections for the period covered by the most recent 
budgets/forecasts. Key assumptions are those to which the unit's (group of units') recoverable amount is most sensitive;
(ii) a description of management’s approach to determining the values assigned to each key assumption, whether those values 
reflect past experience and/or are consistent with external sources of information, if appropriate. If not, disclose how and why 
they differ from past experience and/or external sources of information;
(iii) the period over which management has projected cash flows based on financial budgets/forecasts approved by management 
and, when a period greater than five years is used for a CGU (or group of CGUs), an explanation of why that longer period is 
justified;
(iv) the growth rate used to extrapolate cash flow projections beyond the period covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, 
and the justification for using any growth rate that exceeds the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or 
country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market to which the CGU is dedicated; and
(v) the discount rate(s) applied to the cash flow projections;


0 1 A


A5.6.23 (e)  if the unit's (group of units') recoverable amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal, the valuation technique(s) 
used to measure fair value less costs of disposal.  
An entity is not required to provide the disclosures required by IFRS 13. If fair value less costs of disposal is not measured using 
a quoted price for an identical unit (group of units), disclose:
(i) each key assumption on which management has based its determination of fair value less costs of disposal. Key assumptions 
are those to which the unit's (group of units') recoverable amount is most sensitive; and
(ii) a description of management's approach to determining the values assigned to each key assumption, whether those values 
reflect past experience and/or, if appropriate, are consistent with external sources of information, and if not, how and why they 
differ from past experience and/or external sources of information; and
(iiA) the level of the fair value hierarchy (see IFRS 13) within which the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety 
(without giving regard to the observability of `costs of disposal'); and
(iiB) if there has been a change in valuation technique, the change and the reason(s) for making it.


0 1 A


A5.6.24 (f)  if a reasonably possible change in a key assumption on which management has based its determination of the CGU’s 
recoverable amount would cause the CGU’s carrying amount to exceed its recoverable amount:
(i) the amount by which the aggregate of the CGU’s recoverable amounts exceeds the aggregate of their carrying amounts;
(ii) the value assigned to the key assumptions; and
(iii) the amount by which the value assigned to the key assumption must change, after incorporating any consequential effects 
of that change on the other variables used to measure recoverable amount, in order for the CGU’s recoverable amount to be 
equal to its carrying amount.


0 1 A


A5.6.25


36p135


If some or all of the carrying amount of goodwill or intangible assets with indefinite lives is allocated across multiple CGUs (or 
groups of CGUs) and the amount allocated to each CGU (or group of CGUs) is not individually significant, disclose that fact, 
together with the aggregate carrying amount of goodwill or intangible assets with indefinite lives allocated to those CGUs (or 
group of CGUs).


0 1 A







A5.6.26
36p135(a)-(e)


If the recoverable amounts of any of those CGUs (or group of CGUs) are based on the same key assumptions, and the aggregate 
carrying amounts of goodwill or intangible assets with indefinite lives allocated to them is significant,  disclose that fact, 
together with:


0 1 Y


A5.6.27 (a) the aggregate carrying amount of goodwill allocated to those CGUs (or groups of CGUs); 0 1 A
A5.6.28 (b) the aggregate carrying amount of intangible assets with indefinite useful lives allocated to those CGUs (or group of CGUs); 0 1 A


A5.6.29 (c) a descriptions of the key assumption(s); 0 1 Y
A5.6.30 (d) a description of management’s approach to determining the values assigned to each key assumption, whether those values 


reflect past experience and/or, if appropriate, whether they are consistent with external sources of information. If not, disclose 
how and why they differ from past experience and/or external sources of information; and


0 1 Y


A5.6.31 (e) if a reasonably possible change in the key assumptions would cause the CGU’s (or group of CGUs’) carrying amount to 
exceed its recoverable amount:
(i) the amount by which the aggregate of the recoverable amounts of the CGUs exceeds the aggregate of their carrying amounts;
(ii) the value assigned to the key assumptions; and
(iii) the amount by which the value assigned to the key assumption must change, after incorporating any effects of that change 
in the other variables used to measure the recoverable amount, in order for the CGU’s (or group of CGUs’) recoverable amount 
to be equal to their carrying amount.


0 1 Y


A5.6.32
36p136


If the most recent detailed calculation of the recoverable amount of a CGU made in a preceding period is carried forward and 
used in the impairment test for that unit in the current period, the disclosures required in 5 and 6 above relate to the carried 
forward calculation of recoverable amount.


0 1 A


A5.6.33 38p128 An entity is encouraged, but not required, to disclose: 0 1 Y
A5.6.34 38p128(a) (a)  a description of any fully amortised intangible asset that is still in use; and 0 1 A
A5.6.35


38p128(b)


(b)  a brief description of significant intangible assets controlled by the entity but not recognised as assets because they did not 
meet the recognition criteria in IAS 38 or because they were acquired or generated before the version of IAS 38 issued in 1998 
was effective.


0 1 A


A5.7. Associates, joint arrangements, subsidiaries and interests in other entities 0 Yes 0 Total: 143 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 143 | F - 0


A5.7.1 Effective dates for IFRS 10, IFRS 11, IFRS 12 , IAS 27 (amended  2011) and IAS 28 (amended 2011) 0 1 A


A5.7.1


IFRS10pC1,C1A, C2B


Apply IFRS 10 for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and apply IFRS 11, IFRS12, IAS 27 (as amended in 2011), 
IAS 28 (as amended in 2011) and Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangements and Disclosure of Interests in Other 
Entities: Transition Guidance (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12) issued in June 2012, at the same time.


0 1 A


A5.7.1


IFRS11pC1,C1A


Apply IFRS 11 for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and apply IFRS 10, IFRS12, IAS 27 (as amended in 2011), 
IAS 28 (as amended in 2011) and Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangements and Disclosure of Interests in Other 
Entities: Transition Guidance (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12) issued in June 2012, at the same time.


0 1 A


A5.7.2 Transition disclosures 0 1


A5.7.2


IFRS10pC2A


When IFRS 10, and, if later, when the Investment Entities  and Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception 
amendments to this IFRS, are first applied, disclose the quantitative information required by paragraph 28(f) of IAS 8 (effect on 
each financial statement line item affected and on earnings per share if given) for the annual period immediately preceding the 
date of initial application of the IFRS (the ‘immediately preceding period’). (This information may also be presented for the 
current period or for earlier comparative periods, but this is not required.)


0 1 A


A5.7.2


IFRS10pC6A


When the requirements of paragraphs C4-C5A are met, an entity may also present adjusted comparative information for any 
earlier periods presented, but it is not required to do so. If an entity does present adjusted comparative information for any 
earlier periods, all references to the ‘immediately preceding period’ in paragraphs C4–C5A should be read as the ‘earliest 
adjusted comparative period presented’.


0 1 A


A5.7.2
IFRS10pC6B


If the entity presents unadjusted comparative information for any earlier periods, clearly identify the information that has not 
been adjusted, state that it has been prepared on a different basis, and explain that basis.


0 1 A


A5.7.2


IFRS11pC1B


Notwithstanding the requirements of paragraph 28 of IAS 8 ‘Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors’, 
when this IFRS is first applied, an entity need only present the quantitative information required by paragraph 28(f) of IAS 8 
for the annual period immediately preceding the first annual period for which IFRS 11 is applied (the ‘immediately preceding 
period’). An entity may also present this information for the current period or for earlier comparative periods, but is not 
required to do so.


0 1 A


A5.7.2


IFRS11pC4


If aggregating all previously proportionately consolidated assets and liabilities results in negative net assets, assess whether the 
entity has legal or constructive obligations in relation to the negative net assets and, if so, recognise the corresponding liability. 
If the entity concludes that it does not have legal or constructive obligations in relation to the negative net assets, do not 
recognise the corresponding liability but adjust retained earnings at the beginning of the immediately preceding period. Disclose 
this fact, along with its cumulative unrecognised share of losses of the entity's joint ventures at the beginning of the 
immediately preceding period and at the date at which this IFRS is first applied.


0 1 A


A5.7.2


IFRS11pC5


Disclose a breakdown of the assets and liabilities that have been aggregated into the single line investment balance as at the 
beginning of the immediately preceding period. Prepare that disclosure in an aggregated manner for all joint ventures for which 
an entity applies the transition requirements referred to on paragraphs C2-C6 of IFRS 11. 


0 1 A


A5.7.2


IFRS11pC10


If the entity is changing from the equity method to accounting for assets and liabilities, provide a reconciliation between the 
investment derecognised, and the assets and liabilities recognised, together with any remaining difference adjusted against 
retained earnings, at the beginning of the immediately preceding period. 


0 1 A


A5.7.2


IFRS11pC12A


Notwithstanding the references to the ‘immediately preceding period’ in paragraphs C2–C12, an entity may also present 
adjusted comparative information for any earlier periods presented, but is not required to do so. If an entity does present 
adjusted comparative information for any earlier periods, all references to the ‘immediately preceding period’ in paragraphs 
C2–C12 shall be read as the ‘earliest adjusted comparative period presented’


0 1 A


A5.7.2
IFRS11pC12B


If an entity presents unadjusted comparative information for any earlier periods, clearly identify the information that has not 
been adjusted, state that it has been prepared on a different basis, and explain that basis.


0 1 A


A5.7.3 References to IFRS 9 0 1


A5.7.3


IFRS11pC14
IFRS10pC7


28p46
27 p19


If an entity does not yet apply IFRS 9, read any reference to IFRS 9 as a reference to IAS 39, `Financial instruments: recognition 
and measurement'.


0 1 A


A5.7.4 General 0 1


A5.7.4
IFRS12p1


Disclose information that enables users of the financial statements to evaluate: 
(a) the nature of, and risks associated with, the interests in other entities; and
(b) the effects of those interests on the financial position, financial performance and cash flows.


0 1 A


A5.7.4


IFRS12p2


To meet the objective in IFRS 12 para 1, disclose: 
(a) the significant judgements and assumptions it has made in determining 
(i) the nature of its interest in another entity or arrangement, 
(ii) the type of joint arrangement in which it has an interest (see IFRS 12 paras 7-9); and
(iii) that it meets the definition of an investment entity, if applicable (see IFRS 12 para 9A);
(b) information about its interests in: 
(i) subsidiaries (see IFRS 12 paras 10-19);
(ii) joint arrangements and associates (see IFRS 12 paras 20-23); and
(iii) structured entities that are not controlled by the entity (unconsolidated structured entities) (see IFRS 12 paras 24-31).


0 1 A


A5.7.4
IFRS12p3 If the disclosures required by IFRS 12, together with disclosures required by other IFRSs, do not meet the objective in IFRS 12 


para 1, disclose whatever additional information is necessary to meet that objective.
0 1 A


A5.7.4
IFRS12p4


Aggregate or disaggregate disclosures so that useful information is not obscured by either the inclusion of a large amount of 
insignificant detail or the aggregation of items that have different characteristics (see IFRS 12 para B2-B6).


0 1 A


A5.7.4
28p18


An entity holding an investment in an associate that is measured at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with IAS 39 
discloses the information required by IFRS 12 para 21-24


0 1 A


A5.7.4


28p45B


Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements (Amendments to IAS 27), issued in August 2014, amended paragraph 25. An 
entity shall apply that amendment for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 retrospectively in accordance with 
IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. Earlier application is permitted. If an entity applies that 
amendment for an earlier period, it shall disclose that fact.


0 1 A


A5.7.5 Significant judgements and assumptions 0 1


A5.7.5


IFRS12p7
(a)-(c)


Disclose information about significant judgments and assumptions made (and changes to those judgments and assumptions) in 
determining: 
(a) that the entity has control of another entity;
(b) that the entity has joint control of an arrangement or significant influence over another entity; and
(c) the type of joint arrangement; that is, joint operation or joint venture, when the arrangement has been structured through a 
separate vehicle.


0 1 A


A5.7.5
IFRS12p8


If changes in facts and circumstances are such that the conclusion about whether an entity has control, joint control or 
significant influence changes during the reporting period, disclose information required by IFRS 12 para 7.


0 1 A


A5.7.5


IFRS12p9
(a)-(e)


Disclose, for example, significant judgements and assumptions made in determining that: 
(a) it does not control another entity even though it holds more than half of the voting rights of the other entity;
(b) it controls another entity even though it holds less than half of the voting rights of the other entity;
(c) it is an agent or a principal (see IFRS 10 paras 58-78);
(d) it does not have significant influence even though it holds 20 per cent or more of the voting rights of another entity; and
(e) it has significant influence even though it holds less than 20 per cent of the voting rights of another entity.


0 1 A


A5.7.5a Investment entity status 0 1


A5.7.5a


IFRS12p9A


(i) When a parent  determines it is an investment entity, disclose information about the significant judgements and estimates it 
has made in determining that it is an investment entity.
(ii) If the investment entity does not have one or more of the typical characteristics of an investment entity (see para 28 of IFRS 
10), disclose its reasons for concluding that it is nevertheless an investment entity.


0 1 A


A5.7.5a


IFRS12p9B


When the entity becomes, or ceases to be, an investment entity, disclose the change of investment entity status and the reasons 
for the change. 
 
In addition, an entity that becomes an investment entity should disclose the effect of the change of status on the financial 
statements for the period presented, including:


(a) the total fair value, as of the date of change of status, of the subsidiaries that cease to be consolidated;
(b) the total gain or loss, if any, calculated in accordance with para B101 of IFRS 10; and
(c) the line item(s) in profit or loss in which the gain or loss is recognised (if not presented separately). 


0 1 A


A5.7.5a


IFRS10pC1D, 
IFRS12pC1C,


28p45D


Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28), issued in December 
2014, amended paragraphs 4, 32, B85C, B85E and C2A and added paragraphs 4A–4B of IFRS 10, amended paragraph 6 of IFRS 
12 and amended paragraphs 17, 27 and 36 and added paragraph 36A of IAS 28. An entity shall apply those amendments for 
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier application is permitted. If an entity applies those amendments for 
an earlier period it shall disclose that fact.


0 1 A


A5.7.6 Interest in subsidiaries 0 1


A5.7.6


IFRS12p10
(a),(b)


Disclose information that enables users of its consolidated financial statements: 
(a) to understand:
(i) the composition of the group; and
(ii) the interest that non-controlling interests have in the group's activities and cash flows; and
(b) to evaluate:
(i) the nature and extent of significant restrictions on its ability to access or use assets, and settle liabilities, of the group;
(ii) the nature of, and changes in, the risks associated with its interests in consolidated structured entities;
(iii) the consequences of changes in its ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control; and
(iv) the consequences of losing control of a subsidiary during the reporting period.


0 1 A


A5.7.6


IFRS12
p11(a),(b)


When the financial statements of a subsidiary used in the preparation of consolidated financial statements are as of a date or for 
a period that is different from that of the consolidated financial statements (see IFRS 10 para B92-3), disclose: 
(a) the date of the end of the reporting period of the financial statements of that subsidiary; and 
(b) the reason for using a different date or period.


0 1 A


A5.7.7 The interest that non-controlling interests have in the group's activities and cash flows 0 1


A5.7.7


IFRS12p
12(a)-(g)


Disclose for each of the entity's subsidiaries that have non- controlling interests that are material to the reporting entity: 
(a) the name of the subsidiary;
(b) the principal place of business (and country of incorporation if different from the principal place of business) of the 
subsidiary;
(c) the proportion of ownership interests held by non- controlling interests;
(d) the proportion of voting rights held by non-controlling interests, if different from the proportion of ownership interests held;
(e) the profit or loss allocated to non-controlling interests of the subsidiary during the reporting period;
(f) accumulated non-controlling interests of the subsidiary at the end of the reporting period; and
(g) summarised financial information about the subsidiary.


0 1 A


A5.7.8 Nature and extent of significant restrictions 0 1


A5.7.8
IFRS12p13(a)-(c) Disclose: 0 1 A


A5.7.8


(a) significant restrictions (for example, statutory, contractual and regulatory restrictions) on the entity's ability to access or use 
the assets and settle the liabilities of the group, such as:
(i) those that restrict the ability of a parent or its subsidiaries to transfer cash or other assets to (or from) other entities within 
the group; and
(ii) guarantees or other requirements that may restrict dividends and other capital contributions being paid, or loans and 
advances being made or repaid, to (or from) other entities within the group;


0 1 A


A5.7.8


(b) the nature and extent to which protective rights of non- controlling interests can significantly restrict the entity's ability to 
access or use the assets and settle the liabilities of the group; and


0 1 A


A5.7.8
(c) the carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements of the assets and liabilities to which those restrictions apply. 0 1 A


A5.7.9 Nature of the risks associated with an entity's interests in consolidated structured entities 0 1







A5.7.9
IFRS12p14


Disclose the terms of any contractual arrangements that could require the parent or its subsidiaries to provide financial support 
to a consolidated structured entity, including events or circumstances that could expose the reporting entity to a loss.


0 1 A


A5.7.9


IFRS12p15(a),(b)
If during the reporting period a parent or any of its subsidiaries has, without having a contractual obligation to do so, provided 
financial or other support to a consolidated structured entity, disclose: 


0 1 A


A5.7.9


(a) the type and amount of support provided, including situations in which the parent or its subsidiaries assisted the structured 
entity in obtaining financial support; and 


0 1 A


A5.7.9 (b) the reason for providing the support. 0 1 A


A5.7.9


IFRS12p16


If during the reporting period a parent or any of its subsidiaries has, without having a contractual obligation to do so, provided 
financial or other support to a previously unconsolidated structured entity and that provision of support resulted in the entity 
controlling the structured entity, disclose an explanation of the relevant factors in reaching that decision.


0 1 A


A5.7.9
IFRS12p17 Disclose any current intentions to provide financial or other support to a consolidated structured entity, including intentions to 


assist the structured entity in obtaining financial support. 
0 1 A


A5.7.10 Consequences of changes in a parent's ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control 0 1


A5.7.10
IFRS12p18 Present a schedule that shows the effects on the equity attributable to owners of the parent of any changes in its ownership 


interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control.
0 1 A


A5.7.11 Consequences of losing control of a subsidiary during the reporting period 0 1


A5.7.11
IFRS12p19(a),(b) Disclose the gain or loss, if any, calculated in accordance with IFRS 10 para 25, and: 0 1 A


A5.7.11
(a) the portion of that gain or loss attributable to measuring any investment retained in the former subsidiary at its fair value at 
the date when control is lost; and


0 1 A


A5.7.11 (b) the line item(s) in profit or loss in which the gain or loss is recognised (if not presented separately). 0 1 A
A5.7.11a Interests in unconsolidated subsidiaries (investment entities) 0 1


A5.7.11a
IFRS12p19A


If the entity is an investment entity that, in accordance with IFRS 10, is required to apply the exception to consolidation and 
instead account for its investment in a subsidiary at fair value through profit or loss disclose that fact.


0 1 A


A5.7.11a IFRS12p19B(a)-(c) For each unconsolidated subsidiary, disclose: 0 1 A


A5.7.11a (a) the subsidiary’s name; 0 1 A


A5.7.11a


(b) the principal place of business (and country of incorporation if different from the principal place of business) of the 
subsidiary; and


0 1 A


A5.7.11a
(c) the proportion of ownership interest held by the investment entity and, if different, the proportion of voting rights held. 0 1 A


A5.7.11a


IFRS12p19C


If the investment entity is the parent of another investment entity, provide the disclosures in 19B(a)–(c) for investments that 
are controlled by its investment entity subsidiary. 


The disclosure may be provided by including, in the financial statements of the parent, the financial statements of the 
subsidiary (or subsidiaries) that contain the above information.


0 1 A


A5.7.11a IFRS12p19D(a),(b) If the entity is an investment entity disclose: 0 1 A


A5.7.11a


(a) the nature and extent of any significant restrictions (for example, resulting from borrowing arrangements, regulatory 
requirements or contractual arrangements) on the ability of an unconsolidated subsidiary to transfer funds to the investment 
entity in the form of cash dividends or to repay loans or advances made to the unconsolidated subsidiary by the investment 
entity; and


0 1 A


A5.7.11a


(b) any current commitments or intentions to provide financial or other support to an unconsolidated subsidiary, including 
commitments or intentions to assist the subsidiary in obtaining financial support.


0 1 A


A5.7.11a


IFRS12p19E(a),(b)


If, during the reporting period, an investment entity or any of its subsidiaries has, without having a contractual obligation to do 
so, provided financial or other support to an unconsolidated subsidiary (for example, purchasing assets of, or instruments issued 
by, the subsidiary or assisting the subsidiary in obtaining financial support), disclose:


0 1 A


A5.7.11a I(a) the type and amount of support provided to each unconsolidated subsidiary; and 0 1 A
A5.7.11a (b) the reasons for providing the support. 0 1 A


A5.7.11a


IFRS12p19F


If the entity is an investment entity, disclose the terms of any contractual arrangements that could require the entity or its 
unconsolidated subsidiaries to provide financial support to an unconsolidated, controlled, structured entity, including events or 
circumstances that could expose the reporting entity to a loss (such as liquidity arrangements or credit rating triggers associated 
with obligations to purchase assets of the structured entity or to provide financial support).


0 1 A


A5.7.11a


IFRS12p19G


If, during the reporting period, an investment entity or any of its unconsolidated subsidiaries has, without having a contractual 
obligation to do so, provided financial or other support to an unconsolidated, structured entity that the investment entity did not 
control, and if that provision of support resulted in the investment entity controlling the structured entity, disclose an 
explanation of the relevant factors in reaching the decision to provide that support. 


0 1 A


A5.7.12 Interests in joint arrangements and associates 0 1


A5.7.12
IFRS12p20(a),(b) Disclose information that enables users of its financial statements to evaluate: 0 1 A


A5.7.12


(a) the nature, extent and financial effects of its interests in joint arrangements and associates, including the nature and effects 
of its contractual relationship with the other investors with joint control of, or significant influence over, joint arrangements and 
associates; and


0 1 A


A5.7.12 (b) the nature of, and changes in, the risks associated with its interests in joint ventures and associates. 0 1 A
A5.7.13 Nature, extent and financial effects of an entity's interests in joint arrangements and associates 0 1


A5.7.13


IFRS12p21(a)-(c)


Disclose: 
(a) for each joint arrangement and associate that is material to the reporting entity:
(i) the name of the joint arrangement or associate;
(ii) the nature of the entity's relationship with the joint arrangement or associate (by, for example, describing the nature of the 
activities of the joint arrangement or associate and whether they are strategic to the entity's activities);
(iii) the principal place of business (and country of incorporation, if applicable and different from the principal place of 
business) of the joint arrangement or associate; and
(iv) the proportion of ownership interest or participation share held by the entity and, if different, the proportion of voting rights 
held (if applicable);
(b) for each joint venture and associate that is material to the reporting entity:
(i) whether the investment in the joint venture or associate is measured using the equity method or at fair value;
(ii) summarised financial information about the joint venture or associate as specified in IFRS 12 paragraphs B12 and B13; and
(iii) if the joint venture or associate is accounted for using the equity method, the fair value of its investment in the joint 
venture or associate, if there is a quoted market price for the investment; and
(c) financial information as specified in IFRS 12 paragraph B16 about the equity's investments in joint ventures and associates 
that are not individually material:
(i) in aggregate for all individually immaterial joint ventures and, separately,
(ii) in aggregate for all individually immaterial associates.


0 1 A


A5.7.13 IFRS12P21A An investment entity need not provide the disclosures required by para 21(b)–(c) of IFRS 12. 0 1 A


A5.7.13


IFRS12p22(a)-(c)


Disclose: 
(a) the nature and extent of any significant restrictions (for example, resulting from borrowing arrangements, regulatory 
requirements or contractual arrangements between investors with joint control of or significant influence over a joint venture or 
an associate) on the ability of joint ventures or associates to transfer funds to the entity in the form of cash dividends, or to 
repay loans or advances made by the entity;
(b) when the financial statements of a joint venture or associate used in applying the equity method are as of a date or for a 
period that is different from that of the entity:
(i) the date of the end of the reporting period of the financial statements of that joint venture or associate; and
(ii) the reason for using a different date or period; and
(c) the unrecognised share of losses of a joint venture or associate, both for the reporting period and cumulatively, if the entity 


0 1 A


A5.7.14 Risks associated with an entity's interests in joint ventures and associates 0 1


A5.7.14
IFRS12p23(a),(b)


Disclose: 0 1 A


A5.7.14


(a) commitments that the entity has relating to its joint ventures separately from the amount of other commitments as specified 
in IFRS 12 para B18-B20; and


0 1 A


A5.7.14


(b) in accordance with IAS 37, `Provisions, contingent liabilities and continent assets', unless the probability of loss is remote, 
contingent liabilities incurred relating to its interests in joint ventures or associates (including its share of contingent liabilities 
incurred jointly with other investors with joint control of, or significant influence over, the joint venture or associates), 
separately from the amount of other contingent liabilities.


0 1 A


A5.7.15 Interests in unconsolidated structured entities 0


A5.7.15


IFRS12p
24(a),(b) 


IFRS12p25


Disclose information that enables users of its financial statements: 
(a) to understand the nature and extent of its interests in unconsolidated structured entities; and
(b) to evaluate the nature of, and changes in, the risks associated with its interests in unconsolidated structured entities. This 
includes information about an entity’s exposure to risk from involvement that it had with unconsolidated structured entities in 
previous periods (eg sponsoring the structured entity), even if the entity no longer has any contractual involvement with the 
structured entity at the reporting date.


0 1 A


A5.7.15
IFRS12p25A An investment entity need not provide the disclosures required by IFRS 12 para 24 for an unconsolidated structured entity that 


it controls and for which it presents the disclosures required by IFRS 12 paras 19A–19G. 
0 1 A


A5.7.16 Nature of, and changes in, the risks associated with the interests in unconsolidated structured entities 0 1


A5.7.16
IFRS12p26


Disclose qualitative and quantitative information about the entity's interests in unconsolidated structured entities, including, 
but not limited to, the nature, purpose, size and activities of the structured entity and how the structured entity is financed. 


0 1 A


A5.7.16
IFRS12p27(a)-(c) If an entity has sponsored an unconsolidated structured entity for which it does not provide information required by IFRS12p29, 


disclose:
0 1 A


A5.7.16 (a) how it has determined which structured entities it has sponsored; 0 1 A


A5.7.16


(b) income from those structured entities during the reporting period, including a description of the types of income presented; 
and


0 1 A


A5.7.16 (c) the carrying amount (at the time of transfer) of all assets transferred to those structured entities during the reporting period. 0 1 A


A5.7.16
IFRS12p28 


Present the information in IFRS 12 para 27(b) and (c) in tabular format, unless another format is more appropriate and 
classify its sponsoring activities into relevant categories.


0 1 A


A5.7.16
IFRS12p29(a)-(d) Disclose in tabular format, unless another format is more appropriate, a summary of: 0 1 A


A5.7.16
(a) the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the entity's financial statements relating to its interests in 
unconsolidated structured entities;


0 1 A


A5.7.16
(b) the line items in the statement of financial position in which those assets and liabilities are recognised; 0 1 A


A5.7.16


(c) the amount that best represents the entity's maximum exposure to loss from its interests in unconsolidated structured 
entities, including how the maximum exposure to loss is determined. If an entity cannot quantify its maximum exposure to loss 
from its interests in unconsolidated structured entities, disclose that fact and the reasons; and


0 1 A


A5.7.16
(d) a comparison of the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the entity that relate to its interests in unconsolidated 
structured entities and the entity's maximum exposure to loss from those entities.


0 1 A


A5.7.16
IFRS12p30 (a),(b) 


If during the reporting period an entity has, without having a contractual obligation to do so, provided financial or other support 
to an unconsolidated structured entity in which it previously had or currently has an interest, disclose: 


0 1 A


A5.7.16
(a) the type and amount of support provided, including situations in which the entity assisted the structured entity in obtaining 
financial support; and


0 1 A


A5.7.16 (b) the reasons for providing the support. 0 1 A


A5.7.16
IFRS12p31


Disclose any current intentions to provide financial or other support to an unconsolidated structured entity, including intentions 
to assist the structured entity in obtaining financial support. 


0 1 A


A5.7.17 Acquisitions of interests in joint operations 0 1


A5.7.17


IFRS11p21A


When an entity acquires an interest in a joint operation in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a business, as 
defined in IFRS 3, it shall apply, to the extent of its share in accordance with paragraph 20, all of the principles on business 
combinations accounting in IFRS 3, and other IFRSs, that do not conflict with the guidance in this IFRS and disclose the 
information that is required in those IFRSs in relation to business combinations.


This applies to the acquisition of both the initial interest and additional interests in a joint operation in which the activity of the 
joint operation constitutes a business. The accounting for the acquisition of an interest in such a joint operation is specified in 
paragraphs B33A–B33D. 


0 1 A


A5.7.17
IFRS11pB33A


Therefore, please complete section A7 (business combination) of this e-check for the acquired interest in the joint operation in 
the above mentioned instances.


0 1 A


A5.7.18 Separate financial statements 0 1


A5.7.18


IFRS11pC12 (b)


If the entity, in accordance with paragraph 10 of IAS 27, was previously accounting in its separate financial statements for its 
interest in a joint operation as an investment at cost or in accordance with IFRS 9, provide a reconciliation between the 
investment derecognised and the assets and liabilities recognised, together with any remaining difference adjusted in retained 
earnings, at the beginning of the immediately preceding period.


0 1 A


A5.7.18
27p8A


If the entity is an investment entity that is required, throughout the current period and all comparative periods presented, to 
apply the exception to consolidation for all of its subsidiaries in accordance with paragraph 31 of IFRS 10, does it presents 
separate financial statements as its only financial statements?


0 1 A


A5.7.18


27p16(a)-(c)


When a parent, in accordance with paragraph 4(a) of IFRS 10, elects not to prepare consolidated financial statements and 
instead prepares separate financial statements, it shall disclose in those separate financial statements:


0 1 A


A5.7.18


a) the fact that the financial statements are separate financial statements; that the exemption from consolidation has been used; 
the name and principal place of business (and country of incorporation, if different) of the entity whose consolidated financial 
statements that comply with International Financial Reporting Standards have been produced for public use; and the address 
where those consolidated financial statements are obtainable.


0 1 A


A5.7.18 b) a list of significant investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, including: 0 1 A
A5.7.18 (i). the name of those investees. 0 1 A
A5.7.18 (ii).the principal place of business (and country of incorporation, if different) of those investees. 0 1 A


A5.7.18
(iii).its proportion of the ownership interest (and its proportion of the voting rights, if different) held in those investees. 0 1 A


A5.7.18 c) a description of the method used to account for the investments listed under b). 0 1 A


A5.7.18
27p16A


If the entity is an investment entity that prepares separate financial statements as its only financial statements, disclose that 
fact. The investment entity shall also present the disclosures relating to investment entities required by IFRS 12 


0 1 A







A5.7.18
27p17(a)-(c)


When a parent (other than a parent covered by paragraph 16 of IAS 27) or an investor with joint control of, or significant 
influence over, an investee prepares separate financial statements, the parent or investor shall identify the financial statements 
prepared in accordance with IFRS 10, IFRS 11 or IAS 28 (as amended in 2011) to which they relate. The parent or investor shall 
also disclose in its separate financial statements: 


0 1 A


A5.7.18
a) the fact that the statements are separate financial statements and the reasons why those statements are prepared if not 
required by law.


0 1 A


A5.7.18
b) a list of significant investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, including: 0 1 A


A5.7.18 (i).the name of those investees. 0 1 A
A5.7.18 (ii).the principal place of business (and country of incorporation, if different) of those investees. 0 1 A


A5.7.18
(iii).its proportion of the ownership interest (and its proportion of the voting rights, if different) held in those investees. 0 1 A


A5.7.18 c) a description of the method used to account for the investments listed under b). 0 1 A


A5.7.18


27p18J Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements (Amendments to IAS 27), issued in August 2014, amended paras 4–7, 10, 11B 
and 12.
These amendments to IAS 27, 'Separate financial statements' on the equity method in separate financial statements, allow 
entities to use the equity method to account for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate 
financial statements.
An entity shall apply those amendments for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 retrospectively in accordance 
with IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. Earlier application is permitted.


0 1 A


A5.7.19 Non-current assets held for sale − presenting income from continuing and discontinued operations 0 1
A5.7.19


IFRS5p33(d)
Disclose the amount of income from continuing operations and from discontinued operations attributable to owners of the 
parent. These disclosures may be presented either in the notes or in the statement of comprehensive income.


0 1 A


A5.7.20 Appendix B to IFRS 12 0 1
A5.7.20 The examples in appendix B portray hypothetical situations. Although some aspects of the examples may be presented in actual 


fact patterns, all relevant facts and circumstances of a particular fact pattern would need to be evaluated when applying IFRS 
12


0 1 A


A5.7.21 (a) Aggregation 0 1
A5.7.21


IFRS 12B3
An entity may aggregate the disclosures required by this IFRS for interests in similar entities if aggregation is consistent with 
the disclosure objective and the requirement in IFRS 12 para B4, and does not obscure the information provided. Disclose how it 
has aggregated its interests in similar entities.


0 1 A


A5.7.21


IFRS12B4


Present information separately for interests in: 
(a) subsidiaries;
(b) joint ventures;
(c) joint operations;
(d) associates; and
(e) unconsolidated structured entities.


0 1 A


A5.7.21


IFRS12B5


In determining whether to aggregate information, an entity shall consider quantitative and qualitative information about the 
different risk and return characteristics of each entity it is considering for aggregation and the significance of each such entity to 
the reporting entity. The entity shall present the disclosures in a manner that clearly explains to users of financial statements 
the nature and extent of its interests in those other entities.


0 1 A


A5.7.21


IFRS12B6


Examples of aggregation levels within the classes of entities set out in IFRS 12 para B4 that might be appropriate are: 
(a) nature of activities (eg a research and development entity, a revolving credit card securitisation entity).
(b) industry classification.
(c) geography (eg country or region).


0 1 A


A5.7.22 (b) Interests in other entities 0 1
A5.7.22


IFRS12B7


An interest in another entity refers to contractual and non- contractual involvement that exposes the reporting entity to 
variability of returns from the performance of the other entity. Consideration of the purpose and design of the other entity may 
help the reporting entity when assessing whether it has an interest in that entity and, therefore, whether it is required to 
provide the disclosures in this IFRS. In that assessment include consideration of the risks that the other entity was designed to 
create and the risks the other entity was designed to pass on to the reporting entity and other parties.


0 1 A


A5.7.23 c) Summarised financial information for subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates 0 1
A5.7.23 IFRS12B10(a),(b) For each subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are material to the reporting entity, disclose: 0 1 A


A5.7.23 (a) dividends paid to non-controlling interests; and 0 1 A
A5.7.23 (b) summarised financial information about the assets, liabilities, profit or loss and cash flows of the subsidiary that enables 


users to understand the interest that non- controlling interests have in the group's activities and cash flows. That information 
might include but is not limited to, for example, current assets, non-current assets, current liabilities, non-current liabilities, 
revenue, profit or loss and total comprehensive income.


0 1 A


A5.7.23 IFRS12B11 The summarised financial information required by IFRS 12 para B10(b) should be the amounts before inter-company 
eliminations.


0 1 A


A5.7.23 IFRS12B12(a),(b) For each joint venture and associate that is material to the reporting entity, disclose: 0 1 A
A5.7.23 (a) dividends received from the joint venture or associate. 0 1 A
A5.7.23 (b) summarised financial information for the joint venture or associate (see paragraphs B14 and B15) including, but not 


necessarily limited to:
– current assets;


0 1 A


A5.7.23
IFRS12B13(a)-(g)


In addition to the summarised financial information required by IFRS 12 para B12, disclose for each joint venture that is 
material to the reporting entity the amount of:


0 1 A


A5.7.23 (a) cash and cash equivalents included in IFRS 12 para B12(b)(i); 0 1 A
A5.7.23 (b) current financial liabilities (excluding trade and other payables and provisions) included in IFRS 12 para B12(b)(iii); 0 1 A


A5.7.23 (c) non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade and other payables and provisions) included in IFRS 12 para 12(b)(iv); 0 1 A


A5.7.23 (d) depreciation and amortisation; 0 1 A
A5.7.23 (e) interest income; 0 1 A
A5.7.23 (f) interest expense; and 0 1 A
A5.7.23 (g) income tax expense or income. 0 1 A
A5.7.23


IFRS12B14(a),(b)


The summarised financial information presented in accordance with IFRS 12 paras B12 and B13 should be the amounts included 
in the IFRS financial statements of the joint venture or associate (and not the entity's share of those amounts). If the entity 
accounts for its interest in the joint venture or associate using the equity method: 


0 1 A


A5.7.23 (a) the amounts included in the IFRS financial statements of the joint venture or associate should be adjusted to reflect 
adjustments made by the entity when using the equity method, such as fair value adjustments made at the time of acquisition 
and adjustments for differences in accounting policies; and


0 1 A


A5.7.23 (b) provide a reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented to the carrying amount of its interest in the joint 
venture or associate.


0 1 A


A5.7.23
IFRS12B15(a),(b)


An entity may present the summarised financial information required by paras B12 and B13 on the basis of the joint venture's or 
associate's financial statements if: 


0 1 A


A5.7.23 (a) the entity measures its interest in the joint venture or associate at fair value in accordance with IAS 28 (as amended in 2011); 
and


0 1 A


A5.7.23 (b) the joint venture or associate does not prepare IFRS financial statements and preparation on that basis would be 
impracticable or cause undue cost. In that case, disclose the basis on which the summarised financial information has been 


0 1 A


A5.7.23
IFRS12B16(a)-(d)


Disclose, in aggregate, the carrying amount of its interests in all individually immaterial joint ventures or associates that are 
accounted for using the equity method. Also disclose separately the aggregate amount of its share of those joint ventures' or 


0 1 A


A5.7.23 (a) profit or loss from continuing operations. 0 1 A
A5.7.23 (b) post-tax profit or loss from discontinued operations. 0 1 A
A5.7.23 (c) other comprehensive income. 0 1 A
A5.7.23 (d) total comprehensive income. 0 1 A


A5.7.23 An entity provides the disclosures separately for joint ventures and associates. 0 1 A
A5.7.23


IFRS12B17


When an entity's interest in a subsidiary, a joint venture or an associate (or a portion of its interest in a joint venture or an 
associate) is classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5, `Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued 
operations', the entity is not required to disclose summarised financial information for that subsidiary, joint venture or 
associate in accordance with IFRS 12 paras B10–B16.


0 1 A


A5.7.24 (d) Commitments for joint ventures 0 1
A5.7.24


IFRS12B18
Disclose total commitments the entity has made but not recognised at the reporting date (including its share of commitments 
made jointly with other investors with joint control of a joint venture) relating to its interests in joint ventures. Commitments 
are those that may give rise to a future outflow of cash or other resources.


0 1 A


A5.7.24


IFRS12B19


Unrecognised commitments that may give rise to a future outflow of cash or other resources include: 
(a) unrecognised commitments to contribute funding or resources as a result of, for example:
(i) the constitution or acquisition agreements of a joint venture (that, for example, require an entity to contribute funds over a 
specific period);
(ii) capital-intensive projects undertaken by a joint venture;
(iii) unconditional purchase obligations, comprising procurement of equipment, inventory or services that an entity is 
committed to purchasing from, or on behalf of, a joint venture; 
(iv) unrecognised commitments to provide loans or other financial support to a joint venture;
(v) unrecognised commitments to contribute resources to a joint venture, such as assets or services; and
(vi) other non-cancellable unrecognised commitments relating to a joint venture; and
(b) unrecognised commitments to acquire another party's ownership interest (or a portion of that ownership interest) in a 
joint venture if a particular event occurs or does not occur in the future.


0 1 A


A5.7.24
IFRS12B20


The requirements and examples in paras B18 and B19 illustrate some of the types of disclosure required by IAS 24, `Related 
party disclosures' para 18.


0 1 A


A5.7.25 (e) Nature of risks from interests in unconsolidated structured entities 0 1
A5.7.25


IFRS12B25
In addition to the information required by paras 29-31, disclose additional information that is necessary to meet the disclosure 
objective in IFRS 12 para 24(b).


0 1 A


A5.7.25
IFRS12B26


Examples of additional information that, depending on the circumstances, might be relevant to an assessment of the risks to 
which an entity is exposed when it has an interest in an unconsolidated structured entity are:


0 1 A


A5.7.25 (a) the terms of an arrangement that could require the entity to provide financial support to an unconsolidated structured 
entity (for example, liquidity arrangements or credit rating triggers associated with obligations to purchase assets of the 
structured entity or provide financial support), including:
(i) a description of events or circumstances that could expose the reporting entity to a loss.
(ii) whether there are any terms that would limit the obligation; and
(iii) whether there are any other parties that provide financial support and, if so, how the reporting entity's obligation ranks 
with those of other parties;
(b) losses incurred by the entity during the reporting period relating to its interests in unconsolidated structured entities;
(c) the types of income the entity received during the reporting period from its interests in unconsolidated structured entities;
(d) whether the entity is required to absorb losses of an unconsolidated structured entity before other parties, the maximum 
limit of such losses for the entity, and (if relevant) the ranking and amounts of potential losses borne by parties whose 
interests rank lower than the entity's interest in the unconsolidated structured entity;
(e) information about any liquidity arrangements, guarantees or other commitments with third parties that may affect the fair 
value or risk of the entity's interests in unconsolidated structured entities;
(f) any difficulties an unconsolidated structured entity has experienced in financing its activities during the reporting period; 
and
(g) in relation to the funding of an unconsolidated structured entity, the forms of funding (eg commercial paper or medium-
term notes) and their weighted-average life. That information might include maturity analyses of the assets and funding of an 
unconsolidated structured entity if the structured entity has longer-term assets funded by shorter-term funding.


0 1 A


A5.8. Investments – financial assets 0 No 0
A5.8.1 39p9 Under IAS 39 financial assets are classified into: 0 0 Y
A5.8.2 (a) held at fair value through profit or loss (including trading); 0 0 Y
A5.8.3 (b) held to maturity; 0 0 A
A5.8.4 (c) loans and receivables; and 0 0 Y
A5.8.5 (d) available for sale. 0 0 Y
A5.8.6 Although not required by IAS 39, it is useful to disclose a reconciliation of the carrying amount of financial assets at the 


beginning and end of the period showing movements, impairment losses and exchange differences arising on translation of the 
financial statements of a foreign entity when investments are significant.


0 0 Y


A5.8.7 IFRS7p20(a)(ii) For available-for-sale financial assets, disclose: 0 0 Y


A5.8.8 (a) the amount of any gain or loss that was recognised in equity during the current period; and 0 0 Y
A5.8.9 (b) the amount that was removed from equity and reported in net profit or loss for the period. 0 0 Y
A5.8.10


39p37(a)
For all transfers that involve collateral, if the transferee has the right by contract or custom to sell or repledge the collateral, the 
transferor reclassifies that asset in its balance sheet separately from other assets. 


0 0 Y


A5.9. Inventory 0 Yes 0 Total: 7 | P - 0 | Y - 7 | N - 0 | A - 0 | F - 0
A5.9.1 2p36(b) Disclose the carrying amount of inventories in total, sub-classified by main categories appropriate to the entity. 0 1 Y
A5.9.2 2p37,1p78(c) For example: merchandise, production supplies, materials, work in progress and finished goods. 0 1 Y
A5.9.3 2p36(c) Disclose the carrying amount of inventories carried at fair value less costs to sell. 0 1 Y
A5.9.4 2p36(d)(e)    Disclose the amount of inventories and the amount of write-down recognised as expenses during the period. 0 1 Y
A5.9.5


2p36(f)(g) 
Disclose the amount of, and circumstances or events leading to, the reversal of any write-down that is recognised as a reduction 
in the amount of inventories recognised as expense in the period.


0 1 Y


A5.9.6 2p36(h) Disclose the carrying amount of inventories pledged as security for liabilities. 0 1 Y
A5.9.7


1p60, 61
Where inventories combine current and non-current amounts, disclose the amount of the non-current portion that is expected 
to be recovered or settled after more than 12 months.


0 1 Y


A5.10. Trade and other receivables 0 Yes 0 Total: 8 | P - 0 | Y - 4 | N - 0 | A - 4 | F - 0
A5.10.1 1p77 - 1p78(b) Disclose receivables in a manner appropriate to the entity’s operation, with the following specific disclosures: 0 1 Y
A5.10.2 (a) trade receivables; 0 1 Y
A5.10.3 (b) receivables from subsidiaries (in standalone accounts); 0 1 Y
A5.10.4 (c) receivables from related parties (refer to Section A5.19); 0 1 A
A5.10.5 (d) other receivables; and 0 1 A
A5.10.6 (e) pre-payments. 0 1 Y
A5.10.7 IFRS7p20(e) Disclose impairment losses recognised during the period on receivables. 0 1 A
A5.10.8


1p60, 61
Where trade and other receivables combine current and non-current amounts, disclose the amount of the non-current portion 
that is expected to be recovered or settled after more than 12 months.


0 1 A


A5.11. Income taxes 0 No 0
A5.11.1 1p54(o) Present deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities  separately on the face of the balance sheet. 0 0 Y
A5.11.2 1p54(n) Present current income tax assets and liabilities separately on the face of the balance sheet. 0 0 Y
A5.11.3


1p56
Classify deferred tax assets (liabilities) as non-current assets (liabilities) if a distinction between current and non-current assets 
and liabilities is made on the face of the balance sheet.


0 0 Y







A5.11.4
1p60, 61


Disclose the amount of the non-current portion of deferred or current taxes that is expected to be recovered or settled after more 
than 12 months.


0 0 Y


A5.11.5 12p71,74 For the offsetting rules of current tax assets and liabilities, refer to IAS 12 para 71; for the offsetting rules of deferred tax assets 
and liabilities, refer to IAS 12 para 74.


0 0 Y


A5.11.6 Disclose: 0 0 Y
A5.11.7


12p81(e)
(a) the amount (and expiry date, if any) of deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses, and unused tax credits for which 
no deferred tax asset is recognised in the balance sheet; and


0 0 Y


A5.11.8
12p81(f)


(b) the aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, branches and associates and 
interests in joint ventures, for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised (IAS 12 para 39).


0 0 A


A5.11.9 12p81(g) In respect of each type of temporary difference, and in respect of each type of unused tax losses and unused tax credits, disclose: 0 0 Y


A5.11.10 (a) the amount of the deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised in the balance sheet for each period presented; and 0 0 Y


A5.11.11 (b) the amount of the deferred tax income or expense recognised in the income statement, if this is not apparent from the 
changes in the amounts recognised in the balance sheet (for example, where there are deferred tax items charged or credited to 
equity during the period).


0 0 Y


A5.11.12 It is a helpful ‘proof’ to display the movements during the period in each category of temporary differences in the deferred tax 
account, although it is not required by IAS 12.


0 0 Y


A5.11.13
12p81(i) 


Disclose the amount of income tax consequences of dividends to shareholders that were proposed or declared before the 
financial statements were authorised for issue, but are not recognised as a liability in the financial statements;


0 0 Y


A5.11.14 12p82 Disclose the amount of a deferred tax asset and the nature of the evidence supporting its recognition, when: 0 0 Y
A5.11.15 (a) the utilisation of the deferred tax asset is dependent on future taxable profits in excess of the profits arising from the reversal 


of existing taxable temporary differences; and
0 0 A


A5.11.16 (b) the entity has suffered a loss in either the current or preceding period in the tax jurisdiction to which the deferred tax asset 0 0 Y
A5.11.17


12p81(a)
Disclose the aggregate current and deferred tax relating to items charged or credited to equity. For deferred taxes, it is useful to 
disclose the analysis by category of temporary differences.


0 0 Y


A5.11.18 12p82A If income taxes are payable at a higher or lower rate if part or all of the net profit or retained earnings is paid out as a dividend, 
disclose:


0 0 A


A5.11.19 (a) the nature of the potential income tax consequences that would result from the payment of dividends; and 0 0 Y


A5.11.20 (b) the amounts of the potential income tax consequences practically determinable, and whether there are any potential income 
tax consequences not practically determinable.


0 0 Y


A5.11.21
12 p98G


If applicable, has the entity disclosed the fact that is has early adopted amendments to IAS 12, Recognition of deferred tax assets 
for unrealised losses? (There are no additional disclosure requirements in the amendment other than a disclosure on early 
adoption)


0 0 A


A5.12. Trade and other payables 0 Yes 0 Total: 8 | P - 0 | Y - 4 | N - 0 | A - 4 | F - 0
A5.12.1 1p77 Disclose payables in a manner appropriate to the entity’s operations, with the following specific disclosures: 0 1 Y
A5.12.2 (a) trade payables; 0 1 Y
A5.12.3 (b) payables to subsidiaries (in standalone accounts); 0 1 A
A5.12.4 (c) payables to related parties 0 1 A
A5.12.5 (d) other payables; 0 1 A
A5.12.6 (e) accruals; and 0 1 Y
A5.12.7 (f) deferred income. 0 1 Y
A5.12.8


1p60
Where any of the above items combine current and non-current amounts, disclose the amount of the non-current portion that is 
expected to be recovered or settled after more than 12 months.


0 1 A


A5.13. Provisions 0 Yes 0 Total: 17 | P - 0 | Y - 12 | N - 0 | A - 5 | F - 0
A5.13.1 1p78(d) Provisions are disaggregated into provisions for employee benefits and other items. 0 1 Y
A5.13.2 37p84 For each class of provision, disclose: 0 1 Y
A5.13.3 (a) the carrying amount at the beginning of the period; 0 1 Y
A5.13.4 (b) exchange differences from the translation of foreign entities’ financial statements; 0 1 A
A5.13.5 (c) provisions acquired through business combinations; 0 1 A
A5.13.6 (d) additional provisions made in the period and increases to existing provisions; 0 1 Y
A5.13.7 (e) amounts used (incurred and charged against the provision); 0 1 A
A5.13.8 (f) amounts reversed unused; 0 1 Y
A5.13.9 (g) the increase during the period in the discounted amount arising from the passage of time and the effect of any change in the 


discount rate; and
0 1 Y


A5.13.10 (h) the carrying amount at the end of the period. 0 1 Y
A5.13.11


1p60
Where any provision combines current and non-current amounts, disclose the amount of the non-current portion that is 
expected to be recovered or settled after more than 12 months. 


0 1 Y


A5.13.12 37p85 For each class of provision, provide: 0 1 Y


A5.13.13 (a) a brief description of the nature of the obligation and of the expected timing of any resulting outflows of economic benefits; 0 1 Y


A5.13.14 (b) an indication of the uncertainties about the amount or timing of those outflows (where necessary to provide adequate 
information, disclose the major assumptions made concerning future events, as addressed in IAS 37 para 48); and


0 1 A


A5.13.15 (c) the amount of any expected reimbursement, stating the amount of any asset that has been recognised for that expected 0 1 Y
A5.13.16


34p26


If an estimate of an amount reported in an interim period – for example, a provision – is changed significantly during the final 
interim period of the financial year but a separate financial report is not published for that final interim period, disclose the 
nature and amount of that change in estimate in a note to the annual financial statements for that financial year.


0 1 A


A5.13.17 This item is applicable only when the reporting entity publishes an interim financial report prepared in accordance with IAS 
34.


0 1 Y


A5.14. Employee benefits other than defined benefit plans 0 No 0
A5.14.1 Short-term employee benefits 0 0 Y
A5.14.2


19p25
IAS 19 does not require specific disclosures about short-term employee benefits, but other IFRSs may require disclosures. For 
example, IAS 24 requires disclosures about employee benefits for key management personnel. IAS 1 requires disclosure of 
employee benefits expense.


0 0 Y


A5.14.3 Defined contribution plans 0 0 Y
A5.14.4 19p53 Disclose the amount recognised as an expense for defined contribution plans. 0 0 Y
A5.14.5


19p54
When required by IAS 24, disclose information about contributions to defined contribution plans for key management 
personnel. 


0 0 A


A5.15. Post-employment benefits – defined benefit plans 0 Yes 0 Total: 30 | P - 0 | Y - 28 | N - 0 | A - 2 | F - 0
A5.15.1


19p133


Some entities distinguish current assets and liabilities from non- current assets and liabilities. IAS 19 does not specify whether 
an entity should distinguish current and non-current portions of assets and liabilities arising from post-employment benefits.


0 1 Y


A5.15.2 Defined benefit plans 1
A5.15.2


19P134
IAS 19 para 20 requires an entity to recognise service cost and net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) in profit or 
loss. IAS 19 does not specify how an entity should present service cost and net interest on the net defined benefit liability 
(asset). Present those components in accordance with IAS 1.


0 1 Y


A5.15.2
19p93


An amendment to IAS 19 regarding employee contributions was published in November 2013. Consideration should be given to 
whether specific disclosure is required regarding the treatment of employee contributions, either before the amendment is 
applied or regarding adoption of the amendment.


0 1 Y


A5.15.2


IAS 19p
135(a-c)


Disclose information that: 
(a) explains the characteristics of its defined benefit plans and risks associated with them (see IAS 19p139);
(b) identifies and explains the amounts in its financial statements arising from its defined benefit plans (see IAS 19 paras 140-
144); and
(c) describes how its defined benefit plans may affect the amount, timing and uncertainty of the entity's future cash flows (see 
IAS 19 paras 145-147). 


0 1 Y


A5.15.2 19p136(a-d) To meet the objective in IAS 19 para 135, consider all the following: 0 1 Y


A5.15.2 (a) the level of detail necessary to satisfy the disclosure requirements; 0 1 Y
A5.15.2 (b) how much emphasis to place on each of the various requirements; 0 1 Y
A5.15.2 (c) how much aggregation or disaggregation to undertake; and 0 1 Y
A5.15.2 (d) whether users of financial statements need additional information to evaluate the quantitative information disclosed. 0 1 Y


A5.15.2


19p137(a-c)


If the disclosures provided in accordance with the requirements in IAS 19 and other IFRSs are insufficient to meet the objective 
in IAS 19 para 135, disclose additional information necessary to meet those objectives. For example, an entity may present an 
analysis of the present value of the defined benefit obligation that distinguishes the nature, characteristics and risks of the 
obligation. Such a disclosure could distinguish; 
(a) between amounts owing to active members, deferred members and pensioners;
(b) between vested benefits and accrued but not vested benefits; and


0 1 Y


A5.15.2


19p138(a-e)


Assess whether all or some disclosures should be disaggregated to distinguish plans or groups of plans with materially different 
risks. For example, an entity may disaggregate disclosure about plans showing one or more of the following features: 
(a) different geographical locations;
(b) different characteristics such as flat salary pension plans, final salary pension plans or post-employment medical plans;
(c) different regulatory environments;
(d) different reporting segments; and
(e) different funding arrangements (for example, wholly unfunded, wholly or partly funded). 


0 1 Y


A5.15.2


19p176, 19p177


Annual improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle , issued in September, amended paragraph 83, introducing a possibility to use 
the market yields on government bonds as a discount rate, for currencies for which there is no deep market in high quality 
corporate bonds, and added paragraph 177.


An entity shall apply those amendments for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 retrospectively in accordance 
with IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. Earlier application is permitted. If an entity applies 
those amendments for an earlier period, it shall disclose that fact. 


0 1 Y


A5.15.3 Characteristics of defined benefit plans and risks associated with them 1
A5.15.3


19p139 (a-c)


Disclose: 
(a) information about the characteristics of its defined benefit plans, including:
(i) the nature of the benefits provided by the plan (for example, final salary defined benefit plan or contribution-based plan with 
guarantee);
(ii) a description of the regulatory framework in which the plan operates – for example, the level of any minimum funding 
requirements, and any effect of the regulatory framework on the plan, such as the asset ceiling (see IAS 19 para 64); and
(iii) a description of any other entity's responsibilities for the governance of the plan – for example, responsibilities of trustees 
or of board members of the plan;
(b) a description of the risks to which the plan exposes the entity, focusing on any unusual, entity-specific or plan- specific risks, 
and of any significant concentrations of risk. For example, if plan assets are invested primarily in one class of investments – for 
example, property – the plan may expose the entity to a concentration of property market risk; and
(c) a description of any plan amendments, curtailments and settlements.


0 1 Y


A5.15.4 Explanation of amounts in the financial statements 1
A5.15.4


19p140(a),(b)


Provide a reconciliation from the opening balance to the closing balance for each of the following, if applicable: 
(a) the net defined benefit liability (asset), showing separate reconciliations for:
(i) plan assets;
(ii) the present value of the defined benefit obligation; and 
(iii) the effect of the asset ceiling; and 
(b) any reimbursement rights. Describe the relationship between any reimbursement right and the related obligation.


0 1 Y


A5.15.4


19p141(a-h)


In each reconciliation listed in IAS 19 para 140, show each of the following, if applicable: 
(a) current service cost;
(b) interest income or expense;
(c) re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset), showing separately:
(i) the return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest in (b);
(ii) actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions (see IAS 19 para 76(a));
(iii) actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assumptions (see IAS 19 para 6(b)) ; and
(iv) changes in the effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in interest in 
(b). Also disclose how it determined the maximum economic benefit available – that is, whether those benefits would be in the 
form of refunds, reductions in future contributions or a combination of both;
(d) past service cost and gains and losses arising from settlements. As permitted by IAS 19 para 100, past service cost and gains 
and losses arising from settlements need not be distinguished if they occur together;
(e) the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates;
(f) contributions to the plan, showing separately those by the employer and by plan participants;
(g) payments from the plan, showing separately the amount paid in respect of any settlements; and
(h) the effects of business combinations and disposals.


0 1 Y


A5.15.4


19p142(a-h)


Disaggregate the fair value of the plan assets into classes that distinguishes the nature and risks of those assets, subdividing 
each class of plan asset into those that have a quoted market price in an active market (see IAS 39 para AG71) and those that do 
not. For example, and considering the level of disclosure discussed in IAS 19 para 136, an entity could distinguish between: 
(a) cash and cash equivalents;
(b) equity instruments (segregated by industry type, company size, geography etc);
(c) debt instruments (segregated by type of issuer, credit quality, geography etc);
(d) real estate (segregated by geography etc);
(e) derivatives (segregated by type of underlying risk in the contract – for example, interest rate contracts, foreign exchange 
contracts, equity contracts, credit contracts, longevity swaps, etc);
(f) investment funds (segregated by type of fund);
(g) asset-backed securities; and
(h) structured debt.


0 1 Y


A5.15.4
19p143


Disclose the fair value of the entity's own transferrable financial instruments held as plan assets, and the fair value of plan 
assets that are property occupied by, or other assets used by, the entity.


0 1 Y


A5.15.4


19p144


Disclose the significant actuarial assumptions used to determine the present value of the defined benefit obligation (see IAS 19 
para 76). Such disclose should be in absolute terms (for example, as an absolute percentage, and not just as a margin between 
different percentages and other variables). When an entity provides disclosures in total for a grouping of plans, provide such 
disclosures in the form of weighted averages or relatively narrow ranges.


0 1 Y


A5.15.5 Amount, timing and uncertainty of future cash flows 1
A5.15.5


19p145(a-c)


Disclose: 
(a) a sensitivity analysis for each significant actuarial assumption (see IAS 19 para 144) as of the end of the reporting period, 
showing how the defined benefit obligation would have been affected by changes in the relevant actuarial assumption that were 
reasonably possible at that date;
(b) the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analyses required by IAS 19 para 145(a) and the limitations of 
those methods; and
(c) changes from the previous period in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analyses, and the 
reasons for such changes.


0 1 Y







A5.15.5
19p173(b)


Despite the requirement to apply IAS 19 retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8, in financial statements for periods beginning 
before 1 January 2014, an entity need not present comparative information for the disclosures required by IAS 19 para 145 
about the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation.


0 1 Y


A5.15.5
19p146


Disclose a description of any asset-liability matching strategies used by the plan or the entity, including the use of annuities and 
other techniques, such as longevity swaps, to manage risk.


0 1 Y


A5.15.5


19p147(a-c)


To provide an indication of the effect of the defined benefit plan on the entity's future cash flow, disclose: 
(a) a description of any funding arrangements and funding policy that affect future contributions;
(b) the expected contributions to the plan for the next annual reporting period; and 
(c) information about the maturity profile of the defined benefit obligation. This will include the weighted average duration of 
the defined benefit obligation and may include other information about the distribution of the timing of benefit payments, such 
as a maturity analysis of the benefit payments.


0 1 Y


A5.15.6 Multi-employer plans 1
A5.15.6


19p148(a-d)


If an entity participates in a multi-employer defined benefit plan, disclose: 
(a) a description of the funding arrangements, including the method used to determine the entity's rate of contributions and any 
minimum funding requirements;
(b) a description of the extent to which the entity can be liable to the plan for other entities' obligations under the terms and 
conditions of the multi-employer plan;
(c) a description of any agreed allocation of a deficit or surplus on:
(i) wind-up of the plan; or
(ii) the entity's withdrawal from the plan;


0 1 Y


A5.15.6 (d) if the entity's accounts for that plan as if it were a defined contribution plan in accordance with IAS 19 para 34, disclose the 
following, in addition to the information required by IAS 19 paras 139-147: 
(i) the fact that the plan is a defined benefit plan;
(ii) the reason why sufficient information is not available to enable the entity to account for the plan as a defined benefit plan;
(iii) the expected contributions to the plan for the next annual reporting period.
(iv) information about any deficit or surplus in the plan that may affect the amount of future contributions, including the basis 
used to determine that deficit or surplus and the implications, if any, for the entity; and
(v) an indication of the level of participation of the entity in the plan compared with other participating entities. Examples of 
measures for such an indication include the entity's proportion of the total contributions to the plan or the entity's proportion of 
the total number of active members, retired members, and former members entitled to benefits, if that information is available.


0 1 Y


A5.15.7 Group plans (defined benefit plans that share risks between entities under common control) 0 1
A5.15.7


19p149(a-d)


If an entity participates in a defined benefit plan that shares risks between entities under common control, disclose: 
(a) the contractual agreement or stated policy for charging the net defined benefit cost or the fact that there is no such policy;
(b) the policy for determining the contribution to be paid by the entity;
(c) if the entity accounts for an allocation of the net defined benefit cost as noted in IAS 19 para 41, all the information about the 
plan as a whole required by IAS 19 paras 135- 147; and
(d) if the entity accounts for the contribution payable for the period as noted in IAS 19 para 41, the information about the plan as 
a whole required by IAS 19 paras 135-137,139, 142-144 and 147(a) and (b).


0 1 Y


A5.15.7


19p150(a),(b)


The information required by IAS 19 para 149(c) and (d) can be disclosed by cross-reference to disclosures in another group 
entity's financial statements if: 
(a) that group entity's financial statements separately identify and disclose the information required about the plan; and
(b) that group entity's financial statements are available to users of the financial statements on the same terms as the financial 
statements of the entity and at the same time as, or earlier than, the financial statements of the entity.


0 1 Y


A5.15.8 Related-party transactions 1
A5.15.8


19p151(a),(b)
When required by IAS 24 an entity discloses information about: 
(a) related-party transactions with post-employment benefit plans; and
(b) post-employment benefits for key management personnel.


0 1 A


A5.15.9 Contingent liabilities 1
A5.15.9


19p152
When required by IAS 37, disclose information about contingent liabilities arising from post-employment benefit obligations. 0 1 Y


A5.15.10 Other long-term employee benefits 1
A5.15.10


19p158
Although IAS 19 does not require specific disclosures about other long-term employee benefits, other IFRSs may require 
disclosures. For example, IAS 24 requires disclosures about employee benefits for key management personnel. IAS 1 requires 
disclosure of employee benefits expense.


0 1 A


A5.15.11 Termination benefits 1
A5.15.11


19p171
Although IAS 19 does not require specific disclosures about termination benefits, other IFRSs may require disclosures. For 
example, IAS 24 requires disclosures about employee benefits for key management personnel. IAS 1 requires disclosure of 
employee benefits expense. 


0 1 Y


A5.16. Lease liabilities 0 Yes 0 Total: 15 | P - 0 | Y - 6 | N - 0 | A - 9 | F - 0
A5.16.1 Leases are financial instruments and therefore all the disclosure requirements of IFRS 7 apply also to leases – refer to Section 


A8.
0 1 Y


A5.16.2 Note: This section of the checklist applies to lessees. For lessors, refer to Section C4. 0 1 Y
A5.16.a. - Lessees – finance leases 0 No 0
A5.16.a.1 17p31 Disclose: 0 0 Y
A5.16.a.1 (a) the net carrying amount for each class of assets at the balance sheet date; 0 0 Y
A5.16.a.1 (b) a reconciliation between the total minimum lease payments at the balance sheet date, and their present value; 0 0 Y


A5.16.a.1 (c) the total of minimum lease payments at the balance sheet date, and their present value, for each of the following periods: 
(i) no later than one year;
(ii) later than one year but no later than five years; and
(iii) later than five years;


0 0 Y


A5.16.a.1 (d) the amount of contingent rents recognised in the income statement for the period; 0 0 Y
A5.16.a.1 (e)the total of future minimum sublease payments expected to be received under non-cancellable subleases at the balance sheet 0 0 Y
A5.16.a.1 (f) a general description of the lessee’s significant leasing arrangements. This would include, but is not limited to:


(i) the basis on which contingent rent payments are determined;
(ii) the existence and terms of renewal or purchase options and escalation clauses; and
(iii) restrictions imposed by lease arrangements, such as those concerning dividends, additional debt and further leasing.


0 0 Y


A5.16.a.1 The disclosure requirements of IAS 16, IAS 36, IAS 38, IAS 40 and IAS 41 apply to lessees for assets leased under finance leases. 0 0 Y


A5.16.b. - Lessees – operating leases 0 Yes 0 Total: 10 | P - 0 | Y - 1 | N - 0 | A - 9 | F - 0
A5.16.b.1 17p35 Disclose: 0 1 Y
A5.16.b.1 (a) the total of future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases for each of the following periods:


(i) no later than one year;
(ii) later than one year and no later than five years; and
(iii) later than five years.


0 1 A


A5.16.b.1 (b) the total of future minimum sublease payments to be received under non-cancellable subleases at the balance sheet date; 0 1 A
A5.16.b.1 (c) lease and sublease payments recognised in the income statement for the period, with separate amounts for minimum lease 


payments, contingent rents and sublease payments; and
0 1 A


A5.16.b.1 (d) a general description of the lessee’s significant leasing arrangements. This would include, but is not limited to:
(i) the basis on which contingent rent payments are determined;
(ii) the existence and terms of renewal or purchase options and escalation clauses; and
(iii) restrictions imposed by lease arrangements, such as those concerning dividends, additional debt and further leasing.


0 1 A


A5.16.b.2
17p65


The disclosure requirements about leases set out in Section A5.16 also apply to sale and leaseback transactions. Any unique or 
unusual provisions in the agreements or terms of the sale and leaseback transactions should be separately disclosed.


0 1 A


A5.16.b.3 IFRIC4pBC39 The disclosure requirements set out in Section A5.17 also apply to leases under IFRIC4. 0 1 A
A5.16.b.4


IFRIC4p15(b)
If a purchaser/lessee concludes that it is impractical to separate the lease payments in an operating lease reliably from other 
payments, it should treat all payments under the agreement as lease payments for the purpose of complying with the disclosures 
of IAS 17, but:


0 1 A


A5.16.b.4 (a) disclose those payments separately from minimum lease payments that do not include payments for non-lease elements; 
and


0 1 A


A5.16.b.4 (b) state that the disclosed payments also include payments for non-lease elements in the arrangement. 0 1 A
A5.16.c. - Arrangements that do not involve a lease in substance 0 Yes 0 Total: 3 | P - 0 | Y - 3 | N - 0 | A - 0 | F - 0
A5.16.c.1 SIC27p10, 11 For arrangements that do not involve a lease in substance, disclose the following, individually for each arrangement or in 


aggregate for each class of arrangement, in each period in which an arrangement exists:
0 1 Y


A5.16.c.1 (a) a description of the arrangement including:
(i) the underlying asset and restrictions on its use;
(ii) the life and other significant terms of the arrangement; and
(iii) the transactions that are linked together, including any options; and


0 1 Y


A5.16.c.1 (b) the accounting treatment applied to any fee received, the amount recognised in income in the period, and the line item of the 
income statement in which it is included.


0 1 Y


A5.17. Borrowings and other liabilities 0 Yes 0 Total: 7 | P - 0 | Y - 3 | N - 0 | A - 4 | F - 0
A5.17. Borrowings are financial instruments; therefore, all the IFRS 7 disclosure requirements also apply to borrowings. 0 1 Y
A5.17.1 1p60 Disclose the borrowings classified between current and non-current portions, in accordance with IAS 1 paras 69- 75. 0 1 Y


A5.17.2 1p76 In respect of loans classified as current liabilities, if the following events occur between the balance sheet date and the date the 
financial statements are authorised for issue, those events qualify for disclosure as non-adjusting events in accordance with IAS 


0 1 Y


A5.17.2 (a) refinancing on a long-term basis; 0 1 A
A5.17.2 (b) rectification of a breach of a long-term loan agreement; and 0 1 A
A5.17.2 (c) the granting by the lender of a period of grace to rectify a breach of a long-term loan agreement ending at least twelve 


months after the reporting period.
0 1 A


A5.17.3
32p28


The issuer of a non-derivative financial instrument should evaluate the terms of the financial instrument to determine whether 
it contains both a liability and an equity component. Classify such components separately as financial liabilities, financial assets 
or equity instruments, in accordance with IAS 32 para 15.


0 1 A


A5.18. Government grants 0 No 0
A5.18.1 20p39(b), (c) Disclose: 0 0 Y
A5.18.1 (a) the nature and extent of government grants recognised; 0 0 Y
A5.18.1 (b) an indication of other forms of government assistance from which the entity has directly benefited; and 0 0 A
A5.18.1 (c) unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies related to government assistance that has been recognised. 0 0 A


A5.19. Related-party transactions 0 Yes 0
A5.19.1. - General disclosures 0 Yes 0 Total: 8 | P - 0 | Y - 8 | N - 0 | A - 0 | F - 0
A5.19.1.1 24p13 (a)  Disclose related-party relationships between parent and subsidiaries irrespective of whether transactions have taken place 


between those related parties.
0 1 Y


A5.19.1.1 24p13 (b) Disclose the name of the parent and the ultimate controlling party if different. 0 1 Y
A5.19.1.1 24p13 (d)  If neither the entity’s parent nor the ultimate controlling party produces financial statements available for public use, 


disclose the name of the next most senior parent that does so.
0 1 Y


A5.19.1.1 24p16 IAS 24 para 13 refers to the next senior parent. This is the first parent in the group above the immediate parent that produces 
consolidated financial statements available for public use. 


0 1 Y


A5.19.1.1 24p18A Disclose amounts incurred by the entity for the provision of key management personnel services that are provided by a separate 
management entity.


0 1 Y


A5.19.1.1 24p24 (e)  Disclose items of similar nature in aggregate except when separate disclosure is necessary to understand the effects of 
related party transactions on the financial statements.


0 1 Y


A5.19.1.1 24p23 - 24p21 (f) Disclose that related-party transactions were made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions only 
if such terms can be substantiated.


Examples of transactions that are disclosed if they are with a related party include: 
(i) purchases or sales of goods (finished or unfinished);
(ii) purchases of sales of property and other assets;
(iii) rendering or receiving of services;
(iv) leases;
(v) transfers of research and development;
(vi) transfers under licence agreements;
(vii) transfers under finance arrangements (including loans and equity contributions in cash or in kind);
(viii) provisions of guarantees or collateral; and 
(ix) commitments to do something if a particular event occurs or does not occur in the future, including executory contracts 
(recognised and unrecognised); and
(x) settlement of liabilities on behalf of the entity or by the entity on behalf of another party.


0 1 Y


A5.19.1.1 32p34 (g) If the entity reacquires its own shares from related parties, then provide disclosure in accordance with IAS 24. 0 1 Y


A5.19.2. 24p19(a) - Transactions with parent 0 Yes 0 Total: 8 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 8 | F - 0
A5.19.2.1 24p18 Disclose the following regarding transactions with this parent: 0 1 A
A5.19.2.1 (a) the nature of the related party relationship; and 0 1 A
A5.19.2.1 (b) information about the transactions and outstanding balances, including commitments, necessary for an understanding of the 


potential effect of the relationship on the financial statements.
0 1 A


A5.19.2.2 24p18(a), (b)(i),(ii), (c), 
(d)


At a minimum, disclose: 0 1 A


A5.19.2.2 (a) the amount of the transactions; 0 1 A
A5.19.2.2 (b) the amount of outstanding balances, including commitments and their terms and conditions, including whether they are 


secured and: 
0 1 A


A5.19.2.2 (c)    provisions for doubtful debts related to the amount of outstanding balances; and 0 1 A
A5.19.2.2 (d)    the expense  recognised during the period in respect of bad or doubtful debts due from related parties. 0 1 A
A5.19.3. 24p19(b) - Transactions with entities with joint control or significant influence over the entity 0 No 0
A5.19.3.1 24p18 Disclose the following regarding transactions with this related party: 0 0 A
A5.19.3.1 (a) the nature of the related party relationship; and 0 0 A
A5.19.3.1 (b)  information about the transactions and outstanding balances, including commitments, necessary for an understanding of 


the potential effect of the relationship on the financial statements.
0 0 A


A5.19.3.2 24p18(a), (b)(i),(ii), (c), 
(d)


At a minimum, disclose : 0 0 A


A5.19.3.2 (a) the amount of the transactions; 0 0 A
A5.19.3.2 (b) the amount of outstanding balances, including commitments; and 


 (i) their terms and conditions, including whether they are secured, and the nature of the consideration to be provided in 
0 0 A


A5.19.3.2 (c) provisions for doubtful debts related to the amount of outstanding balances; and 0 0 A
A5.19.3.2 (d) the expense recognised during the period in respect of bad or doubtful debts due from related parties. 0 0 A
A5.19.4. 24p19( c) - Transactions with subsidiaries 0 Yes 0 Total: 8 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 8 | F - 0







A5.19.4.1 24p18 Disclose the following regarding transactions with this related party: 0 1 A
A5.19.4.1 (a) the nature of the related party relationship; and 0 1 A
A5.19.4.1 (b) information about the transactions and outstanding balances, including commitments, necessary for an understanding of the 


potential effect of the relationship on the financial statements.
0 1 A


A5.19.4.2 24p18(a), (b)(i),(ii), (c), At a minimum, disclose : 0 1 A
A5.19.4.2 (a) the amount of the transactions; 0 1 A
A5.19.4.2 (b) the amount of outstanding balances, including commitments; and 


(i) their terms and conditions, including whether they are secured, and the nature of the consideration to be provided in 
0 1 A


A5.19.4.2 (c) provisions for doubtful debts related to the amount of outstanding balances; and 0 1 A
A5.19.4.2 (d)  the expense recognised during the period in respect of bad or doubtful debts due from related parties. 0 1 A
A5.19.5. 24p19(d) - Transactions with associates 0 Yes 0 Total: 8 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 8 | F - 0
A5.19.5.1 24p18 Disclose the following regarding transactions with this related party: 0 1 A
A5.19.5.1 (a)    the nature of the related party relationship; and 0 1 A
A5.19.5.1 (b)  information about the transactions and outstanding balances, including commitments, necessary for an understanding of 


the potential effect of the relationship on the financial statements.
0 1 A


A5.19.5.2 24p18(a), (b)(i),(ii), (c), 
(d)


At a minimum, disclose : 0 1 A


A5.19.5.2 (a) the amount of the transactions; 0 1 A
A5.19.5.2 (b) the amount of outstanding balances, including commitments; and 


(i) their terms and conditions, including whether they are secured, and the nature of the consideration to be provided in 
0 1 A


A5.19.5.2 (c)    provisions for doubtful debts related to the amount of outstanding balances; and 0 1 A
A5.19.5.2 (d)  the expense recognised during the period in respect of bad or doubtful debts due from related parties. 0 1 A
A5.19.6. 24p19(e) - Transactions with joint ventures in which the entity is a venturer 0 Yes 0 Total: 8 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 8 | F - 0
A5.19.6.1 24p18 Disclose the following regarding transactions with this related party: 0 1 A
A5.19.6.1 (a) the nature of the related party relationship; and 0 1 A
A5.19.6.1 (b)  information about the transactions and outstanding balances, including commitments, necessary for an understanding of 


the potential effect of the relationship on the financial statements.
0 1 A


A5.19.6.2 24p18(a), (b)(i),(ii), (c), 
(d)


At a minimum, disclose : 0 1 A


A5.19.6.2 (a) the amount of the transactions; 0 1 A
A5.19.6.2 (b) the amount of outstanding balances, including commitments; and 


(i) their terms and conditions, including whether they are secured, and the nature of the consideration to be provided in 
settlement; and
(ii) details of any guarantees given or received;


0 1 A


A5.19.6.2 (c) provisions for doubtful debts related to the amount of outstanding balances; and 0 1 A
A5.19.6.2 (d)  the expense recognised during the period in respect of bad or doubtful debts due from related parties. 0 1 A
A5.19.7. 24p19(f) - Transactions with key management personnel of the entity or its parent 0 No 0
A5.19.7.1 24p18 Disclose the following regarding transactions with this related party: 0 0 A
A5.19.7.1 (a) the nature of the related party relationship; and 0 0 A
A5.19.7.1 (b)  information about the transactions and outstanding balances, including commitments, necessary for an understanding of 


the potential effect of the relationship on the financial statements.
0 0 A


A5.19.7.2 24p18(a), (b)(i),(ii), (c), 
(d)


At a minimum, disclose : 0 0 A


A5.19.7.2 (a) the amount of the transactions; 0 0 A
A5.19.7.2 (b) the amount of outstanding balances, including commitments; and 


 (i) their terms and conditions, including whether they are secured, and the nature of the consideration to be provided in 
settlement; and
(ii) details of any guarantees given or received;


0 0 A


A5.19.7.2 (c) provisions for doubtful debts related to the amount of outstanding balances; and 0 0 A
A5.19.7.2 (d)  the expense recognised during the period in respect of bad or doubtful debts due from related parties. 0 0 A
A5.19.7.3 24p17 Disclose key management personnel compensation of the entity in total and for each of the following categories: 0 0 A
A5.19.7.3 24p17(a), 19p23 (a)    short-term employee benefits; 0 0 A
A5.19.7.3 24p17(b),19p47, 124(b) (b)  post-employment benefits, including contributions to defined contribution plans; 0 0 A


A5.19.7.3 24p17(c), 19p131 (c)  other long-term benefits 0 0 A
A5.19.7.3 24p17(d), 19p143 (d)  termination benefits; and 0 0 A


A5.19.7.3 24p17(e) (e)  share-based payments. 0 0 A
A5.19.7.3 24p17A  If an entity obtains key management personnel services from another entity (the ‘management entity’), the entity is not 


required to apply the requirements in paragraph 17 to the compensation paid or payable by the management entity to the 
management entity’s employees or directors.


0 0 A


A5.19.8. 19p124(a) - Transactions with post-employment benefit plans 0 Yes 0 Total: 8 | P - 0 | Y - 1 | N - 0 | A - 7 | F - 0
A5.19.8.1 24p18 Disclose the following regarding transactions with this related party: 0 1 Y
A5.19.8.1 (a)    the nature of the related party relationship; and 0 1 A
A5.19.8.1 (b)  information about the transactions and outstanding balances, including commitments, necessary for an understanding of 


the potential effect of the relationship on the financial statements.
0 1 A


A5.19.8.2 24p18(a), (b)(i),(ii), (c), At a minimum, disclose : 0 1 A
A5.19.8.2 (a) the amount of the transactions; 0 1 A
A5.19.8.2 (b) the amount of outstanding balances, including commitments; and 


(i) their terms and conditions, including whether they are secured, and the nature of the consideration to be provided in 
settlement; and
(ii) details of any guarantees given or received;


0 1 A


A5.19.8.2 (c) provisions for doubtful debts related to the amount of outstanding balances; and 0 1 A
A5.19.8.2 (d)  the expense recognised during the period in respect of bad or doubtful debts due from related parties. 0 1 A
A5.19.9. 24p22, 19p149 - Participation in a defined benefit plan that shares risks between group entities 0 Yes 0 Total: 5 | P - 0 | Y - 5 | N - 0 | A - 0 | F - 0
A5.19.9.1 If an entity participates in a defined benefit plan that shares risks between entities under common control, disclose: 0 1 Y


A5.19.9.1 (a) the contractual agreement or stated policy for charging the net defined benefit cost or the fact that there is no such policy; 0 1 Y


A5.19.9.1 (b) the policy for determining the contribution to be paid by the entity; 0 1 Y
A5.19.9.1 (c) if the entity accounts for an allocation of the net defined benefit cost as noted in IAS 19 para 41, all the information about the 


plan as a whole required by IAS 19 paras 135- 147; and
0 1 Y


A5.19.9.1 (d) if the entity accounts for the contribution payable for the period as noted in IAS 19 para 41, the information about the plan as 
a whole required by IAS 19 paras 135-137,139, 142-144 and 147(a) and (b).


0 1 Y


A5.19.10. 24p19(g) - Transactions with other related parties 0 Yes 0 Total: 9 | P - 0 | Y - 9 | N - 0 | A - 0 | F - 0
A5.19.10.1 24p18 Disclose the following regarding transactions with this related party: 0 1 Y
A5.19.10.1 (a) the nature of the related party relationship; and 0 1 Y
A5.19.10.1 (b)  information about the transactions and outstanding balances, including commitments, necessary for an understanding of 


the potential effect of the relationship on the financial statements.
0 1 Y


A5.19.10.2 24p18(a),(b),(i),(ii), (c At a minimum, disclose : 0 1 Y
A5.19.10.2 (a) the amount of the transactions; 0 1 Y
A5.19.10.2 (b) the amount of outstanding balances, including commitments; and 


(i) their terms and conditions, including whether they are secured, and the nature of the consideration to be provided in 
settlement; and


0 1 Y


A5.19.10.2 (c)  provisions for doubtful debts related to the amount of outstanding balances; and 0 1 Y
A5.19.10.2 (d) the expense recognised during the period in respect of bad or doubtful debts due from related parties. 0 1 Y
A5.19.10.2 24p20 The classification of amounts payable to, and receivable from, related parties in the different categories as required by IAS 24 


para 19 is an extension of the disclosure requirement in IAS 1,for information to be presented either in the statement of 
financial position or in the notes. The categories are extended to provide a more comprehensive analysis of related party 
balances and apply to related-party transactions. 


0 1 Y


A5.19.11. - Government-related entities 0 Yes 0 Total: 13 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 13 | F - 0
A5.19.11.1 24p25 A reporting entity is exempt from the disclosure requirements of IAS 24 para 18 in relation to related party transactions and 


outstanding balances, including commitments, with:
0 1 A


A5.19.11.1 (a) a government that has control, joint control or significant influence over the reporting entity; and 0 1 A
A5.19.11.1 24p26 (b) another entity that is a related party because the same government has control, joint control or significant influence over 


both the reporting entity and the other entity.
0 1 A


A5.19.11.2 If a reporting entity applies the exemption in IAS 24 para 25, disclose the following about the transactions and related 
outstanding balances referred to in IAS 24 para 25:


0 1 A


A5.19.11.2 (a) the name of the government and the nature of its relationship with the reporting entity (that is, control, joint control or 0 1 A
A5.19.11.2 (b) the following information in sufficient detail to enable users of the entity’s financial statements to understand the effect of 


related-party transactions on its financial statements:
(i) the nature and amount of each individually significant transactions; and
(ii) for other transactions that are collectively, but not individually, significant, a qualitative or quantitative indication of their 
extent. Types of transactions include those listed in IAS 24 para 21. 


0 1 A


A5.19.11.3 24p27 In using its judgement to determine the level of detail to be disclosed in accordance with the requirements in IAS 24 para 26(b), 
the reporting entity considers the closeness of the related-party relationship and other factors relevant in establishing the level 
of significance of the transaction such as whether it is:


0 1 A


A5.19.11.3 (a) significant in terms of size; 0 1 A
A5.19.11.3 (b) carried out on non-market terms; 0 1 A
A5.19.11.3 (c) outside normal day-to-day business operations, such as the purchase and sale of businesses; 0 1 A
A5.19.11.3 (d) disclosed to regulatory or supervisory authorities; 0 1 A
A5.19.11.3 (e) reported to senior management; and 0 1 A


A5.19.11.3 (f) subject to shareholder approval. 0 1 A


A5.20. Commitments 0 Yes 0 Total: 8 | P - 0 | Y - 4 | N - 0 | A - 4 | F - 0
A5.20.1 Disclose: 0 1 Y
A5.20.1 The amount of contractual commitments for the acquisition of: 0 1 Y
A5.20.1 16p74(c) (a) property, plant and equipment; and 0 1 Y
A5.20.1 38p122(e) (b) intangible assets. 0 1 A
A5.20.2 40p75(h) Contractual obligations: 0 1 Y
A5.20.2 (a) to purchase, construct or develop investment property; and 0 1 A
A5.20.2 (b) for repairs, maintenance or enhancements of investment property. 0 1 A
A5.20.2 Refer also to the commitments in respect of lease agreements in Section A5.16 and commitments in respect of joint ventures in 


Section A5.7.
0 1 A


A5.21. Contingencies 0 Yes 0 Total: 17 | P - 0 | Y - 17 | N - 0 | A - 0 | F - 0
A5.21.1 37p86 Disclose for each class of contingent liability, unless the possibility of any outflow in settlement is remote: 0 1 Y
A5.21.1 (a) a brief description of the nature of the contingent liability; 0 1 Y
A5.21.1 37p86(a)


37p86(b)
37p86(c)


(b) where practicable, disclose also:
(i)  an estimate of its financial effect, measured under IAS 37 para 36-52;
(ii) an indication of the uncertainties about the amount or timing of any outflow; and
(iii) the possibility of any reimbursement; and


0 1 Y


A5.21.1 37p91 (c) where any of this information is not disclosed because it is not practicable to do so, disclose that fact. 0 1 Y
A5.21.2


37p88
Where a provision and a contingent liability arise from the same set of circumstances, show the link between the provision and 
the contingent liability.


0 1 Y


A5.21.3 37p89 Disclose for contingent assets, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable: 0 1 Y


A5.21.3 (a) a brief description of the nature of the contingent asset; 0 1 Y
A5.21.3 (b) where practicable, an estimate of their financial effect, measured under IAS 37 para 36-52; and 0 1 Y
A5.21.3 37p91  (c) (c) where this information is not disclosed because it is not practicable to do so, disclose that fact. 0 1 Y
A5.21.4


37p92


In extremely rare cases, disclosure of some or all of the information required by IAS 37 paras 86-89 on contingencies (items 1 to 
3 above) can be expected to seriously prejudice the position of the entity in a dispute with other parties on the subject matter of 
the contingent liability or contingent asset. In such cases, the information need not be disclosed but the following must be 
disclosed:


0 1 Y


A5.21.4 (a) the general nature of the contingencies; 0 1 Y
A5.21.4 (b) the fact that the required information has not been disclosed; and 0 1 Y
A5.21.4 (c) the reason why the it has not been disclosed. 0 1 Y
A5.21.5 Disclose contingent liabilities arising from: 0 1 Y
A5.21.5 19p125 (a) post-employment benefit obligations; and 0 1 Y
A5.21.5


19p141 
(b) termination benefits (for example, due to the uncertainty over the number of employees who will accept an offer of 
termination benefits).


0 1 Y


A5.21.5 Refer also to section A5.14 and A5.15. Refer also to the contingencies in respect of lease agreements in Section A5.16 and 
contingencies in respect of joint ventures in Section A5.7.


0 1 Y


A5.22. Events after the reporting period 0 Yes 0 Total: 15 | P - 0 | Y - 15 | N - 0 | A - 0 | F - 0
A5.22.1 10p12


1p137(a)
Disclose the amount of dividends proposed or declared before the financial statements were authorised for issue but not 
recognised as a distribution to equity holders during the period, and the related amount per share.


0 1 Y


A5.22.2
10p21


Where events occurring after the balance sheet date do not affect the condition of assets or liabilities at the balance sheet date 
(ie, non-adjusting) but are of such importance that non-disclosure would affect the ability of the users of the financial 
statements to make proper evaluations and decisions, disclose:


0 1 Y


A5.22.2 (a) the nature of the event; and 0 1 Y
A5.22.2 (b) an estimate of the financial effect, or a statement that such an estimate cannot be made. 0 1 Y


A5.22.2 Examples of non-adjusting events that would generally require disclosure are provided in IAS 10 para 22. 0 1 Y


A5.22.3
33p64


If the number of ordinary or potential ordinary shares outstanding increases as a result of a capitalisation, bonus issue or share 
split, or decreases as a result of a reverse share split, adjust the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for all periods 
presented retrospectively. 


0 1 Y


A5.22.3 If these changes occur after the balance sheet date but before the financial statements are authorised for issue, base the per 
share calculations for those and any prior-period financial statements presented on the new number of shares. 


0 1 Y


A5.22.3 Disclose the fact that per-share calculations reflect such changes in the number of shares. In addition, adjust basic and diluted 
earnings per share of all periods presented for the effects of errors and adjustments resulting from changes in accounting 
policies, accounted for retrospectively.


0 1 Y


A5.22.4


33p70(d)


Provide a description of ordinary share transactions or potential ordinary share transactions – other than capitalisation, bonus 
issues or share splits, for which the basic and diluted earnings per share are adjusted retrospectively – that occur after the 
balance sheet date and that would have changed significantly the number of ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares 
outstanding at the end of the period if those transactions had occurred before the end of the reporting period.


0 1 Y


A5.22.4 Examples are provided in IAS 33 para 71. 0 1 Y
A5.22.5


12p81(i) 
Disclose the amount of income tax consequences of dividends that were proposed or declared after the balance sheet date but 
before the financial statements were authorised for issue.


0 1 Y


A5.22.6
12p82A


If income taxes are payable at a higher or lower rate if part or all of the net profit or retained earnings is paid out as a dividend to 
shareholders, disclose:


0 1 Y


A5.22.6 (a) the nature of the potential income tax consequences that would result from the payment of dividends; and 0 1 Y
A5.22.6 (b) the amounts of the potential income tax consequences practically determinable and whether there are any potential income 


tax consequences not practically determinable.
0 1 Y


A5.22.6
10p19


If an entity receives information after the balance sheet date about conditions that existed at the balance sheet date, update the 
disclosures that relate to those conditions in the light of the new information.


0 1 Y


A6. Statement of cash flows 1 Yes 0
A6.1. General presentation 0 Yes 0 Total: 15 | P - 0 | Y - 15 | N - 0 | A - 0 | F - 0
A6.1.1 Classify cash flows into three activities: operating, investing and financing activities. 0 1 Y
A6.1.2 7p18 Disclose cash flows from operating activities using either: 0 1 Y
A6.1.2 (a) the direct method, disclosing major classes of gross cash receipts or payments; or 0 1 Y







A6.1.2 (b) the indirect method, adjusting net profit and loss for the effects of:
(i) any transactions of a non-cash nature;


0 1 Y


A6.1.3
7p21 


For cash flows from investing and financing activities, disclose separately major classes of gross cash receipts and gross cash 
payments (except as noted in para 4 below). For example, proceeds from new borrowings have to be displayed separately from 
repayments of borrowings.


0 1 Y


A6.1.4
7p22


The following cash flows arising from the operating, investing or financing activities may be reported on a net basis (IAS 7 para 
23):


0 1 Y


A6.1.4 (a) cash receipts and payments on behalf of customers when the cash flows reflect the activities of the customer rather than 
those of the entity; and


0 1 Y


A6.1.4 (b) cash receipts and payments for items in which the turnover is quick, the amounts are large and the maturities are short. 0 1 Y


A6.1.5
7p28


Disclose separately from cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities, the effect of exchange rate changes on 
cash and cash equivalents held or due in foreign currency. This amount includes the differences, if any had those cash flows 
been reported at end of period exchange rates. 


0 1 Y


A6.1.6
7p35


Disclose separately cash flows from taxes on income in operating activities, unless they can be identified specifically with 
financing or investing activities.


0 1 Y


A6.1.7
7p43


For non-cash transactions, exclude from the cash flow statement those investing and financing transactions that do not require 
the use of cash and cash equivalents. Disclose non-cash transactions separately in the note to the cash flow statement.


0 1 Y


A6.1.7 7p44 Examples of non-cash transactions are: 0 1 Y
A6.1.7 (a) acquisition of assets either by assuming directly related liabilities or by means of a finance lease; 0 1 Y
A6.1.7 (b) acquisition of an entity by means of an equity issue; and 0 1 Y
A6.1.7 (c) conversion of debt to equity. 0 1 Y
A6.2. Individual items 1 Yes 0 Total: 27 | P - 0 | Y - 27 | N - 0 | A - 0 | F - 0
A6.2.1 For cash flows arising from taxes on income: 0 1 Y
A6.2.1 7p35 (a) disclose taxes paid; 0 1 Y
A6.2.1


7p36
(b) classify taxes paid as cash flows from operating activities unless specifically identified with financing and investing activities; 
and


0 1 Y


A6.2.1 (c) disclose the total amount of taxes paid when tax cash flows are allocated over more than one class of activity. 0 1 Y
A6.2.2 7p31 For cash flows from interest and dividends, disclose: 0 1 Y
A6.2.2 (a) interest received; 0 1 Y
A6.2.2 (b) interest paid; 0 1 Y
A6.2.2 (c) dividends received; and 0 1 Y
A6.2.2 (d) dividends paid. 0 1 Y
A6.2.2 Classify each of the above items in a consistent manner from period to period as either operating, investing or financing 0 1 Y
A6.2.2 7p33 Interest paid is normally classified as either operating or financing activities. 0 1 Y
A6.2.2 7p33 Interest and dividends received are normally classified as either operating or investing activities. 0 1 Y
A6.2.2 7p34 Dividends paid are normally classified as either financing or operating activities. 0 1 Y
A6.2.3 7p39 Aggregate cash flows arising from the following are presented separately and classified as investing activities: 0 1 Y
A6.2.3 (a) acquisitions; and 0 1 Y


A6.2.3 (b) disposals of subsidiaries or other business units. 0 1 Y
A6.2.3 Refer also to the disclosure requirements for acquisitions and disposals in Section A7. 0 1 Y
A6.2.4 7p45 For cash and cash equivalents, disclose: 0 1 Y
A6.2.4 (a) the components; and 0 1 Y
A6.2.4 (b) reconciliation of amounts in cash flow statement with cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet. 0 1 Y
A6.2.5


7p48
Disclose the amount of significant cash and cash equivalent balances held by the entity that are not available for use by the 
group, and provide a commentary by management.


0 1 Y


A6.2.6
DV, 7p50


Voluntary disclosures. Provide additional information relevant to understanding the financial position and liquidity of an entity, 
and a commentary by management:


0 1 Y


A6.2.6 (a) the amount of undrawn borrowing facilities available for future operating activities and to settle capital commitments, 
indicating any restrictions as to the use of these facilities;


0 1 Y


A6.2.6 (b) the aggregate amounts of the cash flows from each of operating, investing and financing activities related to interests in joint 
ventures reported using proportionate consolidation;


0 1 Y


A6.2.6 (c) the aggregate amount of cash flows that represent increases in operating capacity separately from those cash flows that are 
required to maintain operating capacity; and


0 1 Y


A6.2.6 (d) the amount of cash flows arising from the operating, investing and financing activities of each reported industry and 
geographical segment.


0 1 Y


A6.2.7


44A/E


Disclose the reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the statement of financial position for liabilities arising 
from financing activities. (Note: As on date of issue of the e-check, the EU has not yet endorsed this amendment. ) 


i 1 1 Y


A6.3. Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries and other businesses 0 Yes 0 Total: 14 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 14 | F - 0
A6.3.1 7p39 Disclose separately aggregate cash flows from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other businesses, and classify the 


cash flows as an investing activity.
0 1 A


A6.3.2 7p40(a)-(d) Disclose, in aggregate, in respect of both obtaining and losing control of subsidiaries or other businesses during the period: 0 1 A
A6.3.2 (a) the total consideration paid or received; 0 1 A
A6.3.2 (b) the portion of the consideration that is cash and cash equivalents; 0 1 A


A6.3.2 (c) the amount of cash and cash equivalents in the subsidiaries or other businesses which control is obtained or lost; and 0 1 A
A6.3.2 (d) the amount of the assets and liabilities, other  than cash or cash equivalents, in the subsidiaries or other businesses over 


which control is obtained or lost, summarised by each major category.
0 1 A


A6.3.3
7p42A


Cash flows arising from changes in ownership interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are classified as 
cash flows from financing activities. 


0 1 A


A6.3.4


7p42B


Changes in ownership interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control, such as the subsequent purchase or sale by 
a parent of a subsidiary’s equity instruments, are accounted for as equity transactions under IFRS 10. Accordingly the resulting 
cash flows are classified in the same way as other transactions with owners described in IAS 7p17.


0 1 A


A6.3.5 IFRS5p33(c) Discontinued operations. Disclose the amounts of net cash flows from: 0 1 A
A6.3.5 (a) operating activities; 0 1 A
A6.3.5 (b) investing activities; and 0 1 A
A6.3.5 (c) financing activities. 0 1 A
A6.3.5 These disclosures may be presented either in the notes to, or on the face of, the financial statements. 0 1 A
A6.3.6


IFRS5p34
Re-represent the disclosures related to discontinued operations in the statement of cash flows for prior periods presented so 
that the disclosures relate to all operations that have been discontinued by the end of the reporting period for the latest period 
presented. 


0 1 A


A7. Business combinations 0 Yes 0
A7.1. General disclosures 0 Yes 0 Total: 26 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 26 | F - 0
A7.1.1 IFRS3p59 The acquirer discloses information that enables users of its financial statements to evaluate the nature and financial effect of a 


business combination that occurs either: 
0 1 A


A7.1.1 IFRS3p59(a) (a) during the current reporting period; or  0 1 A
A7.1.1 IFRS3p59(b) (b) after the end of the reporting period but before the financial statements are authorised for issue.  0 1 A
A7.1.2 IFRS3p60 To meet the objective in IFRS 3 para 59, the acquirer discloses the information specified in paras B64-B66.  0 1 A
A7.1.3 IFRS3pB64  For each business combination that took effect during the reporting period, disclose: 0 1 A
A7.1.3 IFRS3pB64(a) (a) the name and a description of the acquiree 0 1 A
A7.1.3 IFRS3pB64(b) (b) the acquisition date; 0 1 A
A7.1.3 IFRS3pB64(c) (c) the percentage of voting equity interests acquired; 0 1 A
A7.1.3


IFRS3pB64(d)
(d) the primary reasons for the business combination and a description of how the acquirer obtained control of the acquiree; 0 1 A


A7.1.3
IFRS3pB64(e)


(e) a qualitative description of the factors that make up the goodwill recognised, such as expected synergies from combining 
operations of the acquiree and the acquirer, and intangible assets that do not qualify for separate recognition or other factor or 
other factors; 


0 1 A


A7.1.3
IFRS3pB64(f)


IFRS3pB64(f)(i)
IFRS3pB64(f)(ii)
IFRS3pB64(f)(iii)
IFRS3pB64(f)(iv)


(f) the acquisition-date fair value of the total consideration transferred and the acquisition-date fair value of each major class of 
consideration, such as: 
(i) cash; 
(ii) other tangible or intangible assets, including a business or subsidiary of the acquirer; 
(iii) liabilities incurred − for example, a liability for contingent consideration; and 
(iv) equity interests of the acquirer, including the number of instruments or interests issued or issuable and the method of 
determining the fair value of those instruments or interests. 


0 1 A


A7.1.3
IFRS3pB64(g)


IFRS3pB64(g)(i)
IFRS3pB64(g)(ii)
IFRS3pB64(g)(iii)


(g) for contingent consideration arrangements and indemnification assets:
(i) the amount recognised as of the acquisition date; 
(ii)  a description of the arrangement and the basis for determining the amount of the payment; and 
(iii)  an estimate of the range of outcomes (undiscounted) or, if a range cannot be estimated, that fact and the reasons why a 
range cannot be estimated. If the maximum amount of the payment is unlimited, the acquirer discloses that fact;


0 1 A


A7.1.3 IFRS3pB64(h)  
IFRS3pB64(h) (i)  
IFRS3pB64(h)(ii) 
IFRS3pB64(h)(iii) 


(h) for acquired receivables: 
(i) the fair value of the receivables; 
(ii) the gross contractual amounts receivable; and 
 (iii) the best estimate at the acquisition date of the contractual cash flows not expected to be collected.


0 1 A


A7.1.3 The disclosures should be provided by major class of receivable, such as loans, direct finance leases and any other class of 
receivables.


0 1 A


A7.1.3 IFRS3pB64(i) (i) the amounts recognised as of the acquisition date for each major class of assets acquired and liabilities assumed. 0 1 A


A7.1.3
IFRS3pB64(j)


IFRS3pB64(j)(i) 
IFRS3pB64(j)(ii) 


(j) for each contingent liability recognised in accordance with IFRS 3 para 23, the information required in IFRS 3 para 85 of IAS 
37, ‘Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets’. If a contingent liability is not recognised because its fair value 
cannot be measured reliably, the acquirer discloses: 
(i) the information required by IAS 37 paragraph 86; and 
(ii) the reasons why the liability cannot be measured reliably (refer to Section A5.13 for detailed IAS 37 para 85 disclosure  
requirements and to  A5.21 for detailed IAS 37 para 86 disclosure requirements);


0 1 A


A7.1.3 IFRS3pB64(k) (k)  the total amount of goodwill that is expected to be deductible for tax purposes; 0 1 A


A7.1.3 IFRS3pB64(l)
IFRS3pB64(l)(i)
IFRS3pB64(l)(ii)


IFRS3pB64 (l)(iii)
IFRS3pB64(l) (iv)


(l)  for transactions that are recognised separately from the acquisition of assets and assumption of liabilities in the business 
combination in accordance with IFRS 3 para 51: 
(i) a description of each transaction;
(ii) how the acquirer accounted for each transaction; 
(iii) the amounts recognised for each transaction and the line item in the financial statements in which each amount is 
recognised; and 
(iv) if the transaction is the effective settlement of a pre-existing relationship, the method used to determine the settlement 


0 1 A


A7.1.3
IFRS3pB64(m)


(m) separately recognised transactions required by IFRS 3 para 64(l), which  includes the amount of acquisition-related costs 
and, separately, the amount of those costs recognised as an expense and the line item or items in the statement of 
comprehensive income in which those expenses are recognised. Also disclose the amount of any issue costs not recognised as an 


0 1 A


A7.1.3 IFRS3pB64(n)
IFRS3pB64 (n)(i)


IFRS3pB64 (n) (ii)


(n) in a bargain purchase (see IFRS 3 paras 34-36): 
(i) the amount of any gain recognised in accordance with IFRS 3  para 34 and the line item in the statement of comprehensive 
income in which the gain is recognised; and 
(ii) a description of the reasons why the transaction resulted in a gain;


0 1 A


A7.1.3 IFRS3pB64(o) 
IFRS3pB64 (o)(i) 


(o) for each business combination in which the acquirer holds less than 100% of the equity interests in the acquiree at the 
acquisition date: 


0 1 A


A7.1.3
IFRS3pB64(p) 


IFRS3pB64(p)(i) 
IFRS3pB64(p) ii)


(p) in a business combination achieved in stages:
(i) the acquisition-date fair value of the equity interest in the acquiree held by the acquirer immediately before the acquisition 
date; and 
(ii) the amount of any gain or loss recognised as a result of remeasuring to fair value the equity interest in the acquiree held by 
the acquirer before the business combination (see IFRS 3 para 42) and the line item in the statement of comprehensive income 
in which that gain or loss is recognised; and


0 1 A


A7.1.3
IFRS3pB64(q)


IFRS3pB64(q)(i)
IFRS3pB64 (q)(ii)


(q) the following information: 
(i) the amounts of revenue and profit or loss of the acquiree since the acquisition date included in the consolidated statement of 
comprehensive income for the reporting period; and 
(ii) the revenue and profit or loss of the combined entity for the current reporting period as though the acquisition date for all 
business combinations that occurred during the year had been as of the beginning of the annual reporting period. 


0 1 A


A7.1.4
IFRS3pB64


If disclosure of any of the information required by this subparagraph is impracticable, the acquirer discloses that fact and 
explains why the disclosure is impracticable. IFRS 3 uses the term 'impracticable' with the same meaning as in IAS 8, 
‘Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors’. 


0 1 A


A7.1.5
FRS3pB65


For individually immaterial business combinations occurring during the reporting period that are material collectively, the 
acquirer discloses in aggregate the information required by paragraph B64(e)-(q). 


0 1 A


A7.1.6 IFRS 3pB66 If the acquisition date of a business combination is after the end of the reporting period but before the financial statements are 
authorised for issue, the acquirer discloses the information required by IFRS 3 para B64 unless the initial accounting for the 


0 1 A


A7.2. Adjustments 0 Yes 0 Total: 1 | P - 0 | Y - 1 | N - 0 | A - 0 | F - 0
A7.2.1


IFRS3p61
The acquirer discloses information that enables users of its financial statements to evaluate the financial effects of adjustments 
recognised in the current reporting period that relate to business combinations that occurred in the period or previous reporting 
periods.  


0 1 Y


A7.3. Measurement period 0 Yes 0 Total: 3 | P - 0 | Y - 2 | N - 0 | A - 1 | F - 0
A7.3.1 IFRS3p62 To meet the objective in IFRS 3 para 61, the acquirer discloses the information specified in IFRS 3 para B67.  0 1 Y
A7.3.2


IFRS3pB67
To meet the objective in IFRS 3 para 61, the acquirer discloses the following information for each material business combination 
or in the aggregate for individually immaterial business combinations that are material collectively:


0 1 A


A7.3.2


IFRS3pB67(a)  
IFRS3pB67 (a)(i), (ii) 


IFRS3pB67(a), (iii)


(a) if the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete (see IFRS 3 para 45) for particular assets, liabilities, non-
controlling interests or items of consideration and the amounts recognised in the financial statements for the business 
combination have been determined only provisionally: 
(i) the reasons why the initial accounting for the business combination is incomplete; 
(ii) the assets, liabilities, equity interests or items of consideration for which the initial accounting is incomplete; and
(iii) the nature and amount of any measurement period adjustments recognised during the reporting period in accordance with 
IFRS 3 para 49. 


0 1 Y


A7.4. Contingent consideration 0 Yes 0 Total: 4 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 4 | F - 0
A7.4.1


IFRS3pB67(b) 
For each reporting period after the acquisition date until the entity collects, sells or otherwise loses the right to a contingent 
consideration asset, or until the entity settles a contingent consideration liability or the liability is cancelled or expires: 


0 1 A


A7.4.1 IFRS3pB67 (b)(i) (a) any changes in the recognised amounts, including any differences arising upon settlement; 0 1 A
A7.4.1 IFRS3pB67 (b)(ii) (b) any changes in the range of outcomes (undiscounted) and the reasons for those changes; and 0 1 A
A7.4.1 IFRS3pB67 (b)(iii) (c) the valuation techniques and key model inputs used to measure contingent consideration. 0 1 A
A7.5. Contingent liabilities 0 Yes 0 Total: 2 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 2 | F - 0
A7.5.1 IFRS3pB67 (c) For contingent liabilities recognised in a business combination, the acquirer discloses the information required by IAS 37 paras 


84 and 85 for each class of provision;
0 1 A


A7.5.1 Refer to Section A5.13  for detailed IAS 37 para 84 and para 85 disclosure requirements. 0 1 A


A7.6. Goodwill 0 Yes 0 Total: 10 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 10 | F - 0
A7.6.1 IFRS3pB67 (d) Disclose a reconciliation of the carrying amount of goodwill at the beginning and end of the reporting period showing separately: 0 1 A


A7.6.1 IFRS3pB67 (d) (i) (a) the gross amount and accumulated impairment losses at the beginning of the reporting period; 0 1 A







A7.6.1
IFRS3pB67 (d)(ii) 


(b) additional goodwill recognised during the reporting period, except goodwill included in a disposal group that, on acquisition, 
meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale in accordance with ‘IFRS 5, Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued 
operations’;


0 1 A


A7.6.1 IFRS3pB67 (d)(iii) (c) adjustments resulting from the subsequent recognition of deferred tax assets during the reporting period in accordance with 
IFRS 3 para 67; 


0 1 A


A7.6.1
IFRS3pB67 (d)(iv)


(d) goodwill included in a disposal group classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 and goodwill derecognised during 
the reporting period without having previously been included in a disposal group classified as held for sale;


0 1 A


A7.6.1
IFRS3pB67(d)(v)


(e) impairment losses recognised during the reporting period in accordance with IAS 36 (IAS 36 requires disclosure of 
information about the recoverable amount and impairment of goodwill in addition to this requirement);


0 1 A


A7.6.1
IFRS3pB67(d)(vi) 


(f) net exchange rate differences arising during the reporting period in accordance with IAS 21, ‘The effects of changes in foreign 
exchange rates’; 


0 1 A


A7.6.1 IFRS3pB67 (d) (vii) (g) any other changes in the carrying amount during the reporting period; and 0 1 A


A7.6.1 IFRS3pB67(d) (viii) (h) the gross amount and accumulated impairment losses at the end of the reporting period. 0 1 A


A7.6.2
36p133


If any portion of the goodwill recognised in a business combination during the period has not been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (group of units) at the reporting date (see IAS 36 para 84), disclose the amount of the unallocated goodwill 
together with the reasons why that amount remains unallocated.


0 1 A


A7.7. Evaluation of the financial effects of gains and losses recognised in the current reporting period 0 Yes 0 Total: 4 | P - 0 | Y - 4 | N - 0 | A - 0 | F - 0
A7.7.1 IFRS3pB67(e) Disclose the amount and an explanation of any gain or loss recognised in the current reporting period that both: 0 1 Y


A7.7.1
IFRS3pB67(e)(i) 


(a) relates to the identifiable assets acquired or liabilities assumed in a business combination that was effected in the current or 
previous reporting period; and 


0 1 Y


A7.7.1
IFRS3pB67(e)(ii) 


(b) is of such a size, nature or incidence that disclosure is relevant to understanding the combined entity's financial statements. 0 1 Y


A7.7.2
IFRS3p63


If the specific disclosures required by this and other IFRSs do not meet the objectives set out in IFRS 3 paras 59 and 61, the 
acquirer discloses whatever additional information is necessary to meet those objectives.  


0 1 Y


A7.8. Other disclosures impacted by IFRS 3 − income taxes 0 Yes 0 Total: 3 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 3 | F - 0
A7.8.1 Disclose separately: 0 1 A
A7.8.1


12p81(j)
(a) If a business combination in which the entity is the acquirer causes a change in the amount recognises for its pre-acquisition 
deferred tax asset (see IAS 12 para 67), the amount of that change; and


0 1 A


A7.8.1
12p81(k)


(b)If the deferred tax benefits acquired in a business combination are not recognised at the acquisition date but are recognised 
after the acquisition date (see IAS 12 para 68), a description of the event or change in circumstances that caused the deferred tax 
benefits to be recognised.


0 1 A


A8. Financial instruments 0 Yes 0
A8.1. General disclosures 0 Yes 0 Total: 2 | P - 0 | Y - 2 | N - 0 | A - 0 | F - 0
A8.1.


IFRS7p6 AppxB1-B3
When IFRS 7 requires disclosures by class of financial instrument, group the financial instruments into classes that are 
appropriate to the nature of the information disclosed. Take into account the characteristics of those financial instruments. 
Provide sufficient information to permit reconciliation to the line items presented in the balance sheet.


0 1 Y


A8.1.
IFRs7p7


Disclose information that enables users of the financial statements to evaluate the significance of financial instruments for 
financial position and performance.


0 1 Y


A8.2. Categories of financial assets and financial liabilities 0 Yes 0 Total: 7 | P - 0 | Y - 7 | N - 0 | A - 0 | F - 0
A8.2.1 IFRS7p8 Disclose either on the face of the balance sheet or in the notes the carrying amounts of each of the following categories, as 


defined in IAS 39:
0 1 Y


A8.2.1 (a) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, showing separately: 
(i)  those designated as such upon initial recognition; and 
(ii)  those classified as held for trading in accordance with IAS 39;


0 1 Y


A8.2.1 (b) held-to-maturity investments; 0 1 Y
A8.2.1 (c) loans and receivables; 0 1 Y
A8.2.1 (d) available-for-sale financial assets; 0 1 Y
A8.2.1 (e) financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, showing separately:


 (i)  those designated as such upon initial recognition; and 
(ii)  those classified as held for trading in accordance with IAS 39; and


0 1 Y


A8.2.1 (f) financial liabilities measured at amortised cost. 0 1 Y


A8.3. Financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 0 Yes 0 Total: 11 | P - 0 | Y - 11 | N - 0 | A - 0 | F - 0
A8.3.1 IFRS7p9 If a loan or receivable (or group of loans or receivables) is designated as at fair value through profit or loss, disclose: 0 1 Y


A8.3.1 (a) the maximum exposure to credit risk (see IFRS7p36(a)) of the loan or receivable (or group of loans or receivables) at the 
reporting date;


0 1 Y


A8.3.1 (b) the amount by which any related credit derivatives or similar instruments mitigate that maximum exposure to credit risk; 0 1 Y


A8.3.1 (c) the amount of change, during the period and cumulatively, in the fair value of the loan or receivable (or group of loans or 
receivables) that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of the financial asset determined either:
(i) as the amount of change in its fair value that is not attributable to changes in market conditions that give rise to market risk; 
or
(ii) using an alternative method that the entity believes more faithfully represents the amount of change in its fair value that is 
attributable to changes in the credit risk of the asset. Changes in market conditions that give rise to market risk include changes 


0 1 Y


A8.3.1 (d)  the amount of the change in the fair value of any related credit derivatives or similar instruments that has occurred during 
the period and cumulatively since the loan or receivable was designated.


0 1 Y


A8.3.2 IFRS7p10 AppxB4 If the entity has designated a financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with IAS 39 para 9, disclose: 0 1 Y


A8.3.2 (a) the amount of change, during the period and cumulatively, in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to 
changes in the credit risk of that liability determined either:
(i) as the amount of change in its fair value that is not attributable to changes in market conditions that give rise to market risk 
(see IFRS 7 Appendix B4); or
(ii) using an alternative method that the entity believes more faithfully represents the amount of change in its fair value that is 
attributable to changes in the credit risk of the liability. Changes in market conditions that give rise to market risk include 
changes in a benchmark interest rate, the price of another entity’s financial instrument, a commodity price, a foreign exchange 
rate or an index of prices or rates. For contracts that include a unit-linking feature, changes in market conditions include 
changes in the performance of the related internal or external investment fund; and


0 1 Y


A8.3.2 (b) the difference between the financial liability’s carrying amount and the amount the entity would be contractually required to 
pay at maturity to the holder of the obligation.


0 1 Y


A8.3.3 IFRS7p11 AppxB4 Disclose: 0 1 Y
A8.3.3 (a) the methods used to comply with the requirements in IFRS 7 para 9(c) and IFRS 7 para 10(a); and 0 1 Y
A8.3.3 (b) if the entity believes that the disclosure it has given to comply with the requirements in IFRS 7 para 9(c) and IFRS 7 para 


10(a) does not faithfully represent the change in the fair value of the financial asset or financial liability attributable to changes 
in its credit risk, the reasons for reaching this conclusion and the factors it believes are relevant.


0 1 Y


A8.4. Reclassification 0 Yes 0 Total: 12 | P - 0 | Y - 12 | N - 0 | A - 0 | F - 0
A8.4.1 IFRS7p12 If the entity has reclassified a financial asset (in accordance with paragraphs IAS 39 paras 51-54) as one measured: 0 1 Y


A8.4.1 (a) at cost or amortised cost, rather than at fair value; or 0 1 Y
A8.4.1 (b) at fair value, rather than at cost or amortised cost, 0 1 Y
A8.4.1 disclose the amount reclassified into and out of each category and the reason for that reclassification. 0 1 Y
A8.4.1 An amendment to IAS 39, issued in October 2008, permits an entity to reclassify non-derivative financial assets (other than 


those designated at fair value through profit or loss by the entity upon initial recognition) out of the fair value through profit 
0 1 Y


A8.4.2
IFRS7p12A


If the entity has reclassified a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category in accordance with IAS 39 paras 
50B or 50D or out of the available-for-sale category in accordance with paragraph 50E of IAS 39, disclose:


0 1 Y


A8.4.2 (a) the amount reclassified into and out of each category; 0 1 Y


A8.4.2 (b) for each reporting period until derecognition, the carrying amounts and fair values of all financial assets that have been 
reclassified in the current and previous reporting periods;


0 1 Y


A8.4.2 (c) if a financial asset was reclassified in accordance with paragraph 50B, the rare situation, and the facts and circumstances 
indicating that the situation was rare; 


0 1 Y


A8.4.2 (d) for the reporting period when the financial asset was reclassified, the fair value gain or loss on the financial asset recognised 
in profit or loss or other comprehensive income in that reporting period and in the previous reporting period;


0 1 Y


A8.4.2 (e) for each reporting period following the reclassification (including the reporting period in which the financial asset was 
reclassified) until derecognition of the financial asset, the fair value gain or loss that would have been recognised in profit or 
loss or other comprehensive income if the financial asset had not been reclassified, and the gain, loss, income and expense 
recognised in profit or loss; and 


0 1 Y


A8.4.2 (f) the effective interest rate and estimated amounts of cash flows the entity expects to recover, as at the date of reclassification 
of the financial asset.


0 1 Y


A8.5. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 0 Yes 0 Total: 6 | P - 0 | Y - 6 | N - 0 | A - 0 | F - 0
A8.5.1


IFRS7p13A


The disclosures in IFRS 7 paras 13B–13E supplement the other disclosure requirements of this IFRS and are required for all 
recognised financial instruments that are set off in accordance with paragraph 42 of IAS 32. These disclosures also apply to 
recognised financial instruments that are subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement, 
irrespective of whether they are set off in accordance with paragraph 42 of IAS 32.


0 1 Y


A8.5.2


IFRS7p13B


An entity shall disclose information to enable users of its financial statements to evaluate the effect or potential effect of netting 
arrangements on the entity’s financial position. This includes the effect or potential effect of rights of set-off associated with the 
entity’s recognised financial assets and recognised financial liabilities that are within the scope of paragraph 13A.


0 1 Y


A8.5.3


IFRS7p13C


To meet the objective in paragraph 13B, an entity shall disclose, at the end of the reporting period, the following quantitative 
information separately for recognised financial assets and recognised financial liabilities that are within the scope of paragraph 
13A:
(a) the gross amounts of those recognised financial assets and recognised financial liabilities;
(b) the amounts that are set off in accordance with the criteria in paragraph 42 of IAS 32 when determining the net amounts 
presented in the statement of financial position;
(c) the net amounts presented in the statement of financial position;
(d) the amounts subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement that are not otherwise included in 
paragraph 13C(b), including:
(i) amounts related to recognised financial instruments that do not meet some or all of the offsetting criteria in paragraph 42 of 
IAS 32; and
(ii) amounts related to financial collateral (including cash collateral); and
(e) the net amount after deducting the amounts in (d) from the amounts in (c) above.


0 1 Y


A8.5.4 IFRS7p13D The total amount disclosed in accordance with paragraph 13C(d) for an instrument shall be limited to the amount in paragraph 
13C(c) for that instrument.


0 1 Y


A8.5.5


IFRS7p13E


An entity shall include a description in the disclosures of the rights of set-off associated with the entity’s recognised financial 
assets and recognised financial liabilities subject to enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements that are 
disclosed in accordance with paragraph 13C(d), including the nature of those rights.


0 1 Y


A8.5.6 IFRS7p13F If the information required by paragraphs 13B–13E is disclosed in more than one note to the financial statements, an entity 
shall cross-refer between those notes.


0 1 Y


A8.6. Transfers of financial assets 0 Yes 0


A8.6.a. - Transferred financial assets 0 Yes 0 Total: 11 | P - 0 | Y - 4 | N - 0 | A - 7 | F - 0
A8.6.a.1 IFRS7p42A, (a),(b) The disclosure requirements outlined below should be disclosed in a single note in the financial statements. 0 1 A
A8.6.a.2 Provide the required disclosures for all transferred financial assets that are not derecognised and for any continuing 


involvement in a transferred asset, existing at the reporting date, irrespective of when the related transfer transaction occurred. 
0 1 A


A8.6.a.3 For the purposes of applying the disclosure requirements in those paragraphs, an entity transfers all or a part of a financial 
asset (the transferred financial asset) only if it either:


0 1 A


A8.6.a.3 (a) transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of that financial asset; or 0 1 A
A8.6.a.3 (b) retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of that financial asset but assumes a contractual obligation to pay 


the cash flows to one or more recipients in an arrangement.
0 1 A


A8.6.a.4 IFRS7p42B, (a),(b) Disclose information that enables users of its financial statements: 0 1 A
A8.6.a.4 (a) to understand the relationship between transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety and the 


associated liabilities; and
0 1 Y


A8.6.a.4 (b) to evaluate the nature of, and risks associated with, the entity's continuing involvement in derecognised financial assets. 0 1 Y


A8.6.a.5
IFRS7p42C, (a-c)


For the purposes of applying the disclosure requirements in IFRS 7 paras 42E-42H, an entity has continuing involvement in a 
transferred financial asset if, as part of the transfer, the entity retains any of the contractual rights or obligations inherent in 
the transferred financial asset or obtains any new contractual rights or obligations relating to the transferred financial asset. 
For the purposes of applying the disclosure requirements in paras 42E-42H, the following do not constitute continuing 


0 1 A


A8.6.a.5 (a) forward, option and other contracts to reacquire the transferred financial asset for which the contract price (or exercise 
price) is the fair value of the transferred financial asset; or


0 1 Y


A8.6.a.5 (b) an arrangement whereby an entity retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of a financial asset but assumes a 
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more entities and the conditions in IAS 39 para 19(a)-(c) are met.


0 1 Y


A8.6.b. - Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety 0 Yes 0 Total: 7 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 7 | F - 0
A8.6.b.1


IFRS 7p42D,(a-f)
An entity may have transferred financial assets in such a way that part or all of the transferred financial assets do not qualify for 
derecognition. To meet the objectives set out in IFRS 7 para 42B(a), disclose at each reporting date for each class of transferred 
financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety:


0 1 A


A8.6.b.1 (a) the nature of the transferred asset; 0 1 A
A8.6.b.1 (b) the nature of the risks and rewards of ownership to which the entity is exposed; 0 1 A
A8.6.b.1 (c) a description of the nature of the relationship between the transferred assets and the associated liabilities, including 


restrictions arising from the transfer on the reporting entity's use of the transferred assets;
0 1 A


A8.6.b.1 (d) when the counterparty (counterparties) to the associated liabilities has (have) recourse only to the transferred assets, a 
schedule that sets out the fair value of the transferred assets, the fair value of the associated liabilities and the net position (the 
difference between the fair value of the transferred assets and the associated liabilities);


0 1 A


A8.6.b.1 (e) when the entity continues to recognise all of the transferred assets, the carrying amounts of the transferred assets and the 
associated liabilities; and


0 1 A


A8.6.b.1 (f) when the entity continues to recognise the assets to the extent of its continuing involvement (see IAS 39 paras 20(c)(ii) and 
30), the total carrying amount of the original assets before the transfer, the carrying amount of the assets that the entity 
continues to recognise, and the carrying amount of the associated liabilities.


0 1 A


A8.6.c. - Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in their entirety 0 Yes 0 Total: 13 | P - 0 | Y - 13 | N - 0 | A - 0 | F - 0
A8.6.c.1


IFRS7p42E,(a-f)
To meet the objectives set out in IFRS 7 para 42B(b), when an entity derecognises transferred financial assets in their entirety 
(see IAS 39 para 20(a) and (c)(i)) but has continuing involvement in them, disclose, as a minimum, for each type of continuing 
involvement at each reporting date:


0 1 Y


A8.6.c.1 (a) the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities that are recognised in the entity's statement of financial position and 
represent the entity's continuing involvement in the derecognised financial assets, and the line items in which the carrying 


0 1 Y


A8.6.c.1 (b) the fair value of the assets and liabilities that represent the entity's continuing involvement in the derecognised financial 
assets;


0 1 Y







A8.6.c.1 (c) the amount that best represents the entity's maximum exposure to loss from its continuing involvement in the derecognised 
financial assets, and information showing how the maximum exposure to loss is determined;


0 1 Y


A8.6.c.1 (d) the undiscounted cash outflows that would or may be required to repurchase derecognised financial assets (for example, the 
strike price in an option agreement) or other amounts payable to the transferee in respect of the transferred assets. If the cash 
outflow is variable the amount disclosed should be based on the conditions that exist at each reporting date;


0 1 Y


A8.6.c.1 (e) a maturity analysis of the undiscounted cash outflows that would or may be required to repurchase the derecognised 
financial assets or other amounts payable to the transferee in respect of the transferred assets, showing the remaining 


0 1 Y


A8.6.c.1 (f) qualitative information that explains and supports the quantitative disclosures required in (a)-(e). 0 1 Y
A8.6.c.1


IFRS7p42F
An entity may aggregate the information required by IFRS 7 para 42E in respect of a particular asset if the entity has more 
than one type of continuing involvement in that derecognised financial asset, and report it under one type of continuing 
involvement.


0 1 Y


A8.6.c.2 IFRS7p42G,(a-c) Disclose for each type of continuing involvement: 0 1 Y
A8.6.c.2 (a) the gain or loss recognised at the date of transfer of the assets; 0 1 Y
A8.6.c.2 (b) income and expenses recognised, both in the reporting period and cumulatively, from the entity's continuing involvement in 


the derecognised financial assets (for example, fair value changes in derivative instruments);
0 1 Y


A8.6.c.2 (c) if the total amount of proceeds from transfer activity (that qualifies for derecognition) in a reporting period is not evenly 
distributed throughout the reporting period (for example, if a substantial proportion of the total amount of transfer activity 
takes place in the closing days of a reporting period):
(i) when the greatest transfer activity took place within that reporting period (eg the last five days before the end of the reporting 
period);
(ii) the amount (for example, related gains or losses) recognised from transfer activity in that part of the reporting period; and
(iii) the total amount of proceeds from transfer activity in that part of the reporting period.


0 1 Y


A8.6.c.2 Provide this information for each period for which a statement of comprehensive income is presented. 0 1 Y


A8.6.d. - Supplementary information 0 Yes 0 Total: 3 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 3 | F - 0
A8.6.d.1


IFRS7p42H
Disclose any additional information that it considers necessary to meet the disclosure objectives in IFRS 7 para 42B. 0 1 A


A8.6.d.1 IFRS7p44M If an entity applies the amendments from an earlier date, disclose
that fact.


0 1 A


A8.6.d.1


IFRS7p44AA


Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012–2014 Cycle , issued in September 2014, amended paragraphs 44R and B30 and added 
paragraph B30A, containing new guidance on what is meant by continuing involvement. The amendment adds specific guidance 
to help management determine whether the terms of an arrangement to service a financial asset which has been transferred 
constitute continuing involvement for the purpose of the disclosure requirements.


An entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting 
Estimates and Errors for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, except that an entity need not apply the 
amendments to paragraphs B30 and B30A for any period presented that begins before the annual period for which the entity 
first applies those amendments. Earlier application of the amendments to paragraphs 44R, B30 and B30A is permitted. If an 
entity applies those amendments for an earlier period it shall disclose that fact. 


0 1 A


A8.7. Collateral 0 Yes 0 Total: 7 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 7 | F - 0
A8.7.1 IFRS7p14 Disclose: 0 1 A
A8.7.1 (a) the carrying amount of financial assets that the entity has pledged as collateral for liabilities or contingent liabilities, 


including amounts that have been reclassified in accordance with IAS 39 paras 37(a); and 
0 1 A


A8.7.1 (b) the terms and conditions relating to its pledge. 0 1 A
A8.7.2


IFRS7p15
When the entity holds collateral (of financial or non-financial assets) and is permitted to sell or repledge the collateral in the 
absence of default by the owner of the collateral, disclose: 


0 1 A


A8.7.2 (a) the fair value of the collateral held; 0 1 A
A8.7.2 (b) the fair value of any such collateral sold or repledged, and whether the entity has an obligation to return it; and 0 1 A


A8.7.2 (c) the terms and conditions associated with its use of the collateral. 0 1 A
A8.8. Allowance account for credit losses 0 Yes 0 Total: 1 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 1 | F - 0
A8.8.1


IFRS7p16 
AppxB1-B3, B5(d)


When financial assets are impaired by credit losses and the entity records the impairment in a separate account (for example, an 
allowance account used to record individual impairments or a similar account used to record a collective impairment of assets) 
rather than directly reducing the carrying amount of the asset, disclose a reconciliation of changes in that account during the 
period for each class of financial assets.


0 1 A


A8.9. Compound financial instruments with multiple embedded derivatives 0 Yes 0 Total: 1 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 1 | F - 0
A8.9.1


IFRS7p17
If the entity has issued an instrument that contains both a liability and an equity component (IAS 32 para 28) and the 
instrument has multiple embedded derivatives whose values are interdependent (such as a callable convertible debt 
instrument), disclose the existence of those features.


0 1 A


A8.10. Defaults and breaches 0 Yes 0 Total: 5 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 5 | F - 0
A8.10.1 IFRS7p18 For loans payable recognised at the reporting date, disclose: 0 1 A


A8.10.1 (a) details of any defaults during the period of principal, interest, sinking fund or redemption terms of those loans payable; 0 1 A


A8.10.1 (b) the carrying amount of the loans payable in default at the reporting date; and 0 1 A
A8.10.1 (c) whether the default was remedied, or the terms of the loans payable were renegotiated, before the financial statements were 


authorised for issue. 
0 1 A


A8.10.2


IFRS7p19


If during the period there were breaches of loan agreement terms other than those described in IFRS 7 para 18, disclose the 
same information as required by IFRS 7 para18 if those breaches permitted the lender to demand accelerated repayment (unless 
the breaches were remedied, or the terms of the loan were renegotiated, on or before the reporting date). 


0 1 A


A8.11. Items of income, expense, gains or losses 0 Yes 0 Total: 6 | P - 0 | Y - 6 | N - 0 | A - 0 | F - 0
A8.11.1 IFRS7p20 AppxB1-B3, 


B5(d)
Disclose the following items of income, expense, gains or losses either on the face of the financial statements or in the notes: 0 1 Y


A8.11.1 (a) net gains or net losses on:
(i) financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, showing separately those on financial assets or 
financial liabilities designated as such upon initial recognition, and those on financial assets or financial liabilities that are 
classified as held for trading in accordance with IAS 39;
(ii) available-for-sale financial assets, showing separately the amount of gain or loss recognised directly in equity during the 
period and the amount removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss for the period;
(iii) held-to-maturity investments;
(iv) loans and receivables; and
(v) financial liabilities measured at amortised cost;


0 1 Y


A8.11.1 (b) total interest income and total interest expense (calculated using the effective interest method) for financial assets or 
financial liabilities that are not at fair value through profit or loss;


0 1 Y


A8.11.1 (c) fee income and expense (other than amounts included in determining the effective interest rate) arising from:
(i) financial assets or financial liabilities that are not at fair value through profit or loss; and
(ii) trust and other fiduciary activities that result in the holding or investing of assets on behalf of individuals, trusts, retirement 
benefit plans and other institutions;


0 1 Y


A8.11.1 (d) interest income on impaired financial assets accrued in accordance with IAS 39 AG 93; and 0 1 Y
A8.11.1 (e) the amount of any impairment loss for each class of financial asset. 0 1 Y


A8.12. Other disclosures Yes 0
A8.12.a. - Accounting policies 0 Yes 0 Total: 10 | P - 0 | Y - 10 | N - 0 | A - 0 | F - 0
A8.12.a.


IFRS7p21
1p117


Disclose in the significant accounting policies the measurement basis (or bases) used in preparing the financial statements and 
the other accounting policies used that are relevant to an understanding of the financial statements. 


0 1 Y


A8.12.a.1 IFRS7 AppxB5 Disclosure required by IFRS 7 para 21 may include: 0 1 Y
A8.12.a.1 (a) for financial assets or financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss: 


(i) the nature of the financial assets or financial liabilities the entity has designated as at fair value through profit or loss;
(ii) the criteria for designating such financial assets or financial liabilities on initial recognition; and
(iii) how the entity has satisfied the conditions in IAS 39 para 9, IAS 39 para 11A or IAS 39 para 12 for such designation. For 
instruments designated in accordance with IAS 39 para 9(b)(i) of the definition of a financial asset or financial liability at fair 
value through profit or loss, include a narrative description of the circumstances underlying the measurement or recognition 
inconsistency that would otherwise arise. For instruments designated in accordance with IAS 39 para 9(b)(ii) of the definition of 
a financial asset or financial liability at fair value through profit or loss, include a narrative description of how designation at fair 
value through profit or loss is consistent with the entity’s documented risk management or investment strategy;


0 1 Y


A8.12.a.1 (b) the criteria for designating financial assets as available for sale; 0 1 Y
A8.12.a.1 (c) whether regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are accounted for at trade date or at settlement date (see IAS 39 0 1 Y
A8.12.a.1 (d) when an allowance account is used to reduce the carrying amount of financial assets impaired by credit losses: 


(i) the criteria for determining when the carrying amount of impaired financial assets is reduced directly (or, in the case of a 
reversal of a write-down, increased directly) and when the allowance account is used; and
(ii) the criteria for writing off amounts charged to the allowance account against the carrying amount of impaired financial 
assets (see IFRS 7 para 16); 


0 1 Y


A8.12.a.1 (e) how net gains or net losses on each category of financial instrument are determined (see IFRS 7 para 20(a)), for example, 
whether the net gains or net losses on items at fair value through profit or loss include interest or dividend income;


0 1 Y


A8.12.a.1 (f) the criteria the entity uses to determine that there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has occurred (see IFRS 7 0 1 Y
A8.12.a.1 (g) when the terms of financial assets that would otherwise be past due or impaired have been renegotiated, the accounting 


policy for financial assets that are the subject of renegotiated terms (see IFRS 7 para 36(d)). 
0 1 Y


A8.12.a.1 Disclose, in the significant accounting policies or other notes, the judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that 
management has made in the process of applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the 
amounts recognised in the financial statements (see IAS 1 para 122).


0 1 Y


A8.12.b. - Hedge accounting 0 Yes 0 Total: 15 | P - 0 | Y - 14 | N - 0 | A - 1 | F - 0
A8.12.b.1 IFRS7p22 Disclose the following separately for each type of hedge described in IAS 39 (ie, fair value hedges, cash flow hedges and hedges 


of net investments in foreign operations): 
0 1 Y


A8.12.b.1 (a) a description of each type of hedge; 0 1 Y
A8.12.b.1 (b) a description of the financial instruments designated as hedging instruments and their fair values at the reporting date; and 0 1 Y


A8.12.b.1 (c) the nature of the risks being hedged. 0 1 Y


A8.12.b.2 IFRS7p23 For cash flow hedges, disclose: 0 1 Y
A8.12.b.2 (a) the periods when the cash flows are expected to occur and when they are expected to affect profit or loss; 0 1 Y
A8.12.b.2 (b) a description of any forecast transaction for which hedge accounting had previously been used, but which is no longer 


expected to occur; 
0 1 Y


A8.12.b.2 (c) the amount that was recognised in equity during the period; 0 1 Y
A8.12.b.2 (d) the amount that was removed from equity and included in profit or loss for the period, showing the amount included in each 


line item in the income statement; and
0 1 Y


A8.12.b.2 (e) the amount that was removed from equity during the period and included in the initial cost or other carrying amount of a 
non-financial asset or non-financial liability whose acquisition or incurrence was a hedged highly probable forecast transaction.


0 1 Y


A8.12.b.3 IFRS7p24 Disclose separately: 0 1 Y
A8.12.b.3 (a) in fair value hedges, gains or losses:


(i) on the hedging instrument; and
(ii) on the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk;


0 1 Y


A8.12.b.3 (b) the ineffectiveness recognised in profit or loss that arises from cash flow hedges; and 0 1 Y
A8.12.b.3 (c) the ineffectiveness recognised in profit or loss that arises from hedges of net investments in foreign operations. 0 1 Y
A8.12.b.4


IFRIC16p17
If the step-by-step method of consolidation is used, disclose whether the entity has chosen to adjust the amounts reclassified to 
profit or loss on a disposal (or partial disposal) of a foreign operation to the amount that arises under the direct method.


0 1 A


A8.12.c. - Fair value 0 Yes 0 Total: 42 | P - 0 | Y - 39 | N - 0 | A - 3 | F - 0
A8.12.c.1 IFRS7p25


AppxB1-B2, B5(d)
Except as set out in IFRS 7 para 29, for each class of financial assets and financial liabilities (see IFRS 7 para 6), disclose the fair 
value of that class of assets and liabilities in a way that permits it to be compared with its carrying amount. 


0 1 Y


A8.12.c.1 IFRS7p26 AppxB1-B2, 
B5(d)


In disclosing fair values, group financial assets and financial liabilities into classes, but offset them only to the extent that their 
carrying amounts are offset in the statement of financial position.


0 1 Y


A8.12.c.2 Disclose for each class of financial instrument the methods and, when a valuation technique is used, the assumptions applied in 
determining fair values of each class of financial assets or financial liabilities. For example, if applicable, an entity discloses 
information about the assumptions relating to prepayment rates, rates of estimated credit losses, and interest rates or discount 
rates. If there has been a change in valuation technique, disclose that change and the reasons for making it.


0 1 Y


A8.12.c.5


IFRS7p28(a)-(c)


In some cases, an entity does not recognise a gain or loss on initial recognition of a financial asset or financial liability because 
the fair value is neither evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability (ie a Level 1 input) nor 
based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets (see paragraph AG76 of IAS 39). In such cases, the 
entity shall disclose by class of financial asset or financial liability:


0 1 Y


A8.12.c.5 (a) the accounting policy for recognising in profit or loss the difference difference in profit or loss to reflect a change in factors 
(including time) that market participants would take into account when pricing the asset or liability (see IAS 39 AG76(b));


0 1 Y


A8.12.c.5 (b) the aggregate difference yet to be recognised in profit or loss at the beginning and end of the period and a reconciliation of 
changes in the balance of this difference. 


0 1 Y


A8.12.c.5 (c) why the entity concluded that the transaction price was not the best evidence of fair value, including a description of the 
evidence that supports the fair value.


0 1 Y


A8.12.c.6 IFRS7p29 Disclosures of fair value are not required: 0 1 A
A8.12.c.6 (a) when the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value (for example, for financial instruments such as short-


term trade receivables and payables);
0 1 Y


A8.12.c.6 (b) for an investment in equity instruments that do not have a quoted price in an active market for an identical instrument (ie a 
Level 1 input), or derivatives linked to such equity instruments, that is measured at cost in accordance with IAS 39 because its 
fair value cannot otherwise be measured reliably; or


0 1 Y


A8.12.c.6 (c) for a contract containing a discretionary participation feature (as described in IFRS 4) if the fair value of that feature cannot 
be measured reliably.


0 1 Y


A8.12.c.7
IFRS7p30


In the cases described in IFRS 7 para 29(b) and (c), disclose information to help users of the financial statements make their 
own judgements about the extent of possible differences between the carrying amount of those financial assets or financial 
liabilities and their fair value, including:


0 1 Y


A8.12.c.7 (a) the fact that fair value information has not been disclosed for these instruments because their fair value cannot be measured 0 1 Y
A8.12.c.7 (b) a description of the financial instruments, their carrying amount, and an explanation of why fair value cannot be measured 0 1 Y
A8.12.c.7 (c) information about the market for the instruments; 0 1 Y
A8.12.c.7 (d) information about whether and how the entity intends to dispose of the financial instruments; and 0 1 Y







A8.12.c.7 (e) if financial instruments whose fair value previously could not be reliably measured are derecognised, that fact, their carrying 
amount at the time of derecognition, and the amount of gain or loss recognised.


0 1 Y


A8.12.c. Fair value disclosures required under IFRS 13 1
A8.12.c.8


IFRS13p91


Disclose information that helps users of its financial statements assess both of the following: 
(a) for assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring or non-recurring basis in the statement of financial 
position after initial recognition, the valuation techniques and inputs used to develop those measurements; and
(b) for recurring fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3), the effect of the measurements on 
profit or loss or other comprehensive income for the period.


0 1 A


A8.12.c.9


IFRS13p92
(a-d) 


To meet the objective in IFRS 13p91, consider all the following: 
(a) the level of detail necessary to satisfy the disclosure requirements;
(b) how much emphasis to place on each of the various requirements;
(c) how much aggregation or disaggregation to undertake; and
(d) whether users of financial statements need additional information to evaluate the quantitative information disclosed.


0 1 A


A8.12.c.10 If the disclosures provided in accordance with this IFRS and other IFRSs are insufficient to meet the objectives in IFRS 13p91, 
disclose additional information necessary to meet those disclosed.


0 1 Y


A8.12.c.11 IFRS13p
93(a-i)


To meet the objectives in IFRS 13 para 91, disclose, at a minimum, the following information for each class of asset and liability 
(see IFRS 13p94 for information on determining appropriate classes of assets and liabilities) measured at fair value (including 
measurements based on fair value within the scope of this IFRS) in the statement of financial position after initial recognition: 


0 1 Y


A8.12.c.12 (a) for recurring and non-recurring fair value measurements, the fair value measurement at the end of the reporting period, and 
for non-recurring fair value measurements, the reasons for the measurement;


0 1 Y


A8.12.c.13 (b) for recurring and non-recurring fair value measurements, the level of the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value 
measurements are categorised in their entirety (Level 1, 2 or 3);


0 1 Y


A8.12.c.14 (c) for assets and liabilities held at the end of the reporting period that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis, the 
amounts of any transfers and the entity's policy for determining when transfers between levels are deemed to have occurred. 
Transfers into each level are disclosed and discussed separately from transfers out of each level;


0 1 Y


A8.12.c.15 (d) for recurring and non-recurring fair value measurements categorised within Level 2 and Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, a 
description of the valuation technique(s) and inputs used in the fair value measurement. If there has been a change in valuation 
technique, disclose that change and the reason(s) for making it. For fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of the 
fair value hierarchy, provide quantitative information about the significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value 
measurement.


An entity is not required to create quantitative information to comply with this disclosure requirement if quantitative 
unobservable inputs are not developed by the entity when measuring fair value. However, when providing this disclosure, an 
entity cannot ignore quantitative unobservable inputs that are significant to the fair value measurement and are reasonably 


0 1 Y


A8.12.c.16 (e) for recurring fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, a reconciliation from the 
opening to the closing balances, disclosing separately changes during the period attributable to the following:


0 1 Y


A8.12.c.17 (i) total gains or losses for the period recognised in profit or loss, and the line item(s) in profit or loss in which those gains or 
losses are recognised;


0 1 Y


A8.12.c.18 (ii) total gains or losses for the period recognised in other comprehensive income, and the line item(s) in other comprehensive 
income in which those gains or losses are recognised;


0 1 Y


A8.12.c.19 (iii) purchases, sales, issues and settlements (each of those types of changes disclosed separately); and 0 1 Y
A8.12.c.20 (iv) the amounts of any transfers into or out of Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, the reasons for those transfers and the entity's 


policy for determining when transfers between levels are deemed to have occurred (see IFRS 13 para 95). Transfers into Level 3 
is disclosed and discussed separately from transfers out of Level 3;


0 1 Y


A8.12.c.21 (f) for recurring fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, the amount of the total gains or 
losses for the period in (e)(i) included in profit or loss that is attributable to the change in unrealised gains or losses relating to 


0 1 Y


A8.12.c.22 (g) for recurring and non-recurring fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, a description 
of the valuation processes used by the entity;


0 1 Y


A8.12.c.23 (h) for recurring fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:
(i) for all such measurements, a narrative description of the sensitivity of the fair value measurement to changes in 
unobservable inputs if a change in those inputs to a different amount might result in a significantly higher or lower fair value 
measurement. If there are interrelationships between those inputs and other observable inputs used in the fair value 
measurement, provide a description of those interrelationships and of how they might magnify or mitigate the effect of changes 
in the unobservable inputs on the fair value measurement. To comply with that disclosure requirement, the narrative 
description of the sensitivity to changes in unobservable inputs includes, at a minimum, the unobservable inputs disclosed when 
complying with (d);
(ii) for financial assets and financial liabilities, if changing one or more of the unobservable inputs to reflect reasonably possible 
alternative assumptions would change fair value significantly, state that fact and disclose the effect of those changes. Disclose 
how the effect of a change to reflect a reasonably possible alternative assumption was calculated. For that purpose, significance 


0 1 Y


A8.12.c.24 (i) for recurring and non-recurring fair value measurements, if the highest and best use of a non-financial asset differs from its 
current use, disclose that fact and why the non- financial asset is being used in a manner that differs from its highest and best 


0 1 Y


A8.12.c.25
IFRS13p
94(a),(b) Determine appropriate classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the following: 


(a) the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability; and
0 1 Y


A8.12.c.26 The number of classes may need to be greater for fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of the fair value 
hierarchy because those measurements have a greater degree of uncertainty and subjectivity.


0 1 Y


A8.12.c.27 Determining appropriate classes of assets and liabilities for which disclosures about fair value measurements should be 
provided requires judgement. A class of assets and liabilities will often require greater disaggregation than the line items 
presented in the statement of financial position. However, an entity provides information sufficient to permit reconciliation to 
the line items presented in the statement of financial position. If another IFRS specifies the class for an asset or a liability, an 
entity may use that class in providing the disclosures required in IFRS 13 if that class meets the requirements in IFRS 13 para 
94.


0 1 Y


A8.12.c.28


IFRS13p95
(a-c)


Disclose and consistently follow the entity's policy for determining when transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are 
deemed to have occurred in accordance with IFRS 13 para 93(c) and (e)(iv). The policy about the timing of recognising transfers 
is the same for transfers into the levels as for transfers out of the levels. Examples of policies for determining the timing of 
transfers include the following: 
(a) the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer;
(b) the beginning of the reporting period; and
(c) the end of the reporting period.


0 1 Y


A8.12.c.29 IFRS13p96 If an entity makes an accounting policy decision to use the exception in IFRS 13p48, disclose that fact. 0 1 Y
A8.12.c.30 IFRS13p97 For each class of asset and liability not measured at fair value in the statement of financial position but for which fair value is 


disclosed, disclose the information required by IFRS 13 para 93(b)-(d) and (i). However, an entity is not required to provide the 
0 1 Y


A8.12.c.31
IFRS13p98


For a liability measured at fair value and issued with an inseparable third-party credit enhancement, disclose the existence of 
that credit enhancement and whether it is reflected in the fair value measurement of the liability.


0 1 Y


A8.12.c.32
IFRS13p99


Present the quantitative disclosures required by this IFRS in a tabular format unless another format is more appropriate. 0 1 Y


A8.13. Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments 0 Yes 0 Total: 3 | P - 0 | Y - 2 | N - 0 | A - 1 | F - 0
A8.13.1 IFRS7p31 Disclose information that enables users of the financial statements to evaluate the nature and extent of risks arising from 


financial instruments to which the entity is exposed at the reporting date.
0 1 A


A8.13.1


IFRS7 AppdxB6


The disclosures required by IFRS 7 paras 31-42 should either be given in the financial statements or incorporated by cross-
reference from the financial statements to some other statement, such as a management commentary or risk report, that is 
available to users of the financial statements on the same terms as the financial statements and at the same time. Without the 
information incorporated by cross-reference, the financial statements are incomplete.


0 1 Y


A8.13.1
IFRS7p32


The disclosures required by IFRS 7 para 33-42 focus on the risks that arise from financial instruments and how they have been 
managed. These risks typically include, but are not limited to, credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.


0 1 Y


A8.14. Qualitative disclosures 0 Yes 0 Total: 4 | P - 0 | Y - 4 | N - 0 | A - 0 | F - 0
A8.14.1 IFRS7p33 For each type of risk arising from financial instruments, disclose: 0 1 Y
A8.14.1 (a) the exposures to risk and how they arise; 0 1 Y
A8.14.1 (b) objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk and the methods used to measure the risk; and 0 1 Y


A8.14.1 (c) any changes in (a) or (b) from the previous period. 0 1 Y
A8.15. Quantitative disclosures 0 Yes 0 Total: 37 | P - 0 | Y - 21 | N - 0 | A - 16 | F - 0
A8.15.1


IFRS7p34  (a),(b), (c )
For each type of risk arising from financial instruments, disclose: 0 1 Y


A8.15.2 (a) summary quantitative data about exposure to that risk at the reporting date. This disclosure should be based on the 
information provided internally to key management personnel of the entity (as defined in IAS 24), for example the entity’s board 
of directors or chief executive officer;


0 1 Y


A8.15.3 (b) the disclosures required by IFRS 7 paras 36-42, to the extent not provided in accordance with (a); and 0 1 Y
A8.15.4 (c) concentrations of risk if not apparent from the disclosures made in accordance with (a) and (b). 0 1 Y
A8.15.5


IFRS7  AppdxB8


IFRS 7 para 34(c) requires disclosures about concentrations of risk. Concentrations of risk arise from financial instruments that 
have similar characteristics and are affected similarly by changes in economic or other conditions. The identification of 
concentrations of risk requires judgement, taking into account the circumstances of the entity. Include in the disclosure of 
concentrations of risk: 


0 1 Y


A8.15.6 (a) a description of how management determines concentrations; 0 1 Y
A8.15.7 (b) a description of the shared characteristic that identifies each concentration (for example, counterparty, geographical area, 


currency or market); and
0 1 Y


A8.15.8 (c) the amount of the risk exposure associated with all financial instruments sharing that characteristic. 0 1 Y
A8.15.9


IFRS7p35
If the quantitative data disclosed as at the reporting date is unrepresentative of the entity’s exposure to risk during the period, 
provide further information that is representative.


0 1 Y


A8.15.a. - Credit risk 0 Yes 0 Total: 10 | P - 0 | Y - 3 | N - 0 | A - 7 | F - 0
A8.15.a.1


IFRS7p36(a),
(b),(c) Disclose by class of financial instrument: 0 1 Y


A8.15.a.1 (a) the amount that best represents its maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period without taking 
account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements (that is, netting agreements that do not qualify for offset in 
accordance with IAS 32). This disclosure is not required for financial instruments whose carrying amount best represents the 
maximum exposure to credit risk;


0 1 Y


A8.15.a.1 (b) a description and the financial effect of collateral held as security and other credit enhancements (that is, a description of the 
extent to which collateral and other credit enhancements mitigate credit risk) in respect of the amount that best represents the 
maximum exposure to credit risk (whether disclosed in accordance with (a) or represented by the carrying amount of a financial 
instrument); and


0 1 Y


A8.15.a.1 (c) information about the credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired. 0 1 A
A8.15.a.2 Financial assets that are either past due or impaired 1
A8.15.a.2 IFRS7p37


(a),(b)
Disclose by class of financial asset: 0 1 A


A8.15.a.2 (a) an analysis of the age of financial assets that are past due as at the end of the reporting period but not impaired; and 0 1 A


A8.15.a.2 (b) an analysis of financial assets that are individually determined to be impaired as at the end of the reporting period, including 
the factors the entity considers in determining that they are impaired.


0 1 A


A8.15.a.3 Collateral and other credit enhancements obtained 1
A8.15.a.3 IFRS7


p38(a),(b)
When an entity obtains financial or non-financial assets during the period by taking possession of collateral it holds as security 
or calling on other credit enhancements (that is guarantees), and such assets meet the recognition criteria in other IFRSs, 
disclose for such assts held at the reporting date:


0 1 A


A8.15.a.3 (a) the nature and carrying amount of the assets; and 0 1 A


A8.15.a.3 (b) when the assets are not readily convertible into cash, its policies for disposing of such assets or for using them in its 
operations.


0 1 A


A8.15.b. - Liquidity risk 0 Yes 0 Total: 9 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 9 | F - 0
A8.15.b. IFRS7p39


AppdxB10A-B11A, B11C-
F


Disclose: 0 1 A


A8.15.b. (a) a maturity analysis for non-derivative financial liabilities (including issued financial guarantee contracts) that shows the 
remaining contractual maturities;


0 1 A


A8.15.b. (b) a maturity analysis for derivative financial liabilities. The maturity analysis should include the remaining contractual 
maturities are essential for an understanding of the timing of the cash flows; and 


0 1 A


A8.15.b. (c) a description of how the liquidity risk inherent in (a) and (b). 0 1 A
A8.15.b.


IFRS7 AppdxB11
In preparing the contractual maturity analysis for financial liabilities required by IFRS 7 para 39(a) and (b), use judgement to 
determine an appropriate number of time bands. For example, an entity might determine that the following time bands are 
appropriate: 


0 1 A


A8.15.b. (a) no later than one month; 0 1 A
A8.15.b. (b) later than one month and no later than three months; 0 1 A


A8.15.b. (c) later than three months and no later than one year; and 0 1 A
A8.15.b. (d) later than one year and no later than five years. 0 1 A


A8.15.c. - Market risk 0 Yes 0 Total: 7 | P - 0 | Y - 7 | N - 0 | A - 0 | F - 0
A8.15.c. Sensitivity analysis 0 1
A8.15.c. IFRS7p40 Unless an entity complies with IFRS 7 para 41, disclose: 0 1 Y
A8.15.c.


AppdxB17-B19 and B21-
B28


(a) a sensitivity analysis for each type of market risk to which the entity is exposed at the end of the reporting period, showing 
how profit or loss and equity would have been affected by changes in the relevant risk variable that were reasonably possible at 
that date; 


0 1 Y


A8.15.c. (b) the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis; and 0 1 Y
A8.15.c. (c) changes from the previous period in the methods and assumptions used, and the reasons for such changes. 0 1 Y
A8.15.c. IFRS7p41


AppdxB20
If the entity prepares a sensitivity analysis, such as value at risk, that reflects interdependencies between risk variables (for 
example, interest rates and exchange rates) and uses it to manage financial risks, it may use that sensitivity analysis in place of 
the analysis specified in IFRS 7 para 40. Also disclose:


0 1 Y


A8.15.c. (a) an explanation of the method used in preparing such a sensitivity analysis, and of the main parameters and assumptions 
underlying the data provided; and


0 1 Y


A8.15.c. (b) an explanation of the objective of the method used and of limitations that may result in the information not fully reflecting 
the fair value of the assets and liabilities involved.


0 1 Y


A8.15.d. - Other market risk disclosures 0 Yes 0 Total: 2 | P - 0 | Y - 2 | N - 0 | A - 0 | F - 0
A8.15.d.


IFRS7p42


When the sensitivity analyses disclosed in accordance with IFRS 7 para 40 or IFRS 7 para 41 are unrepresentative of a risk 
inherent in a financial instrument (for example, because the year-end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year), 
disclose that fact and the reason the sensitivity analyses are unrepresentative. 


0 1 Y


A8.15.d.
IFRIC2p13


When a change in the redemption prohibition leads to a transfer between financial liabilities and equity, disclose separately the 
amount, timing and reason for that transfer.


0 1 Y


A8.16. Capital disclosures 0 Yes 0 Total: 20 | P - 0 | Y - 20 | N - 0 | A - 0 | F - 0
A8.16.1 1p134 Disclose information that enables users of its financial statements to evaluate its objectives, policies and processes for managing 0 1 Y
A8.16.2 1p135 To comply with para 134, disclose the following: 0 1 Y







A8.16.2 (a) qualitative information about its objectives, policies and processes for managing capital, including (but not limited to): 
(i) a description of what it manages as capital; 
(ii) when an entity is subject to externally imposed capital requirements, the nature of those requirements and how those 
requirements are incorporated into the management of capital; and
(iii) how it is meeting its objectives for managing capital;


0 1 Y


A8.16.2 (b) summary quantitative data about what it manages as capital. Some entities regard some financial liabilities (for example, 
some forms of subordinated debt) as part of capital. Other entities regard capital as excluding some components of equity (for 
example, components arising from cash flow hedges);


0 1 Y


A8.16.2 (c) any changes in (a) and (b) from the previous period; 0 1 Y
A8.16.2 (d) whether during the period it complied with any externally imposed capital requirements to which it is subject; and 0 1 Y


A8.16.2 (e) when the entity has not complied with such externally imposed capital requirements, the consequences of such non- 0 1 Y
A8.16.3 Base these disclosures on the information provided internally to the entity’s key management personnel. 0 1 Y
A8.16.3 1p136 An entity may manage capital in a number of ways and be subject to a number of different capital requirements. For example, 


a conglomerate may include entities that undertake insurance activities and banking activities, and those entities may also 
0 1 Y


A8.16.4 1p80A(a) If an entity has reclassified a puttable financial instrument classified as an equity instrument between financial liabilities and 0 1 Y
A8.16.4 (a) the amount reclassified into and out of each category (financial liabilities and equity); and 0 1 Y
A8.16.4 (b)  the timing and reason for that reclassification. 0 1 Y
A8.16.5


1p136A
Disclose for puttable financial instruments classified as equity instruments (to the extent not disclosed elsewhere): 0 1 Y


A8.16.5 1p136A(a) (a)  summary quantitative data about the amount classified as equity; 0 1 Y
A8.16.5 1p136A(b) (b) its objectives, policies and processes for managing its obligation to repurchase or redeem the instruments when required to 


do so by the instrument holders, including any changes from the previous period;
0 1 Y


A8.16.5 1p136A(c) (c)  the expected cash outflow on redemption or repurchase of that class of financial instruments; and 0 1 Y
A8.16.5 1p136A(d) (d)  information about how the expected cash outflow on redemption or repurchase was determined. 0 1 Y
A8.16.6


1p80A(b)


If an entity has reclassified an instrument that imposes on the  entity an obligation to deliver to another party a pro rata share of 
the net assets of the entity only on liquidation and is
classified as an equity instrument between financial liabilities and equity, disclose:


0 1 Y


A8.16.6 (a) the amount reclassified into and out of each category (financial liabilities and equity); and 0 1 Y
A8.16.6 (b) the timing and reason for that reclassification. 0 1 Y
A8.17. Financial guarantees 0 Yes 0 Total: 4 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 4 | F - 0
A8.17.1 Amendments to IAS 39 and IFRS 4, Financial Guarantee Contracts, was issued in August 2005. 0 1 A
A8.17.1 The issuer of financial guarantee contracts may elect to apply either IFRS 4 (if the entity has previously asserted explicitly that 


it regards such contracts as insurance contracts and has used accounting applicable to insurance contracts) or IAS 39 for 
measurement of financial guarantee contracts.


0 1 A


A8.17.1 If the entity elects to apply IFRS 4, it should comply with IFRS 4 disclosure requirements to such contracts (refer to Section E). 0 1 A


A8.17.1 If the entity elects to apply IAS 39 for measurement of financial guarantee contracts, it should comply with IFRS 7 disclosure 
requirements for these contracts.


0 1 A


A9. Distributions of non-cash assets to owners – IFRIC 17 0 Yes 0 Total: 7 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 7 | F - 0
A9.1 IFRIC17p16 For distributions disclose: 0 1 A
A9.1 IFRIC17p16(a) (a) the carrying amount of the dividend payable at the beginning and end of the period; and 0 1 A
A9.1 IFRIC17p16(b) (b) the increase or decrease in the carrying amount recognised in the period as a result of the change in the fair value of the 


assets to be distributed. 
0 1 A


A9.2 IFRIC17p17 If the entity declares a dividend to distribute a non-cash asset after the end of a reporting period but before the financial 
statements are authorised for issue, disclose:


0 1 A


A9.2 (a) the nature of the asset to be distributed; 0 1 A
A9.2 (b) the carrying amount of the asset to be distributed as of the end of the reporting period; and 0 1 A
A9.2 (c) whether fair values are determined, in whole or in part, directly by reference to published price quotations in an active 


market or are estimated using a valuation technique and the method used to determine fair value and, when a valuation 
technique is used, the assumptions applied. 


0 1 A


A10. Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations 0 Yes 0 Total: 32 | P - 0 | Y - 32 | N - 0 | A - 0 | F - 0
A10.0 The following disclosures are required when an entity has non-current assets held for sale and/or discontinued operations as 


defined by IFRS 5.
0 1 Y


A10.0
IFRS 5p5A


The classification, presentation and measurement requirements in IFRS 5 applicable to a non-current asset (or disposal group) 
that is classified as held for sale apply also to a non-current asset that is held for distribution to owners acting in their capacity 
as owners (held for distribution to owners).


0 1 Y


A10.0
IFRS5p5B


An entity with non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for sale applies the disclosure requirements of IFRS 5. 
Disclosure in other IFRSs do not apply to such assets or (disposal groups) unless those IFRSs require:  


0 1 Y


A10.0 (a) specific disclosures for non-current assets classified as held for sale or discontinued operations; or 0 1 Y
A10.0 (b) disclosure about measurement of assets and liabilities within a disposal group that are not within the scope of IFRS 5 or 


such disclosures not already provided in the other notes to the financial statements. 
0 1 Y


A10.1 IFRS5p38, 
1p55


Present separately from other assets in the balance sheet a non-current asset classified as held for sale and the assets of a 
disposal group classified as held for sale (within current assets).


0 1 Y


A10.2 IFRS5p38, 
1p55


Do not offset the assets and liabilities of a disposal group and do not present as a single amount. Present the liabilities of a 
disposal group classified as held for sale separately (classified as current liabilities) from other liabilities in the balance sheet.


0 1 Y


A10.3 IFRS5p38 Disclose separately the major classes of assets and liabilities classified as held for sale either on the face of the balance sheet or 
in the notes to the financial statements.


0 1 Y


A10.4 IFRS5p39 Disclosure of the major classes of assets and liabilities is not required if the disposal group is a newly acquired subsidiary that 
meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale on acquisition.


0 1 Y


A10.5 IFRS5p38 Disclose separately any cumulative income or expense recognised directly in equity relating to a non-current asset (or disposal 
group) classified as held for sale. 


0 1 Y


A10.6
IFRS5p40


Amounts presented for non-current assets or for the assets and liabilities of disposal groups classified as held for sale in the 
balance sheets for prior periods should not be reclassified or re-presented to reflect the classification in the balance sheet for the 
latest period presented.


0 1 Y


A10.7 IFRS5p41 For a non-current asset (or disposal group) held for sale or sold, disclose: 0 1 Y
A10.7 (a) a description of the non-current asset (or disposal group); 0 1 Y
A10.7 (b) a description of the facts and circumstances leading to the expected disposal and the expected manner and timing of that 0 1 Y
A10.7 (c) the gain or loss recognised as result of remeasurement to fair value less costs to sell, and if not separately presented on the 


face of the income statement, the caption in the income statement that includes that gain or loss; and
0 1 Y


A10.7 (d) the segment in which the non-current asset (or disposal group) is presented in accordance with IFRS 8 if applicable. 0 1 Y


A10.8
IFRS5p12


Disclose the information specified in para 5 (a), (b) and (d) above in the notes if the criteria for classification of non-current 
assets (or disposal groups) as held for sale (refer to IFRS 5 paras 7 and 8) are met after the balance sheet date but before the 
authorisation of the financial statements for issue.


0 1 Y


A10.9
IFRS5p42 


If a non-current asset (or disposal group) ceases to be held for sale, disclose a description of the facts and circumstances leading 
to the decision to change the plan to sell the non-current asset (or disposal group), together with the effect of the decision on the 
results of operations for the period and any prior periods presented.


0 1 Y


A10.10 IFRS5p33 For discontinued operations, disclose the following for all periods presented: 0 1 Y
A10.10


12p81(h) 


(a) a single amount on the face of the income statement comprising the total of:
(i) the post-tax profit or loss of discontinued operations; and
 (ii) the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the remeasurement to fair value less costs to sell or on the disposal of the assets or 
disposal group(s) constituting the discontinued operation; and


0 1 Y


A10.10 (b) an analysis of the single amount in (a) into:
(i) the revenue, expenses and pre-tax profit or loss of discontinued operations;
(ii) the gain or loss recognised on the remeasurement to fair value less costs to sell or on the disposal of the assets or disposal 
group(s) constituting the discontinued operation; and
(iii) the tax expense relating to:
- the gain or loss on discontinuance; and
- the profit or loss from the ordinary activities of the discontinued operation for the period, together with the corresponding 
amounts for each prior period presented.


0 1 Y


A10.10 The analysis may be given in the notes or on the face of the income statement. If it is given on the face of the income statement, 
it should be presented in a section relating to discontinued operations separate from continuing operations.


0 1 Y


A10.10 The analysis is not required if the disposal group is a newly acquired subsidiary that meets the criteria to be classified as held 
for sale on acquisition.


0 1 Y


A10.11 IFRS5p34 Re-present the disclosures in para 7 above and A6.2 para 6 for prior periods presented in the financial statements so that the 
disclosures relate to all operations that have been discontinued by the balance sheet date for the latest period presented.


0 1 Y


A10.12
IFRS5p35


Present separately in discontinued operations any adjustments in the current period to amounts previously presented in 
discontinued operations that are directly related to the disposal of a discontinued operation in a prior period. The nature and 
amount of such adjustments should be disclosed.


0 1 Y


A10.12 IFRS5p35 Examples of circumstances in which these adjustments may arise include: 0 1 Y
A10.12 (a) The resolution of uncertainties that arise from the terms of the disposal transaction, such as the resolution of purchase 


price adjustments and indemnification issues with the purchaser;
0 1 Y


A10.12 (b) The resolution of uncertainties that arise from and are directly related to the operations of the component before its 
disposal, such as environmental and product warranty obligations retained by the seller; and


0 1 Y


A10.12 (c) The settlement of employee benefit plan obligations, if the settlement is directly related to the disposal transaction. 0 1 Y
A10.13


IFRS5p36
If a component of an entity ceases to be classified as held for sale, reclassify the results of operations of the component 
previously presented in discontinued operations and include it in income from continuing operations for all periods presented. 
Disclose the amounts for prior periods as having been re-presented.


0 1 Y


A10.14 IFRS5p36A Presenting discontinued operations 0 1 Y


A10.14 An entity that is committed to a sale plan involving the loss of control of a subsidiary discloses the information required by IFRS 
5 para 33 to para 36 when the subsidiary is a disposal group that meets the definition of a discontinued operation in accordance 
with IFRS 5 para 32.


0 1 Y


2 Yes 01
B Disclosures required of all entities but only in certain situations 0 Yes 0
B1. Correction of prior-period errors 0 Yes 0 Total: 6 | P - 0 | Y - 6 | N - 0 | A - 0 | F - 0
B1.1 8p49 Disclose: 0 1 Y
B1.2 (a) the nature of the prior-period error; 0 1 Y
B1.3 (b) for each prior period presented, to the extent practicable, the amount of the correction:


(i) for each financial statement line item affected; and
(ii) if IAS 33 applies to the entity, the impact on basic and diluted earnings per share;


0 1 Y


B1.4 (c) the amount of the correction at the beginning of the earliest prior period presented; and 0 1 Y
B1.5 (d) if retrospective restatement is impracticable for a particular prior period, the circumstances that led to the existence of that 


condition and a description of how and from when the error has been corrected.
0 1 Y


B1.6 8p49 These disclosures need not be repeated in the financial statements of subsequent periods. 0 1 Y
B2. Reporting in the currency of a hyperinflationary economy 0 Yes 0 Total: 12 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 12 | F - 0
B2.1 1p119 Disclose accounting policies. 0 1 A


B2.2
29p39(a)


Disclose the fact that the financial statements and the corresponding figures for previous periods have been restated for the 
changes in the general purchasing power of the functional currency and, as a result, are stated in terms of the measuring unit 
current at the balance sheet date.


0 1 A


B2.3 29p39(b) Disclose whether the financial statements are based on a historical cost approach or a current cost approach. 0 1 A
B2.4 29p39(c) Provide the following information: 0 1 A


B2.5 (a) the identity of the price index; 0 1 A
B2.6 (b) the level of the price index at the balance sheet date; and 0 1 A
B2.7 (c) the movement in the index during the current and previous reporting period. It is useful to disclose the three years 


cumulative inflation at the balance sheet date for each of the periods presented in the financial statements.
0 1 A


B2.8 29p9 Disclose the gain or loss on the net monetary position included in net income. This is usually disclosed as a separate line above 
profit/loss before taxation in the income statement.


0 1 A


B2.9 21p42 The results and financial position of an entity whose functional currency is the currency of a hyperinflationary economy 
should be translated into a different presentation currency using the following procedures:


0 1 A


B2.10 (a) all amounts (assets, liabilities, equity items, and income and expenses, including comparatives) should be translated at the 
closing rate at the date of the most recent balance sheet, except:


0 1 A


B2.11 (b) when amounts are translated into the currency of a non-hyperinflationary economy, comparative amounts should be those 
that were presented as current year amounts in the relevant prior year financial statements (not adjusted for subsequent 
changes in the price level or subsequent changes in exchange rates).


0 1 A


B2.12


21p43


When an entity’s functional currency is the currency of a hyperinflationary economy,restate the financial statements in 
accordance with IAS 29 before applying the translation method set out in IAS 21 para 42, except for comparative amounts that 
are translated into a currency of a non-hyperinflationary economy (refer to IAS 21 para 42(b)). When the economy ceases to be 
hyperinflationary and the entity no longer restates its financial statements in accordance with IAS 29,use as the historical 
costs to translate into the presentation currency the amounts restated to the price level at the date the entity ceased restating its 
financial statements.


0 1 A


B3. Uncertainties about going concern 0 Yes 0 Total: 2 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 2 | F - 0
B3.1 1p25 Disclose material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the entity’s ability to 


continue as a going concern.
0 1 A


B3.2 1p25 Where the going concern basis has not been used, disclose that fact together with the reasons and the basis actually used to 
prepare the financial statements.


0 1 A


B4. Departure from IFRS 0 Yes 0 Total: 9 | P - 0 | Y - 2 | N - 0 | A - 7 | F - 0
B4.1


1p19, p20
In the extremely rare situations where departure from IFRS is necessary to achieve a fair presentation, an entity may depart 
from IFRS if the relevant regulatory framework requires it or does not prohibit such a departure. In these circumstances, 
disclose:


0 1 A


B4.2 (a) that management has concluded that the financial statements fairly present the entity’s financial position, financial 
performance and cash flows;


0 1 Y


B4.3 (b) that it has complied in all material respects with applicable standards and interpretations, except that it has departed from a 
particular requirement to achieve a fair presentation;


0 1 Y


B4.4 (c) the standard or interpretation from which the entity has departed, the nature of the departure, including the treatment that 
the standard or interpretation would require, the reason why that treatment would be misleading in the circumstances and the 
treatment adopted; and


0 1 A







B4.5 (d) for each period presented, the financial impact of the departure on each item in the financial statements that would have 
been reported in complying with the requirement.


0 1 A


B4.6 1p21 Where an entity has departed from a requirement of an IFRS in a prior period and the amounts recognised in the current period 
are affected by that departure, make disclosures (c) and (d) above.


0 1 A


B4.7


1p23 (a), (b)


Where management concludes that compliance with a requirement in IFRS would be so misleading as to conflict with the 
objective of financial statements set out in the Framework, but departure from the requirement is prohibited by the relevant 
regulatory framework, reduce the perceived misleading aspects of compliance as far as possible by disclosing:


0 1 A


B4.8 (a) the title of the IFRS in question, the nature of the requirement and the reason why management considers compliance with 
that requirement to be so misleading as to conflict with the objective of financial statements set out in the Framework; and


0 1 A


B4.9 (b) for each period presented, the adjustments to each item in the financial statements that management has concluded would 
be necessary to give a fair presentation.


0 1 A


B5. Change of year-end 0 Yes 0 Total: 3 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 3 | F - 0
B5.1 1p36(a-b) When an entity changes its year-end, and its financial statements are presented for a period longer or shorter than one year, 0 1 A
B5.2 (a) the reason for a period other than one year being used; and 0 1 A
B5.3 (b) the fact that comparative amounts for the income statement, changes in equity, cash flows and related notes are not 0 1 A
B6. Intermediate parent company – consolidated financial statements not presented 0 Yes 0 Total: 5 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 5 | F - 0
B6.1


IFRS10p4(a)


Under IFRS 10 paragraph 4(a), a parent need not present consolidated financial statements if it meets all the following 
conditions:
i.it is a wholly-owned subsidiary or is a partially-owned subsidiary of another entity and all its other owners, including those 
not otherwise entitled to vote, have been informed about, and do not object to, the parent not presenting consolidated financial 
statements;
ii.its debt or equity instruments are not traded in a public market (a domestic or foreign stock exchange or an over-the-counter 
market, including local and regional markets);
iii.it did not file, nor is it in the process of filing, its financial statements with a securities commission or other regulatory 


0 1 A


B6.2 27p16 When separate financial statements are prepared for a parent that, in accordance with IAS 10 para 4(a), elects not to prepare 
consolidated financial statements, disclose in those separate financial statements:


0 1 A


B6.3 (a) the fact that the financial statements are separate financial statements; that the exemption from consolidation has been 
used; the name and principal place of business (and country of incorporation, if different) of the entity whose consolidated 
financial statements that comply with International Financial Reporting Standards have been produced for public use; and the 
address where those consolidated financial statements are obtainable.


0 1 A


B6.4 (b) a list of significant investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, including:
i. the name of those investees.
ii.the principal place of business (and country of incorporation, if different) of those investees.
iii.its proportion of the ownership interest (and its proportion of the voting rights, if different) held in those investees.


0 1 A


B6.5 (c) a description of the method used to account for the investments listed under (b). 0 1 A
B7. Share-based payments 0 Yes 0 Total: 19 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 19 | F - 0
B7.1 IFRS2p44 Provide information that enables users of the financial statements to understand the nature and extent of share-based payment 


arrangements that existed during the period. The entity should disclose at least the following:
0 1 A


B7.2


IFRS2p45(a)


(a) a description of each type of share-based payment arrangement that existed at any time during the period, including the 
general terms and conditions of each arrangement, such as:
(i) vesting requirements;
(ii) the maximum term of options granted; and
(iii) the method of settlement (for example, whether in cash or equity).


0 1 A


B7.3 An entity with substantially similar types of share-based payment arrangements may aggregate this information, unless 
separate disclosure of each arrangement is necessary to enable users of the financial statements to understand the nature and 
extent of share-based payment arrangements that existed during the period.


0 1 A


B7.4


IFRS2p45(b)


(b) the number and weighted average exercise prices of share options for each of the following groups of options:
(i) outstanding at the beginning of the period; 
(ii) granted during the period;
(iii) forfeited during the period;
(iv) exercised during the period;
(v) expired during the period;
(vi) outstanding at the end of the period; and
(vii) exercisable at the end of the period.


0 1 A


B7.5
IFRS2p45(c)


(c) the weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the period. The entity may instead 
disclose the weighted average share price during the period if options were exercised on a regular basis throughout the period.


0 1 A


B7.6


IFRS2p45(d)


(d) for share options outstanding at the end of the period,
(i) the range of exercise prices; and
(ii) weighted average remaining contractual life.


0 1 A


B7.7 If the range of exercise prices is wide, the outstanding options should be divided into ranges that are meaningful for assessing 
the number and timing of additional shares that may be issued and the cash that may be received upon exercise of those 
options.


0 1 A


B7.8 IFRS2p46 Provide information that enables users of the financial statements to understand how the fair value of the goods or services 
received, or the fair value of the equity instruments granted, during the period was determined (refer to paras 3-5 below).


0 1 A


B7.9
IFRS2p47


If the entity has measured the fair value of goods or services received as consideration for equity instruments of the entity 
indirectly, by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted, disclose at least the following:


0 1 A


B7.10


IFRS2p47(a)


(a) for share options granted during the period, the weighted average fair value of those options at the measurement date and 
information on how that fair value was measured, including:
(i) the option pricing model used and the inputs to that model, including:
– the weighted average share price,
– exercise price,
– expected volatility,
– option life,
– expected dividends,
– the risk-free interest rate, and
– any other inputs to the model, including the method used and the assumptions made to incorporate the effects of expected 
early exercise;
(ii) how expected volatility was determined, including an explanation of the extent to which expected volatility was based on 
historical volatility; and
(iii) whether and how any other features of the option grant were incorporated into the measurement of fair value, such as a 
market condition; and


0 1 A


B7.11


IFRS2p47(b)


(b)  for other equity instruments granted during the period (other than share options), the number and weighted average fair 
value of those equity instruments at the measurement date, and information on how that fair value was measured, including:
(i) if fair value was not measured on the basis of an observable market price, how it was determined;
(ii) whether and how expected dividends were incorporated into the measurement of fair value; and
(iii) whether and how any other features of the equity instruments granted were incorporated into the measurement of fair 
value.


0 1 A


B7.12


IFRS2p47(c)


(c) for share-based payment arrangements that were modified during the period:
(i) an explanation of those modifications;
(ii) the incremental fair value granted (as a result of those modifications); and
(iii) information on how the incremental fair value granted was measured, consistently with the requirements set out in (a) and 
(b) above, where applicable.


0 1 A


B7.13
IFRS2p48


If the entity has measured directly the fair value of goods or services received during the period, disclose how that fair value was 
determined; for example, whether fair value was measured at a market price for those goods or services.


0 1 A


B7.14 FRS2p49 If the entity has rebutted the presumption that fair value of goods and services other than employee services can be estimated 
reliably, disclose that fact and give an explanation of why the presumption was rebutted.


0 1 A


B7.15
IFRS2p50 


Provide information that enables users of the financial statements to understand the effect of share-based payment transactions 
on the entity’s profit or loss for the period and on its financial position. Disclose at least the following:


0 1 A


B7.16


IFRS2p51


(a) the total expense recognised for the period arising from share-¬based payment transactions in which the goods or services 
received did not qualify for recognition as assets and were recognised immediately as an expense, including separate disclosure 
of that portion of the total expense that arises from transactions accounted for as equity-settled share-based payment 
transactions; and


0 1 A


B7.17 (b) for liabilities arising from share-based payment transactions:
(i) the total carrying amount at the end of the period; and
(ii) the total intrinsic value at the end of the period of liabilities for which the counterparty’s right to cash or other assets had 
vested by the end of the period (for example, vested share appreciation rights).


0 1 A


B7.18


IFRS2p52


Disclose additional information that is necessary to enable users of the financial statements to understand the nature and extent 
of share-based payment arrangements that existed during the period, how fair value of the goods or services received or fair 
value of equity instruments granted during the period was determined and the effect of the share-based payment arrangements 
on profit or loss for the period and on financial position.


0 1 A


B7.19
IFRS2p63B


Has the entity disclosed the fact that is has early adopted amendments to IFRS 2, Classification and measurement of share-
based payment transactions? (There are no additional disclosure requirements in the amendment other than a disclosure on 
early adoption)


0 1 A


B8. First-time adoption of IFRS 0 Yes 0 Total: 38 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 38 | F - 0
B8.1 IFRS1p20 IFRS 1 does not provide exemptions from presentations and disclosure requirements in other IFRSs. 0 1 A
B8.2


IFRS1p21
To comply with IAS 1, include in the first IFRS financial statements at least three balance sheets, two statements of 
comprehensive income, two separate income statements (if presented), two statements of cash flows and two statements of 
changes in equity and related notes, including one year of comparative information under IFRSs.


0 1 A


B8.3 IFRS1p22(a), (b) If any financial statements contain historical summaries or comparative information under previous GAAP, then: 0 1 A


B8.4 (a)    label the previous GAAP information prominently as not being prepared under IFRSs; and 0 1 A
B8.5 (b)   disclose the nature of the main adjustments that would make it comply with IFRSs. An entity need not quantify those 


adjustments.
0 1 A


B8.6 IFRS1p23 Explain how the transition from previous GAAP to IFRSs affected the reported financial position, financial performance and 
cash flows.


0 1 A


B8.7
IFRS1p23A


If the entity has applied IFRSs in a previous period (as described in paragraph 4A of IFRS 1), disclose :
(a) the reason it stopped applying IFRSs; and
(b) and the reason it is resuming the application of IFRSs.


0 1 A


B8.8 IFRS1p23B When an entity reapplying IFRS does not elect to apply IFRS 1, explain the reasons for electing to apply IFRSs as this had never 
stopped.


0 1 A


B8.9 IFRS1p4B When an entity reapplying IFRS does not elect to apply IFRS 1, the entity shall nevertheless apply the disclosure requirements 
in paragraphs 23A–23B of IFRS 1, in addition to the disclosure requirements in IAS 8.


0 1 A


B8.10


IFRS1p24(a), (b), p25


To comply with IFRS1p23, include in the first IFRS financial statements the following reconciliations. Reconciliations are to 
provide sufficient detail to enable users to understand the material adjustments to the balance sheet and statement of 
comprehensive income, and should distinguish the corrections of errors made under previous GAAP from changes in accounting 
policies:


0 1 A


B8.11 (a)    reconciliations of the  equity reported under previous GAAP to the equity under IFRSs for both of the following dates: 0 1 A


B8.12 (i) the date of transition to IFRSs; and 0 1 A
B8.13 (ii) the end of the latest period presented in the entity’s most recent annual financial statements under previous GAAP; and 0 1 A


B8.14 (b) reconciliation to total comprehensive income under IFRSs for the latest period in the entity’s most recent annual financial 
statements. The starting point for that reconciliation is total comprehensive income under previous GAAP for the same period, 
or if the entity did not report such a total, profit or loss under previous GAAP.


0 1 A


B8.15
IFRS1p24(c)


If the entity recognised or reversed any impairment losses for the first time in preparing its opening IFRS balance sheet, then 
present the disclosures that IAS 36 would have required if the entity had recognised those impairment losses or reversals in the 
period beginning with the date of transition to IFRSs.


0 1 A


B8.16 IFRS1p25 If an entity presented a statement of cash flows under its previous GAAP, then also explain the material adjustments to the 
statement of cash flows.


0 1 A


B8.17 IFRS 1p26 Distinguish errors made under previous GAAP from changes in accounting policies in the reconciliations required by IFRS1p24 
(a),(b).


0 1 A


B8.18


IFRS1p27A


If during the period covered by its first IFRS financial statements an entity  changes its accounting policies or its use of the 
exemptions contained in IFRS 1, then explain the changes between its first IFRS interim financial report and its first IFRS 
financial statements, in accordance with IFRS1p23, and update the reconciliations required by IFRS1p24(a) and (b).


0 1 A


B8.19 IFRS1p28 If an entity did not present financial statements for previous periods, then disclose that fact in its first IFRS financial 
statements.


0 1 A


B8.20 IFRS1p29 For any financial assets or financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss and for any financial assets 
designated as available-for-sale in accordance with IFRS1.D19, disclose:


0 1 A


B8.21 (a)    the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities designated into each category at the date of designation ; and 0 1 A


B8.22 (b)   their classification and carrying amount in the previous financial statements.  0 1 A
B8.23 IFRS1p30(a),(b) If an entity uses fair value in its opening IFRS balance sheet as deemed cost for an item of investment property, then disclose in 


its first IFRS financial statements, for each line item in the opening IFRS balance sheet:
0 1 A


B8.24 (a)    the aggregate of those fair values; and 0 1 A
B8.25 (b)   the aggregate adjustment to the carrying amounts reported under previous GAAP. 0 1 A
B8.26


IFRS1p31(a-c)
If an entity uses deemed cost in its opening IFRS balance sheet for an investment in a subsidiary, jointly controlled entity or 
associate in its separate financial statements, then disclose in its first IFRS separate financial statements:


0 1 A


B8.27 (a)    the aggregate deemed cost of those investments for which deemed cost is their previous GAAP carrying amount; 0 1 A


B8.28 (b)   the aggregate deemed cost of those investments for which deemed cost is fair value; and 0 1 A
B8.29 (c)    the aggregate adjustment to the carrying amounts reported under previous GAAP. 0 1 A
B8.30


IFRS1p31A
If an entity uses fair values in its opening IFRS balance sheet as deemed cost for oil and gas assets, then disclose in its first 
financial statements that fact and the basis on which carrying amounts determined under previous GAAP were allocated. 


0 1 A


B8.31 IFRS1p31B If an entity uses the exemption in IFRS1.D8B for operations subject to rate regulation, then disclose that fact and the basis on 
which carrying amounts were determined under previous GAAP. 


0 1 A







B8.32
IFRS1p31C


If an entity elects to measure assets and liabilities at fair value and to use that fair value as the deemed cost in its opening IFRS 
statement of financial position because of severe hyperinflation (see IFRS 1 para D26-D30), disclose in the first IFRS financial 
statements an explanation of how and why the entity had, and then ceased to have, a functional currency that has both of the 
following characteristics: 


0 1 A


B8.33 (a) A reliable general price index is not available to all entities with transactions and balances in the currency; and 0 1 A


B8.34 (b) Exchangeability between the currency and relatively stable foreign currency does not exist. 0 1 A
B8.35 IFRS1.D2 For all grants of equity instruments that IFRS 2 has not been applied to, disclose the information required by IFRS2p44 and 


IFRS2p45
0 1 A


B8.36


IFRS1 B1


An entity shall apply the following exceptions to the retrospective application of other IFRSs:
(a) derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities (IFRS 1 paragraphs B2 and B3);
(b) hedge accounting (IFRS 1 paragraphs B4–B6);
(c) non-controlling interests (IFRS 1 paragraph B7); 
(d) [this refers to amendments with an effective date after 1 January 2013 and is therefore not included in this edition]
(e) [this refers to amendments with an effective date after 1 January 2013 and is therefore not included in this edition]
(f) government loans (IFRS 1 paragraphs B10–B12).


0 1 A


B8.37


IFRS1p39Z


Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements (Amendments to IAS 27), issued in August 2014, amended paragraph D14 and 
added paragraph D15A, allowing first time adopters to apply the equity method in their separate financial statements.


An entity shall apply that amendment for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier application is permitted. 
If an entity applies that amendment for an earlier period it shall disclose that fact.


0 1 A


B8.38


IFRS1p39AA


Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012–2014 Cycle , issued in September 2014, added paragraph E4A, allowing first time adopters 
to apply the transitional provisions in paragraph 44AA (clarifications on continuing involvement when servicing a financial asset 
after derecogntion).


An entity shall apply that amendment for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier application is permitted. 
If an entity applies that amendment for an earlier period it shall disclose that fact.


0 1 A


B9. Fair value measurement 0 Yes 0 Total: 27 | P - 0 | Y - 27 | N - 0 | A - 0 | F - 0
B9.1 This section addresses disclosures required for non-financial instruments measured at fair value. 0 1 Y
B9.2


IFRS13p91


Disclose information that helps users of its financial statements assess both of the following: 
(a) for assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring or non-recurring basis in the statement of financial 
position after initial recognition, the valuation techniques and inputs used to develop those measurements; and
(b) for recurring fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3), the effect of the measurements on 
profit or loss or other comprehensive income for the period.


0 1 Y


B9.3


IFRS13p92
(a-d) 


To meet the objective in IFRS 13p91, consider all the following: 
(a) the level of detail necessary to satisfy the disclosure requirements;
(b) how much emphasis to place on each of the various requirements;
(c) how much aggregation or disaggregation to undertake; and
(d) whether users of financial statements need additional information to evaluate the quantitative information disclosed.


0 1 Y


B9.4 If the disclosures provided in accordance with this IFRS and other IFRSs are insufficient to meet the objectives in IFRS 13p91, 
disclose additional information necessary to meet those disclosed.


0 1 Y


B9.5
IFRS13p
93(a-i)


To meet the objectives in IFRS 13 para 91, disclose, at a minimum, the following information for each class of asset and liability 
(see IFRS 13p94 for information on determining appropriate classes of assets and liabilities) measured at fair value (including 
measurements based on fair value within the scope of this IFRS) in the statement of financial position after initial recognition: 


0 1 Y


B9.6 (a) for recurring and non-recurring fair value measurements, the fair value measurement at the end of the reporting period, and 
for non-recurring fair value measurements, the reasons for the measurement;


0 1 Y


B9.7 (b) for recurring and non-recurring fair value measurements, the level of the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value 
measurements are categorised in their entirety (Level 1, 2 or 3);


0 1 Y


B9.8 (c) for assets and liabilities held at the end of the reporting period that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis, the 
amounts of any transfers and the entity's policy for determining when transfers between levels are deemed to have occurred. 
Transfers into each level are disclosed and discussed separately from transfers out of each level;


0 1 Y


B9.9 (d) for recurring and non-recurring fair value measurements categorised within Level 2 and Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, a 
description of the valuation technique(s) and inputs used in the fair value measurement. If there has been a change in valuation 
technique, disclose that change and the reason(s) for making it. For fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of the 
fair value hierarchy, provide quantitative information about the significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value 
measurement.


An entity is not required to create quantitative information to comply with this disclosure requirement if quantitative 
unobservable inputs are not developed by the entity when measuring fair value. However, when providing this disclosure, an 
entity cannot ignore quantitative unobservable inputs that are significant to the fair value measurement and are reasonably 
available to the entity. 


0 1 Y


B9.10 (e) for recurring fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, a reconciliation from the 
opening to the closing balances, disclosing separately changes during the period attributable to the following:


0 1 Y


B9.11 (i) total gains or losses for the period recognised in profit or loss, and the line item(s) in profit or loss in which those gains or 
losses are recognised;


0 1 Y


B9.12 (ii) total gains or losses for the period recognised in other comprehensive income, and the line item(s) in other comprehensive 
income in which those gains or losses are recognised;


0 1 Y


B9.13 (iii) purchases, sales, issues and settlements (each of those types of changes disclosed separately); and 0 1 Y
B9.14 (iv) the amounts of any transfers into or out of Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, the reasons for those transfers and the entity's 


policy for determining when transfers between levels are deemed to have occurred (see IFRS 13 para 95). Transfers into Level 3 
is disclosed and discussed separately from transfers out of Level 3;


0 1 Y


B9.15 (f) for recurring fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, the amount of the total gains or 
losses for the period in (e)(i) included in profit or loss that is attributable to the change in unrealised gains or losses relating to 
those assets and liabilities held at the end of the reporting period, and the line item(s) in profit or loss in which those unrealised 
gains or losses are recognised;


0 1 Y


B9.16 (g) for recurring and non-recurring fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, a description 
of the valuation processes used by the entity;


0 1 Y


B9.17 (h) for recurring fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: 0 1 Y


B9.18 (i) for all such measurements, a narrative description of the sensitivity of the fair value measurement to changes in 
unobservable inputs if a change in those inputs to a different amount might result in a significantly higher or lower fair value 
measurement. If there are interrelationships between those inputs and other observable inputs used in the fair value 
measurement, provide a description of those interrelationships and of how they might magnify or mitigate the effect of changes 
in the unobservable inputs on the fair value measurement. To comply with that disclosure requirement, the narrative 
description of the sensitivity to changes in unobservable inputs includes, at a minimum, the unobservable inputs disclosed when 
complying with (d);
(ii) for financial assets and financial liabilities, if changing one or more of the unobservable inputs to reflect reasonably possible 
alternative assumptions would change fair value significantly, state that fact and disclose the effect of those changes. Disclose 
how the effect of a change to reflect a reasonably possible alternative assumption was calculated. For that purpose, significance 
is judged with respect to profit or loss, and total assets or total liabilities, or, when changes in fair value are recognised in other 
comprehensive income, total equity. 


0 1 Y


B9.19 (i) for recurring and non-recurring fair value measurements, if the highest and best use of a non-financial asset differs from its 
current use, disclose that fact and why the non- financial asset is being used in a manner that differs from its highest and best 
use.


0 1 Y


B9.20
IFRS13p
94(a),(b)


Determine appropriate classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the following: 
(a) the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability; and
(b) the level of the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised.


0 1 Y


B9.21 The number of classes may need to be greater for fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of the fair value 
hierarchy because those measurements have a greater degree of uncertainty and subjectivity.


0 1 Y


B9.22 Determining appropriate classes of assets and liabilities for which disclosures about fair value measurements should be 
provided requires judgement. A class of assets and liabilities will often require greater disaggregation than the line items 
presented in the statement of financial position. However, an entity provides information sufficient to permit reconciliation to 
the line items presented in the statement of financial position. If another IFRS specifies the class for an asset or a liability, an 
entity may use that class in providing the disclosures required in IFRS 13 if that class meets the requirements in IFRS 13 para 
94.


0 1 Y


B9.23


IFRS13p95
(a-c)


Disclose and consistently follow the entity's policy for determining when transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are 
deemed to have occurred in accordance with IFRS 13 para 93(c) and (e)(iv). The policy about the timing of recognising transfers 
is the same for transfers into the levels as for transfers out of the levels. Examples of policies for determining the timing of 
transfers include the following: 
(a) the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer;
(b) the beginning of the reporting period; and
(c) the end of the reporting period.


0 1 Y


B9.24 IFRS13p96 If an entity makes an accounting policy decision to use the exception in IFRS 13p48, disclose that fact. 0 1 Y
B9.25


IFRS13p97


For each class of asset and liability not measured at fair value in the statement of financial position but for which fair value is 
disclosed, disclose the information required by IFRS 13 para 93(b)-(d) and (i). However, an entity is not required to provide the 
quantitative disclosures about significant unobservable inputs used in fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of the 
fair value hierarchy required by IFRS 13 para 93(d). For such assets and liabilities, an entity does not need to provide the other 
disclosures required by this IFRS.


0 1 Y


B9.26
IFRS13p98


For a liability measured at fair value and issued with an inseparable third-party credit enhancement, disclose the existence of 
that credit enhancement and whether it is reflected in the fair value measurement of the liability.


0 1 Y


B9.27
IFRS13p99


Present the quantitative disclosures required by this IFRS in a tabular format unless another format is more appropriate. 0 1 Y


0 Yes 0
1


C Industry-specific disclosures 0 Yes 0
C1. Construction contracts 0 Yes 0 Total: 18 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 18 | F - 0
C1.1 1p119 Disclose in accounting policies: 0 1 A
C1.2 11p39(b) (a) the methods used to determine the contract revenue recognised in the period; and 0 1 A
C1.3 11p39(c) (b) the methods used to determine the stage of completion of contracts in progress. 0 1 A
C1.4 11p39(a) Disclose the amount of contract revenue recognised as revenue in the period. 0 1 A
C1.5 11p40 For construction contracts in progress at the balance sheet date, disclose: 0 1 A
C1.6 (a) the aggregate amount of costs incurred and recognised profits (less recognised losses) to date; 0 1 A
C1.7 (b) the amount of advances received; and 0 1 A


C1.8 (c) the amount of retentions. 0 1 A


C1.9 11p42 Present on the balance sheet: 0 1 A
C1.10 (a) the gross amount due from customers for contract work as an asset; and 0 1 A
C1.11 (b) the gross amount due to customers for contract work as a liability. 0 1 A
C1.12 IFRIC15p20 If the entity undertakes the construction of real estate and recognises revenue using the percentage of completion method for 


agreements that meet all the criteria of IAS 18 para 14 continuously as construction progresses, disclose: 
0 1 A


C1.13 (a) how it determines which agreements meet all the criteria in IAS 18 para14 continuously as construction progresses. 0 1 A


C1.14 (b) the amount of revenue arising from such agreements in the period; and 0 1 A
C1.15 (c) the methods used to determine the stage of completion of agreements in progress. 0 1 A
C1.16 IFRIC 15p21 In addition to the disclosures required by IFRIC 15 para 20, for agreements that are in progress at the reporting date, disclose: 0 1 A


C1.17 (a) the aggregate amount of costs incurred and recognised profits; (less recognised losses) to date; and 0 1 A
C1.18 (b) the amount of advances received. 0 1 A
C2. Agriculture 0 Yes 0
C2.1. - General disclosures 0 Yes 0 Total: 27 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 27 | F - 0
C2.1.1 17p32, 57 The disclosure requirements of IAS 41 apply to owned biological assets and to the amounts of leased biological assets held 


under finance leases in the lessee’s accounts.
0 1 A


C2.1.2 41p41, 42 Provide a description of each group of biological assets (narrative or quantified description). 0 1 A
C2.1.3 41p40 Disclose the aggregate gain or loss arising during the current period on initial recognition of biological assets and agricultural 


produce and from the change in fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs of biological assets.
0 1 A


C2.1.4 41p46 Describe, if it has not been disclosed elsewhere in information published with the financial statements: 0 1 A
C2.1.5 (a) the nature of activities involving each group of biological assets; and 0 1 A
C2.1.6 (b) non-financial measures or estimates of the physical quantities of:


(i) each group of the entity’s biological assets at the end of the period; and
(ii) the output of agricultural produce during the period.


0 1 A


C2.1.7 41p49 Disclose: 0 1 A
C2.1.8 (a) the existence and carrying amounts of biological assets whose title is restricted, and the carrying amounts of biological assets 


pledged as security for liabilities;
0 1 A


C2.1.9 (b) the amount of commitments for the development or acquisition of biological assets; and 0 1 A
C2.1.10 (c) financial risk management strategies related to agricultural activity. 0 1 A
C2.1.11 41p50 Present a reconciliation of changes in the carrying amount of biological assets between the beginning and the end of the current 


period. Include in the reconciliation:
0 1 A


C2.1.12 DV41p51 (a) the gain or loss arising from changes in fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs. Entities are encouraged to disclose by 
group or otherwise the amount due to physical changes and due to price changes;


0 1 A


C2.1.13 (b) increases due to purchases; 0 1 A
C2.1.14 (c) decreases due to sales and biological assets classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held 


for sale) in accordance with IFRS 5;
0 1 A


C2.1.15 (d) decreases due to harvest; 0 1 A
C2.1.16 (e) increases resulting from business combinations; 0 1 A


C2.1.17 (f) net exchange differences arising on the translation of financial statements into a different presentation currency and on the 
translation of a foreign operation into the reporting entity’s presentation currency; and


0 1 A


C2.1.18 (g) other changes. 0 1 A
C2.1.19 41p55 This reconciliation should separately identify any biological assets measured at cost loss accumulated depreciation and any 


accumulated impairment losses in accordance with IAS 41 para 30.
0 1 A


C2.1.20 41p57 Disclose the following related to agricultural activity: 0 1 A
C2.1.21 (a) the nature and extent of government grants recognised in the financial statements; 0 1 A







C2.1.22 (b) unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies relating to government grants; and 0 1 A
C2.1.23 (c) significant decreases expected in the level of government grants. 0 1 A
C2.1.24 DV, 41p43 Provide a quantified description of each group of biological assets, distinguishing between consumable and bearer biological 


assets or between mature and immature biological assets, as appropriate.
0 1 A


C2.1.25


41p62


IAS 41 paragraphs 1–5, 8, 24 and 44 were amended and paragraphs 5A–5C and 63 were added.
These amendments change the financial reporting for bearer plants, such as grape vines, rubber trees and oil palms. The IASB 
decided that bearer plants should be accounted for in the same way as property, plant and equipment because their operation is 
similar to that of manufacturing. Consequently, the amendments include them within the scope of IAS 16, instead of IAS 41.


Apply those amendments for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier application is permitted.
An entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively, in accordance with IAS 8, except as specified in paragraph 62.
If an entity applies those amendments for an earlier period it shall disclose that fact.


0 1 A


C2.1.26 41p63 In the reporting period when Agriculture: Bearer Plants (Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41) is first applied, has the entity 
disclosed the quantitative information required by paragraph 28(f) of IAS 8 for each prior period presented?


Note that an entity need not disclose the quantitative information required by paragraph 28(f) of IAS 8 for the current period.


0 1 A


C2.1.27 Additional disclosures are required for assets held at fair value under IFRS 13, refer to section B9. 0 1 A
C2.2. - Additional disclosures where fair value of biological assets cannot be measured 0 Yes 0 Total: 15 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 15 | F - 0
C2.2.1 41p54 When fair value of biological assets cannot be measured and cost is used, disclose: 0 1 A
C2.2.2 (a) a description of the biological assets; 0 1 A
C2.2.3 (b) an explanation of why fair value cannot be measured reliably; 0 1 A
C2.2.4 (c) if possible, the range of estimates within which fair value is highly likely to lie; 0 1 A
C2.2.5 (d) the depreciation method used; 0 1 A


C2.2.6 (e) the useful lives or the depreciation rates used; and 0 1 A
C2.2.7 (f) the gross carrying amount and the accumulated depreciation (aggregated with accumulated impairment losses) at the 


beginning and end of the period.
0 1 A


C2.2.8 41p55 Disclose any gain or loss recognised on disposal of biological assets. Disclose details of the following amounts included in net 
profit or loss related to those biological assets:


0 1 A


C2.2.9 (a) impairment losses; 0 1 A
C2.2.10 (b) reversals of impairment losses; and 0 1 A
C2.2.11 (c) depreciation. 0 1 A
C2.2.12 41p56 If an entity changes from cost to fair value during the current period, disclose: 0 1 A
C2.2.13 (a) a description of the biological assets; 0 1 A
C2.2.14 (b) an explanation of why fair value has become reliably measurable; and 0 1 A


C2.2.15 (c) the effect of the change. 0 1 A0
C3. Public service concession arrangements 0 Yes 0 Total: 7 | P - 0 | Y - 7 | N - 0 | A - 0 | F - 0
C3.1 SIC29p6-7 For concession operators or concession providers, disclose the following in each period individually for each service concession 


arrangement or in aggregate for each class of service concession arrangement:
0 1 Y


C3.2 (a) a description of the arrangement; 0 1 Y
C3.3 (b) significant terms of the arrangement that may affect the amount, timing and certainty of future cash flows (for example, the 


period of the concession, re-pricing dates and the basis on which re-pricing or renegotiation is determined);
0 1 Y


C3.4 (c) the nature and extent (for example, quantity, time period or amount, as appropriate) of:
(i) rights to use specified assets;
(ii) obligations to provide or rights to expect provision of services;
(iii) obligations to acquire or to build items of property, plant and equipment;
(iv) obligations to deliver or rights to receive specified assets at the end of the concession period;
(v) renewal and termination options; and
(vi) other rights and obligations (for example, major overhauls);


0 1 Y


C3.5 (d) changes in the arrangement occurring during the period. 0 1 Y
C3.6 (e) how the service arrangement has been classified. 0 1 Y
C3.7 Disclose revenue and profits or losses recognised on exchanging construction services for a financial asset or an intangible asset. 0 1 Y


C4.
Accounting by a lessor
Leases are financial instruments and therefore the disclosure requirements of IFRS 7 apply also to leases. Refer to Section A8. 0 Yes 0


C4.a. - Lessors – finance leases 0 Yes 0 Total: 13 | P - 0 | Y - 13 | N - 0 | A - 0 | F - 0
C4.a.1 17p47 Disclose: 0 1 Y
C4.a.2 (a) a reconciliation between the total gross investment in the lease at the balance sheet date and the present value of minimum 


lease payments receivable at the balance sheet date;
0 1 Y


C4.a.3 (b) the total gross investment in the lease and the present value of minimum lease payments receivable at the balance sheet 
date, for each of the following three periods:


0 1 Y


C4.a.4 (i) no later than one year; 0 1 Y
C4.a.5 (ii) later than one year and no later than five years; and 0 1 Y
C4.a.6 (iii) later than five years; 0 1 Y
C4.a.7 (c) unearned finance income; 0 1 Y
C4.a.8 (d) the unguaranteed residual values accruing to the benefit of the lessor; 0 1 Y
C4.a.9 (e) the accumulated allowance for uncollectable minimum lease payments receivable; 0 1 Y
C4.a.10 (f) contingent rents recognised in income; and 0 1 Y


C4.a.11 (g) a general description of the lessor’s significant leasing arrangements. 0 1 Y
C4.a.12 17p65 The disclosure requirements set out in para 1 above also apply to sale and leaseback transactions. Any unique or unusual 


provisions of the agreements or terms of the sale and leaseback transactions should be separately disclosed.
0 1 Y


C4.a.13 IFRIC4pBC39 The disclosure requirements set out in para 1 above also apply to leases under IFRIC 4. 0 1 Y
C4.b. - Lessors – operating leases 0 Yes 0 Total: 7 | P - 0 | Y - 7 | N - 0 | A - 0 | F - 0
C4.b.1 17p56, 57 Disclose: 0 1 Y


C4.b.2 (a) for each class of asset:
(i) gross carrying amount;
(ii) accumulated depreciation;
(iii) accumulated impairment loss;
(iv) depreciation charge for the period;
(v) impairment losses recognised for the period; and
(vi) impairment losses reversed for the period;


0 1 Y


C4.b.3 (b) the future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases, in total and for each of the following three 
periods after the balance sheet date:
(i) no later than one year;
(ii) later than one year and no later than five years;
(iii) later than five years;


0 1 Y


C4.b.4 (c) total contingent rents included in income; and 0 1 Y
C4.b.5 (d) a general description of the lessor’s significant leasing arrangements. 0 1 Y
C4.b.6 17p65 The disclosure requirements set out in  para 1 above also apply to sale and leaseback transactions. Any unique or unusual 


provisions of the agreements or terms of the sale and leaseback transactions should be separately disclosed.
0 1 Y


C4.b.7 IFRIC4pBC39 The disclosure requirements set out in para 1 above also apply to leases under IFRIC4. 0 1 Y
C4.c. - Arrangements that do not involve a lease in substance 0 Yes 0 Total: 1 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 1 | F - 0
C4.c.1 SIC27p10-11 Certain special disclosures apply over the legal form of leases. Refer to Section A5.16 (c). 0 1 A


C4.d. 17p66 - Sale and leaseback transactions 0 Yes 0 Total: 1 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 1 | F - 0
C4.d.1 Sale and leaseback transactions may trigger the separate disclosure criteria in IAS 1, ‘Presentation of financial statements’. 0 1 A


C5. Decommissioning, restoration and environmental rehabilitation funds 0 Yes 0 Total: 4 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 4 | F - 0
C5.1 IFRIC5p4 IFRIC 5, ‘Rights to interests arising from decommissioning, restoration and environmental rehabilitation funds’, effective from 


1 January 2006, explains how to treat expected reimbursements from funds set up to meet the costs of decommissioning plant 
(such as nuclear plant) or equipment (such as cars) or in undertaking environmental restoration or rehabilitation (such as 
rectifying pollution of water or restoring mined land). his interpretation applies to accounting in the financial statements of a 
contributor for interests arising from decommissioning funds that have both of the following features: 
(a)  the assets are administered separately (either by being held in a separate legal entity or as segregated assets within another 
entity); and
(b)  a contributor’s right to access the assets is restricted.


A residual interest in a fund that extends beyond a right to reimbursement, such as a contractual right to distributions once all 
the decommissioning has been completed or on winding up the fund, may be an equity instrument within the scope of IAS 39 
and is not within the scope of this Interpretation.


0 1 A


C5.2 IFRIC5p11 A contributor discloses the nature of its interest in a fund and any restrictions on access to the assets in the fund. 0 1 A
C5.3 IFRIC5p12 When a contributor has an obligation to make potential additional contributions that is not recognised as a liability (refer to 


IFRIC 5 para 10), it makes the disclosures required by IAS 37 para 86 (refer to Section A5.21).
0 1 A


C5.4 IFRIC5p13 When a contributor accounts for its interest in the fund in accordance with IFRIC 5 para 9, it makes the disclosures required by 
IAS 37 para 85(c)  (refer to Section A5.13).


0 1 A


01
D Additional disclosures required of listed companies 0 Yes 0
D1. Operating segments 0 Yes 0
D1.1. - General disclosures 0 Yes 0 Total: 6 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 6 | F - 0
D1.1.1 IFRS8p20 Disclose information to enable users to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business activities in which the entity 


engages and the economic environment in which it operates.
0 1 A


D1.1.2 IFRS8p22 (a) ,(b) Disclose the following general information: 0 1 A
D1.1.3 (a) the factors used in identifying the entity’s reportable segments, including the basis of organisation (for example, by 


geographical area, products and services, or a combination of factors and whether operating segments have been aggregated); 
and


0 1 A


D1.1.4 IFRS8p22(aa) Disclose the judgements made by management in applying the aggregation criteria  in IFRS 8 paragraph 12. This includes a brief 
description of the operating segments that have been aggregated in this way and the economic indicators that have been 
assessed in determining that the aggregated operating segments share similar economic characteristics


0 1 A


D1.1.5 (b)  the types of products and services from which each reportable segment generates revenues. 0 1 A
D1.1.6 IFRS8p21 Give reconciliations of balance sheet amounts for reportable segments to the entity’s balance sheet amounts for each date at 


which a balance sheet is presented.
0 1 A


D1.2. - Profit or loss, assets and liabilities 0 Yes 0 Total: 15 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 15 | F - 0
D1.2.1 IFRS8p23 Report a measure of profit or loss for each reportable segment, and a measure of total assets and liabilities for each reportable 


segment if those amounts are regularly provided to the chief operating decision-maker. 
0 1 A


D1.2.2 IFRS8p23 (a-i) Disclose the following information for each reportable segment if the information is included in the measure of segment profit 
or loss reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker, or is otherwise regularly provided to them, even if not included in that 
measure of segment profit or loss:


0 1 A


D1.2.3 (a) revenues from external customers; 0 1 A
D1.2.4 (b) revenues from transactions with other operating segments of the same entity; 0 1 A
D1.2.5 (c) interest revenue; 0 1 A
D1.2.6 (d) interest expense; 0 1 A
D1.2.7 (e) depreciation and amortisation; 0 1 A
D1.2.8 (f) material items of income and expense disclosed in accordance with IAS 1 para 86; 0 1 A
D1.2.9 (g) the entity’s interest in the profit or loss of associates and joint ventures accounted for by the equity method; 0 1 A
D1.2.10 (h) income tax income or expense; and 0 1 A
D1.2.11 (i) material non-cash items (other than depreciation and amortisation). 0 1 A
D1.2.12 Report interest revenue separately from interest expense for each reportable segment unless a majority of the segment's 


revenues are from interest and the chief operating decision maker relies primarily on net interest revenue to assess the 
performance of the segment and make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment. In that situation, an entity may 
report that segment's interest revenue net of its interest expense and disclose that it has done so.


0 1 A


D1.2.13 IFRS8p24 (a), (b) Disclose the following about each reportable segment if the specified amounts are included in the measure of segment assets 
reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker or is otherwise regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker, even if 
not included in that measure of segment assets:


0 1 A


D1.2.14 (a) the amount of investments in associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method; and 0 1 A
D1.2.15 (b) the amount of additions to non-current assets other than financial instruments, deferred tax assets, post-employment 


benefit assets and rights arising under insurance contracts.
0 1 A


D1.3. - Explanation of segment profit or loss, segment assets and liabilities 0 Yes 0 Total: 7 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 7 | F - 0
D1.3.1 IFRS8p27 (a), (b), (c), 


(d), (e), (f)
Provide an explanation of the measurements of profit or loss, assets and liabilities for each reportable segment, including: 0 1 A


D1.3.2 (a) the basis of accounting for any transactions between reportable segments; 0 1 A
D1.3.3 (b) the nature of any differences between the measurements of the reportable segments' profits or losses and the entity's profit 


or loss before income tax expense or income and discontinued operations. Those differences could include accounting policies 
and policies for allocation of centrally incurred costs that are necessary for an understanding of the reported segment 
information.;


0 1 A


D1.3.4 (c) the nature of any differences between the measurements of the reportable segments' assets and the entity's assets. Those 
differences could include accounting policies and policies for allocation of jointly used assets that are necessary for an 
understanding of the reported segment information;


0 1 A


D1.3.5 (d) the nature of any differences between the measurements of the reportable segments' liabilities and the entity's liabilities. 
Those differences could include accounting policies and policies for allocation of jointly utilised liabilities that are necessary for 
an understanding of the reported segment information;


0 1 A


D1.3.6 (e) the nature of any changes from prior periods in the measurement methods used to determine reported segment profit or loss 
and the effect, if any, of those changes on the measure of segment profit or loss; and


0 1 A


D1.3.7 (f) the nature and effect of any asymmetrical allocations to reportable segments (for example, where depreciation expense is 
allocated to a segment but the related asset is not).


0 1 A


D1.4. - Reconciliations 0 Yes 0 Total: 6 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 6 | F - 0
D1.4.1 IFRS8p28 (a), (b) , (c), 


(d), (e)
Provide reconciliations (all material reconciling items are separately identified and disclosed) of the following: 0 1 A


D1.4.2 (a) the total of reportable segments’ revenues to the entity’s revenue; 0 1 A
D1.4.3 (b)  the total of the reportable segments’ measure of profit or loss to the entity’s profit or loss before tax and discontinued 


operations, unless items such as tax income and expense are allocated to segments, in which case the reconciliation may be to 
the entity’s profit or loss after those items;


0 1 A


D1.4.4 (c) the total of the reportable segments’ assets to those of the entity's assets if the segment assets are reported in accordance 
with paragraph 23 (to the CODM). 


0 1 A







D1.4.5 (d) the total of the liabilities of the reportable segments to those of the entity (where segment liabilities are reported); and 0 1 A


D1.4.6 (e) for any other material item the total of the reportable segments’ amount to the corresponding amount for the entity. 0 1 A


D1.5. - Restatement of previously reported information 0 Yes 0 Total: 3 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 3 | F - 0
D1.5.1 IFRS8p29 Where there has been a change in the composition of the entity’s reportable segments, disclose whether it has restated the 


corresponding items of segment information for earlier periods.
0 1 A


D1.5.2 Where there is such a change, restate corresponding information for earlier periods, including interim periods, unless the 
information is not available and the cost to develop would be excessive. Make this decision for each individual item of 
disclosure.


0 1 A


D1.5.3 IFRS8p30 Where there has been a change in the composition of the entity’s reportable segments and segment information for earlier 
periods, including interim periods, is not restated, the entity shall disclose in the year in which the change occurs segment 
information for the current period on both the old basis and the new basis of segmentation (unless the necessary information is 
not available and the cost to develop it would be excessive).


0 1 A


D1.6. - Entity-wide disclosures 0 Yes 0 Total: 9 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 9 | F - 0
D1.6.1 IFRS8p31 Provide the following information if it is not provided as part of the reportable segment information. 0 1 A
D1.6.2 IFRS8p32 (a) the revenues from external customers for each product and service, or each group of similar products and services, unless 


the information is not available and the cost to develop it would be excessive, in which case, disclose that fact. 
0 1 A


D1.6.3 (b) the amounts of the revenues are based on the revenue per the financial statements. 0 1 A
D1.6.4 IFRS8p33 (a), (b)  Provide the following geographical information, unless the necessary information is not available and the cost to develop it 


would be excessive (if this is the case, disclose this fact):
0 1 A


D1.6.5 (a) revenues for external customers split between those attributable to the entity’s country of domicile and all foreign countries 
in total from which the entity derives revenues. Disclose the basis for attributing revenues from external customers to individual 
countries; If revenues from external customers attributed to an individual foreign country are material  those revenues should 
be disclosed separately; and


0 1 A


D1.6.6 (b) non-current assets (other than financial instruments, deferred tax assets, post-employment benefit assets and rights arising 
under insurance contracts) split between those located in the entity’s country of domicile and those located in all foreign 
countries in total in which the entity holds assets. If assets in an individual foreign country are material, disclose those assets 
separately.


0 1 A


D1.6.7 The amounts of the assets and revenues are based on the amounts per the financial statements. An entity may provide, in 
addition to this information, subtotals of geographical information about groups of countries.


0 1 A


D1.6.8 IFRS8p34 Provide information about the extent of the entity’s reliance on its major customers. If revenues from transactions with a single 
external customer are 10% or more of the entity’s revenues, disclose that fact, along with the total amounts of revenues from 
each such customer and the identity of the segments reporting the revenues. 


0 1 A


D1.6.9 The entity need not disclose the identity of a major customer or the amount of revenues that each segment reports from that 
customer.  A group of entities (or government – national, state, provincial, territorial, local, foreign) under common control 
shall be considered a single customer.


0 1 A


D1.7. - Other disclosures impacted by IFRS 8 0 Yes 0 Total: 12 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 12 | F - 0
D1.7.1 IFRS5p41(d) Non-current assets held for sale. Disclose in the period in which a non-current asset (or disposal group) has been either 


classified as held for sale or sold, the reportable segment in which the non-current asset (or disposal group) is presented.
0 1 A


D1.7.2 7p50(d) Statement of cash flows. An entity is encouraged, but not required, to disclose the amount of cash flows arising from the 
operating, investing and financing activities of each reportable segment.


0 1 A


D1.7.3 36p129 Impairment. An entity that reports segment information in accordance with IFRS 8 discloses the following for each reportable 
segment:


0 1 A


D1.7.4 (a) the amount of impairment losses recognised in profit or loss and directly in equity during the period; and 0 1 A
D1.7.5 (b) the amount of reversals of impairment losses recognised in profit or loss and directly in equity during the period. 0 1 A


D1.7.6 Disclose for each material impairment loss recognised or reversed during the period for an individual asset, including goodwill, 
or a cash-generating unit:


0 1 A


D1.7.7 36p130(c)(i), (ii) (a) for an individual asset: 0 1 A
D1.7.8 (i) the nature of the asset; and 0 1 A
D1.7.9 (ii) if the entity reports segment information in accordance with IFRS 8, the reportable segment to which the asset belongs; and 0 1 A
D1.7.10 36p130(d)(i), (ii) (b) for a cash-generating unit: 0 1 A
D1.7.11 (i) a description of the cash-generating unit (such as whether it is a product line, a plant, a business operation, a geographical 


area, or a reportable segment as defined in IFRS 8); and
0 1 A


D1.7.12 (ii) the amount of impairment loss recognised or reversed by class of assets and, if the entity reports segment information in 
accordance with IFRS 8, by reportable segment. 


0 1 A


0 Yes A
D2.1. Earnings per share 0 Yes 0 Total: 12 | P - 0 | Y - 12 | N - 0 | A - 0 | F - 0


0 Yes 01
E Additional disclosures required of entities that issue insurance contracts 0 Yes 0
E. Disclosures required of entities that issue insurance contracts 0 Yes 0 Total: 20 | P - 0 | Y - 0 | N - 0 | A - 20 | F - 0
E.1 IFRS4p36 Disclose information that identifies and explains the amounts in its financial statements arising from insurance contracts. 


Disclose at least the following:
0 1 A


E.2 IFRS4p37 (a) accounting policies for insurance contracts and related assets, liabilities, income and expense; 0 1 A
E.3 (b) the recognised assets, liabilities, income and expense (and, if the insurer presents cash flow statement using the direct 


method, cash flows) arising from insurance contracts. If the insurer is a cedant, it should disclose:
(i) gains and losses recognised in profit or loss on buying reinsurance; and
(ii) if the cedant defers and amortises gains and losses arising on buying reinsurance, the amortisation for the period and the 
amounts remaining unamortised at the beginning and end of the period;


0 1 A


E.4 (c) the process used to determine the assumptions that have the greatest effect on the measurement of the recognised amounts 
described in (b) above; when practicable, also provide quantified disclosure of those assumptions;


0 1 A


E.5 (d) the effect of changes in assumptions used to measure insurance assets and insurance liabilities, showing separately the 
effect of each change that has a material effect on the financial statements; and


0 1 A


E.6 (e) reconciliations of changes in insurance liabilities, reinsurance assets and, related deferred acquisition costs, if any. 0 1 A


E.7 IFRS4p38 Disclose information that enables users of its financial statements to evaluate the nature and extent of risks arising from 
insurance contracts. Disclose at least the following:


0 1 A


E.8 IFRS4p39  (a)  objectives, policies and processes for managing risks arising from insurance contracts and the methods used to manage 0 1 A
E.9 (b) [deleted from the standard] 0 1 A
E.10 (c) information about insurance risk (both before and after risk mitigation by reinsurance), including information about:


(i)  sensitivity to insurance risk (see IFRS 4 para 39A) of profit or loss and equity to changes in variables that have a material 
effect on them;
(ii)  concentrations of insurance risk, including a description of how management determines concentrations and a description 
of the shared characteristic that identifies each concentration (for example, type of insured event, geographical area, or 
currency);
(iii)  actual claims compared with previous estimates (claims development). The disclosure about claims development  shall go 
back to the period when the earliest material claim arose for which there is still uncertainty about the amount and timing of the 
claims payments, but need not go back more than 10 years. An insurer need not disclose this information for claims for which 
uncertainty about the amount and timing of claims payments is typically resolved within one year;


0 1 A


E.11 (d)  information about credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk that IFRS 7 paras 31-42 would require if the insurance contracts 
were within the scope of IFRS 7: 


0 1 A


E.12 (e)  information about exposures to market risk arising from  embedded derivatives contained in a host insurance contract if the 
insurer is not required to, and does not, measure the embedded derivatives at fair value.


0 1 A


E.13 To comply with IFRS 7 para 39(c)(i), disclose either (a) or (b) as follows: 0 1 A
E.14 (a)  a sensitivity analysis that shows how profit or loss and equity would have been affected had changes in the relevant risk 


variable that were reasonably possible at the balance sheet date occurred; the methods and assumptions used in preparing the 
sensitivity analysis; and any changes from the previous period in the methods and assumptions used. However, if an insurer 
uses an alternative method to manage sensitivity to market conditions, such as an embedded value analysis, it may meet this 
requirement by disclosing that alternative sensitivity analysis and the disclosures required by paragraph 41 of IFRS 7; or


0 1 A


E.15 (b)  qualitative information about sensitivity, and information about those terms and conditions of insurance contracts that 
have a material effect on the amount, timing and uncertainty of the insurer’s future cash flows. 


0 1 A


E.16 IFRS7p30 Some financial assets and financial liabilities contain a discretionary participation feature as described in IFRS 4. If an entity 
cannot measure reliably the fair value of that feature, disclose that fact together with a description of the contract, its carrying 
amount, an explanation of why fair value cannot be measured reliably, information about the market for the instrument, 
information about whether and how the entity intends to dispose of the instrument and, if financial instruments whose fair 
value previously could not be reliably measured are derecognised, that fact, their carrying amount at the time of derecognition, 
and the amount of gain or loss recognised.


0 1 A


E.17 Applying the liability adequacy test (IFRS 4 paras 15-19) to such comparative information may be impracticable, but it is 
unlikely to be impracticable to apply other requirements of IFRS 4 paras 10-35 to such comparative information. IAS 8 
explains the term ‘impracticable’.


0 1 A


E.18 IFRS4p44 In applying IFRS 4 para 39(c)(iii) – disclosure of actual claims compared with previous estimates – an entity need not disclose 
information about claims development that occurred earlier than five years before the end of the first financial year in which it 
applies IFRS 4.


0 1 A


E.19 If it is impracticable, when an entity first applies IFRS 4, to prepare information about claims development that occurred before 
the beginning of the earliest period for which an entity presents full comparative information that complies with IFRS 4, 
disclose that fact.


0 1 A


E.20 39p103B, IFRS4p41A Amendments to IAS 39 and IFRS 4, ‘Financial guarantee contracts’, was issued in August 2005. A new definition of financial 
guarantee contracts was added in IAS 39 and IFRS 4. The disclosure requirements for financial guarantees are included in 
Section A8.17.


0 1 A


0 Yes 01
F Disclosures required for retirement benefit plans 0 Yes 0
F. Disclosures required for retirement benefit plans 0 Yes 0 Total: 23 | P - 0 | Y - 23 | N - 0 | A - 0 | F - 0
F.1 26p13 Include in the report provided by a defined contribution plan: (a) a statement of net assets available for benefits; and (b) a 


description of the funding policy.
0 1 Y


F.2 26p17, 35(d) Include in the report of a defined benefit plan either: 0 1 Y
F.3 (a) a statement that shows:


(i) the net assets available for benefits;
(ii) the actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits, distinguishing between vested benefits and non-vested benefits; 
and
(iii) the resulting excess or deficit; or


0 1 Y


F.4 (b) a statement of net assets available for benefits including either:
(i) a note disclosing the actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits, distinguishing between vested benefits and non-
vested benefits; or
(ii) a reference to this information in an accompanying actuarial report.


0 1 Y


F.5 26p35(a) Disclose in the statement of net assets available for benefits: 0 1 Y
F.6 (a) assets at period end, suitably classified; 0 1 Y
F.7 (b) basis of valuation of assets; 0 1 Y
F.8 (c) details of any single investment exceeding 5% of net assets available for benefits, or 5% of any class or type of security; 0 1 Y


F.9 (d) details of any investment in the employer; and 0 1 Y
F.10 (e) liabilities other than the actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits. 0 1 Y
F.11 26p34(a), p35(b) The report of a retirement benefit plan, whether defined benefit or defined contribution, should also contain the following 


information:
0 1 Y


F.12 (a) statement of changes in net assets available for benefits, including:
(i) employer contributions;
(ii) employee contributions;
(iii) investment income (for example, interest and dividends);
(iv) other income;
(v) benefits paid or payable (analysed, for example, as retirement, death and disability benefits, and lump-sum payments);
(vi) administrative expenses;
(vii) other expenses;
(viii) taxes on income;
(ix) profits and losses on disposal of investments;
(x) changes in value of investments; and
(xi) transfers from and to other plans;


0 1 Y





